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The United States,
ss.

District of Alaska.::S-

Pleas and proceedings began and had in the District

Court of the United States for the District of Alaska, at

the adjourned November term, 1896.

Present: The Honorable ARTHUR K. DELANEY,

Judge.

THE UNITED STATES, ^

Plaintiff,

vs.

} No. 427.

ARCHIE SHELP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND,

Defendants. /

The United States of America, )

District of Alaska. \



Archie Shelp and George Cleveland

In the District Court of the United States for the District

of Alaska.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMER- '

ICA
23 U. S. Statutes

VS. > at Large, Chapter
53, Section 14.

AECHIE SHELP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND, j

Indictment.

At the adjourned November term of the District Court

of the United States of America, within and for the Dis-

trict of Alaska, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and ninety-four, begun and holden at Juneau, iu

said District.

The Grand Jurors of the United States of America, se-

lected, empaneled, sworn, and charged within and for the

District of Alaska, accuse Archie Shelp and George

( 'leveland by this indictment of the crime of unlawfully

selling intoxicating liquors within said District, commit-

ted as follows: The said Archie Shelp and George Cleve-

land, at or near Chilcoot, within the said district of Alas-

ka, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, on or about

the 18th day of August in the year of our Lord

one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, did nn-
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lawfully and willfully sell to Alaska Indians, whose

real names are to the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown,

an intoxicating liquor called whisky, to-wit, one pint,

quart, gallon of said liquor, the real quantity is to the

Grand Jurors unknown; without having first complied

with the law concerning the sale of intoxicating liquors,

iu the District of Alaska.

And so the Grand Jurors duly selected, empaneled,

sworn, and charged as aforesaid upon their oaths do say:

That Archie Shelp and George Cleveland did then and

there unlawfully sell intoxicating liquors to-wit, whisky,

in the manner and form aforesaid, to the said Alaska

Indians contrary to the form of the statutes in such cases

made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of

the United States of America.

LYTTON TAYLOR,

United States District Attorney.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. United States of America vs.

Archie Shelp and George Cleveland. Indictment for vio-

lating S. 14, eh. 53, 23 U. S. Stat, at A. A true bill. B.

M. Behrends, Foreman of Grand Jury. Witnesses exam-

ined before the Grand Jury, Au-ta-iet (Chilkoot)

Eddie "

Dave "

Filed Dec. 6, 1894. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. Lytton

Taylor, TT
. S. Attorney.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on the 2nd day of December,

1895, the following further proceedings were had and ap-

pear of record in said cause which are words and figures

following, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,

vs. \ No 427

GEORGE CLEVELAND and ARCHIE

SHELP.

Plea.

Now at this day conies the plaintiff by Burton E. Ben-

nett, Esq., United States Attorney, and the defendant,

George Cleveland being personally present and his coun-

sel, John P. Malony, Esq., waives arraignment and fur-

ther time to plead, and enters a plea of "not guilty" to

the indictment.

And afterwards, to-wit, on April 15th, 1896, the follow-

ing further proceedings were had and appear of record ir

said cause, which are in words and figures following, to-

wit:



vs. The United States of America.

UNITED STATES,

vs.

ARCHIE SHELP and GEORGE > No. 427.

CLEVELAND.

Trial

This cause coming ow for trial, the plaintiff being rep

resented by Burton E. Bennett, United States Attorney,

and the defendants being personally in court, and their

counsel, Messrs, J. F. Malony, Esq., and John Trumbull,

Esq., the venire of the petit jury was called by the clerk,

and the jurors sworn as to their qualifications, and being-

passed for cause, the following jurors were sworn to try

the issues: J. C. Hoffman, Ira Lee, H. M. Woodruff, John

Calhoun, James Atkinson, Peter Hahn, J. F. Lindsey, J.

D. Douglass, Wm.Shuler, O. H. Adsit, Victor Lindquist,

John MePherson, and the evidence being heard in part

and there not being time to complete the hearing of said

cause, the same is continued until 9 o'clock A. M. Thurs-

day, April 16, 1896.

And afterwards, to-wit, on Thursday, April 16, 189C>,

the following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:
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UNITED STATES,

ARCHIE SHELP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND.

1

The jury in the above-entitled cause having come into

court and being called by the clerk, and all answering,

the plaintiff being represented by Burton E. Bennett

Esq., United States Attorney, the defendants being pres-

ent, and their counsel, Messrs. J. F. Malony, Esq., and

John Trumbull, Esq., the jury rendered the following ver-

dict :

The United States of America

District of Alaska.
•1

In the District Court of the United States for the District

of A laska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

vs.

ARCHIE SHELP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND.

Verdict.

Special session commencing March 30, 1896.

We, the jury empaneled and sworn in the above-entitled
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cause, find the defendant guilty as charged in the indict-

ment.

J. D. DOUGLAS,
Foreman.

It is therefore ordered by the Court that the jury be dis-

charged from further attendance in this cause and that

the defendants be required to furnish recognizance in the

sum of five hundred dollars for appearance before this

Court for sentence.

And afterwards, to-wit, on April IT, 189(5, defendants

filed their motion in arrest, which is in words and figures

following, to-wit:

In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of A laska.

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GEOTCGE CLEVELAND and ATCCHIE

SHELP.

Defendants.

Motion in Arrest of Judgment.

Come now the defendants above named and move the

Court to arrest the judgment in the above-entitled cause

upon the following ground, to-wit:
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First. That tliwiJictnienu in said cause does not state

facts sufficient to constitute a crime against the laws of

the United States,

J. F. MALONY,
JNO. TRUMBULL,

Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dist.

of Alaska. United States v. George Cleveland and Ar-

chie Shelp. Motion in arrest.

Filed April 17, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. J. F.

Malony and John Trumbull, Attorneys for Defts.

And afterwards, to-wit, on April 17, 1896, defendants

filed their motion for a new trial, which is in words and

figures following, to-wit:

In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GEORGE CLEVELAND and ARCHIE
SHELP.

Defendants.

flotion for New Trial.

Come now the defendants above named and move the
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Court to vacate and set aside the verdict in the above-

entitled cause and to grant a new trial upon the following

grounds, to-wit:

First. Irregularity in the proceedings of the court and

abuse of discretion by the Court, by which the said de-

fendants were prevented from having a fair trial.

Second. Misconduct on the part of the prevailing

party, in this, that the United States attorney in his state-

ment of the case to the jury, that as a result of the acts

with which the defendants were charged, that a murder

had been committed, and in his opening address to the

jury after the evidence had been closed, although no evi-

dence had been introduced of a murder, the United States

attorney stated to the jury that a murder had been com-

mitted, which was the result of the acts charged against

the defendants in the indictment, and stated to the jury,

that the defendants went to the Indian village at Hoona,

and sold whisky to the Indians there, although the de-

fendants were not charged in the said indictment with

selling liquor at any place but at Chilchut<\ and although

there was no evidence that the defendants had stopped at

Hoona, or had sold liquor there.

Third. Surprise which ordinary prudence could not

have guarded against.

Newly discovered evidence. Material for the defend-

ants, which they could not with reasonable diligence

have discovered and produced at the trial.

Fifth. Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the ver-

dict, and that the verdict is against law, in this, to-wit:
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That the evidence for the prosecution showed that the

persons who sold the liquor to the Indians at Ohilkoot

were two men whom the Indians had never seen before,

whom they describe as the older one having a full beard

and the younger one having a mustache and a small

growth of beard, while the evidence indisputably shows

that at the time the alleged transactions tookpla<-e the de-

fendant Cleveland had neither a beard or a mustache and

the defendant Shelp wore only a mustache.. The evidence

is further insufficient in this that it appears from the un-

disputed evidence of Chis Lungren, that the defendants

Avere at Funter Bay. on the lfith and 17th days of August,

1894, about eighty or ninety miles from Ohilkoot. and that

they left on the morning- of the 17th in their sloop;

the evidence of William Raymond shows conclu-

sively that the defendants arrived at Bartlett Bay

on the morning of the 18th of August; that Bart-

lett Bay is about forty miles from Funter Bay;

that the defendants stayed at Bartlett Bay until the

morning of the 19th ; and that Bartlett Bay is one hundred

and eight miles from Ohilkoot, and that the trip from

Bartlett Bay to Ohilkoot in a sail boat could not be made

in less than three days, and that it was a physical impos-

sibility for the defendants to have been at Ohilkoot, at

any time from the 16th to the 22nd day of August. It fur-

ther appearing from the evidence of Mr. Boss, the ex-dep-

uty marshal, that the Indians arrived from Ohilkoot at

Juneau on the 20th of August, and reported the murder

which had been committed there and the fact of the sale

of whisky to them by two unknown men; that the trip

from Ohilkoot to Juneau could not be made in less than
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two days, so that it manifestly appears that the whisky

was sold to them at a time when by the uncontradicted

testimony it was a physical impossibility that the defend-

ants could be at Chilkoot.

Sixth. Error in the law occurring at the trial and ex-

cepted to by these two defendants, in this, to-wit:

That the Court allowed six Indian witnesses to testify

over the objection of the defendants whose names were

not indorsed on the indictment upon the direct examin-

ation. That no notice was given these defendants that

any other witnesses would be called other than those

whose names were endorsed upon the indictment. That

the Court erred. in overruling the defendants' motion for

a nonsuit or peremptory instruction to the jury to bring

in a verdicl for the defendants after the plaintiff had

rested its case. The Court erred under the circumstances

of this case in instructing the jury that the evidence of an

Indian witness was entitled to as much credit as the

evidence of a white man, and more especially in this as

such instruction was given by the Court with a reference

by the Court to the argument of one of tihe defendamts'

council, who had stated in his argument to the jury in dis-

cussing the weight of evidence "that the evidence of igno-

rant, half-civilized barbarians, whose moral and religious

sense was not developed, and who did not understand and

appreciate the binding force of an oath as understood

by Christian peoples, and who had little or no apprecia-

tion of our religious ideas from which the oath gets its

binding force and efficacy, and who had no apprecia-

tion of the enormity of perjury, that the evidence of such

witnesses was not entitled to as much credit as a witness
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whose moral ideas were more fully developed, and who

understood the binding nature of an oath, and the pains

and penalty of perjury." The Court erred under the cir-

cumstances of this case in instructing- the jury that there

was no evidence that these defendants had located any

mining claims, and in stating to the jury in that connec-

tion that it was for tfhem to judge whether the defendants

were out prospecting as honest miners or prospecting for

the aboriginal native.

Said motion is made upon the records and flies of this

cause and upon affidavits herewith filed.

J. F. MALOXY, and

JNO. TRUMBULL,

Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska. United States, Plaintiff, v. George Cleve-

land and Archie Shelp, Defendants. Motion for a new

trial.

Filed April 17, 1890. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. John

F. Malony and John Trumbull, Attorneys for Defts.

And afterwards, to-wit. on April 18, 1896, defendants

filed affidavits in support of their motion for a new trial,

which are in words and figures following, to-wit:
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In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

UNITED STATES,

Plaintiff,

vs.

GEORGE CLEVELAND and ARCHIE
SHELP.

Defendants.

Affidavit of W. H. Moran.

District of Alaska. )

United States, )

ss.

W. H. Moran, being- first duly sworn, deposes and says:

My name is W. H. Moran ; I am over twenty-one years of

age and reside at Treadwell's, on Douglass Island, Dis-

trict of Alaska. On the twenty-second day of August,

1894, I saw George Cleveland and Archy Shelp in Hoona

S( mid, District of Alaska; that the place at which I saw

them in Hoona Sound was at least thirty-five miles out of

the direct way if one was going from Bartlett Bay to

Chilkoot. That they stayed in and around Hoona Sound

for about six days. T was on board their sloop several

times while they were there, and saw no indications of

them having any liquor on board. They had their miners'

tools with them, and to my knowledge were prospecting
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at the time in and around Hoona Sound. I have been ab-

sent from Alaska between three and four months in the

hospital in Seattle, Washington, and arrived in Alaska

on the last steamer, "TVillapa," about the 9th or 10th of

April, 1896; that I did not see either one of the defend-

ants after my arrival until after the jury in this cause had

brought in a verdict convicting them of selling whisky

at Chilkoot about the 18th day of August, 1894, after

which I called upon them, and called their attention to

the fact of my seeing them in Hoona Sound at said time.

W. H. MORAN.

Subscribed aud sworn to before me this 18th day of

April, 1896.

- [L. S.] J. F. MALONY,

Notary Public.

hi the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Ala slat.

Affidavit of George Cleveland.

United States, )
ss.

District of Alaska. \

George Cleveland, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

I am one of the defendants in the above-entitled action.

Subsequent to the trial of said action, to-wit: On the day

of the 17th of April, 1896, which will establish the fact of

my whereabouts, from the day of August, up to the

28th day of August, 1894, that one of said witnesses, W.
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IT. Moran, will testify that he saw me in company with

Archy Shelp in Hoona Sound; that we stayed there for six

days prospecting for gold, and not for the aboriginal na-

tive; that he was en board our sloop several times; that he

saw no liquor on board, and that we had our mining tools

and outfit with us; that the reason we did not have the

said Moran testify to these facts at our trial was that

the last we knew of him he had gone to Seattle, in the

State of Washington, and was confined to the hospital at

that place. Some three or four months ago when we

learned that our trial was coming on I made diligent in-

quiry for the said Moran, but did not learn of his return

to Alaska until the morning of the 17th day of April,

ISlMi, when he came over to see me at Douglas City, and in-

formed me that he had returned on the steamer Willapa

about the 10th of this month; that said Moran will fur-

ther testify that the place at which he saw us in Hoona

Sound on the 22nd day of August was at least thirty-five

miles out of the direct course to Ghilkoot to Bartlett Bay;

that I could prove by the evidence of Clarence Stites that

he saw myself and Archy Shelp in Hoona Sound, about

thirty-five miles from Bartlett Bay, on the 21st day of Au-

gust, 1894; that he came on board our sloop; that he saw

no liquor on board, and that we had our mining tools and

outfits with us, and that we were prospecting about the

Sound, and that we stayed in that vicinity eight or ten

days; that before this trial I made diligent inquiry for the

said Clarence Stites, and also before the commencement

of this term of court, when llearned there was going to

be a term; that from such inquiries I learned that he was

at Yakoba Island in the Pacific Ocean, a place which is
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almost inaccessible at this season of the year, except for

large vessels, and that even if I had had the mean*

to charter such a large vessel there was none to

be had in this vicinity: that I did not know of

his return until yesterday, April 17th, 1890; that

since I have learned of his return I have diligently

searched and inquired for him, bnt so far have been

unable to find him; I have been informed that he is

out hunting and may not return for several days, and

not in time to present his affidavit to this Court, by two

o'clock this afternoon as ordered by the Court. Affiant

further says that the United States attorney in his open-

ing address to the jury after the evidence had been closed

stated as a result of which the defendants were charged,

namely: Selling whisky to the Indians at Chilkoot, on

or about the 18th day of August, 1894, that a murder had

been committed, and that the Indian who had committed

the murder was in the penitentiary at San Quentin for

such crime, although no evidencewhatever had been intro-

duced of any murder having been committed, and stated

to the jury that this affiant and co-defendant went to the

Indian village at Hoona and sold whisky there, although

the defendants were not charged in said indictuu nt with

selling liquor at any place except Chilkoot, and although

there was no evidence that the defendants had stopped at

Hoona or had sold liquor there. Affiant further says that

the United States attorney in his said address abused

these defendants and attacked their character when they

had not put their character in issue and stated to the said

jury that if these defendants were the good and innocent

men that they tried to make themselves out, whv did fchev
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not bring witnesses to testify to their good character.

Affiant further says that he believes that these reckless

and unwarranted statements made by the United States

attorney to the jury influenced the said jury of bringing

in a verdict of guilty against this affiant and co-defendant.

GEO. CLEVELAND.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 18th day of

April, 1896.

[I- ST.] J. F. MALONY,
Notary Public.

in the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

Affidavit of Archie Shelp

United States, )
ss

District of Alaska. )

Archie Shelp being duly sworn, deposes and says: I am

one of the defendants in the above-entitled action. Sub-

sequent to the trial of said action, bo-wit, on the day of the

17th of April, 1896, which will establish the fact of my
whereabouts from the day of August, ud to the 28th

day of August, 1894, that one of said witnesses, W. TT. Mo-

ran, will testify that be saw me in company with Oeorge

Cleveland in Hoona Sound; that we staved there for six
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days prospecting for gold, and not for the aboriginal na-

tive; that he was on board onr sloop several times, that he

saw no liquor on board, and that we had our mining tools

and outfit with us; tliat the reason Ave did not have the

said Moran testify to these facts at our trial was that the

last we knew of him lie had gone to Seattle, in the State of

TA ashington and was confined to the hospital at that

place. Some three or four months ago when we learned

that our trial was coming on I made diligent inquiry for

the said Moran, but did not learn of his return to Alaska

until the morning of the 17th day of April. 189f>, when he

came over to see me at Douglas City, and informed me

that he has returned on the steamer Willapa about the

10th of this month; that said Moran will further testify

that the place at which he saw us in Hoona Sound on the

22nd day of August, was at least thirty-live miles out of

the direct course to Ohilkoot to Bartlett Bay.

That I could prove by the evidence of Clarence Stites,

that he saw myself and George Cleveland in Hoona Sound,

about thirty-five miles from Bartlett Bay, on the 21st day

of August, 1894, that he came on board our sloop, that he

saw no liquor on board, and that we had our mining tools

and outfits with us, and that we were prospecting about

the Sound, and that we stayed in that vicinity eight or

ten days; that before this trial I made diligent inquiry

for the said Clarence Stites and also before the commence-

ment of this term of court, when I learned there was going

to be a term. That from such inquiries I learned that bo

was at Yakoba Island in the Pacific Ocean, a place which

is almost inaccessible at this season of the year, except for

larae vessels, and that even if I had had the means to char-
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ter such a vessel there was none to be had in this vicinity.

That I did not know of his return until yesterday, April

17th, 1S0G. That since I have learned of his return I have

diligently searched and inquired for him, but so far have

been unable to find him. I have been informed that he

was out hunting and may not return for several days,

and not in time to present his affidavit to this Court, by

two o'clock this afternoon as ordered by the Court. Affi-

ant further says that the United States Attorney in his

opening address to the jury after the evidence had been

closed stated as a result of which the defendants wTere

charged, namely: selling whisky to the Indians at Chil-

koot, on or about the 18th day of August, 1894, that a

murder had been committed and that the Indian who had

committed the murder was in the penitentiary at San

Qnentin for such crime, although no evidence whatever-

had been introduced of any murder having been commit-

ted, and stated to the jury that this affiant and co-defend-

ant went to the Indian village at Hoona and sold whisky

there, although the defendants were not charged in said

indictment with selling liquor at any place except Chil-

koot, and although there was no evidence that the defend-

ant had stopped at Hoona or had sold liquor there.

Affiant further says that the United States Attorney in

his said address abused these defendants and attacked

their character when they had not put their character in

issue, and stated to the said jury that if these defendants

were the good and innocent men that they tried to make

t' tern selves out, why did they not bring witnesses to tes-

tify to their good character.
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Affiant further says that he believes that these reckless

and unwarraned statements made by the United States

Attorney to the jury influenced the said jury of bringing

in a verdict of guilty against this affiant and co-defendant.

ARCHIE SHELP.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 18th day of

April, 1896.

[L. S.] J. F. MALONY,
Notary Public.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska. United States, Plaintiff, vs. Archie Shelp,

George Cleveland, Defendants. Affidavits on motion for

new trial. Filed Apr. 18, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk.

John F. Malony, John Trumbull, Attorneys for defend-

ants.

And afterwards, to-wit, on Saturday, April 18, 1896,

the following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,

vs.

ARCHIE SHELP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND.

Judgment.

Now at this day comes the plaintiff by Burton E. Ben-

nett, Esq., United States Attorney, as also come the de-
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fendants in person, with Messrs. J. F. Malony and John

Trumbull, their counsel, and appearing for judgment, and

the motion for new trial and the motion for arrest of judg-

ment being denied—

It is ordered, adjudged and decreed that defendants be.

and they are hereby, convicted of the crime of unlawfully

selling intoxicating liquor in Alaska and sentenced to

imprisonment in the TL S. Jail for the District of Alaska

for the term of six calendar months.

And afterwards, to-wit, on May 25, 1890. the defendants

tiled their Rill of Exceptions in said cause, which is in

words and figures following, to-wit:

In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

)

UNITED STATES,

vs.

ARCHIE SHBLP and GEORGE
CLEVELAND.

Bill of Exceptions.

Be it remembered that afterward, to-wit, on the lfith

day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
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hundred and ninety-six, at a special term of said Court,

begun and holden Ui Juneau, in and for the District of

Alaska, before his Honor Arthur K. Delaney, the District

Juclge, the issue joined in the above-stated cause, between

the said parties, came on to be tried before the said

Judge, and a jury, which was duly empaneled and sworn,

to try the issue between the said parties. The plaintiff

being represented by Burton E. Bennett, Esq., United

states Attorney, and the defendants by John F. Malony,

Esq., their attorney, and John Trumbull of counsel.

Whereupon the following testimony was offered and intro-

duced on the part of the plaintiff to maintain the issue,

and called as a witness Dennis, an Indian, whereupon the

defendants objected to the said Dennis being sworn as a

witness in the said cause, for the reason that his name was

not endorsed upon the indictment, and for the reason that

the defendants nor their attorneys had been furnished

with a list containing the name of said witness, or in any

manner notified that said witness would be called by the

plaintiff to testify in said cause, which objections were

overruled by the Court, and the witness permitted to

be sworn and testify, to which ruling of the Court the

defendants then and there excepted, which exceptions

were allowed by the Court. Whereupon the said witness

was duly sworn, and testified as follows:

My name is DENNIS. I live at Chilkoot. (The District

Attorney here pointed out the defendants to the witness

and asked the witnes if he knew them.) I know these

defendants. I saw them but once, two winters and one

summer ago; thev were at Chilkoot. Their boat was
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anchored off the shore. The younger man (meaning the

defendant Cleveland) waved his hat to me, picked up a

keg, then drank out of a tin cup. When I came to their

boat they gave me whisky to drink, and told me to tell

the other people at the village that they had plenty of

whisky. I went, and told at the village, and twelve of us

came down in a canoe, and got whisky from the white

men. I got two bottles, and paid four ($4.00) for it. I

never saw the defendants before or since.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Malony.

The defendant Cleveland had a mustache at the time

he was at Chilkoot, and small whiskers. The defendant

Shelp had whiskers all over his face. I never saw them

before or since. The boat was anchored about as far as

from here to the sawmill from the land (meaning as far

as from Juneau to the mill on Douglas Island). Where-

upon the plaintiff called the following witnesses: (loo-

Nawk, Dick, Sam-doo, Kassto, Dave, Jim. The defend-

ants objected to the said witnesses being sworn and testi-

fying, with the exception of witness Dave, for the reason

that their names were not endorsed upon the indictment,

and for the reason that neither the defendants or their

attorneys were furnished with a list containing the names

of the witnesses, or any order of the Court made allowing

the District Attorney to have other witnesses sworn on

the part of the plaintiff than those endorsed on the

indictment, which objections of the defendants were over-

rnled bj' the Court, to which ruling of the Court the de-
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fondants then and there excepted, which exceptions- were

allowed by the Court; whereupon all of said witnesses

were duly sworn, and testified substantially as the first

witness, Dennis, had testified.

Whereupon the plaintiff rested its case, and the defend-

ants moved the Court either for a non-suit or a peremptory

instruction to the jury to bring in a verdict for the defend-

ants, upon the ground and for the reason that the evi-

dence failed to show that the defendants had sold whisky

in Alaska without first complying with the law in regard

to the sale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska, which motion

was overruled and denied by the Court, and to which

ruling of the Court the defendants then and there ex-

cepted, which exceptions were allowed.

Whereupon the attorneys for the said defendants

called as a witness

JOHN C. ROSS, who being duly sworn, testified

among other things as follows:

I was Deputy U. S. Marshal, for the District of Alaska,

in August, 1894, and resided at Douglas City, near Juneau

in said District. I remember the time when the Indians

from Chilkoot came to Juneau and made complaint

against these defendants for selling whisky to them on

th,e 18th day of August, 1894. The complaint was made

on the 20th day of August, 1894, and T started the same

aftr-rnoon for Chilkoot: the distance from Jnneau to Chil-

koot is ninety-five miles. The Indians came from Cfoil-

koor to Juneau in canoes. I arrested the defendants on

thp 3rd day of Sept., 1894. The Indians told me at Chil-

koot that the men who sold them liqnor wore beards and
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mustaches, and that they had never seen them before.

(The plaintiff moved that what the Indians told the wit-

ness be stricken out, as not the best evidence, which

motion was sustained by the Court, and the same ordered

stricken, to which ruling of the Court the defendants then

and there excepted, which exceptions were allowed.)

Whereupon to maintain the issue on their part the de-

fendant Archy Shelp was called as a witness, who, being

duly sworn, testified among other things as follows:

My name is Archy Shelp. I am one of the defendants

in this cause. I reside at Douglas, in the District of

Alaska. On the 12th day of August, 1894, in company

with the defendant George Cleveland, we started from

Douglas on a prospecting expedition, in a sloop; we first

went to Bear Creek, on Douglas Island, and prospected

around there for several days. We left there and arrived

at Funter Bay, on Admiralty Island, on the 16th day of

August, 1894, and stayed there until the 17th of August.

While at Funter Bay, we met one Gus Lungreen, who

(auie aboard our sloop several times. Funter Bay is

about ninety miles from Chilkoot; that on the morning of

the 17th we left Funter Bay in our sloop and arrived at

Bartlett Bay on the morning of the 18th; that Bartlett

Bay is about forty miles from Funter Bay; that we stayed

at Bartlett Bay until the morning of the 19th of August;

while at Bartlett Bay we met one William "Raymond, who

lives there, and purchased from him some provisions;

that Bartlett Bay is about one hundred and eight miles

from Chilkoot. On the morning of the 19th of August,

1894, we left Bartlett Bay and went to lloona Sound, and

arrived at TToona Sound on the morning of the 20th, and
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stayed there prospecting around the Sound for eight or

ten days; during this time Mr. Cleveland was clean

shaven and did not wear either a beard or mustache. I

wore only a mustache. I was never at Chilkoot in my
life. I never saw, to my knowledge, any of the Indians

who testified in this case. When we started out we took

our mining tools and outfits with us. We had no whisky

on board of our sloop; neither sold or gave away any

whisky to Indians.

GEORGE CLEVELAND, being duly sworn on the part

of the defendants, testified substantially to the foregoing

facts testified to by the defendant Shelp. He further

stated as follows:

That it was not true, as stated by the witnesses for the

plaintiff, that they did not know him and had never seen

him but once. That in 1891 and 1892 he had fished at

Chilkoot for the cannery. That he knew said Indians

who had testified, and that they knew him. That Hoona

Souud was about thirty-five miles out of the direct course

from Bartlett Bay from Chilkoot.

Whereupon WILLIAM RAYMOND, being sworn on

the part of the defendant, testified as follows:

My name is William Raymond. I live at Bartlett Bay

in Alaska, and lived there in August, 1894. I know the

defendants. I had never met the defendant Shelp until

the ISih of August, 1894, at which time he and George

Cleveland came to Bartlett Bay in a sloop. They stopped

at Bartlett Bay until the morning of the 19th of August.

I was on their sloop several times while they were there.
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I saw no indications of them having any liquor on board.

I asked them if they had anything to drink; they told me

that they had a couple of bottles when they started out

but that it was all gone. They had their mining tools and

outfit with them, and I understood from them that they

were out prospecting. They bought some provisions from

me while at Bartlett Bay. They left on the morning of

the 19th. The distance from Bartlett Bay to Ohilkoot. is

(*tic hundred and eight miles. The trip could be made

from Bartlett Bay to Ohilkoot in a boat like the one the

defendants had in about three days with average weather.

Cross'-E.ra urination by Dish Attorney.

I remember the date they were at Bartlett Bay from the

fact i bat they bought groceries from me. They offered

in payment of the groceries a twenty dollar gold piece. I

could not make the change, so I charged the amount of

groceries against them in my book, and that is the date

of the charge, the 10th day of August, 1894. Mr. Cleve-

land was clean shaven, wearing neither a beard or a mus-

tache. Mr. Shelp wore a mustache but had no beard.

When the defendants left Bartlett Bay on the morning of

the 19th they went in the direction of Hoona.

By the Court:

Q. Is there not an Indian village at Bartlett Bay?

A. Yes, sir.

And another at Hoonah?

Yes, »ir.

Bv the Court.—A-h-h! that is all, sir.
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Whereupon the defendants to further sustain the issue

upon their part called as a witness.

GUS LUNGREN, who being duly sworn, testified

among other things as follows :

My name is Gus Lungren. I live at Douglas City in

Alaska. On the 16th and 17th days of August, 1804, I

was camping at Funter Bay and vsaw the defendants,

Archy Shelp and George Cleveland. They arrived there

on the Ifiih day of August in a sloop, and stayed there

until the 17th. I was on board their sloop several times

while they were there. I saw no indications of them hav-

ing liquor on board. They had their mining tools and

outfits with them and gave me to understand that they

were on a prospecting tour. Funter Bay is about ninety

miles from Chilkoot. Mr. Cleveland wore either a beard

or a mustache at that time, and had not for some months

previous. Mr. Shelp wore a mustache only.

Gross-Examination by Dixt. Attorney.

The reason I remember the date was that I left Douglas

for Funter Bay on the day that the sawmill burned down

at Douglas.

Defendants rest; plaintiff rests.

Whereupon the United States Attorney addressed the

jury in behalf of the plaintiff, and among other things

stated that the defendants "went to the Indian village at

Hoona, and sold whisky there," and also stated to the

said jury that "the .result of the defendants selling



vs. The United State* of America. 29

whisky to the Indians ar Chilkoot, on or about the 18th

day of Aug., 1894, was that a murder had been committed,

and the murderer was now in the penitentiary at San

Quentin for thai crime," although no evidence was intro-

duced that the defendants sold whisky at iioona, or that

any murder had been committed. The said prosecuting

attorney in his said address further stated: "If these de-

fendants were the good and innocent men that they try to

make themselves out, why did they not bring witnesses

tv« testify to their good character? " although no evidence

had been introduced as to the character of these defend-

ants, and their character was not made an issue by them.

Whereupon the counsel for the defendant addressed the

jury, and among other things said, referring to the Indian

witnesses who had testified on behalf of the plaintiff, and

in discussing the weight to be given to evidence by the

jury stated: "That the evidence of ignorant. half-civilized

barbarians, whose moral and religious sense was not de-

veloped, and who did not understand and appreciate the

binding force of an oath, as understood by Christian

peoples, and who had little or no appreciation of our re-

ligious ideas from which the oath gets its binding force

and efficacy, and who had no appreciation of the enormity

of perjury, that the evidence of such witnesses was not

entitled to as much credit as the evidence of a witness

whose moral ideas were more fully developed, and who

understood the binding nature of an oath, and the pains

and penalties of perjury." The argument being closed

the Court instructed the jury among other things as fol-

lows:
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Referring to the remarks of counsel above, the Court

instructed the jury as follows:

"It is a fact that Indians lie, and it is also a fact that

white men lie, and some of the most civilized and cultured

men are among the greatest liars. The evidence of In-

dian witnesses is entitled to as much credit and weight

as the evidence of white men, and such credibility and

weight are determined by the same rules of law. In

weighing the evidence of witnesses you have the right to

consider their intelligence, their appearance upon the wit-

ness stand, their apparent candor and fairness in giving

their testimony or the want of such candor or fairness,

their interest, if any, in the result of this trial, their op-

portunities for seeing and knowing the matters concern-

ing which they testify, the probable or improbable nature

of the story they tell; and from these things together

with all the facts and circumstances surrounding the

case, as disclosed by the testimony, determine where the

truth of this matter lies. You have the right to use your

own knowledge of this country, the habits and disposition

of the Indians, and your knowledge and observation of

the fact that whisky peddlers cruise about this coast,

going from one Indian village to another, selling vile

whisky to the natives. There is no evidence that these

defendants located a claim or drove a stake, and it is for

you to determine from the evidence whether they were

out prospecting with pick, and pan, and shovel, as honest

miners, with a view of locating claims, or whether thev

were out with a keg of whisky and a tin cup prospecting

for the aboriginal native."



vs. The United States of America. 31

To which charge of the Court the defendants then and

there excepted on the ground that the same "is not the law

,

is misleading, tending to confuse the jury, and distract

their attention from the evidence.

Whereupon the instructions being closed, the jury re-

tired to consider of their verdict, and afterwards, but on

the same day, returned into court, and being called

answered to their names and say that they had found a

verdict, which verdict was "Guilty as charged in the in-

dictment."

Thereupon the defendants by their attorneys gave no-

tice of a motion in arrest of judgment, on the following

grounds:

"That the indictment in said cause does not state facts

sufficient to constitute a crime against the laws of the

United. Stales."

And also tiled a motion for a new trial, upon the fol-

lowing grounds:

(Here insert motion for a new trial, and affidavits of

Archy Shelp, George Cleveland, and W. FI. Moran.)

Which motions in arrest of judgment came on for argu-

ment and decision on the 20th day of April, 189(5, and the

argument being closed, the same was submitted to the

Court for consideration, and after due deliberation there-

on, the Court overrules and denies the said motion, to

which ruling and decision of the Oourt the defendants

then and there except.

Whereupon the defendants prayed that this their bill
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of exceptions be signed and sealed by the Court, and that

same be made a part of the records of this cause, which

is accordingly done this 25 day of May, 1896.

AETHUE K. DELANEY,

Judge.

The foregoing bill of exceptions is correct.

F. D. KELSEY,
Special Assistant U. S. Attorney.

J. F. MALONY and

JNO. TRUMBULL,

Attys. for Defts.

[Endorsed] : No. 427. United States District Court, Dis-

trict of Alaska. United States v. Archy Shelp and

George Cleveland. Bill of Exceptions. Original. Filed

May 25, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on October 9th, 1896, defend-

ants filed their petition for writ of error, which is in

words and figures following, to-wit:
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In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

UNITED STATES,

vs.

ARCHY SHELP AND GEORGE
CLEVELAND.

Defendants.

Petition for Writ of Error.

Archy Shelp and George Cleveland, the defendants

above named, feeling themselves aggrieved by the verdict

of the ijury, and the judgment entered thereon, on the

20 day of April, 1896, in pursuance of said verdict, where-

by it was considered and adjudged that the defendants

should be imprisoned in the jail at Sitka, in the Territory

of Alaska, for a period of six months.

Come now the said defendants by their attorneys, J.

P. Malony and John Trumbull, and petition this Honor-

able Court for an order allowing them to prosecute the

writ of error to the Circuit Court of Appeals of the 9th

Circuit, under and according to the laws of the United

States in that behalf made and provided, and that all

other proceedings in this Court be suspended and stayed

until the determination of said writ of error by the said
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Circuit Court of Appeals for the 9th Circuit. And your

petitioners as in duty bound will ever pray.

J. F. MALONY and

JNO. TRUMBULL,
Attys. for Defendants.

The petition is granted and it is ordered that the writ

prayed for issue.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,

Judge.

[Endorsed] : United States vs. Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland. Petition for Writ of Error. Filed October

9th, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on October 9th, 1896, defend-

ants filed their assignment of errors in said cause, which

is in words and figures following, to-wit:

United Plates Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

UNITED STATES, ^

vs.

ARCHY SHELP and GEORGE I

CLEVELAND. !

Assignment of Errors.

Now corner the above named defendants by their attor-

neys, J. F. Malony and John Trumbull, amd sav in the
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records and proceedings in the above-entitled cause, there

is manifest error in this, to-wit:

First: It was error for the Court to overrule the objec-

tions of the defendants to the witnesses Dennis, Goo-

nawk, Dick, Samdoo, Casto, and Jim, for the reason that

the names of said witnesses were not endorsed upon the

indictment, and for the reason that neither the defend-

ants or their attorneys were furnished with a list contain-

ing' the names of said witnesses, and for the further rea-

son that no order of Court was made allowing the District

Attorney to have other witnesses sworn on the part of the

plaintiff than those endorsed on the indictment.

Second: It was error for the Court after the plaintiff

Lad rested its eaise to deny the defendants' motion to a

non-suit or a peremptory instruction to the jury to bring

in a verdict for the defendants, upon the ground that the

plaintiff had failed to establish the material allegations of

the indictment by evidence, in this, that the evidence

failed to show that the defendants had sold whisky in

Alaska without first complying with the law in regards to

the sale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska.

Third: The Court erred in overruling the defendants,

motion in arrest of judgment, for the reason that said

indictment does not charge facts sufficient to constitute a

crime against the laws of the United States.

Fourth: The Court erred in instructing the jury in the

manner and under the circumstances as follows, to-wit:

One of the defendants' counsel in addressing the jury,

among other things, referring to the Indian witnesses
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who had testified on behalf of the plaintiff, and in discuss-

ing the weight to be given to evidence by the jury, stated

in his argument as follows, to-Wit:

"That the evidence of ignorant, half-civilized barba-

rians, wThose moral and religious sense was not developed,

and who did not understand and appreciate the binding-

force of an oath as understood by Christian peoples, and

who had little or no appreciation of the enormity of per-

jury, that the evidence of such witnesses was not entitled

to as much credit as the evidence of a witness whose

moral ideas were more fully devel p: d, and who under-

stood the binding nature of an oath, and the pains and

penalties of perjury."

After the argument the Court, referring to the argu-

ment of counsel above set forth, among other things in-

structed the jury as follows:

"It is a fact that Indians lie, aud it is also a fact that

white men lie, and some of the most civilized and cultured

men are among the greatest liars. The evidence of In-

dian witnesses is entitled to as much credit and weight

as the evidence of white men, and such credibility and

weight are determined by the same rules of law; in weigh-

ing the evidence of witnesses you have the right to con-

sider their intelligence, their appearance upon the witness

stand, their apparent candor and fairness, in giving their

testimony, or their want of such candor or fairness, their

interest, if any in the result of this trial, their opportuni-

ties of seeing and knowing the matters concerning which

they testify, the probable or improbable nature of the

story they tell, and from these things together with all
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the facts and circumstances surrounding the case as dis-

closed by the testimony, determine where the truth of thi3

matter lies. You have a right to use your own knowledge

of this country, the habits and disposition of the Indians,

and your knowledge and observation of the fact that

whisky peddlers cruise about this coast going from one

Indian village to another, selling vile whisky to the

natives. There is no evidence that these defendants

located a claim or drove a stake, and it is for you to deter-

mine from the evidence whether they were out prospect-

ing with pick and pan and shovel as honest miners, with

a view of locating claims, or whether they were out with

a keg of whisky and a tin cup prospecting for the abor-

iginal native."

Fifth: The Court erred in denying the defendants' mo-

tion to vacate the verdict and to grant a new trial, in this,

to-wit:

1. Irregularity in the proceedings and abuse of discre-

tion by the Court in this: At the conclusion of the cross-

examination of the witness for the defense, William Ray-

mond, the Court asked the witness if there was not an

Indian village at Bartlett Bay and another at IToona, to

which the Avitness answered yes, sir, whereupon the Court

in presence of the jury exclaimed "A-h-h. That is all,

sir."

2. Misconduct on the part of the United Slates Attor-

ney in his argument to the jury by stating to the jury as

follows: "That the result of the acts with which the de-

fendants wrere charged was that a murder had been com-

mitted and that the Indian who had committed the
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murder was in the penitentiary at San Quern/tin for such

crime," although no evidence whatever had been intro-

dured of any murder having been committed. And fur-

ther stated to the jury that "The defendants went to the

Indian village at Hoona and sold whisky there," although

the defendants were not charged in the said indictment

with selling liquor at Hoona, and although there was no

evidence that defendants had stopped at Hoona or sold

liquor there.

3. Surprise which ordinary prudence could not have

guarded against.

4. Newly discovered evidence, material for the defend-

ants, which they could not with reasonable diligence have

discovered and produced at the trial.

5. ^Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the verdict,

in this, to-wit, that it appears from the evidence that the

defendants were at Funr.er Bay on the lGth and 17th days

of August, 1894, eighty or ninety miles from Chilkoot;

that they left on the 17th on their sloop, and arrived at

Bartlett Bay on the morning of the 18th: that Bartlett

Bay is about forty miles from Fimter Bay; that they stay-

ed at Bartlett Bay until the morning of the 19th; that

Bartlett Bay is 108 miles from Chilkoot; that the trip from

there to Chilkoot could not be made in less than three

days, and that it was a physical impossibility for the de-

fendants to have been at Chilkoot at any time from the

16th to the 22nd of August. It further appearing from the

evidence of the ex-Deputy Marshal, who went to Chilkoot

two days after the alleged whisky selling took place that
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the Indians arrived at Juneau on the 20th day^of August,

1894, and made the complaint charging the defendants

with selling liquor on the 18th day of August, and that

the trip from Chilkoot to Juneau could not be made in less

than two days.

r>. Error in law occurring at the trial and excepted to

by the defendants.

Wherefore the said defendants pray that the judgment

of the said United States District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska be reversed, and that the said District

Court be ordered to enter an order directing the discharge

of the said defendants, and sustain the motion in arrest

of judgment, or that the order of the said District Court

denying the defendants' motion for a new trial be ordered

reversed and vacated and the judgment rendered in said

cause reversed, and a new trial granted.

J. F. MALONY and

JOHN TRUMBULL,
Attorneys for Defendants.

N<o. 427. In the U. S. District Court for the District

of Alaska. United States vs. Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland. Assignment of Errors. Filed October 9th,

1 896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on the 9th day of October, 1896,

defendants filed their bond on writ of error, which is in

words and figures following, to-wit:
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In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

THE UNITED STATES, \

Plff.,

vs.

GEORGE CLEVELAND and ARCHIE

SHELP,
Defts.

t

Bond.

A judgment having been given an the 18th day of April,

1896, whereby Archie Shelp and George Cleveland were

condemned to imprisonment in the jail at Sitka, Alaska,

for the term of six months, and they having appealed

from said judgment and been duly admitted to bail in

the sum of two thousand dollars

—

We, Frank Bach and Charles Morse, of Juneau, Alaska,

hereby undertake that the above named George Cleve-

land and Archie Shelp shall prosecute said appeal with

diligence and shall in all respects abide and perform the

orders and judgments of the Appellate Court upon the

appeal and render themselves in execution thereof, or if
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they fail to do so in any particular, that we will pay to

the United States the sum of two thousand dollars.

Dated April 1896.

GEORGE CLEVELAND.
FRANK R. BACH.

CHARLES MORSE,

ARCHIE SHELP.

United States, )

! ss.

District of Alaska )

Frank Bach and Charles Morse, being duly sworn, says

each for himself, that he is a resident and householder

of the District of Alaska, and worth the sum of two thou-

sand dollars over his just debts and liabilities and prop-

erty exempt from execution.

FRANK R. BACH,

CHARLES MORSE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day of May,

1896.

[L. S..] J. F. MALONY,
Notary Public.

Approved this 9th day of October, 1896.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska. The United States, Plaintiff, vs. Archie
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Skelp and George Cleveland, Defendants. Bond. Filed

October 9th, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. John F.

Malony and John Trumbull, Attorneys for Defendants.

And afterwards, to-wit, on October 9th, 1896, the fol-

lowing further proceedings were had and appear of record

in said cause, which are in words and figures following,

to-wit:

In the United States District Court, in and for the District

of Alaska.

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs. /

GEORGE CLEVELAND and ARCHY /

SHELP,
Defendants.

/

Order Allowing Writ of Error.

The petition of the defendants herein, for an order

allowing said defendants to prosecute a writ of error to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit, coming on regularly to be heard, it is hereby

ordered that the said defendants be, and the same is,
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hereby allowed to prosecute said writ of error to the said

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth District.

Dated Oct. 9, 1896.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,

Judge.

[Endorsed]: No. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska. United States, Plaintiff, vs. Archy Shelp

and George Cleveland, Defendants. Order allowing Writ

of Error. Filed October 9th, 1896. Charles D. Rogers,

Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on October 9th, 1896, a writ of

error was issued in said cause, which is in words and

figures following, to-wit:

Writ of Error.

United States of America, ss.

The President of the United States of America, to the

Hon. Arthur K. Delaney, Judge of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Alaska,

Greeting:

Because in the record and proceedings as also in the

rendition of the judgment, of a plea which is in the said

District Court before you between the United States,

plaintiff, and Archy Shelp and George Cleveland, defend-

ants, a manifest error has happened to the great damage
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of the said Archy Shelp and George Cleveland, as is said

and appears by the complaint, we being willing that mk-

error, if any hath been, should be duly corrected and full

and speedy justice done to the parties aforesaid in this be-

half, do command you if judgment be therein given that

then under your seal distinctly and openly you send the

record aud proceedings aforesaid, with all things concern-

ing the same, to the Justices of the United States Circnit

Court of Appeals for the 9th Circuit, at the Court rooms of

said Court, in the City of San Francisco, State of Cali-

fornia, together with this writ, so that you have the same

at the said place before the Justices aforesaid on the 7

day of November next. That the records and proceedings

aforesaid being inspected the said Justices of the said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals may cause further to be done

therein to correct that error what of right and according

to the law and custom of the United States ought to be

done.

Witness the Honorable MELVILLE W. FULLER,

Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of the United States,

this 9 day of October, in the year of our Lord, one thou-

sand eight hundred and ninety-six, and of the independ-

ence of the United States the one hundred and twenty-

first.

[L. S.l CHARLES D. ROGERS,

Clerk of the Dist. Court for the U. S. of America, for the

Dist. of Alaska.

The foregoing writ is hereby allowed.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge.
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[Endorsed]: No. 427. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

vs. Archie Shelp and George Cleveland. Writ of Error.

Filed October 9th, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk.

And afterwards to-wit, on the 9th day of October, 1896,

there was issued out of said District Court of Alaska a

citation, which is in words and figures as follows

:

Citation.

United States of America, ss.

To the United States and Burton E. Bennett, United

States Attorney, District of Alaska—Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear

at a term of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the ninth circuit, to be holden in the city of San Fran-

cisco, beginning on the first Monday of October, within

30 days from the date hereof, pursuant to a writ of error

filed in the clerk's office of the Disrict Court of the United

States for the District of Alaska, wherein Archy Shelp

and George Cleveland are plaintiffs in error and the

United States are defendants in error, to show cause, if

any there be, why the judgment in the said writ of error

mentioned should not be corrected and speedy justice

should not be done to the parties in that behalf.

Dated October 9, 1896.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge of the District Court of the United States of the

District of Alaska.
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[Endorsed] : Xo. 427. U. S. District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska. The United States, plaintiff, vs. Archie

Shelp and George Cleveland, defendants. Citation. Ser-

vice of the within citation admitted by copy this 9th day

of October, 1896. Burton E. Bennett, U. S. Attorney for

the District of Alaska, Attorney for plaintiff. Filed Oc-

tober 9th, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. J. F. Maloney

and John Trumbull, attorneys for defendants.

Clerk's Certificate to Transcript.

United States,
j

- as.

District of Alaska, j

I, Charles D. Rogers, Clerk of the United States District

Court, within and for the District of Alaska, do hereby

certify that the foregoing pages, numbered from one to

40, inclusive, contain a true and comolete transcript of the

record and proceedings had in said Court., in the case of

The United States, plaintiff, vs. Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland, defendants, as the same remain of record and

on file in said office.

In testimony, whereof, I have caused the seal of said

Court to be hereunto affixed, at the town of Sitka, in said

District, the 9th day of October, A. D. 1896.

[Seal.] CHARLES D. ROGERS,

Clerk.
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[Endorsed]: No. 346. United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The United States, De-

fendant in Error. Transcript of Record. In Error to the

District Court of the United States for the District of

Alaska.

Piled January 2, 1897.

F. D. MONCKTON,

Clerk.
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No. 346.

23 U. S. Stats, at

THE UNITED STATES OF 1 Large Chap. 53,

AMERICA. Sec
-

x 4-

Statement of the Case

CHIEFLY IN THE WORDS OF THE RECORD.

At the adjourned November, 1894, term of the District

Court for the District of Alaska the Grand Jurors for

said district returned an indictment against the plaintiffs

in error, defendants below, charging said defendants

below, Archie Shelp and George Cleveland, with "the

crime of unlawfully selling intoxicating liquors within

said District, committed as follows : The said Archie

Shelp and George Cleveland at or. near Chilcoot, within

the said District of Alaska, and within the jurisdiction

of this Court, on or about the 18th day of August in the



year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-

four, did unlawfully and willfully sell to Alaska Indians,

whose real names are to the Grand Jurors aforesaid un-

known, an intoxicating liquor called whisky, to-wit, one

pint, quart, gallon of said liquor, the real quantity is to

the Grand Jurors unknown; without having first com-

plied with the law concerning the sale of intoxicating

liquors in the District of Alaska.

" And so the Grand Jurors * * * upon their

oaths do say : That Archie Shelp and George Cleveland

did then and there unlawfully sell intoxicating liquors

to-wit, whisky, in the manner and form aforesaid, to

the said Alaska Indians contrarj^ to the form of the

statutes in such cases made and provided, and against

the peace and dignity of the United States of America."

(Record, pp. 2, 3.)

" And afterwards, to-wit, on the 2nd day of Decem-

ber, 1895, the following further proceedings were had and

appear of record in said cause which are words and

figures following, to-wit

:

United States,

vs.
, >T
} No. 427.

George Cleveland and Archie
i

Shelp.

Plea.

"Now at this day comes the plaintiff by Burton E.

Bennett, Esq., United States Attorney, and the defen-

dant, George Cleveland being personally present and his

counsel, John F. Malony, Esq., waives arraignment and

further time to plead, and enters a plea of ' not guilty'

to the indictment." (Record, p. 4.)



On April 15th, 1896, the following further proceedings

were had and appear of record in said cause, to-wit

:

Trial.

w This cause coming on for trial, the plaintiff being

represented by Burton E. Bennett, United States At-

torney, and the defendants being personally in court,

and their counsel, Messrs. J. F. Malony, Esq., and

John Trumbull, Esq., the venire of the petit jury was

called " * * and a jury of twelve men " sworn to try

the issues," and the evidence was heard in part. (Rec-

ord, p. 5.)

" On the next day, April 16, 1896, the plaintiff being

represented by Burton E. Bennett, Esq., United States

Attorney, the defendants being present and their counsel,

Messrs. J. F. Malony, Esq., and John Trumbull, Esq.,

the jury rendered the following verdict:

The United States of America, )

District of Alaska. \

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Alaska.

United States of America, "|

vs
\

Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland.

Verdict.

Special session commencing March 30, 1896.
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We, the jury empaneled and sworn in the above-en-

titled cause, find the defendant guilty as charged in the

indictment.

J. D. Douglas,
Foreman."

The jury was thereupon discharged from further

attendance in this cause and the defendants required to

furnish bail in the sum of five hundred dollars for ap-

pearance before the Court for sentence. (Record, pp.

5-7-)

uAnd on April iS, 1896, the following further pro-

ceedings were had and appear of record in said case,

to-wit

:

>No. 427.

u United States,

vs.

Archie Shelp and George

Cleveland.

Judgment.
'Now at this da}- comes the plaintiff by Burton E.

Bennett, Esq., United States Attorney, as also come the

defendants in person, with Messrs. J. F. Malony and

John Trumbull, their counsel, and appearing for judg-

ment, and the motion for new trial and the motion for

arrest of judgment being denied

—

u
It is ordered, adjudged and decreed that defendants

be, and they are hereby, convicted of the crime of un-

lawfully selling intoxicating liquors in Alaska and sen-

tenced to imprisonment in the U. S. Jail for the District

of Alaska for the term of six calendar months." (Rec-

ord, pp. 20, 21.)

We have been thus full and precise in our recital of

court proceedings for reasons that will soon appear.
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Assignment of Errors.
" First : It was error for the Court to overrule the ob-

jections of the defendants to the witnesses Dennis, Goo-

uawk, Dick, Samdoo, Casto and Jim, for the reason that

the names of said witnesses were not endorsed upon the

indictment, and for the reason that neither the defend-

ants or their attorneys were furnished with a list con-

taining the names of said witnesses, and for the further

reason that no order of Court was made allowing the

District Attorney to have other witnesses sworn on the

part of the plaintiff than those endorsed on the indict-

ment.

44 Second : It was error for the Court after the plaintiff

had rested its case to deny the defendants' motion for a

non-suit or a peremptory instruction to the jury to bring

in a verdict for the defendants, upon the ground that

the plaintiff had failed to establish the material allega-

tions of the indictment by evidence, in this, that the

evidence failed to show that the defendants had sold

whisky in Alaska without first complying with the law

in regard to the sale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska.

u Third : The Court erred in overruling the defend-

ants' motion in arrest of judgment, for the reason that

said indictment does not charge facts sufficient to

constitute a crime against the laws of the United States.

44 Fourth : The Court erred in instructing the jury

in the manner and under the circumstances as follows,

to-wit

:

44 One of the defendants' counsel in addressing the

jury, among other things, referring to the Indian wit-

nesses who had testified on behalf of the plaintiff, and

in discussing the weight to be given to evidence by the

jury, stated in his argument as follows, to-wit

:



" ' That the evidence of ignorant, half-civilized bar-

barians, whose moral and religions sense was not de-

veloped, and who did not understand and appreciate the

binding force of an oath as understood by Christian

peoples, and who had little or no appreciation of the

enormity of perjury,—that the evidence of such wit-

nesses was not entitled to as much credit as the evi-

dence of a witness whose moral ideas were more fully

developed, and who understood the binding nature of an

oath, and the pains and penalties of perjury.'

" After the argument the Court, referring to the argu-

ment of counsel above set forth, among other things in-

structed the jury as follows :

,,.." ' It is a fact that Indians lie, and it is also a fact

that white men lie, and some of the most civilized and

cultured inen are among the greatest liars. The evi-

dence of Indian witnesses is entitled to as much credit

and weight as the evidence :of white men, and such

credibility and weight are determined by the same rules

of law ; in weighing the evidence of witnesses' you have

the right to consider their intelligence, their appearance

upon the witness stand, their apparent candor and fair-

ness, in giving their testimony, or their want of such

candor or fairness, their interest, if any, in the result

of this trial, their opportunities of seeing and knowing

the matters concerning which they testify, the probable

or improbable nature of the story they tell, and from

these things together with all the facts and circum-

stances surrounding the case as disclosed by the testi-

mony, determine where the truth of this matter lies.

You haive a right to us
!

e your own knowledge of this"

country, the
;

habits' and disposition of the Indians, and

}^our knowledge and observation of the fact that whisky

peddlers cruise about this coast going from one Indian



village to another, selling vile whisky to the natives.

There is no evidence that these defendants located a

claim or drove a stake, and it is for you to determine

from the evidence whether they were out prospecting

with pick and pan and shovel as honest miners, with a

view of locating claims, or whether they were out with

a keg of whisky and a tin cup prospeeting for the abor-

iginal native.' '

" Fifth : The Court erred in denying the defendants'

motion to vacate the verdict and to grant a new trial, in

this, to-wit

:

!

1

. j
,- Ml , :

i. Irregularity in the proceedings and afyuse, pi dis-

cretion by the Court in this : At the conclusion lof the

cross-examination of the witness for the defense,

William Raymond, the Court asked the witness if there

was not an Indian village at Bartlett B^y and another

at Hoona, to which the witness answered ' yes, sir,' where-

upon the Court in presence of the jury exclaimed,
' A-h-h. That is all, sir.'

11
2. Misconduct on th? part of the United States At-

torney in his argument to the jury by stating to the

jury as follows: ' That the result of the acts with

which the defendants were charged was that a murder

had been committed and that the Indian who had com-

mitted the murder was in the penitentiary at San Quen-

tin for such crime,' although no evidence whatever had

been introduced of any murder having been committed.

And further stated to the jury that 'The defendants

went to the Indian village at Hoona and sold whisky

there,' although the defendants were not charged in the

said indictment with selling liquor at Hoona, and

although there was no evidence that defendants had

stopped at Hoona or sold liquor there.
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"
3- Surprise which ordinary prudence could not have

guarded against.

" 4. Newly discovered evidence, material for the de-

fendants, which they could not with reasonable diligence

have discovered and produced at the trial.

" 5. Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the ver-

dict, in this to-wit, that it appears from the evidence that

the defendants were at Funter Bay on the 16th and 17th

days of August, 1894, eighty or ninety miles from

Chilkoot ; that they left on the 17th on their sloop, and

arrived at Bartlett Bay on the morning of the 18th
;

that Bartlett Bay is about forty miles from Funter Bay ;

that they stayed at Bartlett Bay until the morning of

the 19th ; that Bartlett Bay is 108 miles from Chilkoot
;

that the trip from there to Chilkoot could not be made
in less than three days, and that it was a physical im-

possibility for the defendants to have been at Chilkoot

at any time from the 16th to the 22nd of August. It

further appearing from the evidence of the ex-Deputy

Marshal, who went to Chilkoot two days after the

alleged whisky selling took place, that the Indians ar-

rived at Juneau on the 20th day of August, 1894, and

made the complaint charging the defendants with sell-

ing liquor on the 18th day of August, and that the trip

from Chilkoot to Juneau could not be made in less than

two days.

" 6. Error in law occurring at the trial and excepted

to bv the defendants."

Argument.
Before taking up and discussing seriatim the errors

assigned herein, we wish to call the attention of the



Court to one plain, open, palpable and fatal error that

appears upon the very face of the record.

The Court, can, in any case, and will, in a criminal

case, notice a plain error not assigned.01 * The Supreme

Court often does this—did it in the Crain case infra—
and so does this Court. A criminal proceeding is strictis-

sinti juris. Everything against the accuse.d,.is construed

strictly, everything in his favor liberally. Where the

error does not appear of record, of course, a bill of ex-

ceptions becomes necessary. This Cour
(
t held in R\>.

Co. vs. Drake, et al (72 Fed., 945), that, .a writ of error

addresses itself to the record, and, therefore, when the

record itself discloses the ground on whirh a reversal is

sought there is no necessity for a bill of exceptions

;

and, again, that a statement on motion for. a new trial,

if regularly settled and allowed by the trial judge, may
serve as a bill of exceptions on writ of error (Alex-

ander vs. U. S. 57 Fed., S28). When the error appears of

record, or, for that purpose, is incorporated in a bill of

exceptions, it can be specified in a brief although not

assigned.

The record in this case does not show that Archie

Shelp, one of the defendants in the court below, was

ever formally arraigned, or that he pleaded to the indict-

ment, or that an}' plea was ever entered for him ; unless

all this is to be inferred simply from his presence at the

trial, at the rendering of the verdict and at the pro-

nouncing of the judgment and from the recital in the

order of the trial that
u the jurors were sworn to try the

issues, " and in the bill of exceptions that " the issue
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joined in the above stated cause between the said parties

came on to be tried before the said judge and a jury

which was duly impaneled and sworn to try the issue

between the said parties " (Record, pp. 4, 5, 6, 7, 20 and

21 and Statement of Case in brief). This the Supreme

Court holds is not enough. The case of Crain vs. The

Uiiited States (162 U. S., 625) involved the indictment

and conviction of a more serious offense than these de-

fendants are charged with, but the decision of the Court

covers the whole ground. In the case at bar a plea is

entered for only one defendant and the verdiei strictly

follows and corroborates the plea of only one defendant.

The decision begins

:

kl The transcript before the court must be taken to be

as certified, namely, a true and complete copy of the

record and proceedings in this case." It then disposes

of several of the grounds of the motion in arrest of

judgment made in the court below, and then takes up

this objection—the absence in the record of any defi-

nite statement of arraignment or plea of the defendant

;

and after citing many authorities and cases of misde-

meanors, as well as higher crimes, it holds that an ar-

raignment, and especially a plea " is not a matter of

form but of substance" and " consequently such a de-

fect in the record of a criminal trial is not cured by

section 1025 °f the Revised Statutes (sometimes called

the statute of amendments and jeofailes), but involves

the substantial rights of the accused." "A plea to the

indictment is necessary before the trial can be properly

commenced, and unless this fact appears affirmatively
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from the record, the judgment cannot be sustained.

Until the accused pleads to the indictment, and thereby

indicates the issue submitted by him for trial, there is

nothing for the jury to try; and the fact that the de-

fendant did so plead should not be left to be inferred.

* * # >} a little further on the court indignantly

asks :

uAre we at liberty to guess that a plea was

made by or for the accused, and then guess again as to

what was the nature of that plea ? " * * * " Nor

ought the courts, in their abhorence of crime, nor be-

cause of their anxiety to enforce the law against crimi-

nals, countenance the careless manner in which the

records of cases involving the life or liberty of the ac-

cused are often prepared. Before a court of last resort

affirms a judgment of conviction of, at least, an infa-

mous crime, it should appear affirmatively from the rec-

ord that every step necessary to the validity of the

sentence has been taken. That cannot be predicated of

the record now before us. We may have a belief that

the accused, in the present case, did, in fact, plead not

guilty of the charges against him in the indictment.

But this belief is not founded upjn any clear, distinct,

affirmative statement of record, but- upon inference

merely. That will not suffice. * * * The present

defendant may be guilty, and may deserve the full

punishment imposed upon him by the sentence of the

trial court, but it were better that he should escape

altogether than that the court should sustain a judg-

ment of conviction * :

'

:

where, the record does not

clearly show that there was a valid trial. The judg-

ment is reversed.
:-: :;: "
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• Now as to our assignments of error. Passing over

without waiving the first two, we come to the third :

" Third: The Court erred in overruling the defend-

ants' motion in arrest of judgment, for the reason that

said indictment does not charge facts sufficient to con-

stitute a crime against the laws of the United States."

ThtJ ground of a motion in arrest of judgment,

like any question that arises upon the pleadings, or

t'S
upon the face of the record, *&$ reviewable in an appel-

late court, like an objection to the jurisdiction of the

court which ma}' be taken at any time and is never

waived.

Does this indictment charge facts sufficient to consti-

tute a crime against the laws of the United States ?

The statute under which this indictment was framed

provides: "And the importation, manufacture and sale

of intoxicating liquors in said district, except for medi-

cinal, mechanical and scientific purposes, is hereby pro-

hibited. * * * And the President of the United

States shall make such regulations as are necessary to

carry out the provisions of this section" (23 Stats, at

Large, 28). The allegation in the indictment,

stripped of considerable verbiage, is that the defendants

sold to Alaska Indians an intoxicating liquor called

whisky without having first complied with the law

concerning the sale of intoxicating liquors in the dis-

trict of Alaska.

It will be seen at a glance, from a comparison of

the law with the indictment, that all the allegations of

the indictment might be true, and vet the defendants be

innocent of any crime against the laws of the United
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States. Even it the defendants, or either of them, sold

any intoxicating liquor, non constat that they did not

sell it for medicinal, mechanical or scientific purposes.

When the enacting clause of a statute describes the

offense with certain exceptions, it is necessary to nega-

tive the exceptions, although if the exceptions are con-

tained in separate clauses of the statute, they may be

omitted in the indictment and the defendant must show

that his case comes within them in order to avail him-

self of their benefit. Bish. Crim. Proc. § 635 ; Whart.

Crim. PL §§ 240, 631.

We are aware that Judges Deadv and Dawson sus-

tained an indictment which did not negative these ex-

ceptions (U. S. vs. Nelson, 29 Fed. 202, 30, Fed. 112),

but we think this court will prefer to follow the Su-

preme Court (U. S. vs. Cook 17 Wall. 173), in not de-

parting from established forms. Via antiqucLvia est tuta.

In the Crain case, supra, says the Supreme Court with

reference to arraignment and plea, but it applies as well

to this question,
u Neither sound reason nor public pol-

icy justifies any departure from settled forms applica-

ble in criminal prosecutions. * * Even if there

were a wide divergence among the authorities upon this

subject, safety lies in adhering to established modes of

procedure devised for the security of life and liberty."

While upon the indictment, we call the attention of

the court to the phrase, "Without having first com-

plied with the law concerning the sale of intoxicating

liquors in the district of Alaska."

Now the law supra absolutely prohibits such sale,
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" except for medicinal, mechanical and scientific pur-

poses." What, then, can be the meaning or relevancy

of this phrase ? It can only refer to the fact referred

to in another case (U. S. vs. Ash 75, Fed. 651), that un-

der the Internal Revenue laws, or under the regulations

of the President by the Secretary of the Treasury, this

great Government accepts from applicants in the dis-

trict of Alaska an internal revenue tax and issues a

license to sell intoxicating liquors contrary to law, and

then indicts, arrests and punishes them for doing so.

This clause may not invalidate the indictment, because,

like the words, "Alaska Indians," it may be regarded

as surplusage; but the "state of things" which it

points at certainly reflects no credit upon our beneficent

Government and its laws and the administration of jus-

tice in Alaska.

Our next error alleged is to a portion of the charge

of the court sriven in the manner and under the circum-

stances following, to-wit

:

" Fourth :
* * One of the defendants' counsel in

addressing the jury, among other things, referring to

the Indian witnesses who hal testified 011 behalf of the

plaintiff, and in discussing the weight to be given to

evidence by the jury, stated in his argument as follows,

to-wit

:

' That the evidence of ignorant, half-civilized bar-

barians, whose moral and religious sense was not de-

veloped, and who did not understand and appreciate the

binding force of an oath as understood by Christian

peoples, and who had little or no appreciation of the

enormity of perjury,—that the evidence of such wit-
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nesses was not entitled to as much credit as the evi-

dence of a witness whose moral ideas were more fully

developed, and who understood the binding nature of an

oath, and the pains and penalties of perjury.'

After the argument the Court, referring to the argu-

ment of counsel above set forth, among other things in-

structed the jury as follows :

" ' It is a fact that Indians lie, and it is also a fact

that white men lie, and some of the most civilized and

cultured men are among the greatest liars. The evi-

dence of Indian witnesses is entitled to as much credit

and weight as the evidence of white men, and such

credibility and weight are determined by the same rules

of law ; in weighing the evidence of witnesses you have

the right to consider their intelligence, their appearance

upon the witness stand, their apparent candor and fair-

ness, in giving their testimony, or their want of such

candor or fairness, their interest, if any, in the result

of this trial, their opportunities of seeing and knowing

the matters concerning which thev testify, the probable

or improbable nature of the story they tell, and from

these things together with all the facts and circum-

stances surrounding the case as disclosed by the testi-

mony, determine where the truth of this matter lies.

You have a right to use your own knowledge of this

country, the habits and disposition of the Indians, and

your knowledge and observation of the fact that whisky

peddlers cruise about this coast going from one Indian

village to another, selling vile whisky to the natives.

There is no evidence that these defendants located a

claim or drove a stake, and it is for you to determine

from the evidence whether they were out prospecting

with pick and pan and shovel as honest miners, with a
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view of locating claims, or whether they were out with

a keg of whisky and a tin cup prospecting for the abor?

iginal native."'^^**^^*"^ f

In Hicks vs. U.S. (150 U. S., 442 ), the Supreme

Court held that " The rule that exceptions should be

precise and pointed, so as not to require the Court to

search for errors through long passages, does not apply

when it is necessary or useful to cite an entire passage

in order to form a just view of the error complained of."

Is not the unfairness of this instruction apparent?

Civilization and even Christianity go for naught with

this judge in his most-seeming righteous wrath. Fal-

staff, to cover up his own monstrous lies, exclaimed,

u Lord, lord, how this world is given to lying!" But

this able and learned judge, in cold blood and with-

out any inducement, makes the same exclamatory de-

clamation. David, in his sore afflication, made a similar

complaint, but took it back and apologized for it in

almost the same breath, " I said in my haste, all men are

liars." How different from this instruction those which

the Supreme Court in recent cases approves—how much

more objectionable than some of those which it con-

demns.

In Hicks vs U. S. (150, U. S., 442), the accused hav-

ing testified in his own behalf, the Court charged that

there was or might be a " conflict as to the material facts

between the statements of the accused and the state-

ments of the other witnesses who are telling the truth."

The Supreme Court held that this was objectionable in

its assumption that the witnesses who contradicted de-
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fendant were telling the truth. And " when the statute

makes the accused, on his own request, a competent

witness, its policy should not be defeated by hostile

comments of the trial judge."

In Starr vs. U. S. (153 U. S., 626), the Supreme

Court quote with approval the language of the Supreme

Court of Pennsylvania in Burke vs. Maxwell, Si Pa.

St., 139: " When there is sufficient evidence upon a

given point to go to a jury, it is the duty of the judge

to submit it calmly and impartially. And if the expres-

sion of an opinion upon such evidence becomes a matter

of duty under the circumstances of the particular case,

great care should be exercised that such expression

should be so given as not to mislead and especially

that it should not be one-sided."

In this same Starr case says the Court

:

"It is obvious that under any system of jury trials

the influence of the trial judge on the jury is neces-

sarily and properly of great weight, and that his

lightest word or intimation is received with deference,

and may prove controlling (referring to the Hicks case

supra). The circumstances of this case apparently

aroused the indignation of the learned judge in an un-

common degree and that indignation was expressed in

terms which were not consistent with due regard to the

right and duty ofthe j ury to exercise an independant j udg-

ment in the circumstances, or with the circumspection

and caution which should characterize judicial utter-

ances."

In Hickory vs. U. S. ( 160 U. S., 408), the Court below



contrasted the testimony of the accused with circum-

stances to the prejudice of the former. The Supreme

Court, after quoting the Starr and other cases, says

:

" Such denunciation of the testimony of the accused

is without legal warrant citing Allison vs. U. S. (160

U. S., 203). This instruction was if possible more

markedly wrong from the implications which it con-

veyed to the jury. * * * In Reynolds vs. U. S.

(98 U. S., 168), speaking through Mr. Chief Justice

Waite, this Court said on the same subject, ' Ever}- ap-

peal by the Court to the passions or prejudices of the

jury should be promptly rebuked and * * it is the

imperative duty of the reviewing Court to take care

that wrong is not done in this way '

"

In the Allison case referred to says the Sup: erne Court:

" Where the charge of the trial judge takes the form of

animated argument, the liability" * * of error " is

great."

In Brown vs. U. S. (17 S. C. Rep., 33, not yet

officially reported), the Supreme Court reversed a judg-

ment for the third time, after three juries (36 jurors) had

agreed to find the defendant guilty, because the trial

judge charged that 'twas not the judgment of bad people,

the criminal element, the man of crime :;: * that

made up reputation. * * To the same effect is Smith

vs. U.S. (161 U. S.,85).

Against such a charge as that in this case of what

avail would be even the armor of innocence ? What
becomes of those good old English maxims that the

Court is always the chief counsel for the prisoner, and
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that it is better that nine guilty men escape ithan, that

one innocent man be punished ? Such is the^ wisdom

and humanity of our laws that in the United States

courts only the defendant has a right to a review in a
•s •=>

l:.Y O
criminal case.

Does not this whole charge illustrate how out of place

in a Judge's charge is wit or even humor? Wit is

often cruel, humor grim, and both unjust.

Our next assignment of error, our fifth assignment,

is to the ruling of the court below upon a motion for a

new trial setting forth the grounds of the motion.

It has been repeatedly held that a motion for a new

trial or any other motion addressed solely to the discre-

tion of the court below is not reviewable. The excep-

tion to this rule, and there are very few rules which are

not proved, as they say, by exceptions, is that " where

the questions presented (grounds of the motion) go

directly to the merits of the case," the appellate court

will review them. U. S. vs. Hewecker 17 S. C. Rep.

18 not yet officially reported). In Ball vs. U. S, (163

U. S. 662, 674,) and in other cases, the Supreme Court

does consider the grounds of a motion for a new trial.

This exception covers our case.

An appellate court will review matters of mere dis-

cretion where the discretion has been abused and even

matters of fact where the facts are all on one side and

the judgment complained of on the other. • What are

courts for, if not to do justice and to see justice done ?

The grounds of the motion for a new trial, which we

claim are reviewable in this court, are:

"1. Irregularity in the proceedings and abuse of dis-
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cretion by the Court in this : At the conclusion of the

cross-examination of the witness for the defense,

William Raymond, the Court asked the witness if there

was not an Indian village at Bartlett Bay and another

at Hoona, to which the witness answered 'yes sir,' where-

upon the Court in presence of the jury exclaimed,

' A-h-h. That is all, sir.'

" 2. Misconduct on the part of the United States At-

torney in his argument to the jury by stating ti the

jury as follows: ' That the result of the acts with

which the defendants were charged was that a murder

had been committed and that the Indian who had com-

mitted the murder was in the penitentiary at San Quen-

tin for such crime,' although no evidence whatever had

been introduced of any murder having been committed.

And further stated to the jury that 'The defendants

went to the Indian village at Hoona and sold whisky

there,' although the defendants were not charged in the

said indictment with selling liquor at Hoona, and

although there was no evidence that defendants had

stopped at Hoona or sold liquor there."

As we have said of other errors, the error here hardly

needs pointing out. The Judge himself elicits from a

witness a fact which he evidently thinks counts against

the defendants that there was an Indian village at Bart-

lett Bay and another at Hoona, over which in the pres-

ence of the jury he gloats, implying that, in his opin-

ion, the defendants sold liquor at both those places ; al-

though they were not charged with having done so, nor

was there a scintilla of evidence to prove it.

Did not the Judge's (in the words of the Supreme
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Court) "abhorrence of crime," and adesire'to seesome-

body punished get the better of his sober judgment in

this case ?

It appears from the second ground of the motion

that the United States Attorney as well as the Court

traveled out of his way and out of the record to abuse

these defendants.

In Preston vs. Mut. Life Ins. Co. of N. Y„ (71 Fed.

467,) the court, and although it was a trial court, we

submit that the rule announced applies to any court,

says :

" It is a familiar rule that counsel must not in ar-

gument refer to matter not in evidence to the prejudice

of the adverse party and the failure to observe this rule

is just ground for a new trial.
:i: * The duty of the

court to see that a trial is fair and that all material

questions are fairly presented, is imperative, and the

duty to regulate the proper conduct of a trial may be

discharged either with or without motion. A case of

such palpable unfairness might be presented as to war-

rant the Court in interposing upon its own motion.' 1

That this conduct of the United States Attorney

was calculated to prejudice the jury against the de-

fendants does not admit of doubt,— 'tis too plain for ar-

gument. We cannot make it any plainer than the bare

statement makes it. Besides, to get the judgment

against us reversed, we do not have to show that any-

thing did prejudice or mislead the jury—all that is re-

quired of us is to show that it might have done so.

The other grounds of this motion we pass over



22

rapidly. If the Court thinks they go to the merits of

the ease it will consider them.

It appears from the fifth ground and from a reference

to the indictment and testimony, that it was a physical

impossibility for the defendants to have committed the

crime charged at the time and place charged and at-

tempted to be proved.

If the jury did not give the defendants the benefit of

any legal and reasonable doubt to which they were law-

full}' entitled, this Court will right this wrong. A high

Court of justice never shows to such advantage as when

it tempers justice with mercy, which it must do when

it expounds our " wise and humane " criminal laws.

We respectfully submit that for the errors herein

recited the j udgment of the lower court as to both de-

fendants should be reversed, and the said defendants

ordered discharged.

Respectfully submitted,

LORENZO S. B. SAWYER,
Counsel for Plaintiffs in Error.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

About the 18th day of August, 1894, the plaintiffs her e

arrived at Chilkoot, Alaska, in a small boat, having on

board whisky for the purpose of selling to the Indians,

or native Alaskans, who lived in that village. Chilkoot

is an Indian village situated in Southeastern Alaska-

They anchored their boat off shore, and the plaintiff

Cleveland waved his hat and attracted the attention of

one of the natives by the name of Dennis, and at the

same time went to a small keg containing whisky, and

drew a tin cup full from it and drank it, so that Dennis

could see and know that they had whisky on board their

boat. Being unable to resist the temptation to obtain

whisky, as all Alaskan natives are addicted to its use



Dennis immediately went off to the boat. The plain-

tiffs immediately drew more whisky out of the keg and

gave it to Dennis to drink, and told him to go and tell

all the people in the village that they (the plaintiffs)

had plenty of whisky on board their boat. This Dennis

did, and the result was that twelve of the head men of

that village went in their canoe from the village to the

plaintiffs' boat, and purchased from them all the whisky

that they could with their limited means. Dennis

himself bought two bottles and paid two dollars a bottle.

Dennis testifies to the above state of facts, as does

also Goonawk, Dick, Samdoo, Kassto, Dave and Jim,

natives of this village, who purchased whisky of the

defendants at this time.

POINTS OF LAW.

The crime of which these appellants are charged is a

misdemeanor.

FIRST.

In regard to plaintiffs' first assignment of error, it is

submitted that it was proper for the court to overrule

their objection to testimony being given by the wit-

nesses Goonawk, Dick, Samdoo, Kassto, and Dick, for

the reason that it was not necessary that their names

appear upon the indictment, as only those names appear

upon the indictment who appeared before the grand jury.

See General Laws of Oregon, page 348, paragraph 61.

Nor was it necessary that plaintiffs or their attor-

neys be furnished with a list of the names of the wit-



nesses, as this is only necessary in treason and other

capital offenses.

See Revised Statutes of the United States, sec. 1033.

Nor was it necessary for the Government to obtain an

order of court allowing it to swear other witnesses than

the names of those who appeared upon the indictment.

SECOND.

In regard to plaintiffs' second assignment of error it-

is submitted that it was proper for the court to deny

their motion for nonsuit as the prohibitory liquor law

of Alaska is specific, and absolutely prohibits the sale

of intoxicating drinks in Alaska. Liquor can be sold of

course under the Governor's permit, for mechanical,

and scientific purposes, but this is an exception; and if a

person sells liquor thus inhibited, he must show that he

sells for said purposes and has a right to so sell.

THIRD.

In regard to plaintiffs' third assignment of error, it is

submitted that it was proper for the court to overrule

their motion in arrest of judgment, as the indictment

charged facts sufficient to constitute the crime it pur-

ported to allege.

FOURTH.
In regard to plaintiffs' fourth assignment of error, it

is submitted that there was no error committed in the

court's instruction to the jury.



FIFTH.

In regard to plaintiffs' fifth assignment of error, it is

submitted that it was proper for the court to deny

their motion to set aside the verdict and grant a

new trial, as there was no abuse of discretion on the

part of the court; neither was there any misconduct on

the part of the United States attorney in his argument

to the jury; no objection or exception thereto having

been made or taken at the time.

Bland v. Gaither (Ky.), 11 S. W. 423; 10 Ky.

L. Rep. 1033.

State v. Taylor (Mo.), 11 S. W. 570.

State v. Carter (Mo.), 11 S. W. 624.

Gray v. Chicago M. & St. P. R Co., 75 Iowa,

100; 39 N. W. 213.

As to the other reasons mentioned in said assignment

of error it is not necessary to seriously consider them.

There is one other matter that I desire to call the court's

attention to, although it is not in plaintiffs' assignment

of errors. It will be noticed that the record discloses

the fact that one of the plaintiffs was not arraigned

and did not plead, but it will be observed further that

the record discloses the fact that he was present at the

trial and went to trial, and even went upon the witness

stand in his own behalf. Therefore, it is contended, he

is not entitled, under the federal statu as, to a new trial

because of the failure of the record to show arraignment

and plea, for the reason that the irregularity was " a de-



feet or imperfection in matter of form only," within the

meaning of section 1025 U. S. Rev. Stats., and did not

tend to his prejudice.

United States v. Molloy, 31 Federal Reporter, 19.

I therefore respectfully submit that the judgment of

the United States District Court for the district of

Alaska should be affirmed.

BURTON E. BENNETT,
United States Attorney.
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Permission is respectfully asked of the Court to file

a few observations, hastily reduced to the form of a

brief, respecting this case, which do not appear to have

been suggested in the brief heretofore filed by the

U. S. Attorney for Alaska, and which are deemed per-

tinent here.

It is true that, as contended by the plaintiffs in

error, a writ of error addresses itself to the record,

and therefore when the record itself discloses the

ground for reversal, a bill of exceptions is unneces-

sary. The case cited by plaintiffs, however, Rail-
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way Co. vs. Drake, et al, 72 F. R., 945. is itself

based upon the decision in the case of Storm et

al. vs. U. S, 94 U. S. 76, which requires that

objection should be regularly made, and due ex-

ception taken in the Court below to an alleged error,

in order to bring the same before the Appellate Court.

The authority cited by counsel does not dispense with

such necessary prerequisites; it merely dispenses with

a bill of exceptions in certain cases. In the case at

bar there was no objection made, or exception taken by

the plaintiff' Shelp for the alleged failure of the Court

to arraign him, or cause his plea to be entered. It is

not even assigned as error; and it is therefore respect-

fully submitted that it cannot now be brought to the

attention of this Court.

Moreover, there is no statement in the record that the

plaintiff Shelp was not arraigned and his plea not en-

tered. Nonconstat, but, that from all the record says, the

plaintiff Shelp, was arraigned and pleaded not guilty.

It is stated in the bill of exceptions (p. 22), that "the issue

" joined in the above stated cause between the said 'parties

" (referring to both plaintiffs here) came on to be tried

•* -» * # t}ie defendants (were represented) by cer-

" tain counsel." How could issue have been joined

between the Government and Shelp without a plea

from the latter? Both of the defendants are tried,

plaintiff Shelp, among others, taking the witness stand

in his defense. Not one word of protest then came

from him that his trial was irregular or void in the

respect indicated. It is not alleged as one of the

grounds of a motion for a new trial, or in arrest of



judgment, or as an assignment of error. Can it be

possible that n © can now be heard to protest for the

first time that lie was not arraigned? He voluntarily

submitted himself to the Court's jurisdiction, and had

the advantage of a trial in the manner provided by

law.

U. S. R. S., Sec. 1032, provides that " when the

11 party pleads not guilty, or such plea is entered as

" aforesaid " (i. e., where he stands mute upon his

arraignment), " the cause shall be deemed at issue, and

" shall, without further form or ceremony, be tried by

" jury." As before observed, the record discloses, at

least inferentially, that issue was joined between the

parties. The Court will presume that the proceed-

ings in the Court below were regular unless the con-

trary clearly appears. The contrary does not clearly

appear. It will therefore presume, we submit, in a

case not involving an infamous punishment, that the

issue was legally joined, i. e., by plea of not guilty

from the plaintiff Shelp; and the Court will not per-

mit the record to be contradicted by an inference that

there was no sucli plea entered by Shelp, because it is

not specifically set forth in the printed transcript.

Suppose, however, the plaintiff Shelp, was not

arraigned. The failure to do so on the part of the

Government would, it is respectfully submitted, be

cured by Section 1025, U. S. R. S. The case quoted

upon this point by plaintiffs counsel, Grain vs. U. S.,

162 U. S., G25, is not here applicable. That case in-

volved an infamous offense, and the Court was partic-

ularly careful to limit its inquiry to cases of that



nature in discussing the absence of any arraignment.

The case at bar does not involve an infamous offense;

but concerns an offense of the class commonly

designated misdemeanors, punishable by a maximum
imprisonment of six months,

23 U. S., Stats, at Large, at page 28.

U. S. R. S., Section 1955;

and many formalities deemed vital in the prosecu-

tion of the former class of crimes can be waived by

the defendant in the trial Court in a prosecution for

the commission of the latter class of offenses. The

plaintiff in error, Cleveland, formally waived arraign-

ment (Trans., p. 4) though it seems his plea was

entered; and no objection has been made by coun-

sel to this waiver, nor has the suggestion been made

that the trial was irregular or void as to him. Why
can an objection be now successfully raised that the

other plaintiff in error, Shelp, was not legally tried,

because he saw fit to remain mute, and, by his submis-

sion to trial without protest, virtually waive arraign-

ment also? Three justices dissented from the opin-

ion of the majority of the Court in the case just

referred to; and had the grade of the offense in-

volved in that case been lower than infamous, as in

the present case, it is fair to presume that the Su-

preme Court would have, held that the failure of the

plaintiff in error, Shelp, to more seasonably object to

the defect, if found to exist, and his acquiescence and

participation in his subsequent: trial constituted a

waiver of arraignment, of which he could now take



no advantage on appeal, and which was cured by

Section 1025, supra.

The plaintiff's first assignment of error does not, we

submit, merit attention.

General Laws of Oregon, page 348, paragraph

61.

U. S. R. S , Section 1033.

We note the plaintiff's counsel treats it, as well as

the second assignment, with equal insignificance.

We pass from the second assignment, as equally un-

deserving of comment, to the third. The objection to

the sufficiency of the indictment to charge the com-

mission by the plaintiffs in error of a crime against

the United States, was raised for the first time by

motion in arrest of judgment. It will be noted that

under Section 1025, swpra, " any defect or imperfec-
11 tion in matter of form only, which shall not tend to

" the prejudice of the defendant," does not affect the

trial or judgment of such defendant.

Wharton's Criminal pleading and practice, Section

760, states that ''errors as to form, not going to the

" description of the offense, which might have been

" taken advantage of at a previous stage, are not suffi-

11 cient to cause arrest (of) judgment;" and the section

closes with a quotation from an English decision of

Blackburn, J., in 1873: "Where an averment which

" is necessary to support a particular part of the

" pleading has been imperfectly stated, and a verdict

" on an issue involving that averment is found and

" it appears to the Court, after verdict, that unless
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11 this averment were true the verdict could not be

" sustained, in such case the verdict cures the defec-

" tive averment, which might have been bad on de-

" murrer."

Let us concede, for the moment, that the indict-

ment is defective in not specifically alleging that the

plaintiffs in error were not within the exception men-

tioned in the Act,

23 Stats., at Lat. p. 28,

U. S. R, S.. Sec. 1955,

instead of averring that plaintiffs in error " unlawfully

and wilfully" sold the liquor, " without having first

" complied with the law concerning the sale of intoxi-

" eating liquors in the District of Alaska." The indict-

ment was not attacked by demurrer or motion to

quash; the plaintiffs were tried thereon, and con-

victed. The jury must have found that the alleged

defective averments, hereinabove quoted, were true,

in order to reach a verdict of guilt}', and the verdict

could not be sustained unless these averments were

found to be true.

It thus becomes apparent that the alleged defect,

lias been cured by the verdict.

But is the indictment defective in this particular?

We submit it is not. A former indictment, framed

under the law in question, averring that the

defendant sold certain liquors in Alaska, contrary to

the Statutes of the United States, without negativing



the exception contained in the Act, was construed by

Judge Dawson in

U. S. vs. Nelson, 29 F. R., 202,

and by Judge Deady, on writ of error, in

U.S. vs. Nelson, 30 F. R, 112,

and such indictment was held good. The objec-

tion thereto was taken more strongly there than

here, because it was raised before trial by demur-

rer; and the law applicable to exceptions contained

in Acts denouncing offenses is there discussed in ex-

tenso. These cases are referred to with approval in

later Federal decisions. The indictment in the case at

bar was probably framed with these decisions before

the pleader; and we unite with counsel for plaintiffs in

error in recalling to the Court's attention the adage

" via antiqua via est tuta" and agree with him in his

quotation (p. 13) that "neither sound reason nor pub-

" lie policy justifies any departure from settled forms

applicable in criminal prosecutions." See further

U. S. vs. Cook, 36 F. R., 896.

In the fourth assignment, the plaintiffs in error

complain of a portion of the Court's charge to the

jury, to which an exception of a general character

was taken, not pointing out specifically the matter

objected to (Transcript, p. 31). We shall presume

that it was taken before the jury retired. It will be

noticed by the Court that this portion of the charge

contained more than one distinct proposition. It re-

lated to (first) the relative credibility of Indians and

white men; (second) the probability or lack of proba-
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bility that plaintiffs in error committed the offense

charged, as indicated by the character of the country,

the habits and dispositions of the Indians who lived

there, and the quantity of whisky-peddlers in that

neighborhood; and (third) the lack of evidence that

plaintiffs in error were prospecting or locating claims-

The Court is familiar with the rule of law, that a

general exception to a charge of the Court to the jury, or to

any part thereof, will not avail a ylaintiff in error where

the charge contains distinct propositions, and any one of

them is free from objections.

Anthony vs. Louisville & Nashville R. R. Co.,

132 U. S., 172.

Foster's Federal Practice, Vol. 2, p. 786.

The objection itself to the charge shows that the

plain tiffs' counsel on the trial were endeavoring to

embrace more than one proposition in such objection.

It was objected (Transcript, p. 31) that "the same

" (the charge) is not law, is misleading, tending to

" confuse the jury and distract their attention from

" the evidence." That portion of the charge relating

to the first of the above propositions certainly did

not bring forth the objection that it tended " to con-

" fuse the jury and distract their attention from the

" evidence." The counsel must have framed their ob-

jection to meet the second, or possibly the third, pro-

position supra, advanced by the Court, while appar-

ently objecting to the first part of the charge that it

was not law.

It certainly requires no argument from us to de-
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monstrate that the first part of the charge, without

commenting upon the rest of it, is not open to the

objection referred to in the cases mentioned in the

brief of plaintiff's counsel.

We respectfully submit that this Court cannot in-

quire into the alleged errors constituting the plain-

tiff's fifth assignment. A motion for a new trial is ad-

dressed to the trial Court's discretion, and cannot be as-

signed for error.

Pittsburg, etc., Ry. Co. vs. Heck, 10'2 U. S., 120.

Wharton's Criminal Pleading and Practice,

Sees. 897, 902.

Referring specifically, however, to the various

grounds of the motion, it will- be observed that no

objections were made or exceptions taken by counsel

for plaintiffs in error upon the trial, at the time the

Court questioned the witness Raymond, or at the time

of the alleged misconduct of the United States At-

torney for Alaska, or at any other time, respecting

these assigned errors, nor does the record show any

waiver of such objections or exceptions.

The record must show that the exception was taken at

that stage of the trial when its cause arose, i. e., when the

ruling or instruction objected to, was given, or it will not

be considered by the Appellate Court. That Court is con-

fined to exceptions actually taken at the trial.

Hanna et al. vs. Maas, 122 U. S., 24.

Brown vs. Clarke, 4 How., 4.

Turner vs. Yates, 16 Id., 14.

Barton vs. Forsyth, 20 Id., 532.
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U. S. vs. Breitting, 20 Id., 252.

Phelps vs. Meyer, 15 Id., 160.

Hunnicutt vs. Peyton, 102 U. S., 333
;
351.

The rule in civil and criminal cases is the same.

In the case of Chandler vs. Thompson, 30 F. R., 38,

45, it is held that, following the general rale, any excep-

cepti'ms to the remarks of counsel to the jury should be

taken when such remarks were mn.de. The reason for

the rule is too obvious to call for comment.

It is therefore submitted that such charge or re-

marks cannot be reviewed upon appeal.

In the case of Ball vs. U. S., No. 17, Advance

Sheets U. S. Sup'm Ct. Opinions, cited by plaintiffs'

counsel, a motion for a new trial was referred to by

the Court, but it was found to have been based upon

an alleged defect in the case not objected to upon the

trial, and was therefore dismissed. In the case of U.

S. vs. Hewecker, 163 U. S., 21, also referred to in

counsel's brief, the Court states, in speaking of the

repeal of Sections 651 and 697, U. S. R. S., by the

Circuit Court of Appeals Act of 1891,

" The general rule was that this Court could not,

" upon a certificate of division of opinion, acquire

"jurisdiction of questions relating to matters of pure

" discretion in the Circuit Court, and therefore that a

" certificate on a motion for a new trial would not lie,

" but where the questions presented went directly to

" the merits of the case it had been held that jurisdic-

" tion might be entertained.

U. S. vs. Rosenberg, 74 U. S., 7 Wall., 580."
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The evidence taken upon the trial on behalf of the

prosecution disposes, it seems to us, of the fifth ground

of the motion, and we find nothing contained in the

sixtli ground not heretofore referred to.

No exception appears to have been taken at the time

the Court denied the motion of plaintiffs in error for

a new trial, nor even at any time afterwards. Nor was

sucli exception waived; but the record is particular to

state that exception was taken to the overruling of the

motion in arrest of judgment.

It is therefore respectfully submitted that the judg-

ment of the U. S. District Court for the District of

Alaska should be affirmed, with costs.

SAMUEL KNIGHT,
Assistant U. S. Attorney, for the Northern District of

California, of Counsel.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND COM-

PANY,
Complainant,

vs.

E. I. MESSINGER,
Defendant.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND COM-

PANY,
Complainant,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,
Defendant.

Stipulation as to Printing of Record.

The bills, answers, decrees, assignments of errors and

all the other papers and proceedings in the above-enti-
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tied causes being exactly alike, with the exception that

in the case of the Eastern Oregon Land Co. vs. E. I. Mes-

singer it is alleged that the land patented to the defend-

ant was patented under the provisions of the Act of Con-

gress approved May 20th, 1862, entitled "An Act to secure

homesteads to actual settlers on the Public Domain," and

the acts supplemental thereto; that the lands patented

were the south half of the northwest quarter and lots

three and four of section three, township two south of

range sixteen east of the Willamette Meridian, in Ore-

gon, and were situated within twenty miles of the line of

the general route of the Northern Pacific Kailroad Com-

pany's road, as designated on the map of August 17th r

1870, and that the said patent was dated the 17th day

of August, 1894, while in the case of the Eastern Oregon

Land Co. vs. John D. Wilcox it is alleged that the land

patented to him was patented under the provisions of the

act of Congress approved April 24th, 1820, entitled "An

Act making further provisions for the sale of public

lands," and the acts supplemental thereto; that the lands

patented were the northeast quarter and the southeast

quarter of section fifteen, township five, south of range

seventeen east of the Willamette Meridian, in Oregon, and

were situated more than twenty miles and less than forty

miles from the line of the general route of the Northern

Pacific Kailroad Company's road, and that said patent

was dated the 28th day of December, 1894.

It is stipulated by the parties to the above-entitled suits,

by their respective attorneys, that unless the above-
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entitled court shall otherwise order, only the record in

the above-entitled suit of the Eastern Oregon Land Co.

vs. John D. Wilcox shall be printed, and that the appeal

in the case of the Eastern Oregon Land Co. vs. E. I. Mes-

siuger may be heard and submitted in said court without

printing the record thereof.

DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Solicitors for Complainants and Appellants.

JNO. M. GEARIN, and

J. L. STORY,

Solicitors for Defendants and Respondents.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 9, 1897. F. D. Monckton, Clerk.

Citation.

United States of America, )

District of Oregon.
)

To John D. Wilcox, Esq., Greeting:

Whereas the Eastern Oregon Land Company has lately

appealed to the United States Circuit Court of Appe-als

for the Ninth Circuit, from a decree rendered in the Cir-

cuit Court of the United States for the District of Oregon,

In your favor, and has given the security required by law,
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you are, therefore, hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before said Circuit Court of Appeals at San Fran-

cisco, California, within thirty days from the date hereof,

to show cause, if any there be, why the said decree should

not be corrected, and speedy justice should not be done

to the parties in that behalf.

Given under my hand, at Portland, in said District, this

Jan. 5, 1897.

W'M. B. GILBERT,

Judge.

United States of America, )

( ss
District of Oregon.

)

Due and legal service of the within citation is hereby

admitted at Portland, in said District, this 5th day of

January, A. D. 1897.

JXO. M. GEARIX,

Of Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed]: Filed January 5,1897. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk. By G. H.. Marsh, Deputy Clerk.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

April Term, 1896.

Be it remembered, that on the 8th day of July, 1896,

there was duly filed in the Circuit Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon, a bill of complaint, in

words and figures as follows, to wit:

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND COM-

PANY,
\

Complainant, '

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,
Defendant.

Bill of Complaint.

To the Honorable Judges of the Circuit Court of the

United States for the District of Oregon, Sitting in

Equity:

The Eastern Oregon Land Company brings this, its bill

of complaint, against the above named defendant, and

complaining says:
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I.

That the complainant, the Eastern Oregon Land Com-

pany, is and was during all the times hereinafter men-

tioned, a corporation duly incorporated under the laws of

the State of California, and was and is a citizen of said

State, and that the defendant above named is a citizen

and resident of the State of Oregon.

II.

Your orator further shows to your Honors that during

all the times hereinafter mentioned the Dalles Military

Road Company was and now is a corporation duly incor-

porated and organized under and by virtue of the general

laws of the State of Oregon.

III.

Your orator further shows to your Honors that on the

25th day of February, 1867, the Congress of the United

States passed and the President of the United States

duly approved an act granting to the State of Oregon,

to aid in the construction of a wagon road from Dalles

City, on the Columbia River, by way of Camp Watson,

Canyon City, Mormon or Humbold Basin, to a point on

Snake River opposite Fort Boise in Idaho Territory,

the alternate sections of public lands designated by odd

sections to the extent of three miles in width on each side



vs. John D. Wilcox. 7

of said road; that said act provided that the lands

granted should be exclusively applied to the construction

of the road and to no other purpose and that they should

be disposed of only as the work progressed and that lands

lying within the limit fixed by said act and theretofore

reserved or appropriated should be reserved from the

operation of said act except so far as it was necessary

to locate the road over the same, in which case the right

of way to the width of 100 feet was granted; that said act

further provided that the grant should not embrace min-

eral lands of the United States and that the lands thereby

granted to the State of Oregon should be disposed of by

the Legislative Assembly thereof for the purposes afore-

said and no other, and that the said road should be and

remain a public highway for the use of the Government

of the United States, free from tolls or other charges

upon the transportation of any of the property, troops, or

mails of the United States; that said act also authorized

the State of Oregon to locate and use in the construction

of said road an additional amount of the public lands not

previously reserved to the United States or otherwise dis-

posed of and not exceeding ten miles in distance from

the general route of the road and equal to the amount

reserved within the limits of the grant in place from the

operation of the act, said lieu lands to be selected in alter-

nate sections as provided therein; that said act further

provided that the lands thereby granted to the State of

Oregon should be disposed of only in the following man-

ner, that is to say, when the Governor of the State should
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certify to the Secretary of the Interior that ten co-ter-

minous miles of said road were completed then a quantity

of the land granted by the act not exceeding thirty sec-

tions might be sold and so on from time to time until

said road should be completed and that if the road was

not completed within five years no further sales should

be made and the lands remaining unsold should revert

to the United States, and also the Surveyor-General of

the District of Oregon should cause the lands granted by

the act to be surveyed at the earliest practical period

after the said State should have enacted the necessary

legislation to carry the said act of Congress into effect.

IV.

And 3
rour orator further shows unto your Honors that

on the 20th day of October, 1868, the Legislative Assem-

bly of the State of Oregon passed and the Governor ap-

proved an act entitled "An act dedicating certain lands

to Dalles Military Road Company," which act after set-

ting forth the act of Congress aforesaid granted to the

Dalles Military Road Co. all lands, rights of way, rights,

privileges, and immunities granted or pledged to the

State of Oregon by the said act of Congress for the pur-

poses of aiding said Dalles Military Eoad Company in

constructing the road mentioned and described in said

act of Congress aforesaid and upon the conditions and

immunities therein prescribed ; and further tnat the said

Legislative Assembly granted and pledged to the said
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Dalles Military Road Co. all moneys, lands, rights, privi-

leges, and immunities which might thereafter be granted

to the State of Oregon to aid in the construction of said

road for the purposes and upon the conditions mentioned

in said act of Congress or which might be mentioned in

-any further grant of money or land to aid in the con-

struction of such road, and the said act of the Legislative

Assembly of the State of Oregon authorized the said

Dalles Military Road Co. to locate, subject to the ap-

proval of the Governor of the State of Oregon, all lands

within the ten mile limit prescribed by said act of Con-

gress aforesaid in lieu of land reserved to or disposed of

by the United States and lying and being within the lim-

its of the grant as described in the First Section of the

Act of Congress aforesaid.

V.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors thai

the said Dalles Military Road Co. is a private corporation

and was duly incorporated and organized on the 30th day

of March, 1868, under and by virtue of the general laws of

the State of Oregon providing for private corporations

and the appropriation of private property therefor, and

that the enterprise and business in which the said cor-

poration proposed, to engage was the location and con-

struction of a clay road from the city of The Dalles, in the

County of Wasco, Oregon, by way of Camp Watson and

Canyon City to a point on Snake River opposite Fort
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Boise in the Territory of Idaho about two miles below

the mouth of Owyhee River; that James K. Kelly, N. H.

Gates, and Orlando Humason were the incorporators

thereof; that on the 11th day of January, 1871, the Dalles

Military Road Co., by Orlando Humason, Victor Trevett,

O. S. Savage, O. W. Weaver, and B. W. Mitchell, the then

directors thereof, in pursuance of the unanimous vote of

the stockholders thereof, duly made and filed supple-

mental articles of incorporation, and that said supple-

mental articles of incorporation contained but one

article, which is as follows, to-wit: "The enterprise and

business in which the said corporation proposes to en-

gage, in addition to the location and construction of a

clay road as provided in the original articles of incorpora-

tion, is to accept and receive any and all grants of lands

and other things of value from the United States and the

State of Oregon and to sell and convey and to purchase

and to hold land and other property which the said direct-

ors of said corporation may deem necessary and conven-

ient for the interests thereof, and to engage in any

business incidental to and connected with receiving any

such grant and in selling, conveying, purchasing, and

holding any land or property that may come into the pos-

session of said company, also to establish and keep a toll

road on any part of the road belonging to said company."

VI.

And your orator further represents and shows unto
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your Honors that prior to the 23rd day of June, 1869, the

said Dalles Military Road Co. duly surveyed! and definite-

ly located the line of its said wagon road between the

points and upon the route designated in said act of Con-

gress and in the said act of the Legislative Assembly of

the State of Oregon, and had fully constructed and com-

pleted its said road and had filed in the executive office

of the Governor of the State of Oregon a plat or map of

the said Dalles Military Road, upon which was traced

and shown the definite location of said wagon road, from

its terminus at the city of The Dalles, Oregon, to its ter-

minus on Snake River, and the limits of the grant of land

in place made to the State of Oregon by the said act of

Congress to aid in the construction of said road, and also

the indemnity limits of said grant, and that on June 23rd,

1869, the Governor of Oregon certified that the plat or map

of said Dalles Military Road Co. had been duly filed in the

executive office, that it showed the location of the line of

route upon which said road was constructed, in accord-

ance with the requirements of the act of Congress ap-

proved February 25th, 1867, entitled "An act granting

lands to the State of Oregon to aid in the construction of

a military wagon road from Dalles City, on the Columbia

River, to Fort Boise, on Snake River," and with the act

of the Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon ap-

proved October 20th, 1868, entitled, "An act donating cer-

tain lands to the Dalles Military Road Co.," and the said

Governor of Oregon at that date further certified that lie
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had made a careful examination of said road since its

completion and that the same was built in all respects

as required by the said above recited acts and was then

accepted, as will more fully appear by said certificate,

of which the following is a copy:

Executive Office, Salem, Oregon,

June 23rd, 1869.

I, George L. Woods, Governor of the State of Oregon,

do hereby certify that this plat or map of the Dalles Mili-

tary Eoad has been duly filed in my office by the Dalles

Military Eoad Co., and shows, in connection with the

public surveys as far as the said public surveys are com-

pleted, the location of the line of route as actually sur-

veyed and upon which their road is constructed, in ac-

cordance with the requirements of the act of Congress

approved February 25th, 1867, entitled, "An Act grant-

ing landi> to the State of Oregon to aid in the construction

of a mili tary wagon road from Dalles City, on the Colum-

bia Eiver, to Fort Boise, on Snake Eiver," and with the

act of the Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon,

approved October 20th, 1868, entitled, "An act donating

certain lands to Dalles Military Eoad Company." And

I further certify that I have made a careful examination

of said road since its completion and that the same is

built in all respects as required by the said above recital

acts, and that said road is accepted.
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In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and

caused to be affixed the great seal of the State of Oregon.

Done at Salem, Oregon, June 23rd, 1869.

GEOliGE L. WOODS. [Seal]

Attest: Samuel E. May.

VII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

upon the filing of the said plat or map in the executive

office of the Governor of the State of Oregon showing the

definite location of its said road, in connection with the

public surveys, and upon the execution of the said certifi-

cate by the Governor of Oregon certifying to the comple-

tion of said road, the grant made by the said Act of Con-

gress of February 25th, 1867, to the State of Oregon to

aid in the construction of said road became located and

definitely fixed and attached to the odd sections of land

as shown by the public surveys within the limits of three

miles on each side of said road as located and constructed.

VIII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the said Dalles Military Eoad Co. duly filed in the office

of the Secretary of the Interior of the United States a

map or plat of the said Dalles Military Road, showing the

definite location thereof with reference to the public sur-

veys so far as then made, and the said certificate of the
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said Governor of the State of Oregon certifying to the

construction of said road, and that said map was duly ex-

ecuted in accordance with the requirements and regula-

tions of the Interior Department of the United States and

was accepted and received and filed in said department;

and that on December 18th, 1869, the Commissioner of the

General Land office of the United States, by order of the

Secretary of the Interior,withdrewfrom sale the odd num-

bered sections within three miles from each side of said

wagon road, as delineated and shown on said maps, in fa-

vor of the Dalles Military Road Company.

IX.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the Congress of the United States, by an act approved

.June 19th, 1874, entitled "An Act to authorize the issu-

ance of patents for lands granted to the State of Oregon

in certain cases," provided that in all cases where lands

have been granted by Congress to the State of Oregon to

aid in the construction of certain wagon roads and the

certificate of the Governor of Oregon should show that

any such road had been constructed and completed as in

said acts required, patents should be issued in due form

to the State of Oregon for such lands, unless the State

should by public act have transferred its interests in such

lands to any corporation, in which case the said lands

were to be patented to such corporation.
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And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

Edward Martin, then a resident of San Francisco, in the

State of California, placing confidence in the truth of the

certificate of the Governor of the State of Oregon, dated

June 23rd, 1869, that said road had been duly constructed

in accordance with the requirements of said act of Con-

gress approved February 25th, 1867, and also placing con-

fidence in the order of the Commissioner of the General

Land Office, dated December 18th, 1869, withdrawing

said lands within the limits of the said grant in the State

of Oregon in favor of the Dalles Military Eoad Company,

from sale, and also believing that the said act of Con-

gress, approved June 18th, 1874, would be carried into ef-

fect by the issuance of patents to the said Dalles Military

l^oad Company for said lands, and without any notice or

knowledge, actual or constructive, that any portion of

said grant was claimed by the Northern Pacific Railroad

Company or any other corporation or person, or that any

portion of the lands within the limit of the grant in place

or within the indemnity limits to the said State of Ore-

gon to aid in the construction of said road were excepted

therefrom on account of a grant to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company or to any company or person or for

any other reason, did on the 31st day of May, 1876, pur-

chase in good faith, for a valuable consideration, to-wit,

the sum of f125,000.00, then paid by said Edward Martin

to said Dalles Military Poad Company, all the lands cm-
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braced in the grant to said company, except such por-

tions thereof as had been previously sold by it; that pre-

vious to the time of paying said sum of $125,000.00 pur-

chase money and receiving said deed, said Edward Mar-

tin had no notice or knowledge, actual or constructive, of

any claim by the said Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany or by any corporation or person or by the Govern-

ment of the United States that any portion of the lands

granted to the State of Oregon to aid in the construction

of said wagon road were excepted or claimed to be ex-

cepted from said grant on account of any previous grant

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company or any corpor-

ation or person or for any reason whatever; that there-

upon the said Edward Martin became and was a bona fide

purchaser for a valuable consideration of all said lands

then owned by the said Dalles Military Road Company,

which were then conveyed to him by the said corpora-

tion, as will more fully appear by said deed, of which a

copy is attached to this bill of complaint and marked Ex-

hibit "A."

XI.

That said Edward Martin afterwards, to-wit, on Janu-

ary 31st, 1877, executed and delivered to D. V. B. Henarie,

a deed of trust, whereby he acknowledged that said D. V.

B. Henarie was the owner of the undivided one-fourth of

all the lands mentioned and described in the said deed of

the Dalles Military Road Co. executed to the said Ed-

ward Martin and that he held the same in trust for the
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said Henarie, which deed of trust was recorded in Wasco

County, Oregon, on May 7th, 1884, in Volume A, page 285,

of Miscellaneous Records, also iu Baker County, Oregon,

on May 10th, 1884, in Volume 2, page 317, of Record of

Leases and Agreements, also in Grant County, Oregon,

on May 27th, 1881, in Volume A, page 581, of Miscellan-

eous Records.

XII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

when said Edward Martin purchased said lands on May

21st, 1871, as hereinbefore stated, said D. V. B. Henarie

paid one-fourth of the consideration of the same, to-wit,

one-fourth of $125,000.00; that he, the said I). V. B. Hen-

arie made said purchase in good faith, relying upon tin-

certificate of the Governor of the State of Oregon that

said road had been constructed according to the act of

Congress approved February 25th, 1807, and also relying

upon the act of Congress approved June 18th, 1874, thai

patents in due form of law would be issued to the Dalle«

Military Road Company for said lands; that he had no

notice or knowledge, actual or constructive, at the time

he paid one-fourth of the said purchase money and when

said deed was executed and delivered to said Edward

Martin that any portion of the land so granted to the

State of Oregon to aid in the construction of said road

were claimed by the Northern Pacific Railroad Company

or by any corporation or person adversely to said Dalles

Military Road Co., or that any portion of the grant of
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lands in place or within the indemnity limits to the sa'/i

State of Oregon to aid in the construction of said road

was excepted from said grant or claimed to be excepte i

from said grant by the United States, on account of the

same being included in any grant to the Northern Pacific

Railroad CompaDy or any other company or person.

XIII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

afterwards, to-wit, on the 12th day of May, 1880, the said

Edward Martin died intestate in the city of San Fran-

cisco, in the State of California, leaving a widow, Eleanor

Martin, and leaving as his heirs, Thomas S. Martin, Ed-

ward Martin and Sarah A. F. Wilcox, who were then of

lawful age, and James V. Martin, Genevieve E. Martin,

Peter D. Martin, Walter S. Martin and Andrew D. Mar-

tin, who were then minors that in March, 1882, the inter-

est of said minors in said lands were sold at a guardian

sale by order of the County Court of the State of Oregon

for the County of Wasco,, at which sale the interesl of

said minors in said land was purchased in good faith, for

a valuable consideration, by Peter Donahue and James

Phelan, of San Francisco, California, as will more fully

appear by Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a pa it

hereof; that at the time of the purchase of said lands by

said PeterDonahue and James Phelan neither of them had

any notice or knowledge, actual or constructive, that any

portion of the lands within the limits of the grant made
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:as aforesaid by Congress to the State of Oregon to aid in

the construction of said road or within the indemnity lim-

its was claimed by the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany or by any corporation or person adversely to the

-said Dalles Military Road Company, or was claimed by

the United States or any corporation or person to be ex-

cepted from said grant or to have been excepted from said

grant on account of their having been previously granted

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company or to any cor

poration or person or for any other reason; that on the

11th day of August, 1884, all the heirs of the said Edward

Martin and all persons who held an interest by purchase

in said lands, to-wit, P. J. Martin, Eleanor Martin, D. V.

B. Henarie, Perer Donahue, Edward Martin, James V.

Martin, Thomas S. Martin, Genevieve E. Walker and

Joseph W. Wirtans, sold and by deed conveyed all their

interest in tlie said lands to the Eastern Oregon Land

Company, a corporation duly incorporated and organized

binder the laws of the State of California as will more ful-

ly appear by Exhibit "C" attached hereto and made a

part hereof.

XIV.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the said Dalles Military Road Co., duly selected, among

nther lands forming a portion of its said grant of lands in

place, and which had been duly earned by the const rnc-

Hon of its said wagon road, the following described land.
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to-wit: The northeast quarter and the southeast quarter

of section fifteen in township five south of range seven-

teen east of the Willamette meridian, and situated in The

county of Sherman, and State of Oregon, the same lying

within the limit of the grant of land in place to the said

State of Oregon by the said Act of February 25th, 1807,

to aid in the construction of the said military wagon road,

and being a portion of the lands withdrawn in favor of

said Dalles Military Eoad Co. on the said 18th day of De-

cern berT 1869, and being situated on the south side of the

said line of the general route of the Northern Pacific rail-

road as delineated on said map filed by said company on

the 13th day of August, 1870, and being situated more

than twenty miles and less than forty miles from said line

of general route of the Northern Pacific railroad, and be-

ing then unoccupied land and there being no claim there-

to adverse to the said company, and that said selection

was embraced in list Xo. , and said list was duly

certified by the register and receiver of the local land of-

fice at Dalles City to the commissi oner of the general land

* office at Washington City, District of Columbia.

XV.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the Congress of the United States by an act entitled "An

Act to grant lauds to aid in the construction of a railroad

and telegraph line from Lake Superior to Puget Sound on

the Pacific Coast, etc.," approved July 2nd, 1864, created
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The corporation of the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany, and authorized it to build a railroad from a point

.a] Lake Superior, in Wisconsin or Minnesota, westerly

by the most eligible route north of the forty-fifth degree

of kititude, to some point on Puget Sound, with a branch

via the Columbia river to a point at or near Portland, in

the State of Oregon, and granted to said company every

alternate section of land, not mineral, designated by odd

numbers, to the amount of twenty odd sections to the mile

on each side of said railroad line as said company might

adopt, through the territories of the United States, and

ten alternate sections per mile on each side of said rail-

road whenever it passed through any state and whenever

on the line thereof the United States had full title not re-

served, sold, granted or otherwise appropriated and free

from pre-emption or other claims or rights at the time the

line of said road should be definitely fixed and a plat

thereof filed in the office of the commissioner of the gen-

eral land office, and whenever prior to said time any of

said sections or parts of sections should have been grant-

ed, sold, reserved or occupied by homestead settlers, or

j re-empted or otherwise disposed of, other lands should

be selected by said company in lieu thereof, under the di-

rection of the secretary of the interior, in alternate sec-

tions, and designated by odd numbers not more than ten

miles beyond the limits of said alternate sections.

XVI.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that
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by a joint resolution entitled "A resolution authorizing

the Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. to issue its bonds for

the construction of its road and to secure the same by

mortgage and for other purposes," approved May 31st,

j 870, the Congress of the United States authorized the

said Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. to locate and con-

struct under the provisions and with the privileges,

grants and duties provided for in its act of incorporation,

its main road to some point on Puget Sound, via the val-

ley of the Columbia river, with the right to locate and

construct its branch from some convenient point on its

?nain branch line across the Cascade Mountains to Puget

Sound.

XVII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

on the 13th day of August, 1870, the officers of the North-

ern Pacific Eailroad Co. filed a map or plat of the general

route of its road and filed the same in the office of the

commissioner of the general land office and presented

the same to the then secretary of the interior, showing

among other things the general route of its said road fol-

lowing the Columbia river from Wallula in the then Ter-

ritory of Washington to a point on the north side of said

river opposite Portland in the State of Oregon, and the

secretary of the interior did on the 13th day of August,

1870, accept said map and direct the honorable commis-

sioner of the general land office to withdraw on account

of the grant to the said Northern Pacific Eailroad Com-
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pany from sale, pre-emption, homestead or other disposal

all odd numbered sections not sold or reserved and to

which prior rights had not attached within twenty miles

on each side of the route of the said Northern Pacific Rail-

road Company lying south of the town of Steilacoom, in

the State of Washington, and that on the 27th day of Oc-

tober, 1870, the honorable secretary of the interior depart-

ment wrote to the honorable commissioner of the general

jand office as follows:

Department of the Interior,

Washington, D. C., Oct. 27, 1870.

Sir: In my letters of the 13th and 16th inst. last, a

withdrawal of lands for twenty miles on each side of the

route of the Northern Pacific Eailroad in Washington

was ordered to be made. That withdrawal will be in-

creased to forty miles on each side of the route, and you

will issue instructions accordingly.

Very respectfully your obedient servant,

J. D. COX, Secretary.

To Hon. John S. Wilson, Commissioner of the General

Land Office.

XVIII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the line of the road of the said Northern Pacific Eailroad

Company between Wallula and Portland or to a point op-

posite Portland was never surveyed, that the said line of

said road between the said points was never definitely lo-

cated or fixed by said Company, that no map of the defin-
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ite location of said road was ever filed in the office of the

commissioner of the general land office at Washington

( Ity or in the interior department, that the said Northern

Pacific Eailroad Company never constructed any portion

of its said road between the said town of Wallula and the

said city of Portland, and that the grant made or claimed

to have been made by said last mentioned act of Congress

and the said joint resolution of May 31st, 1870, never was

located or fixed for that portion of the road of said North-

ern Pacific Eailroad Company between Wallula and the

city of Portland; and that the said grant to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Company to aid in the construction of

said road between said points never took effect and the

said Northern Pacific Eailroad Company never acquired

any right or title to or interest in any of the lands em-

braced within the limits of the grant made by said act of

Congress of February 25th, 1867, to the State of Oregon

to aid in the construction of said wagon road.

XIX.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that,

apon the filing of the said map of general route of the

line of its road by the said Northern Pacific Railroad

Company with the commissioner of the general land of-

fice on the 13th day of August, 1870, the secretary of the

interior directed the withdrawal of the odd numbered sec-

tions lying within the supposed limits of the grant of

lands in place to the Northern Pacific Eailroad Company
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as aforesaid, but did not determine or designate the num-

ber of sections to the mile or the limits of the supposed

grant of lands in place to the Northern Pacific Railroad

Company within the State of Oregon, but that the honor-

able commissioner of the general land office erroneously

•and wrongfully transmitted to the local land offices in

Oregon plats showing the general route of the road of

the said Northern Pacific Railroad as located and desig-

nated upon the said map filed by the secretary of the in-

terior August 13th, 1870, and showing the limit of the

grant in place to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company

to be in Oregon between Wallula and Portland forty

in iles south of the line of said general route of its road,

that the lands in place granted to the State of Oregon by

the act of February 25th, 1867, to aid in the construction

of said wagon road and which had been by the Commis-

sioner of the general land office withdrawn in favor of the

Dalles Military Road Co. on the 18th day of December,

1869, situated within forty miles of the line of the gen-

eral route of said Northern Pacific Railroad as designated

on said maps were included within the limits of the lands

in place designated upon the said maps transmitted to

the register and receiver of the local land offices in

Oregon as the limits of the lands in place granted to

the said Northern Pacific Railroad Company, and that

the register and receiver of the said local land offices

in Oregon, and the honorable commissioner of the

general land office and the honorable secretary of the

interior have since wrongfully claimed and the United

States now wrongfully elaims that the lands situated
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within the limits of the grant in place to the State

of Oregon by the said act of February 25, 1867, and

lying within forty miles of the line of the general location

of the road of said Northern Pacific Railroad Company,,

as designated aforesaid, were excepted from the grant to

the State of Oregon under said act and had been previous

of the date of the passage of said grant granted to the

Northern Pacific Eailroad Company and upon the alleged

forfeiture of the unearned portion of the grant to the

Northern Pacific Railroad Company became public lands

of the United States.

XX.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

by an act of Congress to forfeit certain lands theretofore

granted for the purpose of aiding in the construction of

railroads and other purposes, approved September 29th,

1390, the United States resumed title to and restored to

the public domain so far as Congress had power so to do,

all lands theretofore granted to aid in the construction of

railroads opposite to and coterminous with the portion of

such railroad not then completed and in operation for the

construction or benefit of which such lands were granted.

XXI.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

after the passage of said act the secretary of the interior

of the United States wrongfully assumed and claimed

that the odd sections of the public land on the south side

of and within forty miles of the line of the general route
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<dI the said road of the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany between Wallula and a point on the north side of

the Columbia river opposite the city of Portland, in the

State of Oregon, as said line was traced and designated

»_>n the said map of general route filed by the said North-

ern Pacific Railroad Company in the office of the commin-

sioner of the general land office on the 13th day of Au-

gust, 1870, as aforesaid, had been granted to said North-

vrn Pacific and were reserved and excepted from the said

grant made to the State of Oregon by the said act of Feb-

ruary 25th, 1867, to aid in the construction of said wagon

r<>ad, and that by said act of Congress forfeiting unearned

railroad grants the said lands within the limits aforesaid

had reverted to and become public lands of the United

States open to settlement and sale under the land laws

of the United States providing for the sale and disposal

of the public land, although the said lands were also with-

in the limits of the grant in place to said Dalles Military

Road Company.

XXII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

the said secretary of the interior thereupon caused the

said lands to be opened to settlement and sale and there-

upon the defendant settled upon the said tract of land

hereinbefore described as: The northeast quarter and

the southeast quarter of section fifteen in township five,

south of range seventeen, east of the Willamette meri-

dian, and situated in the County of Sherman and State of
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Oregon, and made application to purchase the same un-

der the act of Congress making further provision for the

sale of public land, approved Apr. 24, 1820, and such pro-

ceedings were thereafter had upon said application that

on the 28th day of Sept., 1894, the President of the United

States issued a patent for the same to the said defendant,

a copy of which is hereto attached, marked Exhibit "D"

;

that said secretary of the interior had no jurisdiction or

authority to open the said lands within the limits of the

grant of lands in place to the State of Oregon to aid in

the construction of said Dalles Military Road Co. to set-

tlement or to permit the defendant to settle upon or pur-

chase the 'said lands and the President of the United

States had no jurisdiction or authority to issue a patent

therefor*

XXIII.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

at and before the time the defendant settled upon said

tract of land and made claim thereto and made applica-

tion to purchase the same, he, the said defendant, well

knew that the said lands were within the limits of the

grant in place to the said Dalles Military Road Co. and

that the same were claimed by the said Dalles Military

Road Co. and by its successors and assigns under said

grant.

XXIV.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

if it had been true that the lands in Oregon within forty
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miles of the general route of the said Northern Pacific

Kailroad Company's road between Wallula and Portland,

as designated on said map of the genera) route of its road

filed by the said Northern Pacific Kailroad Co. with the

secretary of the interior on the 13th day of August, 1870,

had been granted to the said Northern Pacific Eailroad

Co. by the said act of July 2nd, 1864, and the said joint

resolution of May 31st, 1870, said grant had taken effect

and that the said lands within the limits aforesaid were

excepted from the grant to the said Dalles Military Road

Co., this plaintiff being a bona fide purchaser of said

lands would have had a preference right to apply for and

purchase the lands so patented to the defendant by the

United States, under the provisions of section five of an

act of Congress, entitled "An act to provide for the ad-

justment of land grants made by Congress to aid in the

construction of railroads and for the forfeiture of un-

earned lands, and for other purposes," approved March

3rd, 1867, but that your orator received no notice and

liad no notice or knowledge of the application of the said

defendant to purchase said land and no opportunity to

apply to purchase the same under the provisions of said

section five or otherwise.

XXV.

And your orator further shows unto your Honors that

a patent having been issued to the defendant for the said

lands, the interior department of the United States has

no longer jurisdiction of the same and cannot give to your

orator the most convenient and conclusive evidence of
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his title to said land and cannot issue to your orator a

patent for the same as required by the said act of June

1 8th, 1874, until the patent to the defendant has been can-

celed, annulled and set aside; and that said patent is a

cloud upon the title of your orator to said lands described

therein, and that your orator is remediless in a court of

law.

Your orator therefore prays that the said patent issued

to the defendant described in this bill of complaint be de-

creed fraudulent and void and be canceled and annulled;

that your orator may be decreed to be the owner in fee

simple of the land described in said patent and entitled to

the immediate possession thereof, and may have the pro-

cess of this Court to put it into possession thereof; or if

it shall bedetermined bythe Court that the said defendant

has acquired by said patent or otherwise any legal right

or title to the property described therein, that he be de-

clared the trustee of said right or title for your orator and

be ordered and decreed to convey the said land to it, and

that your orator may have such other and further relief

as the facts will warrant or as to equity seems meet; that

the writ of subpoena may issue requiring the defendant to

appear in this regard under certain pains and penalties

Therein prescribed and answer to the foregoing bill of
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complaint, and that the defendant pay the costs, ex-

penses and disbursements of this suit.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND CO.

[Seal.] By T. P. BEACH, Secretary.

JAMES K. KELLY,

J. N. DOLPH,

RICHARD NIXON,

C. V. DOLPH.

Solicitors for Complainant.

City and County of San Francisco,
/

>ss.
State of California,

\

I, T. P. Beach, being first duly sworn, say that I am the

secretary of the Eastern Oregon Land Company, com-

plainant above named, and that the statements contained

in the foregoing bill of complaint are true, as I verily be-

lieve.

T. P. BEACH.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day of July,

1896.

[Seal.] A. J. PORTER,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California.
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Exhibit "A."

Deed—Dalles Military Road Company, to Edward Martin

—Filed for Eecord on the 31st day of May.

A. D. 1876.

This indenture, made and entered into this 31st day of

May, A. D. 1876, between the Dalles Military Eoad Com-

pany, a corporation duly incorporated, organized and ex-

isting under the laws of the State of Oregon, having its

principal office and place of business at Dalles City, Was-

c) county, State of Oregon, the party of the first part, and

Edward Martin, of the City and County of San Francisco,

State of California, the party of the second part:

Witnesseth: That the said party of the first part, the

l)al]es Military Road Company, a corporation as afore-

said, for the sum of one hundred and twenty-five thous-

and dollars to it in hand paid by the said party of the sec-

ond part, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged,

has granted, bargained and sold, released and conveyed,

and by these presents, it does grant, bargain, sell, release

and convey, unto the said party of the second part, his

heirs and assigns, all the land lying and being in the

State of Oregon granted or intended to be granted to said

State by Act of Congress approved February 25th, 1867,

entitled, "An Act granting lands to the State of Oregon

to aid in the construction of a Military Wagon Road from

Dalles City on the Columbia River to Fort Boise on the
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Snake River," and the right to a patent or patents for

-said lands granted to said party of the first part by Act of

Congress approved June 18th, 1874, entitled, "An Act to

-authorize the issuance of patents for lands granted to the

State of Oregon in certain cases," which said lands were

granted or intended to be granted by the State of Oregon

to the said Dalles Military Eoad Company, by an Act of

the Legislative Assembly of said State of Oregon, ap-

proved October 20th, 1868, entitled, "An Act donating

certain lands to the Dalles Military Road Company,"

which said several Acts are hereby made part hereof, and

all the right, title and interest acquired or to be acquired

by the party of the first part under the said s~^eral acts

hereinbefore referred to, or either of them; and also all

future right, title, interest, claim, property and demand,

which the party of the first part may at any time here-

after acquire to said lands or any part thereof, or to any

lands or to any patents or patent therefor by virtue of

said Acts of Congress, or either of them, and said Act of

the Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon, whether

said lands are surveyed or unsurveyed by virtue of any

further compliance or any preceding compliance with the

requirements of said Acts or otherwise, subject to the

payment by said party of the second part, of whatever

may be due the United States for entering and patenting

:\qid lands.

It being the intention of the party of the first part to

convey, and it does hereby convey to the party of the

second part the said lands, and all the right, title and in-

Trrest acquired by said party of the first part, under said
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Acts or either of them in said lands, or any part thereofT

or any lands, being the interest in and to the lands and*

premises hereinbefore described, together with any and

all future interest that it may hereafter acquire or now

possess, by virtue of any further compliance with all or

any of said several Acts referred to; reserving and ex-

cepting from this conveyance, however, all sales of lands

heretofore made by the party of the first part.

The said party of the first part hereby covenants and

agrees with the party of the second part, that it will at

any time when desired by said party of the second part,,

make to him, his heirs and assigns, any further convey-

ance and assurance of title to the lands aforesaid, and

every part thereof, and said party of the first part coven-

ants and agrees with said party of the second part to

keep up its corporate organization and to do every act

and thing necessary and requisite to perfect the title to ail

the lands included in the grant aforesaid.

To have and to hold the lands hereby granted and every

part and parcel thereof unto the said party of the second

part, his heirs and assigns forever.

In Witness Whereof, the said party of the first part has

caused its corporate seal to be affixed to these presents,

and the same to be signed by its President and Secretary

byresolution of the Board of Directors thereof dulypassed

to that effect at Dalles City, Wasco County, State of Ore-

gon, this 31st day of May, 1876.

P. J. MARTIN, Pres. D. M. R. Co.

C, N. THORNBURY, Sec. D. M. R. O.
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And witness the seal thereof.

•Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of

[Seal.] BEN KORTEN,

J. B. CONDOK

State of Oregon, )
t

County of Wasco. I

On the thirty-first day of May, A. D. 1876, before the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for Wasco County,

State of Oregon,came the above-named P. J. Martin, Pres-

ident of the Dalles Military Eoad Company, and C. N.

Thornbury, Secretary of said Company, both of whom are

well known to me to be the persons described and who

executed the foregoing conveyance, and the said P. J.

Martin acknowledged to me that he had executed the

said conveyance as President of the said Dalles Military

Road Company for the objects and purposes therein

stated in compliance with a resolution passed by the

Board of Directors of said Company on the 31st day of

May, A. D. 1876, and the said C. N. Thornbury acknowl-

edged to me that he had executed the said conveyance for

the purpose therein set forth, and in attestation thereto

affixed to said conveyance the corporate seal of the Dalles

Military Road Company as Secretary thereof, in compli-

ance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of said

Company.
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In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my Notarial Seal on the day and year first above

written in this petition.

[Seal] JAMES B. CONDON,

. Notary Public for Oregon.

Exhibit «B/»

This indenture, made the twenty-first day of March, A,

D. 1882, by and between Eleanor Martin, the duly ap-

pointed and qualified guardian of the persons and estates

of James V. Martin, Genevieve Martin, Peter D. Martin,

Walter S. Martin and Andrew D. Martin, minors, party

cf the first part, and Peter Donahue and James Phelan,

of the City of San Francisco, State of California, parties

of the second part, witnesseth:

That, whereas, on the 3rd day of January, A. D. 1S82,

the county court of WTasco county, in the State of Oregon,

made an order and license of sale authorizing the said

party of the first part to sell certain real estate of the .said

minors, situate in the counties of Wasco, Grant and

Baker, in the State of Oregon, and particularly de-

scribed in the said order and license of sale, and which

said order and license of sale now on file and of record

in the said county court, Wasco county, are hereby re-

ferred to and made a part of this indenture; and

Whereas, under and by virtue of the said order and

license of sale, and pursuant to legal notices given there-

of, the said party of the first part on the 6th day of Feb-
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ruary, A. D. 1882, at 2 o'clock noon, at the courthouse

door, at The Dalles, in the county of Wasco, State of Ore-

gon, offered for sale at public auction, and subject to con-

firmation by the said County Court of Wasco county, the

portion of the said real estate situated in the said county

of W&sco, and specified and described in said order and li-

cense of sale, as aforesaid; and at such sale the said par-

ties of the second part became the purchasers of the

whole of the said real estate hereinafter particularly de-

scribed, situated in Wasco county aforesaid, for the sum

of |57,500, they being the highest and best bidders, and

that being the highest and best sum bid for the same; and

Whereas, the said County Court of Wasco county, up-

on a due and legal return of her proceedings under the

said order and license of sale made by the said party of

the first part on the 24th day of February, 1882 did on

the 6th day of March, A. D. 1882, make an order confirm-

ing the said sale and directing conveyances to be made,

executed and delivered to the said parties of the second

part, and which order of confirmation now on file and of

record in the said County Court of Wasco county is hereby

referred to and made a part of this indenture:

Now, therefore, the said Eleanor Martin, the guardian

of the persons and estates of the said minors, James V.

Martin, Genevieve IVfartin, Peter D. Martin, Walter S.

Martin, and Andrew D. Martin, as aforesaid, the party of

the first part, pursuant to the order last aforesaid of the

said County Court of Wasco County, for and in consider-

ation of the said sum of f57,500 to her in hand paid by

the said parties of the second part, the receipt whereof is
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hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and

conveyed unto the said paities of the second part, their

heirs and assigns forever, all the right, title, interest and

estate of the said James V. Martin, Genevieve Martin,

Peter D. Martin, Walter S. Martin and Andrew D. Mar-

tin, minors, in and to all that part of the lands known as

The Dalles Military Road lands, which are situate, lying

and being in the county of Wasco, State of Oregon, the

said Dalles military road lands, being the alternate sec-

tions of the public lands of the United States as surveyed

or to be surveyed by the United States, designated by

odd numbers, to the extent of three sections in width on

each side of the military road constructed by The Dalles

Military Road Company from Dalles City on the Columbia

river to Fort Boise on the Snake river, and including

such lieu lands as have been or may hereafter be selected

and located, not exceeding ten miles in distance from said

road under and in pursuance of the Act of Congress en-

titled "An Act granting lands to the State of Oregon to

aid in the construction of a military wagon road from

Dalles City on the Columbia river to Fort Boise on the

Snake river," passed February 25, 1867, and any other

acts of Congress and the acts of the Legislative Assem-

bly of the State of Oregon relating or pertaining to the

said Dalles Military Eoad lands, saving and excepting

those portions of the Dalles military road lands which

have been heretofore lawfully sold and conveyed by the

said Dalles Military Eoad Company to other persons than

Edward Martin and by said Edward Martin in his life

time, the said lands so previously conveyed not being in-
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eluded in this sale and conveyance, which said lands are

listed in part only and amount to 247,230 acres, more or

less. The interest of said minors in and to the above-

mentioned and designated lands so sold is five-eighth's of

three-fourths thereof, subject to the right of dower therein

and thereto held by and belonging to Eleanor Martin, the

widow of Edward Martin, deceased.

Together with the tenements, hereditaments and ap-

purtenances whatsoever to the same belonging or in any

wise appertaining.

To have and to hold all and singular the above-men-

tioned and described premises, together with the appur-

tenances, unto the parties of the second part, their heirs

and assigns, to their sole use, benefit, and behoof forever.

In witness whereof, the said party of the first part,

guardian as aforesaid, has hereto set her hand and seal

the day and year first above written.

[Seal] ELEANOR MARTIN,

Guardian of the persons and Estates of James V. Martin,

Genevieve Martin, Peter D. Martin, Walter S. Mar-

tin and Andrew D. Martin, Minors.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

T. P. BEACH,
SAM'L S. MURFEY.
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State of California,

City and County of San Francisco i
ss '

On this 22nd day of March, A. D. 1882, personally came

before me, Samuel S. Murfey, a commissioner of deeds for

the State of Oregon, residing in the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California, Eleanor Martin, guar-

dian of the persons and estate of James Martin, Gene-

vieve Martin, Peter D. Martin, Walter S. Martin and An-

drew D. Martin, minors, to me personally known to be the

identical person described in and who executed the fore-

going deed and who acknowledged to me that she exe-

cuted the same as guardian aforesaid freely for the uses

and purposes therein named.

In witnesswhereof, I have hereunto set my hand and af-

fixed my official seal this 22nd day of March, A. D. 1882.

[Seal.] SAM'L S. MURFEY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon.

Exhibit "C."

Deed—Peter Donahue et al. to the Eastern Oregon Land

Co.—Filed October loth, 1884, at 10:30 A. M.

This indenture, made and entered into this eleventh

day of August, A. D. one thousand eight hundred and

eighty-four by and between Peter Dohohue and Annie

Donahue, his wife, D. V. B. Henarie and Mary A. Hen-
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arie, his wife, Eleanor Martin, P. J. Martin and Margaret

A. Martin, his wife, of the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, State of California, and James V. Martin of the City

and County of Los Angeles, State aforesaid, and Thos. S.

Martin and Ada B. Martin, his wife, and Edward Martin,

of the City of Portland, State of Oregon, and Barton L.

Walker and Genevieve E. Walker, his wife, of the City of

Washington, District of Columbia, parties of the first

part, and the Eastern Oregon Land Company, a corpora-

tion duly organized and incorporated under the laws of

the State of California and having its office and principal

place of business in the City and County of San Francisco,

the party of the second part.

Witnesseth: Whereas, the said parties of the first

part are the owners of and have each an undivided inter-

est in common in the lands hereinafter mentioned and

described in the respective proportions following, to-wit:

The said Peter Donahue three-sixteenths (3-16), the said

D. V. B. Henarie four-sixteenths (4-16), the said Eleanor

Martin four-sixteenths (4-16), the said P. J. Martin one-

sixteenth (1-16), the said James V. Martin one-sixteenth

(1-16), the said Thomas S. Martin one-sixteenth (1-16), the

said Edward Martin one-sixteenth (1-16), and the said

GeDevieve E. Walker one-sixteenth (1-16); and whereas

the said parties of the first part have negotiated with the

said party of the second part for the sale of the said lands

upon terms which have been mutually agreed upon by

and between the several and respective parties hereto of

the first and second parts; Now, therefore, in considera-

tion of the premises and of the sum of one dollar lawful

money of the United States of America to each of them *
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in hand paid by the said party of the second part, the re-

ceipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, the said parties of

the first part have granted, bargained, sold, conveyed and

confirmed, and by these presents do grant, bargain, sell,

convey and confirm into the said party of the second part,

its successors and assigns, all those certain lands situate,

lying and being in the counties of Wasco, Grant and Bak-

er, State of Oregon, granted to the State of Oregon by

the Act of Congress of the United States of America en-

titled: "An Act granting lands to the State of Oregon to

aid in the construction of a Military Wagon Bead from

Dalles City on the Columbia river to Fort Boise on the

Snake river, approved February 25th, A. D. 1867, and

granted to the said Dalles Military Road Company by an

Act of the Legislative Assembly of the said State of Ore-

gon, entitled, "An Act donating lands to the Dalles Mili-

tary Eoad Company," approved October 20th, 1868, being

the lands conveyed to Edward Martin, now deceased, by

the said The Dalles Military Eoad Company by its deed

bearing date May 31st, 1876, and duly recorded in the of-

fice of the County Clerk of the said County of Wasco on

the 31st day of May, A. D. 1876, in Vol. "E," page 435, and

in the office of the County Clerk of the said County of

Grant on the 3d day of June, A. D. 1876, in Book "C," page

195, and in the office of the County Clerk of the said

County of Baker on the 7th day of June, A. D. 1876, in

Book "D" of Deeds, page 200, and commonly known and

designated as the Dalles Military Eoad Lands, a portion

of which lands are embraced in the County of Crook re-

fc
cently formed or about to be formed of and from a por-

tion or portions of said Wasco and Grant counties, saving
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:and excepting therefrom and from the operation of this

-conveyance certain portions and parcels of said Dalles

Military Road Lands heretofore sold and conveyed by the

said Edward Martin, grantee thereof as aforesaid, in his

lifetime and by his successors in interest.

The several and respective interests of the said several

and respective parties of the first part by them respective-

ly herein and hereby conveyed being subject to the proper

and respective proportions of the debts, charges and ex-

penses belonging thereto respectively, together with all

and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appurten-

ances thereunto belonging or in any wise appertaining,

and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remaind-

ers, rents, issues and profits thereof.

To have and to hold all and singular the said premises,

together with the appurtenances unto the said party of

the second part, its successors and assigns forever.

In Witness Whereof, the said parties of the first part

have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year

first above written.

P. DONAHUE. [Seal.]

Signed, sealed and delivered in presence of A. Maude

Henarie, Eugene W. Levy.

ANNIE DONAHUE. [Seal.]

As to signature of Mary A. Henarie, Annie Martin, Eu-

gene W. Levy.

D. V. B. HENAEIE. [Seal.]
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As to signature of Margaret A. Martin, Eugene W.

Levy and Gnas. T. Stanley.

MARY A. HENARIE. [Seal.]

As to signatures of P. Donahue and Annie Donahue*

Eugene W. Levy and T. P. Beach.

ELEANOR MARTIN. [Seal.]

As to signature of D. V. B. Henarie, Eugene W. Levy

and T. P. Beach.

P. J. MARTIN. [Seal.]

Witnesses as to signature of Eleanor Martin, Eugene

W. Levy and T. P. Beach.

MARGARET A. MARTIN. [Seal.]

As to signature of P. J. Martin, and James V. Martin,

Eugene W. Levy and Chas. T. Stanley. [Seal.]

JAMES V. MARTIN. [Seal]

As to signature of Edward Martin, Eugene D. White

and Arthur E. Sloan.

THOS. S. MARTIN. [Seal.]

Witness to signature of Thos. S. Martin, Eugene D.

White and Arthur E. Sloan. [Seal.]

ADA B. MARTIN. [Seal.]

Witness to signature of Ada B. Martin.

EDWARD MARTIN. [Seal.]

Witnessess to signatures of B rton L. Walker and Gen-

evieve Walker, John E. Beal and Albert D. Oilner.

BARTON L. WALKER. [Seal.]

GENEVIEVE WALKER. [Seal.]
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STATE OF OREGON,
> ss.

County of Multnomah. \

Be it Remembered that on this eighteenth day of Aug-

ust, 1884, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public in

and for said county and state, personally appeared the

within named Thos. S. Martin and Ada B. Martin, who

are known to me to be the identical persons described in

and who executed the within instrument and acknowl-

edged to me that they executed the same, and Ada B.

Martin, wife of the said Thos. S. Martin, on an examina-

tion made by me separate and apart from her said hus-

band acknowledged to me that she executed the same

freely and voluntarily and without fear, coercion or com-

pulsion from any one.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and Notarial Seal the day and year last above written.

[Seal.] EUGENE D. WHITE,

Notary Public for Oregon.

State of California, J

J.

ss.

City and County of San Francisco.
\

On the eleventh day of August, A. D. one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-four, before me, Eugene W.

Levy, a Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon,

duly appointed, commissioned and sworn and residing in

the City and County of San Francisco, State of California,
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personally appeared James V. Martin and Edward Mar-

tin, to me personally known to be the identical persons

whose names are subscribed to, who are described in and

who executed the annexed and within instrument, and

they severally duly acknowledged to me that they exe-

cuted the same freely and voluntarily for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my Official Seal the day and year in this certificate

first above written.

[Seal.] EUGENE W. LEVY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon in Cali-

fornia.

State of California,
j

> ss.

City and County of San Francisco. (

On the 11th day of August, A. D. one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-four, before me, Eugene W. Levy, ,a

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon duly ap-

pointed, commissioned and sworn and residing in the

City and County of San Francisco, State of California,

personally appeared Peter Donahue and Annie Donahue,

his wife, to me personally known to be the identical per-

sons whose names are subscribed to, who are described

in and who executed the annexed and within instrument,

and they severally duly acknowledged to .me that they

executed the same freely and voluntarily for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned; and the said Annie Donahue,
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on examination and separate and apart from her said

husband duly acknowledged to me that she executed the

same freely and without fear or compulsion from any

one.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate

first above written.

[Seal.] EUGENE W. LEVY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon, in Cali-

fornia.

State of California, )

> ss.
City and County of San Francisco. \

On the eleventh day of August, A. D. one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-four, before me, Eugene W.
Levy, a Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon,

duly appointed, commissioned and sworn and residing in

the City and County of San Francisco, State of California,

personally appeared D. V. B. Henarie and Mary A. Hen-

arie, his wife, to me personally known to be the identical

persons whose names are subscribed to, who are de-

scribed in and who executed the annexed and within in-

strument, and they severally duly acknowledged to me

that they executed the same freely and voluntarily for the

uses and purposes therein mentioned, and the said Mary

A. Henarie on examination separate and apart from

her said husband duly acknowledged to me that she ex-
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ecuted the same freely and without fear or compulsion

from any one.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal the day and year in this certifi-

cate first above written.

[Seal] EUGENE W. LEVY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon in Cali-

fornia.

State of California, )
\ ss.

City and County of San Francisco.
(

On this eleventh day of August, A. D. one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-four, before me, Eugene W.

Levy, a Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon,

duly appointed, commissioned and sworn, and residing

in the city and county of San Francisco, State of Cali-

fornia, personally appeared P. J. Martin and Margaret

A. Martin, his wife, to me personally known to be the

identical persons whose names are subscribed to, who

are described in and who executed the annexed and

within instrument, and they severally duly acknowl-

edged to me that they executed the same freely and vol-

untarily for the uses and purposes therein mentioned;

and the said Margaret A. Martin on examination separ-

ate and apart from her said husband duly acknowledg-

ed to me that she executed the same freely and without

fear or compulsion from any one.
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In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal the day and year in this certifi-

cate first above written.

[Seal] EUGENE W. LEVY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon, in Cali-

fornia.

State of California,
/

> ss.

City and County of San Francisco. I

On the 25th day of August, A. D. one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-four, before me, Eugene W. Levy,

a Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon duly

appointed, commissioned and sworn and residing in the

city and county of San Francisco, State of California,

personally appeared Eleanor Martin (widow), to me per-

sonally known to be the identical person whose name is

subscribed to, who is described in and who executed the

annexed and within instrument; and she duly acknowl-

edged to me that she executed the same freely and vol-

untarily for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal the day and year in this certifi-

fate first above written.

[Seal] EUGENE W. LEVY,

Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon, in Cali-

fornia.
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District of Columbia,
)
\ EUB.

City and County of Washington. )

On the 12th day of September, one thousand eight

J.undred, city of Washington, D. C, personally appeared

Barton L. Walker and Genevieve E. Walker, his wife,

to me personally known to be the identical persons

whose names are subscribed to and who are described in

and who executed the annexed and within instrument;

and they severally duly acknowledged to me that they ex-

ecuted the same freely and voluntarily for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned; and the said Genevieve E.

Walker on examination separate and apart from her

said husband duly acknowledged to me that she execut-

ed the same freely and without fear or compulsion from

any one.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal the day and year in tLit; v '.

rate first above written.

[Seal] JOHN E. BEALL,

A Commissioner of Deeds for the State of Oregon in

and for the District of Columbia.

Exhibit «'D."

The United States of America:

To All to Whom These Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

(Certificate !Nk>. 3904.)

Whereas John D. Wilcox of Sherman County, Oregon,
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has deposited in the general land office of the United

States a certificate of the register of the land office at

The Dalles, Oregon, whereby it appears that full pay-

ment has been made by the said John D. Wilcox ac-

cording to the provisions of the act of Congress of the

21th of April, 1820, entitled "An Act making further

provision for the sale of Public Lands," and the acts

supplemental thereto, for the northeast quarter and the

southeast quarter of section fifteen in township five south

of range seventeeen east of the Willamette Meridian in

Oregon, containing three hundred and twenty acres, ac-

cording to the official plat of the survey of the said lands,

returned to the general land office by the surveyor gen-

eral, which said tract has been purchased by the said

John D. WT
ilcox.

Now Know ye, That the United States of America in

consideration of the premises, and in conformity with

the several acts of Congress in such case made and pro-

vided, have given and granted, and by these presents do

give and grant, unto the said John D. Wilcox and to his

heirs, the said tract above described.

To have and to hold the same, together with all the

rights, privileges, immunities and appurtenances, of

whatsoever nature, thereunto belonging, unto the said

John D. Wilcox and to his heirs and assigns forever,

subject to any vested and accrued water rights for min-

ing, agricultural, manufacturing, or other purposes, and

rights to ditches and reservoirs used in connection with

such water rights, as may be recognized and acknowl-
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edged by the local customs, laws, and decisions of

courts, and also subject to the right of the proprietor of

a vein or lode to extract and remove his ore therefrom,

should the same be found to penetrate or intersect the

premises hereby granted, as provided by law; and there

is reserved from the lands hereby granted a right of way

thereof for ditches or canals constructed by the author-

ity of the United States.

In testimony whereof, I, Grover Cleveland, President

of the United States of America, have caused these let

ters to be made patent and the seal of the general land

office to be hereunto affixed.

Given under my hand at the City of Washington the

twenty-eight day of September, in the year of our Lord

one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four and of the

Independence of the United States the one hundred and

nineteenth.

[Seal] By the President,

GROYER CLEVELAND.

By E. Macfarland,

Asst. Secretary.

Recorded Vol. 8 a, page 222.

L. Q. C. LAMAR,

Recorder of the General Land Office.

Filed for record Feb. 28th, A. D. 1895, at 8:20 o'clock,

A. M.

[Endorsed]: Filed July 8, 1896. J. A. Sladen, Clerk.
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And afterwards, to wit, on the 8th day of July, 1896,

there was issued out of said court a subpcena ad respon-

dendum in words and figures as follows, to wit:

In the Circuit Conn of the United States'for the District

of Oregon.

IN EQUITY.

THE EASTERN' OREGON LAND
COMPANY,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Complainant, ( No ^2g

Defendant.

Subpoena ad Respondendum.

The President of the United States of America, to John

D. Wilcox, Greeting:

You and each of you are hereby commanded that you

be and appear in said Circuit Court of the United States,

at the court room thereof, in the city of Portland, in said

District, on the first Monday of August next, which will

be the third day of August, A. D. 1896, to answer the

exigency of a bill of complaint exhibited and filed

against you in our said Court, wherein the Eastern Ore-

gon Land Company is complainant, and you are defend-

ant, and further to do and receive what our said Cir-



54 The Eastern Oregon Land Company

cuit Court shall consider in this behalf, and this you

are in no wise to omit under the pains and penalties of

what may befall thereon.

And this is to command you the marshal of said Dis-

trict, or your deputy, to make due service of this our

writ of subpoena and to have tihen and there the same.

Hereof fail not.

Witness the Honorable MELVILLE W. FULLER,

Chief Justice of the United States, this eighth day of

July, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-

dred and ninety-six and of the Independence of the Unit-

ed States the one hundred and

[Seal] J. A. SLADEN,

Clerk.

By G. H. Marsh,

Deputy Clerk.

Memorandum pursuant to Equity Rule No. 12 of the

Supreme Court of the United States:—The Defendant is

to enter his appearance in the above-entitled suit in the

office of the clerk of said Court on or before the day at

which the above writ is returnable; otherwise the Com-

plainant's Bill therein may be taken pro confesso.

[Endorsed]: Returned and filed July 14, 1896. J. A.

Sladen, Clerk.
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Return of Civil Process.

United States of America,
)

District of Oregon.
ss

I hereby certify that on the 13th day of July, 1896, at

4 miles S. W. from Kent, Sherman County, in said Dis-

trict, I duly served the within subpoena ad respondendum

apon the therein named John D. Wilcox, by delivering to

him personally a true copy of said subpoena ad respond-

endum, duly certified to by me as U. S. Marshal, together

with a copy of the complaint in the within entitled cause,

duly certified to by Richard Nixon, of Attorneys for the

Plaintiff.

H. O. GRADY,

United States Marshal.

By Geo. Humphrey,

i Deputy.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 3d day of August, 1896,

there was duly filed in said Court a praecipe for appear-

ance of defendant, in words and figures as follows, to

wit

:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

i

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND
COMPANY, '

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Praecipe.

To the Clerk of the Above-entitled Court:

You will please enter my appearance as Solicitor in

the above-entitled cause for the defendant, John D. Wil-

cox.

GEARIN, SILVESTONE & BRODIE,

Solicitors.

[Endorsed]: Filed August 3, 1896. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 4th day of September,

1896, there was duly filed in said Court an answer, in

words and figures as follows, to wit:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND \

COMPANY,

¥8.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Complainant,

Defendant.

Answer.

Defendant in the above-entitled suit saving and re-

serving to himself all benefit or advantage of exception

x)r otherwise to which he may be or become entitled by

reason of the many errors, uncertainties, and insufficien-

cies of the bill of complaint of the complainant herein,

for answer thereto or to so much and such parts or por-

tions thereof as it may be material or necessary for him

to answer unto, answering says:

1st.

This defendant admits all the allegations contained

in paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 of complainant's

bill.
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2nd.

This defendant admits all the allegations contained ins

paragraph 10 of complainant's bill except that this de-

fendant denies that on the 31st day of May, 1876, or at

the time of the purchase of the lands mentioned in said

paragraph 10 or of issuing the deed therefor or at any

time Edward Martin had no constructive notice or

knowledge that any portion of the lands within the in-

demnity limits to the said State of Oregon to aid in the

construction of said road were excepted therefrom on

account of a previous grant to the Northern Pacific Kail-

road Company, but this defendant alleges in relation

thereto that said Edward Martin at the time he made

said purchase and received said deed was chargeable

with constructive notice of the several acts of Congress

in relation to said lands and the effect thereof, and that

under said Acts of Congress and the acts and doings of

the said Railroad Company no title could pass to said

Dalles Military Road Company for the northeast quar-

ter of the southeast quarter of section 15, towns-hip 5

south of range 17, east of the Willamette Meridian, for

the reason that the 'same was included in the grant to

the Northern Pacific Railroad Company by the Act of

Congress approved July 2, 1864, entitled, "An Act to

Grant Lands to Aid in the Construction of a Railroad

and Telegraph Line from Lake Superior to Puget

Sound on the Pacific Coast, etc."
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3rd.

The defendant admits all the allegations in para-

graph 11 of complainant's bill.

4th.

This defendant admits all the allegations in para-

graph 12 of complainant's bill except that this defend-

ant denies that at the time said D. V. B. Henarie made

said purchase, or when he paid said money or received

the deed as described in said paragraph 12, or at any

time, he had no constructive notice that the land so

granted to the State of Oregon to aid in the construc-

tion of said road was claimed by the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company, and denies that said D. V. B. Hen-

aries had not at said or any time constructive notice

that said lands in place or within the indemnity limits

to the said State of Oregon to aid in the construction of

said road were excepted from said grant and claimed

to be excepted from said grant by the United States on

account of the same being included in the grant to the

Northern Pacific Railroad Company by said Act of Con-

gress approved July 2nd, 1864. And this defendant al-

leges in relation thereto that at the time said D. V. B.

Henarie made such purchase and at the time he paid one

fourth of said purchase money, and at all times was

chargeable with constructive notice of the several acts

of Congress in relation to said lands, and the effect there

of, and that under said acts of Congress, and the acts

and doings of said Railroad Company, no title could
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pass to said Dalles Military Road Company for the north

east quarter of the southeast quarter of section 15»

township 5 south of range 17 east of the Willamette

Meridian for the reason that the same was included in

the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company

by the Act of Congress above referred to and approved

July 2nd, 1864, making the grant of lands to the North-

ern Pacific Railroad Company.

5th.

This defendant admits all the allegations contained

m paragraph 13 of complainant's bill, except this de-

fendant denies that at the time of the purchase of said

lands by Peter Donahoe and James Phelan, as set out

in said paragraph, said Peter Donahoe and James Phe-

lan did not have constructive notice that said lands

so purchased were within the limits of the grant 'made

by Congress to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company,

and that the same were claimed by said Northern Pacif-

ic Railroad Company, and were claimed by the United

States to be exempted from said grant on account of

their having been previously granted to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Company. And this defendant alleges

in relation thereto that the said Peter Donahoe and

James Phelan were chargeable with constructive notice

of the several acts of Congress in relation to said lands

and the effect thereof, and that under said acts of Con-

gress, and the acts and doings of said Railroad Com-

pany, no title could pass to said Dalles Military Road
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Company for the northeast quarter of the southeast

quarter of section 15, township 5 south of range 17 east

of the Willamette Meridian: reason that the same was

included in the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad

Company above referred to, approved July 2, 1864, mak-

ing the grant of lands to the Northern Pacific Railroad

Company.

6th.

This defendant admits all the allegations in para-

graphs 14, 15, 16, and 17 of complainant's bill, and in

relation to the facts set out in said paragraph 17 of

complainant's bill, this defendant further says that on

March 6, 1865, the then secretary of the interior receiv-

ed from Josiah Perham, the then president of the North-

ern Pacific Railroad Company, a certain letter of that

date, a copy of which letter is filed 'herewith and made

a part hereof, marked "Exhibit A." That accompany-

ing said letter was the map referred to therein, a copy

of which is herewith filed and made a part hereof, mark-

ed Exhibit "B." That on March 9th, 1865, the then sec-

retary of the interior transmitted said map to the then

commissioner of the general land office, with letter, a

copy of which is filed herewith and made a part hereof

marked Exhibit "C," That on June 22, 1865, the then

commissioner of the general land office returned said

map to the secretary of the interior with a letter, a copy

of which, with its endorsement, is filed herewith and

made a part hereof marked Exhibit "D."
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7th.

This defendant answering paragraph 1.8 of complain-

ant's bill denies that the grant of lands made by said;

Act of Congress of July 2nd, 1864, and said joint reso-

lution of May 31st, 1870, never was located or fixed for

that portion of the road of said Northern Pacific Kail-

road Company between Wallula and the city of Port-

land: denies that the said grant to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company to aid in the construction of said

road between said points never took effect. Denies that

said Northern Pacific Railroad Company never acquired

any right or title to or interest in any of the lands em-

braced within the limits of the grant made by the Act

of Congress of February 27th, 1867, to the State of Ore-

gon to aid in the construction of said wagon road.

8th.

Answering paragraph 19 of the complainant's bill

this defendant denies that the commissioner of the gen-

eral land office erroneously or wrongfully transmitted

to the local land offices in Oregon the plats described

in said paragraph 19 and alleges in relation thereto that

said maps were rightfully transmitted to said land of-

fices and said plats are correct. This defendant admits

that the commissioner of the general land office and the

secretary of the interior and the United States claim"



vs. John D. Wilcox. 63

that said lands were exempted from said grant of the

lands to the State of Oregon, and that they had been

previous to the passage of said act granted to the North-

ern Pacific Railroad Company, and upon the forfeiture

of the unearned portion of the grant to the Northern Pa-

cific Railroad Company, they became public lands of the

United States. And the defendant denies said claim is

wrongful, and alleges that the same is rightful and that

such are the facts.

9th.

This defendant admits the allegations in paragraph

20 of complainant's bill.

10th.

This defendant admits the allegations in paragraph

21 of complainant's bill, except defendant denies that

the act of the secretary of the interior as set out in said

paragraph was wrongful and alleges that the same was

rightful.

11th.

This defendant admits the allegations contained in

paragraph 22 of complainant's bill, except that defend-

ant denies that the secretary of the interior had no ju-

risdiction to open said lands for settlement or to permit

the defendant to settle thereon or to purchase the same,

and denies that the president had no jurisdiction or au-

thority to issue a patent therefor.
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Wherefore this defendant prays to be hence dismissed

with his reasonable costs and charges in this behalf

most wrongfully sustained.

J. L. STORY, and

GEARIN, SILVESTONE & BRODIE,

Solicitors for Defendant.

Exhibit "A" to Answer.

Washington, D. C, March 6, 1865.

Hon. J. P. Usher, Secretary of the Interior.

Sir: Under authority of the Board of Directors of the

Northern Pacific Railroad Company, I have designated

on the accompanying map in red ink the general line of

their railroad from a point on Lake Superior, in the

State of Wisconsin, to a point on Puget Sound, in Wash-

ington Territory, via the Columbia River, adopted by

said company as the line of said railroad, subject only

to such variations as may be found necessary after more

specific surveys, and I respectfully ask that the same

!may be filed in the office of the commissioner of the

General Land Office, together with a copy of the char-

ter and organization of said company, and that under

your direction the land granted to said company may

be marked and withdrawn from sale in conformity to

law.

I am respectfully, your obedient servant,

JOSIAH PERHAM,
Pres. 'N. P. R. R. Company.
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Exhibit " C " to Answer.

Washington, D. C., March 9, 1865.

Sir: Herewith I transmit a map upon which the gen-

eral line of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company, as

adopted by the Board of Directors of that railroad com-

pany is delineated; also a copy of the letter of the presi-

dent of said company darted the 6th instant, requesting

that the granted lands along said line be withdrawn

from the market in view of the provisions of the 3rd and

6th sections of the Aict of Congress approved July 2nd,

1864 (Pamphlet Laws, pages 368, 369). Should you per-

ceive no objection I think that the odd numbered sec-

tions along the line for ten miles in width on each side

in Minnesota and Wisconsin; and for twenty miles in

width on each side along that part of the line extending

through the Territories westward to Puget Sound may

be withdrawn as requested as preliminary to the final

survey and location of said railroad. The even number-

ed sections along the line will, however, be subject to

disposal by the United States, as provided in the 6th

section of the Act of Congress.

Very respectfully your obedient servant,

J. P. USHER,

Secretary.

Commissioner of the General Land Office.
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Exhibit " D " to Answtr.

Department of the Interior,

General Land Office, June 22, 1865.

Sir: The late secretary of the interior, under date of

the 9th of March last, enclosed to this office a diagram

showing the proposed route of the Northern Pacific

Railroad, for which a grant of lands was made by the

act approved July 2, 1864 (Stats, at Large, Pamphlet

Laws 1864, page 365).

This diagram was filed in the secretary's office, ac-

companied by a request for withdrawal of lands.

As no withdrawal was ordered by the late secretary,

no action was here taken npon the application.

Mr. Perham, the president of the railroad company,

lias called attention to the matter, and in submitting it

I have the honor to state: 1. That the present applica-

tion deals with the railroad system of granting on the

largest scale known to congressional legislation. It ex-

tends from Lake Superior to the Pacific Ocean, and allow-

ing for probable deflections maybe setdown at 2,025 miles

in length, taking in alternate sections by estimate 47,-

360,000 acres in a belt of 40 miles wide through the Ter-

ritories, and 20 miles wide through the States, the gen-

eral or conjectural course being indicated on the map

herewith.

By the opinions of Attorney General Cushing, of De-

cember 19th, 1856, and February 16th, 1857 (Opinions

of Attorney General, vol. VIII., pages 244 and 290), and
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the action of the department, railroad grants take effect

from the date when the survey of the route is actually

made on the face of the earth.

The evidence required of the route under the estab

lished ruling of the Department is a connected map

showing the exact location, the map indicating by flag-

staffs the progress of the survey; the map to be authen-

ticated by the affidavit of the engineer, with the

approval of the accredited chief officer of the grantee.

That proof is required to show the precise portions of

each section or smallest legal subdivisions cut by the

route.

In the judgment of the Commissioner no withdrawal

should be ordered until such map is filed in the General

Land Office; and although in the Attorney General's

opinion—Mr. Gushing—the right takes hold from the

date of actual survey on the ground, yet upon that point

this office, with deference to superior legal authority,

holds that the grant does not become effective until the

map is actually filed in the district land office, where

citizens resort to ascertain what is public land and what

is not, so that purchases can be made without danger of

conflicting title. Yet, even admitting that the right in

the railroad grant attaches from the date of such sur-

veys, we are without the means of ascertaining and de-

termining the interests of rightful claimants until such

map is filed.

Now in this view the commissioner reports that no

withdrawal should be ordered until the map of actual
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survey, authenticated as indicated, shall be filed in the

district and General Land Offices.

This may be done, starting from the cul de sac of Lake

Superior, the eastern initial point of the route, and

stretching thence westwardly to the western boundary

i)i Minnesota, the line of the public survey having been

i hat far established.

2. The same course of proceeding to be had in regard

to that portion of the road falling on the western or

Pacific side within the range of existing public surveys,

out,

3. Of course no withdrawal can now be made on ac-

count of the road in the region of country extending

across that part of the country between the west bound-

ary of Minnesota to the eastern surveys of Washington

Territory, because over that territory the lines of the pub-

lic surveys have not yet been established. In this ex-

tended locality the withdrawal should only be ordered as

the public surveys are advanced, and survey of railroad

established in like manner as indicated under first head.

4. A general withdrawal upon conjectural or uncertain

basis might result from shutting out from settlement

large bodies of land which an actual survey would show

not within the grant, whilst lands would be omitted from

the withdrawal which the survey might require to be in-

cluded.

Then it is not sound policy, nor is there any warrant in

our land legislation for doing any act, the tendency of
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which would give preference to satisfying a grant on such

a stupendous scale as this whilst individual claims under

our general system of land laws, homestead preemption

and sale would be unaided by any such preliminary dis-

criminating proceeding.

The result of a premature withdrawal on uncertain ba-

sis would, be unjust to the pioneer settler, detrimental to

the public interests in arresting the progress of settlement

and disposal in that direction of the public domain, and to

that extent checking the growth and prosperity of our

frontier, and that too, in the vicinity of a colonial depend-

ence of a powerful nation, would be a prejudice to the

interests of the railroad grant itself in excluding settlers

and immigrants whose labor and means would enhance

the value of such lands as in the ordinary progressive

operations of the land system would in due time fall to

the grant. The land system should be so administered

that all different acts of land legislation may be at the

same time in full operation, giving precedence to no law

over another unless where the terms of law indicate the

public will to be otherwise, leaving corporate or other

grantees and individuals respectively to have the benefit

of their superior diligence in establishing and completing

their several claims according to law.

For these considerations this office declines ordering a

withdrawal until authenticated maps of the actual survey

of the several portions of the route shall be successively

tiled from time to time to completion, showing the con-

nections of said portions with the lines of the public sur-
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vers, yet respectfully submits the foregoing considera-

tions for such directions as the secretary may be pleased

to give in the premises for the government of this office.

With great respect, your obedient servant,

JOS. J. WILSON,

Acting (Commissioner.

Hon. Jas. Harlan,

Secretary of the Interior.

State of Oregon,
)
> ss.

Countv of \

I, John D. Wilcox, being first duly sworn, say on oath

that I am the defendant in the above-entitled suit and

that the matters therein stated are true of my own knowl-

edge except as to those matters stated on information and

belief, and as to such matters I believe the same to be

true.

J. D. WILCOX.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day of

August, 1896.

[Seal] J. L. STOEY,

Notary Public for Oregon.

District of Oregon, ss.

Due service of the within answer is hereby accepted in

the District of Oregon, at Portland, this 4th day of Sep-

tember, 1896, by receiving a copy thereof, duly certified

to as such by Geo. A. Brodie, one of the solicitors for de-
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fendant, except as to Exhibit "B," a copy of which is

waived.

DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Solicitors for Complainant.

[,
[Endorsed]: Filed September 4, 1896. J. A.Sladen,

Clerk. •

And afterwards, to-wit, on Monday, the 7th day of Sep-

tember, 1896, the same being the 127th judicial day of the

regular April term of said court—present, the Honor-

able CHARLES B. BELLINGER, United States Dis-

trict Judge, presiding—the following proceedings were

had in said case, to-wit:

I11 tJic Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND

COMPANY,
Complainant,

( ^ 2325 ,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,
Defendant.

Order.

Now at this day comes the complainant, by J. N. Dolph,

of counsel, the defendant appearing by John M. Gearin,
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of counsel, and on motion of complainant, the defendant

by his said counsel consenting thereto,

It is ordered that the above-entitled suit be, and the

same is, set down for hearing upon bill and answer and

that it be heard on September 11th, 1896, at eleven

o'clock, A. M.

Dated September 7, 1896.

CHAELES B. BELLINGER,

Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed September 7, 1896. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on Friday, the 11th day of Sep-

tember, 1896, the same being the 131st judicial day of the

regular April term of said Court—present, the Honorable

CHARLES B. BELLINGER United States District Judge

presiding—the following proceedings were had in said

case, to-wit:

rv --
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hi the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND
COMPANY,

?s - V No. 2325

JOHN D. WILCOX, I

Order.

September 11, 1896.

Now, at this day, comes the plaintiff herein, by Mr. J. N.

Dolph, of counsel, and moves the Court for a continuance

of this cause, heretofore set for Friday, September 11,

1896, whereupon it is ordered that the final hearing of this

cause be, and it is hereby, continued to Tuesday, Septem-

ber 15, 1896.

And afterwards, to-wit, on Tuesday, the 15th day of

September, 1896, the same being the 134th judicial day

of the regular April term of said Court—Present, the

Honorable WILLIAM B. GILBERT, United States Cir-

cuit Judge presiding—the following proceedings were

had in said case, to-wit:



76 The Eastern Oregon Land Company

In the Circuit Court of th°, United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND

COMPANY,
|

YS,

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Order.

September 15, 1896.

Now, at this day, comes the plaintiff, by Mr. J. N. Dolph,

of counsel, and the defendant, by Mr. John M. Gearin, of

counsel, and thereupon this cause comes on to be heard

upon the bill and answer herein, and the Court having-

heard the arguments of counsel will advise thereof.

And afterwards, to-wit, on Tuesday, the 5th day of Jan-

uary, 1897, the same being the 79th judicial day of the

regular October term of said Court—Present, the Honor-

able WILLIAM B. GILBERT United States Circuit

Judge presiding—the following proceedings were had in

said case, to-wit:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND

COMPANY,
Complainant,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,
Defendant. >

Decree Dismissing Bill of Complaint.

This cause having been heard and submitted to the

Court on the 15th day of September, 189fi, upon bill and

answer, and the Court having taken the same under ad-

visement, and now due deliberation having been had, it is

ordered, adjudged, and decreed that the said bill of com-

plaint herein be, and the same is hereby, dismissed, with

costs to the complainant to be taxed.

Dated January 5th, 1897.

WM. B. GILBERT, Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed January 5, 1897. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk.

Aod afterwards, to-wit, on the 5th day of January, 1897,

there was duly filed in said court, petition for appeal and
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an assignment of errors, in words and figures a? follows,

to-wit

:

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

IN EQUITY.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND \

COMPANY,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Complainant,

Defendant.

Petition for Appeal.

The above named complainant, The Eastern Oregon

Land Company, conceiving itself aggrieved by the decree

made and entered on the 5th day of January, 1897, in the

above-entitled cause, does hereby appeal from said order

and decree to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, for the reasons specified in the

assignment of errors, which is filed herewith, and it prays

that this appeal may be allowed, and that a transcript of

the record, proceedings, and papers upon which said order
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was made, duly authenticated, may be sent to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

Dated Jan. 5th, 1897.

DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Solicitors for Complainant.

The foregoing claim of appeal is allowed.

Dated January 5th, 1897.

WM. B. GILBEKT,

Circuit Judge.

I hereby this 5th day of January, 1897, accept due and

personal service of the foregoing petition on appeal on be-

half of John D. Wilcox, defendant.

JNO. M. GEARIN,

Solicitor for defendant and appellee.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

IN EQUITY.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND "\

COMPANY,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Complainant,

Defendant.

Assignment of Errors.

And now on the 5th day of January, 1897, came the

complainant, by Dolph, Nixon & Dolph, its solicitors, and

says that the decree in the above-entitled cause is erro-

neous and against the just rights of the complainant, for

the following reasons:

First: Because it appears iby the bill and answer in said

suit that a decree should have been rendered and given

therein by said Court in favor of the complainant as

prayed for in the bill of complaint, to-wit:

That the patent for the lands in controversy issued by

the United States to the defendant described in the bill

of complaint was fraudulent and void as against the com-

plainant, and that the same be canceled and annulled;
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that complainant was the owner in fee simple of the lands

described in said patent andwas entitled to the immediate

possession thereof and to have the process of the Court to

be put in possession thereof, and that the defendant was

trustee for the complainant of whatever title was con-

veyed to him under said patent and that he convey the

same to the complainant.

Second: Because it appeared by the Mil and answer

:hat the defendant was not entitled to a decree and the

Court erred in rendering a decree for the defendant dis-

missing the complainant's bill.

Third: Because it appeared by the bill and answer in

said suit that the land in controversy was granted to the

State of Oregon by an "An act of Congress entitled 'An

Act granting lands to the State of Oregon to aid in the

construction ofa military wagon road from Dalles City

on the Columbia River to Fort Boise on the Snake River,"

approved February 25, 1867, and had been granted by

the State of Oregon to the Dalles Military Wagon Road

Company by Act of the Legislative Assembly of the State

of Oregon, approved October 20, 1868, and that all the

conditions of said grant had been complied with by said

company, the definite location and construction and com-

pletion of said road had been duly certified to by the Gov-

ernor of Oregon on the 23rd day of June, 1869, and on

said date the said land had been withdrawn from settle-

ment and sale, and the title of the said Wagon Road

Company had become absolute before the passage of the

joint resolution of May 31st, 1870, authorizing the North-
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ern Pacific Railroad Company to locate the main line

of its road via the Valley of the Columbia River and that

complainant had succeeded to the title of said company.

Fourth: Because the Court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the grant of lands made to the State of Oregon

by the said Act of Congress of February 25, 1867, did not

come within the exceptions to the grant of land made to

the Northern Pacific Railroad Company by the Act of

Congress entitled "An Act granting lands to aid in the

construction of a railroad and telegraph line from Lake

Superior to Puget Sound on the Pacific Coast by the

Northern Route," approved July 2, 1864, and the joint

resolution of Congress entitled "A resolution authorizing

the Northern Pacific Railroad Company to issue its bonds

for the construction of its road and to secure the same by

mortgage and for other purposes," approved May 31, 1870.

Fifth : Because the Court erred in holding and deciding

that the land in controversy and granted to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Company by said Act of July 2, 1864, or

the said joint resolution of May 31, 1870.

Sixth : Because the Court erred in holding and deciding

that it appeared from the bill and answer that the land in

controversy was or ever had been a portion of the said

grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company.

Seventh: Because the Court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the grant of lands to the said Northern Pacific

Railroad Company between Wallula, Washington, and

Portland, Oregon, were ever located or fixed so as to at-
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tach to any particular parcel of land or to show that the

lands in controversy were a part of said grant.

Eighth: Because the Court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the lands in controversy were excepted from the

grant to the State of Oregon made to it by the said Act of

Congress approved February 25, 18C7.

Ninth: Because the Court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the supposed grant to the Northern Pacific Rail-

Road Company for its road from Wallula to Portland was

ever located or fixed or that said company ever acquired

any right or title to the lands in controversy so as to seg-

regate them from the public domain or to prevent the

said grant to the State of Oregon from attaching thereto.

Tenth: Because the Court erred in holding that, the

map referred to in the answer and known as the PerhariV

map was valid or in any manner located the line of the

road of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company or located

or defined its supposed land grant or reserved or with-

drew any lands from the operation of the said grant to

the State of Oregon.

Eleventh: Because the Court erred in holding that on

account of said grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad

Company made by said Act of July 2, 1864, or the said

joint resolution of Congress of May 31, 1870, or the trans

mission by said Company of the said Perham map to the

Secretary of the Interior or the filing of said map of

August 13th, 1870, of its general route of its road by said

Northern Pacific Railroad Company from Wallula to Port-
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land or any other matter or proceeding the land in contro-

versy was excepted from the operation of said grant to»

the State of Oregon.

Twelfth: Because the Court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the land in controversy was forfeited to the

United States by the Act of Congress forfeiting grants

and had been restored to the public domain and was open

to settlement or subject to sale by the United States at the

time of the defendant's alleged purchase of the same.

Thirteenth: Because the Court erred in not holding that

said defendant had obtained and held the legal title to

the land in controversy as trustee for the complainant.

Wherefore the said complainant prays that the said

decree be reversed and that the said Court be directed to

enter a decree in accordance with the prayer of the bill.

DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Solicitors for Complainant.

I hereby this 5th day of January, 1897, accept due and

personal service of the foregoing assignment of error on

behalf of John D. Wilcox, defendant.

JNO. M. GEAKIX,

Solicitor for Appellee

•[Endorsed]: Filed January 5, 1897. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on the 5th day of January, 1897,

there was duly filed in said court, bond for costs on appeal,

in words and figures as follows, to-wit:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND

COMPANY,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,

Complainant,

Defendant.

i«
Bond for Costs on Appeal.

Know All Men by These Presents, that we, The Eastern

Oregon Land Company, are held and firmly bound unto

John D. Wilcox, the above named defendant, in the sum

of two hundred and fifty dollars, to be paid to the said

John D. Wilcox, his executors or administrators. To

which payment, well and truly to be made, we bind our-

selves, and each of us, jointly and severally, and our and

each of our heirs, executors, and administrators, firmly by

these presents.

Sealed with our seals, and dated this 5th day of Jan.

1897.

Whereas the above named pastern OregOD Land Com-

pany has appealed to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to reverse the decree in the
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above-entitled cause by the Circuit Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon.

Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such

that if the above named, The Eastern Oregon Land Com-

pany shall prosecute said appeal to effect, andanswerall

costs if he shall fail to make good his plea, then this obli-

gation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force

and virtue.

THE EASTERN OREGON LAND COMPANY,

(sgd.) By DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Its Attorneys. [L. S.]

(sgd.) CHARLES STERN. [L. S.]

(sgd.) JOHN O'CONNOR. [L. S.]

Signed, sealed, and delivered in the presence of

United States of America, \

V ss,

District of Oregon. \

I, Charles Stern, being duly sworn, depose and say

that I am one of the sureties in the foregoing bond; that

I am a resident and householder within said District, and

that I am worth, in property situated therein, the sum of

five hundred dollars, over and above all my just debts and

liabilities, exclusive of property exempt from execution.

(sgd.) CHARLES STERN.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day of Jan-

nary, 1897.

[Seal] RICHARD NIXON,

Notary Public for Oregon.
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United States of America, )

District of Oregon. (

I, John O'Connor, being duly sworn, depose and say

+liat I am one of the sureties in the foregoing bond; that

I am a resident and householder within said District, and

that I am worth, in property situated therein, the sum 01

five hundred dollars, over and above all my just debts and

liabilities, exclusive of property exempt from execution.

(sgd.) JOHN O'CONNOR

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day of Jan-

uary, 1897.

[Seal] RICHARD NIXON,

Notary Public for Oregon.

The foregoing bond is approved Jan. 5, 1897.

(sgd.) WM. B. GILBERT,

Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed January 5, 1897. J. A. Sladen,

Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on the 5th day of January, 1897,

there was duly filed in said court a stipulation and order

to send original exhibit "B" to answer with transcript,

in words and figures as follows, to-wit:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon.

EASTERN OREGON LAND COM-

PANY,
Complainant,

vs.

JOHN D. WILCOX,
)

Defendant.

Stipulation and Order.

It is hereby stipulated between the parties to the above-

entitled suit, by their respective attorneys, that the map

commonly known as the Perham map, attached to the

answer of the defendant herein, may be withdrawn from

the files and made part of the record to be sent to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, the Court consenting thereto.

DOLPH, NIXON & DOLPH,

Solicitors for Complainant.

JNO. M. GEABIN,

Solicitor for Defendant.
• •

Based upon the foregoing stipulation, it is ordered that

the original map referred to be withdrawn from the files
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of the Court and made a part of the record on appeal in

the above-entitled suit.

WM. B. GILBERT, Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed January 5, 1S97. J. A. Sladeu,

Clerk.

Clerk's Certificate to Transcript.

District of Oregon, ss.

I, J. A. Sladen, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon, do hereby certify that

the foregoing transcript of record on appeal to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, in cause No. 2325, The Eastern Oregon Land Com-

pany vs. John D. Wilcox, is a full, true, and correct tran-

script of the record in said cause as the same appears at

my office and in my custody.

I further certify that the cost of the foregoing tran-

script is thirty-four and 20-100 dollars, and that the same

has been paid by the appellant, the Eastern Oregon Land

Company

Tn testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed the seal of said Circuit Court at Portland in said

District, this 7th day of January, A. D. 1897.

[Seal] J. A. SLADEN,

Clerk United States Circuit Court, District of Oregon.
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[Endorsed]: No. 348. In the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. The Eastern Ore-

gon Land Company, Appellant, vs. John D. Wilcox.

Transcript of Record. Appeal from the Circuit Court of

the United States for the District of Oregon.

Filed Jan. 9, 1897.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.



IN THE

iwiieiiofiis
FOR THE

Ninth Circuit.

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,

Appellant,

v.

E. I, Messinger,
Appellee,

AND

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,
)

Appellant,

v.

John D. Wilcox,
Appellee.

it

Appeal from the Circuit Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon.

Hppellants' Brief.

Dolph, Nixon & Dolph,

and James K. Kelly,

Solicitors tor Appellants.

PORTLAND, ORKGON :

F. W. Baltes and Company, Printers, 1228 Oak oikhkt.

1897. *
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i imis
FOR THE

Ninth Circuit.

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,

Appellant,

v.

E. I. Messinger,
Appellee,

AND

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,

Appellant,

v.

John D. Wilcox,
Appellee.

These suits were brought to obtain decrees cancelling

United States patents issued to the defendants, purport-

ing to convey to them certain lands described in the com-

plaint. The lands in controversy are within the limits

of the grant of lands in place made to the State of Oregon

by the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1867, to aid

in the construction of a military wagon road. They are

claimed by the defendant to bo within the overlapping

limits of the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany.



The cases were heard in the court below on bill and

answer. The bills and answers are alike in both cases,

except as to the names of the defendants, the description

of the lands claimed by them, and the law of the United

States under which they claim to have acquired title to the

same. In the case of the Company against Messinger, the

land in controversy is situated within twenty miles of the

line of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company's road, as

designated on the map of the general route of said road,

filed by said company August 13, 1870; and in the case of

the Company against Wilcox, the land is situated more

than twenty miles and less than forty miles from said line.

Precisely the same questions are involved in both suits,

except that if the court should be of the opinion that any

lands were excepted from the said grant to the State of

Oregon by reason of being within the grant of the North-

ern Pacific Railroad Company, the court will be called

upon to decide, in the case of the Company against Wilcox,

the question whether the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany took by its grant twenty sections to the mile or ten

sections to the mile only, in the State of Oregon, between

Wallula and Portland.

•

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

The facts alleged in each bill and admitted by the

answer in each suit may be summarized as follows:

THE BILL.

That the complainant is a corporation under the laws

of the State of California, and a citizen of that state, and

that the defendant is a citizen of the State of Oregon.



That on the 25th day of February, 1867, the bongress of

the United States passed, and the President of the United

States duly approved, an Act granting to the State of

Oregon, to aid in the construction of a wagon road from

Dalles City, on the Columbia river, to a point on Snake

river opposite Fort Boise, in Idaho Territory, the alternate

sections of public land, designated by odd sections, to the

extent of three miles in width on each side of said road, to

be exclusively applied to the construction of said road,

excepting and reserving from said grant and the opera-

tion of said act only lands theretofore reserved or appro-

priated.

That said act provided that the lands thereby granted

should be disposed of by the Legislative Assembly of the

State of Oregon for the purpose aforesaid and no other,

that said road should be and remain a public highway

for the use of the Government of the United States, free

from tolls or other charges for the transportation of any

troops, property or mails of the United States, and that

the lands thereby granted should be disposed of only in

the following manner, that is to say, when the Governor

of the state should certify to the Secretary of the Interior

that ten coterminous miles of said road were completed,

then a quantity of the land granted by the act, not exceed-

ing thirty sections, might be sold, and so on from time to

time until said road should be completed.

That by the Act of the Legislative Assembly of the State

of Oregon approved October 20, 1868, entitled "An Act

dedicating certain lands to the Dalles Military Road Co.,"

the State of Oregon granted to the said Dalles Military

Road Co., a corporation, duly incorporated for the purpose



of constructing said road, al] lands, rights of way, rights,

privileges and immunities granted or pledged to the State

of Oregon by the said Act of Congress, for the purpose of

aiding said Dalles Military Road Co. in constructing the

road, as mentioned and described in said Act of Congress,

and upon the conditions and immunities therein pre-

scribed.

That prior to the 23d day of June, 1869, the said Dalles

Military Road Co. surveyed and definitely located the line

of its said wagon road between the points and upon the

route designated in said Act of Congress and in the said

Act of the Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon,

and had fully constructed and completed its said road, and

had filed in the executive office of the Governor of the

State of Oregon a plat or map of the said Dalles Military

Road Co., upon which was traced and shown the definite

location of said road, as constructed from its terminus at

the Dalles City, Oregon, to its terminus on Snake river,

and the limits of the grant of lands in place made to the

State of Oregon by the said Act of Congress, to aid in the

construction of said road, and also the indemnity limits of

the said grant.

That on June 23, 1869, the Governor of Oregon certified

that the plat or map of said Dalles Military Road had been

duly filed in the executive office, and that it showed the

location of the line of route upon which said road was

constructed, in accordance with the requirements of the

Act of Congress aforesaid, approved February 25, 1867,

and with the said Act of the Legislative Assembly of the

State of Oregon, approved October 20, 1868; and the said

Governor of Oregon at that date further certified that he



had made a careful examination of said road since its com-

pletion, and that the same was built in all respects as

required by the conditions of said act, and was then

accepted, said certificate being set forth at length in the

bill of complaint.

That upon the filing of the said plat or map in the

executive office of the Governor of the State of Oregon,

showing the definite location of its said road, in connection

with the public surveys, and upon the execution of the said

certificate by the Governor of Oregon, certifying to the

completion of said road, the grant made by the said Act of

Congress of February 25, 1867, to the State of Oregon, to

aid in the construction of said road, became located and

definitely fixed and attached to the odd sections of land as

shown by the public surveys within the limits of three

miles on each side of said road, as located and constructed.

That the said Dalles Military Road Co. duly filed in the

office of the Secretary of the Interior of the United States

a map or plat of said Dalles Military Road, showing the

definite location thereof with reference to the public sur-

veys so far as then made, and the said certificate of the

said Governor of the State of Oregon, certifying to tin;

construction of said road, that said map was duly executed

in accordance with the requirements and regulations of

the Interior Department of the United States, and was

accepted and received and filed in said department, and

that on December IS, 1869, the then Commissioner of the

General Land Office, by order of the Secretary of the

Interior, withdrew from sale the odd numbered sections

three miles upon each side of said wagon road, ;is delin-

eated and shown on said map, in favor of the Dalles Mili-

tary Eoad Co.
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That the Congress of the United States, by an Act

approved June 19, 1874, entitled "An Act to authorize the

issuance of patents for lands granted to the State of Ore-

gon in certain cases," provided that m all cases where

lands have been granted by Congress to the State of Ore-

gon, to aid in the construction of wagon roads, and the

certificate of the Governor of Oregon should show that any

said road had been constructed or completed as in said

acts required, patents should be issued in due form to the

State of Oregon for such lands unless the state should by

public act have transferred its interest in said lands to

any corporation, in which case the said lands were to be

patented to such corporation.

That Edward Martin, a citizen of the State of California,

placing confidence in the said certificate of the Governor

of the State of Oregon, and in said Acts of Congress, and

the withdrawal of said lands by the Commissioner of the

General Land Office, on the 31st day of May, 1876, pur-

chased in good faith, for the sum of $125,000, then paid

by him to the Dalles Military Road Co., all the lands

embraced in said grant, except the portions which had

been previously sold, and at the time of said purchase and

at the time of paying said consideration had no notice or

knowledge, actual or constructive, of any claim of the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co., or any claim made by any

corporation or person or by the ( rovernment of the United

States, that any portion of the lands granted to the State

of Oregon, as aforesaid, were excepted or claimed to be

excepted from said grant on account of any previous grant

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co., or otherwise.

That on the 31st day of January, 1877, said Edward



Martin conveyed an undivided one-fourth interest in said

lands to D. V. B. Henarie, lie the said Henarie Laving

paid one-fourth of the consideration of said conveyance

from the Dalles Military Road Co. to Edward Martin, and

having made the purchase and paid the consideration in

good faith and relying upon the said Acts of Congress and

certificate of the Governor of the State of Oregon and the

withdrawal of said lands, and that he had no notice or

knowledge, actual or constructive, that any portion of the

said grant was claimed to be excepted for the reasons

aforesaid.

That on the 12th day of May, 1880, said Edward Martin

died intestate in the City of San Francisco, leaving cer-

tain heirs, who are named in the bill.

That among said heirs were James V. Martin, Genevieve

E. Martin, Peter D. Martin, Walter S. Martin and Andrew

D. Martin, who were then minors.

That afterwards the interests of 'the minors in said

grant were sold by order of the Probate Court of Wasco

County, Oregon, and were purchased at guardian's sale by

Peter Donahue and James Phelan, who paid a valuable

consideration therefor, and who purchased the same and

paid said consideration with no knowledge or notice,

actual or constructive, that any portion of the lands within

the limits of said grant was claimed by the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co., or any other corporation or person,

or by the Government of the United States, adversely to

the said Dalles Military Road Co.

That afterwards the heirs of said Edward Martin anfl

the said Peter Donahue and James Phelan conveyed tht

said grant to the Eastern Oregon Land Co., the complain-

ant in the present suits.
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That the said Dalles Military Road Co. duly selected,

among other lands which had been earned by it by the

construction of its said wagon road, the lands in contro-

versy, and that the same were a part of the grant of lands

in place to the State of Oregon by the said Act of Feb-

ruary 25, 1867, and were a portion of the lands withdrawn

in favor of the said Dalles Military Road Co. on the 18th

day of December, 1869, and were situated on the south

side of the line of the general route of the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co., as designated on the said map filed

August 13, 1870, and were then unoccupied lands, there

being no claim to the same adverse to the company, and

that the list containing said selection was duly certified

by the Register and Receiver of the Land Office at the

Dalles City to the Commissioner of the General Land

Office.

That by an Act approved July 2, 1864, Congress granted

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co., to aid in the con-

struction of a railroad from Lake Superior to Puget

sound, with a branch, via the Columbia river, to Portland,

by the most eligible route, every alternate odd section of

public land, not mineral, to the amount of twenty alternate

sections to the mile on each side of said road through the

Territories of the United States, and ten alternate sec-

tions a mile on each side of said road whenever it passed

through a state, and whenever on the line thereof the

United States had full title not reserved, sold, granted, or

otherwise appropriated, and free from pre-emption or

other claims or rights at the time the line of said road

should be definitely fiaced and the plat thereof filed in the

office of the Commissioner of the General Land Office.
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That by a Joint Resolution of Congress of May 31, 1870,

the Congress of the United States authorized the said

Northern Pacific Railroad Co. to locate and construct,

imdoi- the provisions and with the privileges, grants and

duties provided for in its act of incorporation, its main

road to some point on Pugel sound, via the valley of the

Columbia river, with the right to locate and construct its

branch from some convenient point on its main line across

the Cascade mountains to Puget sound.

That on the 13th day of August, 1870, the officers of

the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. filed a map or plat of

the general route of its road, and filed the same in the office

of the Commissioner of the General Land Office, and pre-

sented the same to the then Secretary of the Interior,

showing among other things the general route of said

road, following the Columbia river from Wallula, in the

then Territory of Washington, to a point on the north side

of said river opposite Portland, in the State of Oregon.

Thai the Secretary of the Interior accepted said map

and directed the Commissioner of the General Land Office

to withdraw, on account of the grant to the said Northern

Pacific Railroad Co., from sale, pre-emption, homestead

or other disposal, the odd numbered sections not sold or

reserved, or to which prior rights had not attached, within

twenty miles on each side of the route of the said North-

ern Pacific Railroad.

That the line of the road of said Northern Pacific Rail-

road Co., between Wallula and Portland, to a point oppo-

site Portland, was never surveyed; thai the line of said

road between said points was never definitely located or

fixed by the said company ; t hat no map of definite location
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of said road was ever tiled in the office of the Commissioner

of the General Land Office at Washington City, or in the

Interior Department; that the said Northern Pacific Rail-

road Oo. never constructed any portion of its said road

between the said Town of Wallnla and the said City of

Portland.

That upon the filing the said map of the general route

of its road by the said Northern Pacific Railroad Co., on

the 13th day of August, 1870, the Secretary of the Interior

directed the withdrawal of the odd numbered sections

lying within the supposed limits of the grant of lands in

place to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co., as aforesaid.

That Congress, by an act forfeiting lands theretofore

granted for the purpose of aiding in the construction of

railroads and other purposes, approved September 29,

1890, resumed title to and restored to the public domain,

so far as Congress had power so to do, all lands theretofore

granted to aid in the construction of railroads opposite to

and coterminous with the portion of such railroads not

then completed and in operation, for the construction or

benefit Of which said lands were granted.

That after the passage of said Act, the Secretary of the

Interior of the United States wrongfully assumed and

claimed that the odd sections of the public land on the

south side of and within forty miles of the line of the gen-

eral route of the said Northern Pacific Railroad, between

Wallula and a point on the north side of the Columbia

river opposite the City of Portland, in the State of Oregon,

as said line was designated on said map of general route

of the road of said company, filed August 13, 1870, had

been granted to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co., and
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were reserved and excepted from the said grant made to

the State of Oregon by the said Act of February 25, L867,

and had reverted to and became public lands of the United

States, open to settlement and sale under the land laws

of the United States, and that the said Secretary caused

the said lands to be open to settlement and sale, and

thereupon the defendant settled upon the said trad of

land, and afterwards made application to purchase tne

same, and that afterwards the President of the United

States issued a patent to him for said lands, a copy of

which patent is attached to the bill.

That the Secretary of the United States had no juris-

diction or authority to open the said Lands to settlement

and permit the defendant to settle thereon, and the Presi-

dent of the United States had no jurisdiction or authority

to issue a patent therefor.

That at and before the time the defendant settled upon

said tract of land, or made claim thereto, or made applica-

tion to purchase the same, the defendant well knew that

the said lands were within the limits of the grant in place

to the said Dalles Military Road Co., and that the same

were claimed by the said Dalles Military Road Co. and its

successors and assigns, under said grant.

That if it had been true that the lands in question were

excepted from said grant to the State of Oregon, as claimed

by the defendant, under the provisions of Section 5 of the

Act of Congress entitled "An Act to provide for the

adjustment of land giants made by Congress to aid in the

construction of railroads, and for the forfeiture of

unearned lands, and for other purposes," approved March

3, 1887, the complainant would have been entitled to pur-
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chase said lands from the United States, being a bona

Me purchaser thereof, without notice of any claim of the

said Northern Pacific Railroad Co. to the said lands, but

that complainant received no notice and had no notice or

knowledge of the application of the defendant to pur-

chase said lands, and had no opportunity to apply to pur-

chase the same under the provisions of said Section 5, or

otherwise.

That a patent having been issued for said land, the

Interior Department has no longer jurisdiction of the same

and cannot give complainant the most convenient and con-

clusive evidence of its title to the said lands, and cannot

issue to complainant patent for the same, as required

by the said Act of June 18, 1874, until the patent to the

defendant has been cancelled, annulled and set aside,

and that said patent is a cloud upon the title of com-

plainant to said land described therein, and complainant

is remediless in a court of law.

'

THE ANSWER.

By the answer, as we have said, all the material alle-

gations of the bill are as we conceive admitted.

The defendant, answering the allegations of the bill

that Edward Martin, the purchaser of the grant from the

Dalles Military Road Co., and his grantees and the com-

plainant were bona fide purchasers and had no actual or

constructive notice or knowledge that any portion of the

lands embraced within the grant to the State of Oregon,

to aid in the construction of said wagon road, were

excepted therefrom on account of any previous grant to

the Northern Pacific, denies that the parties had no con-

structive notice, but alleges w relation thereto that at the
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time they made said purchase and received their deeds

"they were all chargeable with constructive notice of the

several Acts of Congress in relation to said lands and the

effect thereof, and that under said Acts of Congress and

the acts and doings of the said railroad company, no title

could pass to the said Dalles Military Boad Co. for the

lands in question."

Denies that the grant of lands made to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co., between Wallula and Portland, to

aid in the construction of a road between said points,

never was located or fixed, and that the said railroad com-

pany never acquired any right or title or interest to the

same.

Denies that the Commissioner of the Tien era 1 Land

Office and the Secretary of the Interior wrongfully claim

that said lands were excepted from said grant to the State

of Oregon on account of being included in the grant to the

Northern Pacific Kailroad Co.

By the answer also the defendant alleges that on March

16, 1865, the then Secretary of the Interior received from

Josiah Perham, the then President of the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co., a certain letter of that date, a copy of which

is attached to the answer, and that accompanying said let-

ter was a map referred to therein, a copy of which is made

part of the answer, and that on the 9th of March, 1865,

the Secretary of the Interior transmitted said map to the

then Commissioner of the General Land Office, with a

letter, a copy of which is attached to the answer, and that

on June 22, 1865, the then Commissioner of the General

Land Office returned said map to the Secretary of the

Interior, with a letter, a copy of which is attached to the

answer.
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These letters show that the map was not received by the

Secretary of the Interior or filed, that it was not in accord-

ance with the requirements of the laws of the United

States and the regulations of the department, and was

rejected.

This map is known as the Perham map, and has been

frequently the subject of consideration by the Federal

Courts, as we will hereafter show.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

And now, on the 5th day of January, 1897, comes

the complainant, by Dolph, Nixon & Dolph, its solicitors,

and says that the decree in the above entitled cause is

erroneous and against the just rights of the complainant,

for the following reasons:

First—Because it appears by the bill and answer in said

suit that a decree should have been rendered and given

therein by said court in favor of the complainant, as

prayed for in the bill of complaint, to wit:

That the patent for the lands in controversy issued by

the United States to the defendant, described in the bill of

complaint, was fraudulent and void as against the com-

plainant, and that the same be cancelled and annulled;

that complainant was the owner in fee simple of the lands

described in said patent, and was entitled to the imme-

diate possession thereof, and to have the process of the

court to be put in possession thereof, and that the defend-

ant was trustee for the complainant of whatever title was

conveyed to him under said patent, and that he convey

the same to the complainant.

Second—Because it appeared by the bill and answer

that the defendant was not entitled to a decree, and the
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court erred in rendering a decree for the defendant, dis-

missing the complainant's bill.

Third—Because it appeared b}^ the bill and answer in

said suit that the land in controversy was granted to the

State of Oregon by an Act of Congress, entitled "An Act

granting lands to the State of Oregon, to aid in the con-

struction of a Military Wagon Eoad from Dalles City, on

the Columbia river, to Fort Boise, on the Snake river,"

approved February 25, 1867, and had been granted by

the State of Oregon to the Dalles Military Road Co.

by Act of the Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon,

approved October 20, 1808, and that all the conditions of

said grant had been complied with by said company, the

definite location and construction, and completion of its

road, and the fact of said location and completion of said

road had been duly certified to by the Governor of Oregon,

on the 23d day of June, 1869, and the map of said com-

pleted road had been duly filed in the office of the Secretary

of the Interior before December 13, 1869, and on said date

the said land had been withdrawn from settlement and

sale, and the title of the said wagon road company had

become absolute before the passage of the Joint Resolu-

tion of May 31, 1870, authorizing the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co. to locate the main line of its road via

the valley of the Columbia river, and that complainant

had succeeded to the title of said company.

Fourth—Because the court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the grant of lands made to the State of Oregon by

the said Act of Congress of February 25, 1867, did nol

come within the exceptions to the grant of land made

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. by the Act of
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Congress entitled "An Act granting lands to aid in the

construction of a railroad and telegraph line from Lake

Superior to Puget sound, on the Pacific coast, by the

Northern route," approved July 2, 1804, and the Joint

Resolution of Congress entitled "A Resolution authoriz-

ing the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. to issue its bonds

for the construction of its road, and to secure the same by

mortgage, and for other purposes," approved May 31, 1870.

Fifth—Because the court erred in holding and deciding

that the land in controversy was granted to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. by said Act of July 2, 1864, or the

said Joint Resolution of May 31, 1870.

Sixth—Because the court erred in holding and deciding

that it appeared from the bill and answer that the land in

controversy was or ever had been a portion of the said

grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co.

Seventh—Because the court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the grant of lands to the said Northern Pacific

Railroad Co. between Wallula, Washington, and Portland,

Oregon, was ever located or fixed so as to attach to any

particular parcel of land or to show that the lands in con-

troversy were a part of said grant.

Eighth—Because the court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the lands in controversy were excepted from the

grant to the State of Oregon, made to it by the said Act

of Congress, approved February 25, 1867.

Ninth—Because the court erred in holding and deciding

that the supposed grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co., for its road from Wallula to Portland, was ever located

or fixed, or that said company ever acquired any right or

title to the lands in controversy so as to segregate them
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from the public domain or to prevent the said grant to the

State of Oregon from attaching thereto.

Tenth—Because the court erred in holding that the map

referred to in the answer, and known as the Perham map,

was valid or in any manner located the line of the road of

the Northern Pacific Railroad Co., or located or denned

its supposed land grant, or reserved or withdrew any lands

from the operation of the said grant to the State of Oregon.

Eleventh—Because the court erred in holding that on

account of said grant to the Northern Pacific Bailroad Co.,

made by said Act of July 2, 1864, or the said Joint Resolu-

tion of Congress of May 31, 1870, or the transmission by

said company of the said Perham map to the Secretary of

the Interior, or the filing of said map of August 13, 1870,

of its general route of its road by said Northern Pacific

Railroad Co., from Wallula to Portland, or any other mat-

ter or proceeding, the land in controversy was excepted

from the operation of said grant to the State of Oregon.

Twelfth—Because the court erred in holding and decid-

ing that the land in controversy was forfeited to the United

States by the Act of Congress forfeiting grants, and had

been restored to the public domain, and was open to

settlement or subject to sale by the United States at the

time of the defendant's alleged purchase of the same.

Thirteenth—Because the court erred in not holding that

said defendant had obtained and held the legal title to the

land in controversy, as trustee for the complainant.

Wherefore the said complainant prays tli.it the said

decree be reversed and that the said court be directed !<>

enter a decree in accordance with the prayer of the bill.
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QUESTIONS INVOLVED.

The decision of these cases depends npon facts concern-

ing which there is no dispute, and conclusions of law to be

drawn from the admitted facts.

The assignments of error, which are the same in both

cases, may be summarized and the questions presented

for decision briefly stated as follows:

First—The map of the general route of the line of the

Northern Pacific Eailroad, from Wallula to Portland, not

having been filed until August 13, 1870, and the road of

said company never having been definitely located

between said points, and the grant to that company hav-

ing been forfeited, can it now be maintained that any

portion of that company's grant overlapped the grant to

the State of Oregon, or can the grant to the Northern

Pacific Eailroad Co. be set up to defeat the grant to the

State?

Second—Were not the lands embraced within the limits

of the grant to the State of Oregon by the Act of Feb-

ruary 25, 1867, which might have been found to be within

the limits of the grant of lands in place to the Northern

Pacific Eailroad Co. by the Act of July 2, 1864, had the

road of said company been definitely located, between

Wallula and Portland, within the exceptions to the grant

to the Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. of lands "reserved,

sold, granted or otherwise appropriated at the time the line

of said road should he definitely fixed?"

Third—If lands were excepted from the grant to the

State of Oregon on account of the Northern Pacific Eail-

road grant, was such exception of lands in the State of

Oregon ten or twenty sections to the mile?
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Fourth—Were the lands iu question withdrawn by

operation of law, upon the transmission to the Secretary

of the Interior of the Perham map, in 1865, so as to except

them from the operation of the grant to the State of

Oregon?

Fifth—Were Edward Martin and other purchasers of

the grant to the State chargeable with such constructive

notice of the Act granting lands to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co., and the subsequent rulings of the Secretary

of the Interior, as to prevent them from claiming the lands

as bona fide purchasers?

The fourth question is included in the second, and the

fifth can only be material in considering the right of the

complainant to have purchased the lands in controversy

under Section 5 of the Act of March 3, 1887, known as the

Land Grant Adjustment Act, if its title to the lands under

the grant to the State was held to have failed.

It is unnecessary to discuss the proposition that if the

grant to the State of Oregon had attached to the lands in

controversy before the claim of the defendant thereto was

initiated, the defendant having had notice of complain-

ant's claim to title to the lands prior to his settlement

and application to purchase, he should be held to be

a trustee of whatever right or title he took under his

patent for the complainant. The proposition is estab-

lished beyond question by decisions of the Supreme Court

of the United States, that when the title to land has passed

from the Government and the question becomes one of

private right, the Courts of Equity may enquire whether

the party holding the patent should not be treated as a

trustee for another, and may decree the party holding the
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legal title to convey it to one found to be equitably entitled

to the land.

Gildersleeve v. New Alex. Mining Co.

Johnson v. Towsley, 80 U. S. 72, 13 Wall. 72.

BRIEF AND ARGUMENT.

I.

Were the lands in question excepted from the grant to

the State of Oregon on account of the grant to the North-

ern Pacific Railroad Co., the filing of the map of general

route, or other acts of that company?

The defendant contends first that the lands in contro-

versy were excepted from the operation of the grant to the

State of Oregon by the transmission to the Secretary of the

Interior of the Perham map, and if not, that they were

excepted by the filing by the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co. of the map of the general location of the route of its

road on August 13, 1870.

We will discuss the validity and effect of the Perham

map hereafter.

It will be remembered that the grant to the State of

Oregon was made on February 25, 1867; that the wagon

road in aid of which the grant was made was constructed

and completed prior to the 23d day of June, 1869; that the

Governor of Oregon had, on July 23, 1869, certified that the

road had been definitely located and constructed and com-

pleted; that the map of the constructed road and the

Governor's certificate of its completion had been filed in

the Interior Department prior to December 18, 1869; and

the lands embraced within the limits of the grant to the

State of Oregon had been withdrawn from settlement and

sale on that date.
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We contend that the title of the State of Oregon and of

its grantees was not affected by the filing of the map of

general route on August 13, 1870.

First—Because, being a map of general route only, it

had no retroactive force; and

Second—Because it did not identify the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co.'s grant so that the grant attached to any

particular tract of land.

It has been repeatedly held that the effect of filing a

map of general route is only to withdraw the lands from

future disposition. It does not cause the grant to attach

to any particular tract of land. The grant still remains

a floating grant until a map of definite location is filed.

It may be admitted that if the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co. had definitely located its road from Wallula to Port-

land, its grant as to lauds within the limits of its grant

in place not excepted from the (/rant would have taken effect

aud its title would have related back to the date of the

grant, and the giant would have attached to specific tracts

of land.

But in the present case it is alleged in the complaint

and not denied by the answer that "the line of the road of

said Northern Pacific Railroad Co. between Wallula and

Portland, or to a point opposite Portland, was never sur-

veyed, that the said line of said road between the said

points was never definitely located or fixed by the said

company, that no map of the definite location of said road

was ever filed in the office of l he Commissioner of the

General Land Office at Washington City, or in the Interior

Department, that said Northern Pacific Railroad Co.

never constructed any portion of its said road between

said Town of Wallula aud said City of Portland."
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So that there is no question in these cases about the

character of the map filed on the 13th day of August,

1870; and we claim that the right of the wagon road

company to the lands in question was not impaired nor the

status of the lands affected by that map; that the question

therefore to be considered in these cases is not what lands

the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. would have acquired, if

it had definitely located and constructed its road between

Wallula and Portland, but what rights it acquired, if any,

by filing a map of general route, and whether the filing

of said map segregated any lands from the public domain

or prevented them from passing to the Dalles Military

Road Co., under the grant to the State of Oregon.

We think this question has been substantially decided

by the Supreme Court of the United States in several cases.

In Kan. Pac. By. Co. v. Dunmeier, 113 U. S. 636, Mr. Jus-

tice Miller, in delivering the opinion of the Supreme Court,

said:

"The record shows that while the company did not file

its line of definite location until about two months after

Miller had made his homestead entry, it did designate the

general route of said road and file a map thereof in the

General Land Office, on July 11 of the same year, 1866,

which was fifteen days before the homestead entry."

Again he said, speaking of the rights acquired by the

railroad company by filing a map of general route of its

road:

"What were those rights? This action does not, like the

filing of the line of definite location, vest in the company

a right to any specific piece of land. It establishes no claim

to any particular section with an odd number."
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And in United States v. Southern Pacific Ry. Co., 13 Sup.

Ot. Rep. 157, 146 U. S. 600-1, Mr. Justice Brewer, in

announcing the opinion of the Supreme Court, said

:

"A distinction between the line of definite location and

the general route is well known. It was clearly pointed

out in the case of Butts v. R. R. Co., 119 U. S. 55, 7 Sup.

Ct. Rep. 100. The act under consideration in that case

was that of July 2, 1864, 13 Stat. 365, making a grant

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co."

And again he said:

"The Act of Congress not only contemplates the filing

by the company in the office of the Commissioner of the

General Land Office of a map showing the distinct loca-

tion of its road, and limits the grant to such alternate

sections as have not been reserved, sold, granted or other-

wise appropriated, and are free from pre-emption grant

or other claims or rights, but it also contemplates a pre-

liminary designation of the general route of the road, and

the exclusion from sale, entry or pre-emption of adjoin-

ing odd sections within forty miles on each side until

the definite location is made."

And he further says:

"The map which was filed on April 3, 1871, was simply

one of general route, and therefore did not work a designa-

tion of the tracts of land to which the Southern Pacific's

grant attached."

In the case of Kan. Pac. R. R. Co. v. Atlantic R. R. Co.,

112 U. S. 422, the court said:

"The line of the road . . . was not definitely fixed

until 1866. Until then the appropriation of lands, even

within the limits of the grant . . . was in no respect
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an impairment of its rights. . . . The order of the

withdrawal of lands along 'the probable line' of the

defendant's road, made on the 19th of March, 1863, by the

Commissioner of the General Land Office, affected no

rights which it would have acquired to the lands, nor in

any respect controlled the subsequent grant."

Mr. Justice Brewer, in delivering the opinion of the

Supreme Court in the case of St. Paul, etc., Co. v. Green-

halgh, 26 Fed. 565, said

:

"The complainant took nothing by the withdrawal. A
withdraAval passes no title. It only prevents other titles

from accruing."

In the case of the Wis. Cent. R. B. Co. v. Price, 133 U.

S. 496-519, the court, in discussing the effect of the filing

of a map of general route, at page 509, said:

"The title conferred by the grant was necessarily an

imperfect one. Because until the lands were identified

by the definite location of the road it could not be known

what specific lands would be embraced in the sections

named. The grant was, therefore, until such location,

afloat."

And Mr. Justice Brewer, in the case of Sioux City, etc.,

B. B. Co. v. Griffey, 143 U. S. 32-41, on pages 38-9, said:

"The first and principal question is at what time the

title of the company attached, whether at the time the

map of definite location was filed in the General Land

Office at Washington, or when, prior thereto, its line was

surveyed and staked out on the surface of the ground.

. . . . The fact that the company has surveyed and

staked a line upon the ground does not conclude it. It

may survey and stake many, and finally determine the
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line upon which it will build by a comparison of the cost

and advantages <>f each; and only when, by filing its map,

it has communicated to the Government knowledge of its

selected line is it concluded by its action. Then, so far

as the purposes of the grant are concerned, is its line

definitely fixed; and it cannot, therefore, without the con-

sent of the Government, change that line so as to affect

titles accruing thereunder."

In the case of the United States v. the Southern Pacific

Railway Co., 13 Sup. Ct. Rep. 152, 146 U. S. 570, which was

a suit concerning lands between the overlapping limits of

the grant to the Atlantic & Pacific R. R. Co. and a grant

to the Southern Pacific Ry. Co., in which the grant to

the Atlantic & Pacific was the prior grant, but the definite

location of its road was subsequent to the definite location

of the road of the Southern Pacific, and in which grant

to the Southern Pacific there had been inserted the follow-

ing proviso: "Provided, however, that this section shall

in no way affect or impair the rights, present or pros-

pective, of the Atlantic & Pacific Railroad Co. or any other

railroad company," it was held that, the grant to the

Atlantic & Pacific being a prior grant, and the line of its

road having been definitely located, its title related back

to the date of the grant, and it took the lands within the

conflicting limits of the two grants, in preference to the

Southern Pacific Co. Mr. Justice Brewer, in announcing

the decision of the Supreme Court, said:

"The question is asked, supposing the Atlantic & Pacific

Co. had never located its line west of the Colorado river,

would not these lands have passed to the Southern Pacific

Co., under its grant. Very likely that may be so. The Ian-
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guage of the Southern Pacific Co.'s grant is broad enough

to include all lands along its line; but if the grant to the

Atlantic & Pacific Co. had never taken effect, it may be

that there is nothing which would interfere with the pass-

age of the title to the Southern Pacific Co."

As the definite location of the line of the road of the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co., from Wallula to Portland,

was never made, the grant to the Northern Pacific never

took effect as to any land alleged to have been granted

in aid of the line from Wallula to Portland, and it cannot

be affirmed or established as a matter of law or fact that

a single section of land was granted to the Northern

Pacific for that portion of its road, or at least any particu-

lar section, and therefore it cannot be shown that any

portion of the lands embraced within the grant to the

State of Oregon were ever granted to or reserved for the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co.

But this very question as to whether the grant to the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co. between Wallula and Port-

land ever took effect so as to prevent a subsequent grant

from attaching to lands embraced with the limits of its

grant, as shown by its map of general route,was decided by

this court in the case of the Oregon & California Railroad

Co., John A. Hurlburt and Thomas L. Evans, appellants,

versus the United States of America, appellee.

In that case, Judge Ross, announcing the opinion of the

court, said:

"The only thing remaining in the case that could take

the lands in controversy out of the mass of public lands

to which the grant of 1866 to the Oregon & California

Railroad Co. applied is the preceding grant to the North-
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ern Pacific Railroad Co. of July 2, 1864, and the Perham

map or diagram tiled thereunder.

"It is not pretended that any order of withdrawal was

made by any officer of the Land Department, based on

that map. Was it sufficient, taken in connection with the

Act of July 2, 1864, to constitute a statutory withdrawal

of the lands in question for the benefit of the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co.?

"It was not, for at least two very substantial and obvious

reasons. Upon its face, as well as by the letter accom-

panying it from the President of the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co., of date March 6, 1865, it purported to be

the designation of the general route of a railroad from a

point on. Lake Superior, in the State of Wisconsin, via the

valley of the Columbia river, to Puget sound, in the State

of Washington, which the letter of its President stated

the company had adopted as the line of its road.

"That was not the line the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co. was authorized by the Act of July 2, 1864, to locate

and build. The line authorized by that Act, and in aid of

which that grant was made, extended, as has been seen,

from a point on Lake Superior, in the State of Minnesota

or Wisconsin, westerly, by the most eligible railroad

route, on a line north of the 45th degree of latitude, and

within the territory of the United States, to some point

on Puget sound, with <i branch, r'ui the valley of the Columbia

river, to a point at or near Portland, in the State of Or<</<m,

leaving the main t runic line, at the most suitable place, not

more than three hundred miles from its western terminus

(13 U. S. Stat. 365; United States v. Northern Pacific Rail-

road Co., 152 U. S. 284).
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"As said by the Supreme Court, in the case just cited:

"Although that act allowed the company to adopt the

most eligible route, within the territory of the United

States, north of the forty-fifth degree of latitude, it is clear

that Congress contemplated the construction of a main

trunk line between Lake Superior and Puget sound, which

would not touch any point 'at or near Portland,' and the

western end of which would be east and northeast of a

direct line between Portland and Puget sound, and, in

addition, a branch line leaving the main trunk line, at some

suitable place, not more than three hundred miles from

its western terminus, and extending 'via the valley of the

Columbia river to a point at or near Portland.' If the

main line, as originally indicated by the act of 1864, had

been established on the route between Portland and Puget

sound, the branch line could not have left the main line at

some point notmorethan three hundred miles from its west-

ern terminus, and extended via the valley of the Columbia

river to a point at or near Portland. The authority given

to the company to adopt the most eligible route did not

authorize it, by a map of general route to cover an unlim-

ited extent of country, north of the forty-fifth degree of

latitude. On the contrary, as said in St. Paul & Pacific

Railroad Co. v. Northern Pacific Railroad, 139 U. S. 1, 13,

'When the termini of a railroad are mentioned, for whose

construction a grant is made, the extent of which is

dependent upon the distance between those points the road

should be constructed upon the most direct and practic-

able line. No unnecessary deviation from such line would

be deemed within the contemplation of the grantor, and

would be rejected as not in accordance with the grant."
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"The indefiniteness of the Perhani map or diagram,

which is so manifest on its face, was alluded to by the

Supreme Court in the same case (152 U. S. 292), in these

words:

"It may be that the indeflniteness of the map of general

route presented by the Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. in

1865 constituted the reason why that map was not

accepted by the Interior Department."

"So it was as has already been shown. The fact that

upon its face it did not purport to be anything more than

a mere sketch or diagram nnauthenticated by any engineer

or officer charged with the duty of designating such a

route, coupled with the fact that it was not only not

accepted, but was rejected, by the Land Department of the

Government as insufficient to properly designate the gen-

eral route of the road the company was by the act of con-

gress authorized to build, constitutes a second reason why

the granting act did not itself operate to withdraw the

lands in controversy for the benefit of the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co. They, therefore, remained public lands to

which the subsequent grant to the Oregon & California

Railroad Co. might apply, unless it be that the grant con-

tained in the act of July 2, 1864, in and of itself, without

any designation of the route of its road by the grantee

Northern Pacific Railroad Co., operated to withdraw the

lands in controversy from the mass of public lands. And

if these lands, why not all other public lands within the

territory of the United States, situated north of the forty-

fifth degree of latitude, and between the termini named in

the act? It would be difficult to maintain any distinction

in this respect between any of the public lands, not min-
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eral, situated in the immense belt through and along which

the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. might ha\e located and

constructed its road.

"The court below, in its opinion, held that

"It might definitely locate its line in good faith, in com-

pliance with the requirement of the act, and by such loca-

tion select and acquire the lands within the place limits

upon both sides of its line. It is u it important that the com-

pany never exercised this power."

"In holding that it is unimportant that the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. never exercised its right to locate and

build its road along and opposite to the lands in contro-

versy, the court below committed its second error.

"It is said that the grant contained in the act, in and of

itself, was "an appropriation of the public lands." Of

what public lands? Of all the public lands situated within

that immense belt through and along which the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. was authorized to locate and build its

road? Manifestly, if, prior to any designation by the

grantee company of the line of road it was authorized to

locate and build, the act making the grant in and of itself

operated as an appropriation of any particular public land,

it operated as an appropriation of all public lands within

the United States, situated north of the forty-fifth degree

of latitude and between the termini named in the act; for,

prior to some designation of the route, it could not be

known where the grantee company would find the most

eligible railroad route, along which route it was author-

ized to build. We repeat, therefore, that prior to the desig-

nation of some route, no distinction can be made between

any of the public lands, not mineral, situated in the belt
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through and along which the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co. might have located and constructed its road. Is it pos-

sible that all of that immense body of public land was, by

the act of July 2, 1864, in and of itself, without any desig-

nation by the grantee company of the line of its road, with-

drawn from subseqiient grants? Undoubtedly not. In

the case of United States v. Southern Pacific Railroad Co.

(146 U. S. .570), the Supreme Court said that the intent of

Congress in all railroad land grants, as has been declared

by that court again and again, was that such grants shall

operate at a fixed time, and shall take only such lands as

at that time are public lands. And in respect to this very

grant of July 2, 1864, the Supreme Court, in the case of

United States v. Northern Pacific Railroad, 152 U. S. 296,

in express terms declared that it embraced only public land

to which the United States had full title, not reserved,

sold, granted, or otherwise appropriated, and free from

pre-emption, or other claims or rights, at the time its line of

road was definitely fixed, and a pJ<it thereof filed in the office

of the Commissioner of the General Land Office. As it is not

pretended that any such line, in so far as concerns the

lands here in controversy, ever was definitely fixed, how

that grant, in and of itself, without any designation of the

required route, can be held to embrace these lands, we are

unable to understand. It requires the act of the grantee

to give precision to such grants and to identify by the

location of its road the lands embraced by the grant. When

that is properly done, the grant attaches thereto and

becomes effective as of its date; but until there is some

designation of route by the grantee, there is nothing to

segregate any particular land from the mass of public
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lands, and, manifestly, if such segregation never occurs,

those that otherwise might be covered by the grant

remain public lands, and subject to any other valid grant

that congress may have made embracing them. The grant

of July 2, 1864, to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. never

having taken effect, so far as concerns the lands in con-

troversy in this suit, they were public lands at the time

of the grant to the Oregon & California Railroad Co., and

at the time of the definite location bj that company of the

road it was authorized to build along and opposite to

them, and falling, as they do, within the terms of that

grant, and having been earned by and patented to that

company, the judgment is reversed, and cause remanded,

with directions to the court below to dismiss the bill."

II.

Was not the grant to the State of Oregon made by the

act of February 25, 1867, excepted from the grant to the

Northern Pacific?

The only exceptions in the grant to the State were of

lands theretofore, that is, prior to February 23, 1876,

"reserved to the United States or otherwise appropriated

by Act of Congress or other competent authority." The

grant to the Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. was of lands

on the line of its road to which the United States should

have "full title not reserved, sold, granted or otherwise

appropriated and free from pre-emption or other claims or

rights at the time the line of said road is definitely fixed, and

a plat thereof filed in the office of the Commissioner of the

General Land Office."

The United States expressly reserved the right to grant

lands at any time prior to the filing of the map of definite
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location of the railroad company's Line with the Commis-

sioner of the General Land Office, and expressly excepted

the lands it should grant prior to that time from the rail-

road company's grant.

We contend that the said grant to the State of Oregon

was made in pursuance of and in accordance with this res-

eryation of the right of the United States to grant lands,

though they might be found upon the filing of the map of

general location of the route of the Northern Pacific Rail-

road Oo.'s road to be embraced within the limits of the

grant to that company, and that lands so granted were

expressly reseryed from the said company's grant.

In cases of conflicting giants to different railroad com-

panies, the Interior Department, prior to 1878, held that

the company which first definitely fixed the line of its

road acquired title to the land. In the case of Oregon &
California R. R. Co., 14 L. D. 188, the Secretary of the

Interior says: "Under the rulings in force in this depart-

ment prior to 1878, it was held that priority of location

gave priority of right to lands within conflicting limits,

and a large number of tracts were patented to the Oregon

& California Co. within the conflict now under considera-

tion."

This ruling of the Land Department, which had always

prevailed until 1878, was changed immediately after the

decision of the Supreme Court in Missouri, Kansas, etc. v.

Kansas Pacific, etc., 97 U. S. 492, which was rendered that

year.

In that case, the court was construing the third section

of the Act of Congress of July 1, 1SC>2, granting lands to the

Union Pacific Railroad Co., in these words: "Thai there
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be and is hereby granted to the said company every alter-

nate section to the amount of five alternate sections not

sold, reserved, or otherwise disposed (if by the United

States, and to which a pre-emption or homestead claim

may not have attached at the time the line of said map is

definitely fixed."

In delivering the opinion of the court, Mr. Justice Field

says:

"The grant was in the nature of a float, and the reserva-

tion excluded only specific tracts to which certain inter-

ests had attached before the grant had become definite or

which had been specifically withheld from sale for public

uses, and tracts having a peculiar character, such as

swamp lands or mineral lands, the sale of which was then

against the general policy of the government. It teas not

tcithin the language or purpose to except from its operation

any portion of the designated lands to aid in the construction

of other roads."

Afterwards, in delivering the opinion of the court in St.

Paul & Pacific v. Northern Pacific, 139 U. S. 1, Justice

Field says:

"But independently of this conclusion, we are of opinion

that the exception in the act making the grant to the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co. was not intended to cover

other grants for the construction of roads of a similar char-

acter, for this would be to embody a provision which would

often be repugnant to and defeat the grant itself." (Mis-

souri, Kansas & Texas Railway v. Kansas Pacific Railway,

97 U. S. 491, 498, 499.)

The quotations from these two decisions seem to hold

that priority in the definite location of a railroad gave pri-
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ority of right to lands within conflicting limits. This

reversed the rulings of the Land Department in that

respect, which had prevailed until 1878.

In neither of these cases was it necessary for the court

in coming to a decision to make these declarations. Both

of them were decided upon other grounds and for other

reasons. In fact, they seem to be mere obiter dicta.

But conceding that the rule here laid down by the

Supreme Court is correct so far as it concerns grants to

different railroad companies, it does not follow that a

giant to the State of Oregon to aid in the construction of

The Dalles Military Road shall not have priority of right

over the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co.

The Supreme Court says, in 139 U. S. 17, supra:

"We are of the opinion that the exception in the act

making the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. was

not intended to cover other grants for the construction of

roads of a similar character."

But the Northern Pacific Railroad and The Dalles Mili-

tary road are in no sense roads of a similar character. The

former is a road belonging to a private corporation and for

its especial benefit. The latter is a public road of the

United States, constructed for public uses and especially

for the benefit of the United States.

MILITARY ROADS HAVE ALWAYS BEEN CON-

STRUCTED AT THE EXPENSE OF THE UNITED
STATES, AND ARE IN THE FULLEST SENSE PUB-

LIC ROADS OF THE UNITED STATES.

An examination of the statutes of the United Slates will

show that for several years preceding tin- civil war, a num-

ber of military roads were constructed at great expense
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by the United States within Oregon and Washington Ter-

ritories.

By Act of Congress of February 17, 1855, (10 Stats, at

Large, 608,) $30,000 was appropriated to construct a mili-

tary road from Astoria to Salem.

On March 2, 1857 (11 Stats. 108), f10,000 additional was

appropriated.

On June 2, 1858 (11 Stats. 337), $30,000 additional was

appropriated to complete the same.

By act of February 6, 1855, (10 Stats. 603,) $25,000 was

appropriated to construct a military road from The Dalles

of the Columbia to Columbia Barracks, and $30,000 to con-

struct a military road from Columbia Barracks to Fort

Steilacoom, in Washington Territory.

By act of March 3, 1859, (11 Stats. 434,) $100,000 was

appropriated to construct a military road from Fort Ben-

ton to Walla Walla (known as the Mullan Road).

All these roads, besides others in Oregon and Washing-

ton, were constructed under direction of the Secretary of

War. They were public and not private roads, and deemed

necessary for the protection of the country and to facilitate

the movement of troops and munitions of war.

It is matter of history, of which the court will take

notice without proof, that in 1862 extensive gold mines

were discovered in what is now known as Canyon City,

and conflicts were constantly occurring between the min-

ers and Indians in the vicinity. Troops were sent to pro-

tect the people who had gone thither. Permanent military

camps were established at Camp Watson, Camp Harney

and Camp Logan, the former on the trail leading from

Dalles City to Canyon City, and the others in the neigh-
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borhood of the diggings. There was at the time no road

within fifty miles of these military posts, and all supplies

had to be transported by pack trains from Dalles (
'it v.

Petitions were sent to Congress asking for the construc-

tion of a military road from Dalles City to these new dig-

gings, and the result was that Congress passed the act of

February 25, 1867, (14 Stats. 109,) granting lands to the

State of Oregon to aid in the construction of a military

road from Dalles City to Snake river, This is the grant

which was subsequently transferred by the State to the

Dalles Military Road Co., and a part of which is now in

controversy in this suit.

Instead of appropriating the money, Congress appropri-

ated certain sections of land to aid in the construction of

this military load, but all the same this was as much of a

public road as was the Astoria and Salem Military Road

before referred to.

Section 2 of the act granting lands to aid in the con-

struction of the Dalles Military road provides that "The

said road shall be and remain a public highway for the use

of the government of the United States, free from tolls or

other charges upon the transportation of any property,

troops or mails of the United States.
,,

The grant to the state was of the odd-numbered sections

to the extent of three sections in width on each side of said

road. As we have said, the only reservation from the oper-

ation of this grant was such land as had heretofore been

reserved to the United States or "otherwise appropriated

by Act of Congress."

The grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. was a

conditional one, and that company had no interest what-
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ever in it until the definite location of its road. The land

was in no sense appropriated by Act of Congress. It was not

intended by Congress in making the grant to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. to withhold any part of these lands

from subsequent appropriation, sale or grant, before the

line of its road was definitely fixed.

As was said by Mr. Justice Field in Missouri, etc., Ry. Co.

v. Kansas Pac. Ry. Co., 97 U. S. 498, supra:

"As the sections mentioned could only be known when

the route of road was established which might not be for

years, the government did not intend to withhold the lands

in the meantime from occupation and sale, and thus retard

the settlement of the country nor exclude the lands for pub-

lic uses."

The grant of land to the State of Oregon to aid in the

construction of the Dalles Military road was for public

uses, and is therefore to be liberally construed in favor of

the grantee.

III.

If any lands were excepted from the grant to the State

on account of the Northern Pacific Railroad Co.'s grant,

was such exception of lands in the State of Oregon 10 or

20 sections to the mile?

The grant is of "every alternate section of public land

not reserved, designated by odd sections to the amount of

20 alternate sections per mile on each side of said railroad

line as said company may adopt through the territories of

the United States, and 10 sections of land on each side of

said railroad whenever it passes through any state."

We think the intention of Congress to grant to the

Northern Pacific Railroad Co. 10 sections of land only on
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each side of the road within a Stale is apparent from the

terms of the grant, and that the extent of the grant to that

company depends upon the location of the land. By the

express terms of the statute, if the road passes through

a State the grant is limited to 10 sections to the mile on

each side of the road. The words "through the territories

of the United States" we think may be read as referring

to the grant; but if they refer to the line of the road which

the company might adopt, still it may be held, without

doing violence to the language employed, that where the

line is located in a territory, the grant within a State is

limited to 10 sections to the mile.

Congress must have had some reason for making the

grant in a territory double that in a State. Lands within

a State might fairly, on account of a larger and denser pop-

ulation and older communities and better development of

the country, be presumed to be of greater value than lands

in a new territory. It was the location of the lands and not

the location of the road therefore that must have con-

trolled Congress.

It can hardly be possible that it was the intention of

Congress to grant to the company 20 sections of land to

the mile within a State if the company should choose to

locate its road, as in the present case, within a territory,

but immediately along the boundary line between a State

and a territory.

A long-established rule of construction of such grants is

that they will be construed strictly and not extended by

implication beyond their natural import.

United States v. Arrendo, fi Pet. 099.

Jackson v. Lampshire, 3 Pet. 280-9.
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Beatty v. Knowler, 4 Pet. 52.

Charles River Bridge Co. v. Warrer Bridge, 11 Pet.

422.

Griffing v. Giib, 1 McAl. 211.

Grants of land by Act of Congress to aid in the construc-

tion of a railroad should be strictly construed against the

grantees. Nothing passes but what is conveyed in clear

and explicit language.

Dubuque, etc., R. R. Co. v. Litchfield, 23 How. 66-88.

If the construction of the grant to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Co. we contend for can be given to the statute

it should be adopted by the court.

IV.

Were the lands in question withdrawn by operation of

law upon the transmission to the Secretary of the Interior

of the Perham map in 1865, so as to except them from

the operation of the grant to the State of Oregon made by

the act of February 25, 1867?

That the Perham map was not executed in accordance

with the requirements of the statute and the regulations

of the Department and was not accepted or filed by the

Department of the Interior and that no withdrawal of

lands on account thereof was made, appears from the cor-

respondence concerning the same, made exhibits to the

answer. The Perham map purported to be a map of the

main line of the road of the Northern Pacific Railroad Co.

from Lake Superior to Puget sound. The act of July 2,

1864, required the main line of said road to be located and

constructed upon the most eligible route between those

points. As was said by Mr. Justice Harlan, in delivering

the opinion of the Supreme Court of the United States in
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Rep. 598, 152 U. S. 284:

"The road should be constructed upon the most practic-

able line. Any unnecessary deviation from such line would

not be deemed within the contemplation of the grantor

and would be rejected as not in accordance with the grant."

The decision of the Supreme Court in this case seems

conclusive that the Perham map was properly rejected by

the Department. In delivering the opinion of the court,

Mr. Justice Harlan said:

"Although that act allowed the company to adopt the

most eligible route within the territory of the United

States, north of the forty-fifth degree of latitude, it is clear

that Congress contemplated the construction of a main

trunk line between Lake Superior and Puget sound which

would not touch any point 'at or near Portland,' and the

western end of which would be east and northeast of a

direct line between Portland and Puget sound; and, in

addition, a branch Hue leaving the main trunk line, at

some suitable place, not more than 300 miles from its

western terminus, and extending 'via the valley of the

Columbia river to a point at or near Portland.' If the main

line, as originally indicated by the act of 18(54, had been

established on the route between Portland and Puget

sound, the branch line could not have left the main line

at some point not more than 300 miles from its western

terminus, and extended via the valley of the Columbia

river to a point at or near Portland. The authority given

to the company to adopt the most eligible route did not

authorize it, by a map of general route, to cover an unlim-

ited extent of country north of the forty-fifth degree of
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v. Northern Pac. R. Co., 130 U. S. 1, 13, 11 Sup. Ct. 389,

'When the termini of a railroad are mentioned, for whose

construction a grant is made, the extent of which is

dependent upon the distance between those points, the

road should be constructed upon the most direct and prac-

ticable line. No unnecessary deviation from such line

would be deemed within the contemplation of the grantor,

and would be rejected as not in accordance with the grant.'

It may be that the indeflniteness of the map of general

route presented by the Northern Pacific Eailroad Co. in

1865 constituted the reason why that map was not

accepted by the Interior Department. Besides, it is not

found as a fact in this case that the most eligible rail-

road route for the main line, between Lake Superior and

Puget sound, looking at the purpose of Congress in mak-

ing the grant of 1864, was down the Columbia river and

via some point at or near Portland. It is clear that the

purpose of Congress, by the act of 1864, wTas not to connect

Portland with Puget sound by a road established upon

the most direct or eligible route between those places, but,

so far as Portland and its vicinity were concerned, to con-

nect them with the east by a branch road, through the

valley of the Columbia river, that would strike the main

trunk line connecting Puget sound and Lake Superior.

There was no purpose, by that act, to make a grant of lands

for a road to be located and constructed from a point 'at or

near Portland' to Puget sound."

In the case at bar it does not appear that the line traced

on the Perham map was the most eligible route for the

main line of the company's road between Lake Superior

and Puget sound.
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The question of the validity and effect of the Perham

map is thoroughly and ably discussed in the brief of coun-

sel for appellants in the case of the United States of Amer-

ica v. the Oregon & California R R. Co., John A. Hurlburt

and Thomas L. Evans pending in this court, and we take

the liberty of incorporating the following portion of their

argument applicable to this case in this brief:

"We claim that the lands in suit were in nowise affected

by the Perham map, for all of the following reasons:

"(a) It showed two different lines of a road to Puget

sound—but did not designate either, even alternately, for

a route.

"(b) It did not pretend to designate a route which the

company had 'determined' upon or 'fixed.'

"(c) It was not accepted by the United States.

"(d) The Commissioner's rejection is conclusive as to

the Northern Pacific Co., because it acquiesced and did not

appeal. The United States, having sustained no wrong

thereby, could not have complained of its own action at

the time, in a direct proceeding—and should not, at this

late day, be heard to complain collaterally.

"(e) The Northern Pacific Act did not provide for, nor

contemplate, the withdrawal of any land from liability to

subsequent grant, made before definite location.

"(a) The first section of the act of 1864 authorized the

Northern Pacific Co. to construct its main road 'by the most

eligible railroad route' north of the forty-fifth degree of lat-

itude, from Lake Superior to Puget sound, and also to con-

struct a branch road down the valley of the Columbia river

to a point near Portland.

"The Perham map shows several different lines, without
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even expressing a preference between them. Two routes,

starting at different points on Lake Superior, are brought

together in Montana, at the point marked 'A' on the map.

One of those lines is marked 'a practicable railroad as sur-

veyed by Governor Stevens,' and the other as 'worthy an

examination for a railroad route.'

"From 'K,' in Washington, a line extends northwest to

'H,' on Puget sound—and another line is drawn from 'K'

southwesterly along the course of the Columbia river to

Vancouver, thence north to the point 'H,' on Puget sound.

"The Northern Pacific Co. did not by this, nor by any

map filed prior to the joint resolution of 1870, offer to

designate a route for the brunch-line road. It wanted to

build a road which would connect Portland, Puget sound

and Lake Superior; but had no authority to extend its

branch line beyond Portland, and the act of 1864 termi-

nated the main line at Puget sound. Had the company

been assured that, by waiving the branch-line provisions,

the main-line road could be built down the Columbia river

to Portland, thence to Puget sound, it may be that it would

have adopted the Columbia river line; but it is apparent

that the company could not make a map committing itself

to the adoption of a fixed line for either the branch or main

road, as such, without thereby illustrating that it had no

authority to build a road from Portland to Puget sound.

The act fixed the terminus of the main road at Puget

sound, and the terminus of the branch at a point near Port-

land, and when either road reached the prescribed ter-

minus it must stop there; and the theory out of which the

Perham map evidently arose, was that the company might,

by waiving its branch-line authority, build its main line to

Puget sound by way of Portland.
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"It was for these reasons, we believe, that the Perham

map made equivocal and alternative designations of route.

"It is contended . . . that the Perham map made a

valid designation from 'K' to Vancouver of the branch-line

road, notwithstanding it was made and filed as a general

route map of the ma in -Hue road to Puget sound by way of

Vancouver; because the same company, at that time, had

the right to make and file a general route map, designat-

ing for its branch road the identical route from 'K' to Van-

couver, shown on this map. The vice of such contention,

it seems to us, arises out of contemplating the privileges

and rights conferred as a unit of grant—because the bene-

ficiary thereof is the same corporation.

"Suppose the act had authorized the Northern Pacific

Co. to construct a road by the most eligible route, from

Lake Superior to Puget sound; and another company to

construct a branch road from 'K' to Portland. It certainly

could not be claimed that such other company would be

bound by, or entitled to any benefits from, the Northern

Pacific's designation of a line of route from 'K' to Puget

sound by way of Portland; nor that the Northern Pacific

could designate such a route at all. While the fact that in

one instance the Northern Pacific Co. was, and in the other

was not, the beneficiary of the two grants, would make a

difference in considering the quantity of grant made to

that company—it should not make any difference in con-

sidering the grants themselves, as such.

"Nothing is claimed here by or for the Northern Pacific

Co. The question here is as to whether the filing of the

Perham map, showing a line for the m>iin road along an

unauthorized route, constituted a designation of the
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branch-line road, in so far as the branch-line road might

Iki re been, but was not, mapped for such route.

"(b) The first section of the act of 1804 authorized the

construction of a railroad along a line 'to be determined

by said company.' Section 3 describes the lands granted

in relation to such railroad line 'as said company may

adopt;' and Section 6 provides what shall be done 'after

the general route be fixed'

"In the case of Hayes v. Parker et al., 2 L. D., p. 555, con-

sidering the provisions of these sections, Secretary Teller

said

:

" 'The act in question provides for but one line of gen-

eral route, and one of definite location. It is certainly a

very grave question whether legislative withdrawal oper-

ates under any preliminary map other than the one which

the compan}^ finally determines shall be the settled and foxed

general route of the road. If legislative withdrawals oper-

ate upon preliminary lines not finally fixed as lines of gen-

eral route, then we have in this instance a legislative with-

drawal of a section of country almost entirely different

from that which was finally included in the lines of the

general route.'

"It will be remembered that the Perhain map was

rejected, and no executive withdrawal of any land was

made in pursuance of it. But had it been accepted by the

Land Department, who might say what lands it operated

to withdraw—those along the direct line from 'K' to 'H,'

or those along the line whih followed the Columbia river to

Vancouver, thence to 'H'? As a matter of fact, the road

was not built along either of those lines.

"(c) No executive withdrawal was made in pursuance
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of the Perham map; and we claim that the Perham map

did not operate a legislative withdrawal-—because, among

other reasons, it was not accepted by officers of the United

States.

"We know of no case, the decision of which depended

solely upon the Land Officers' acceptance or rejection of a

railroad map. It seems to have been treated as a matter

of course, throughout the decisions relating to the public

lands, that there can be no pre-emption, homestead, or

other claim under the laws relating to the public lands,

without the co-operation of the Land Department; and, in

the same way, it has been frequently said, in effect, that

acceptance of the Land Officers is essential to the efficacy

of railroad maps.

"The grant made by the act of July 23, 18GG, to the St.

Joseph & Denver City Railroad Co., contained no spe-

cific requirement that the company file a map of definite

location. The language of the act is:

" 'That there be hereby granted . . . every alternate

section of land designated by odd numbers, for ten sec-

tions in width on each side of said road, to the point of

intersection. But in case it shall appear that the United

States have, when the line of said road is definitely fixed,

sold,' etc.

"Construing this grant, Mr. Justice Field said

:

" 'Until the map is filed with the Secretary of the Inte-

rior, the company is at liberty to adopt such a route as it

may deem best, after an examination of the ground has

disclosed the feasibility and advantages of different lines.

But when a route is adopted by the company and a map

designating it is filed with the Secretary of the Interior,
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and accepted by that officer, the route is established; it is,

in the language of the act, 'definitely fixed,' and cannot be

the subject of future change, so as to affect the grant,

except upon legislative consent.' (Van Wyck v. Knevals,

160 IT. S. 366.)

"Secretary Smith, in the case of Cole v. N. P. R. R, Co.,

17 L. D. 9, construing Section 6 of the Northern Pacific Act,

held:

" 'Said section provided for a legislative withdrawal of

lands within the granted limits, upon the filing of a map

of general route, which became operative upon the

approval of the map.'

"Substantially the same language is used by Assistant

Attorney-General Smith, in his opinion to Secretary Del-

ano, reported at page 377, Copp's Pub. Land Laws (1875

Ed.) in which Secretary Delano concurred (p. 380).

"In the case of Buttz v. N. P. R. R. Co., 119 IT. S., at page

71, Mr. Justice Field said:

" 'The Act of Congress not only contemplates the filing

by the company in the office of the Commissioner of the

General Land Office of a map showing the definite location

of the line of its road; . . . but it also contemplates

a preliminary designation of the general route of the

road. . . . The officers of the Land Department are

expected to exercise supervision over the matter, so as to

require good faith on the part of the company in designat-

ing the general route, and not to accept an arbitrary and

capricious selection of the line.'

"(d) Section 2273 of the United States Revised St? 4^

utes provides that

:

" 'Appeals from the decision of the district officers, in
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i ases, of contest for tharight of pre-emption, shall be made

to the Commissioner of the (GteneraJ Land Office, whose

decision shall be final, unless appeal therefrom be taken to

the Secretary of the. Interior.'

"This section, was taken from the act of June 12, 1858,

and. was very soon after adopted as a rule of practice in

respect of all decisions rendered, by .the Commissioner.

Rule 112 of the 'Rules of Practice' provides that:

"'Decisions of the Commissioner not appealed from

within the period prescribed become final, and the case will

be regularly closed.' (IV.. L. D. 49.)

"No appeal was taken for the Northern Pacific Co. from

the Commissioner's rejection of tlie Perham map.
-:<- * * * * * * * # *

"In the case of the United States V. Marshall Milling Co.,

121) Up &f , at page oS7, Mr. Justice Miller, in delivering the

opiniqn,,said:
,

"'They acquiesced in the proceedings, and made no

effort to set aside the patent, or to correct .any injustice

which had .been done them in the proceedings upon which

the patent .had been issued, while the other parties had

full- and undisputed possession of the land.

"-'It .may. be said that they could not help themselves,

and that this silence and inaction on their part did not

imply acquiescence. But they had the right to appeal to

the Commissioner of the General Land Office from the

order of the register and receiver dismissing their appli-

cation. This was not done, and it never has been done.

* * * *

" 'All the errors and irregularities which occur in the

process of entering and procuring title to the public lands
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of the United States ought to be corrected within the

land department, which includes the authority vested in

the Secretary of the Interior, so long as there are means

of revising the proceedings and correcting these errors.

A party can not be permitted to remain silent for more

than eight years after he has abandoned a contest, sub-

mitted to the decision of the matter at issue, although it

may have been erroneous, and then come forward in a

court of equity, after the title has passed from the United

States, and seek to correct the errors which may have

occurred during the progress of the proceedings in the land

office.'

"It may be safely said that the Northern Pacific Co.

could not now maintain a suit, in a court of equity,

which depended upon its establishing the validity of the

Perham map; and yet, as between the United States and

that company, the company, and not the United States,

was injured—if any wrong was done by the Commis-

sioner's rejection of the Perham map.

"The Northern Pacific Co. asked approval of the

Perham map, and that lands of the United States along

the lines shown on it be withdrawn. The United States,

by the Commissioner, acting without fraud, rejected the

map and refused the the withdrawal. If any wrong was

done it was by the United States, and against the company.

The company might have complained, but did not; but the

Courts were at all times closed against the United States,

for it had no wrong to redress.**********
"(e) Nearly all of the railroad land grants provide that

there shall be a withdrawal of lands, when a map of gen-
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eral route is filed; but the Northern Pacific's Act does not.

The words of Section 6, 'and the odd sections of laud

hereby granted shall not be liable to sale, or entry or pre-

emption,' relied upon as operating a withdrawal, arc words

of c.rclii.sion from sale, entry and pre-emption; and are not

equivalent to a statutory withdrawal from market.

"In the case of Kan. Pac. Go. v. Dwvmeyer, 113 U. $.,

()2
(
J-C)'i'i, the decision depended upou whether the land in

suit was withdrawn from homestead entry by a railroad

grant, which provided a withdrawal of lands, upon general

route designation, from 'sale' only. It was held (at p. 638);

" 'This act declared that the lands along the entire line,

so far as the same may be designated, shall be reserved

from "sale" by order of the Secretary of the Interior. The

lands, therefore, were to be reserved from sale only, and

not from pre-emption or homestead claims.'

"An analysis of the act of 1<S(>4, considered in view of

the Joint Resolution of 1870, makes it evident, beyond

the plain meaning of the words employed, that Congress

did not intend that any lands should be reserved from

such subsequent grant as it might see fit to make, prior

to definite location of the Northern Pacific grant.**********
"All lands 'granted' prior to definite location are

excepted—and it is provided that the company shall have

other lands in lieu of those 'granted.' Section 6 provides

that the lands shall not be subject to 'sale, or entry or pre-

emption'; but does not exclude them from subsequent

yrgnt. * * * *

"Notwithstanding the lands were withdrawn upon gen-

eral route designation from pre-emption, entry and sale,
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persons who settled upon sncli lands prior to the with-

drawal might thereafter preempt, 6tfter and -purchase

the same—but the withdraw;! 1 reserved the land from

liability to pre-emption, entry or sale, founded upon settle-

ment initiated after withdrawal. And so it was the act

provided that the company should have other lands for

such as were pre-empted, entered or sold prior to definite

location. But the act also provided that the company

should take other lands for such as were 'granted' or

'reserved' prior to definite location.

"If, upon general route designation, the lauds were with-

drawn from the power of Congress to grant them to, or

reserve them for, another company, then. what did the

act mean by saying that the company shall take other

lands for those granted or rest rped prior to definite loca-

tion?"

V.

It is alleged in the complaint that at and before the time

the defendant settled upon the said tract of land and made

claim thereto and made application to purchase the same,

he, the said defendant, well knew that the said lands were

within the limits of the grant of lands in place to said

Dalles Military Road Co. and of the claim of its successors

and assigns to said grant, and that if it had been true that

the lands were a part of the grant niade to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. and were not granted to the State of

Oregon, the complainant being a bona fide purchaser of

said lands would have had a preference right to apply 'for

purchase of lands so patented to the defendant under the

provisions of section 5 of the Act of Congress entitled "An

Act to provide for the adjustment of land grants made by
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Congress .to..aid in the construction ,of railroads,and for

the forfeiture of unearned lands, and.for other purposes,"

approved March 3, 18$Z, bnt that, complainant received, no

notice and had no notice or knowledge of, the .application

of,the .said defendant to purchase, said land,, and,in^.oppor-

tunity. to;apply, to.purchase the, ;same .under the provisions

of said section 5, or otherwise.

iThe SupreaDarte Gouris of the United Statesman thevcase.of
'

the United 'States v. :The Dalle*: Military -Road rGty el;, ah,

1481 ,U..Sii 49; held that the purchasers from.said; company

were bona^fidc purchasers, and that.their, -.title was.tyeyond

challenge., . rTliat suit was instituted to annul, the. grants of

lands made to the- State of Oregon and: set rasidfi, patents

which;Juid.been executed, to the* grantees of /the: State.

. IChdsibeen decided in several cases; by :
tlm Commissioner

ofithe General Laud Office that the/complainant, the.East-

erh Oregon Land 'Co;; being a boua.ftde purchaser of the

wagon-road grant, was entitled to a 'pfiefereneeorighft to

puruhasa lands withim the. limits of the grant, to ther^tate

of Oregon and the overlapping limits of thp two grants

under the provisions of section 5 of inexact of ,March. 3,

1887.

i It - iiollows that . the : cqmpany was entitled . to notice, of

the application of the defendant to 'purchase the lan,d[in

question and to have an opportunity, to,make application

to purchase the land under, said act. Rut the proceedings

by which the defendant obtained his patent were r./; parte

and the complainant having no-notice of th*' same had, no

Opportunity to make sne-h an. 'application.

To 'avoid ' this concision, lth*H defendant attempts to

shoW'that the;icuiii|)!ai?iaii1 was mil a bona tide purchjaser
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of the land in question, not by denying the allegation that

the complainant had no actual or constructive notice that

the lands were claimed by the Northern Pacific Railroad

Co. or by the United States to be within its grant and

excepted from the grant to the State, but by alleging that

the complainant is chargeable with constructive notice of

the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Co. and the

construction placed upon said grant to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. and the proceedings of the Northern

Pacific Railroad Co. thereunder and the construction later

placed by the Department of the Interior upon the act.

Such constructive notice, if any, as the law imputed to

the complainant of the grant to the Northern Pacific Rail-

road Co. did not prevent the complainant from being a

bona fide purchaser within the meaning of the act of March

3, 1887. This question was decided by Judge Ross, in the

case of the United States v. Southern Pacific Ry. Co., in

his opinion, filed July 27, 1896.

In that case Judge Ross, in announcing the decision of

the court, said:

"It is suggested on the part of the complainant that the

defendant Wright cannot be regarded as a purchaser in

good faith, because he took with notice of the grant to the

railroad compan}r and subject to all of its terms and pro-

visions. It is undoubtedly true that he did take with notice

of that grant, and subject to all of its terms and conditions.

He must be held to have known, for example, that the

officers of the Land Department charged with the dnty of

executing the provisions of that grant were not empowered

to issue thereunder any evidence of title to any land that

at the time of the taking effect of the grant had been other-
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wise disposed of by the Government, or the disposition

of which had been committed to others than the officers

of that Department. In all such cases in which there is a

total lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, any pre-

tended conveyance thereof by the officers of the Land

Department, even if in the form of a patent, would be

void in the hands of whomsoever it should come. But

where, as in the case at bar, jurisdiction over the subject

matter was committed to the officers of the Land Depart-

ment, and they were charged with the duty of determining

the question whether the particular land was or was not

covered by the grant to the railroad company, such a deci-

sion culminating in the issuance of a patent passes title to

the property and is subject only to annulment on a direct

attack and for sufficient reasons. (United States v. Winona

& St. Paul Bailroad Co., 15 C. C. A., p. 96, and cases there

cited.) Under well-settled principles of equity, a hona fide

purchaser under such a patent prior to any attempt to

annul it would be protected. (United States v. Winona &

St. Paul Bailroad Co., supra; United States v. California

etc., Land Co., 148 U. S. 40-45.)

"Moreover, the act itself in relation to the adjustment of

land grants made by Congress to aid in the construction

of railroads and for the forfeiture of unearned lands, under

which the present suit was instituted, declares, in effect,

in its fourth section, that those citizens of the United

States, or persons who have declared their intention to

become such citizens, who have purchased from a grantee

company in the honest belief that they were thereby

acquiring title, are purchasers in good faith within the

meaning of the act; for the provision is that as to all such
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landsl as- are- here involved 'whk-n have been sold by -the

grantee company to citizens of the United- states, or to

persons who have declared their intention to become such

citizens, the- -person or persons so purokaawtig in -good- faith,

his heirs or assigns, shall 1 be entitled to the lands so. pur-

chased,' etc. In the legislation in question, Congress^- being-

aware of the fact that public1 lands had been erroneously

certified and patented to various railroad and other- com-

panies; provided to tbe bringing of appropriate suits to

annul 'such certificates and patents, at, the -same time

affording protection to such 1 citizens of the -United -States

and- persons who have declared their intention to become

such, their heirs and assigns,- as have purchased from such

grantee companies in- good- faith; that is to say, in the hon-

est' belief that by such purchase they were obtaining title."

In the United states v. Des Moines Nav. &- Ky. Co. et al.,

142 "U. S. 510, Congress had granted to the Territory of

Iowa to aid in the improvement of the Des Moines river

alternate sections of public land ' lying within a five-mile

strip on each' side of ^aid river, and the state accepted the

grant. There was question as to whether the grant

extended to the state boundaries or only to Eacoon Fork,

the head of 'the improvement: The state entered into an

agreement with1 the defendant, the Des Moines Nav> & Ey.

CO., to make the contemplated improvement, and after- the

work was commenced,' the State, by an act of 'the- legisla-

ture,- offered to- convey to the company certain lands

including some above -Eacoon Pork in settlement of 'the

contract. The offer was accepted by the defendantandcar-

ried'out. Subsequently the act was construed and' judi-

cially declared ;

to- extend no further than Racoon Fork,- If
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the theory of the defendant is correct, the company had

constructive notice that the grant extended only to

Eacoon Fork. Subsequently, Congress, by joint resolu-

tion of March 6, 1861, relinquished to the State all lands

above Eacoon Fork which had been improperly certified

as a part of such grant, "and," in the language of the stat-

ute, "which is now held by bona fide purchasers under the

State of Iowa." It was held that the company defendant,

the Des Moines Nav. & By. Co., was a bona fide purchaser

within the meaning of the resolution, and that the lands

in question passed eo ifistmite to the state to the extent of

the State's grant to the defendant and immediately vested

in the defendant. Mr. Justice Brewer, in announcing the

opinion of the court, said

:

"Was the Navigation Company a bona fide purchaser

under the state? Of course it was. The other defendants

who held under it also were. It is claimed by the appel-

lants that the bona fide purchasers referred to were cer-

tain parties who had bought portions of these lands from

the State of Iowa, paying cash therefor, for the purpose of

making improvements, and who had taken possession

thereof and were then occupying the same. But the term

bona fide purchasers has a well-settled meaning in law. It

does not require settlement or occupation. Any one is a

. bona fide purchaser who buys in good faith and pays

value."

In United States v. Winona & St. P. E. E. Co., 67 Fed.

948, it was held that "in a suit in equity brought by the

United States under the act of March 3, 1887 (24 Stat. 556),

to cancel such certificates (certificates certifying lands to

the State of Minnesota under a railroad grant) and to
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restore the title of the land to the United States, the equi-

ties of bona fide purchasers who hold the legal title under

the certificates are superior to those of the United States

and constitute a good defense to the suit"; that "such

purchasers who hold the legal title are indispensable par-

ties to a suit in equity to annul that title"; and it was held

that the purchasers of lands so certified were bona fide

purchasers.

See also United States v. Union Pacific By. Co., 69

Fed. 974.

Union Pacific By. Co. v. United States, 69 Fed. 975.

United States v. C. & O. Land Co., 148 U. S. 41.

United States v. Wenz, 34 Fed. 154.

United States v. Burlington & M. B, Co., 98 U. S. 334-

342.

In this last-mentioned ease, Mr. Justice Field, in deliv-

ering the opinion of the court, declared that the Govern-

ment "certainly could not insist upon a cancellation of the

patents so as to affect innocent purchasers under the pat-

entees."

Under these authorities the complainant and its imme-

diate grantors must be held to have been bona fide pur-

chasers of the lands in question and as such to have been

entitled to a preference right to purchase the lands under

Section 5 of the act of March 3, 1887, and to have been

entitled to notice of the application of the defendant to

purchase the lands and to have an opportunity to apply

to purchase the same under said act.

Dolph, Nixon & Dolph,

and James K. Kelly,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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FOR THE

NINTH CIRCUIT.

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,
Appellant:

,

VS.

E. I. Messinger,

Appellee,

AND

The Eastern Oregon Land Company,
Appellant,

vs.

John D. Wilcox,

Appellee.

These are appeals from decrees of the Circuit Court of the

United States for the District of Oregon, of date of January

5. 1897, (Transcript of Record, p. 77,) which decrees dis-

missed complainant's bills. The suits in the Circuit Court

were to procure a cancellation of two United States patents,

—one to appellee Messinger and one to appellee Wilcox,

—

for certain lands described in the bills.



It is alleged in both bills of complaint that the lands em-

braced in these patents lie within the limits of the lands

granted to the State of Oregon by act of Congress of Feb-

ruary 25, 1867, for the construction of a wagon road from

Dalles City, on the Columbia River, to a point on Snake

River, opposite Fort Boise, in Idaho Territory.

That on October 20th, 1868, the legislature of the State of

Oregon granted to the Dalles Military Road Company all

lands, rights of way, rights and privileges pledged to the

State of Oregon by said act of Congress, and designated the

Dalles Military Road Company as the company to receive

said grant. That prior to June 23rd, 1869, the Dalles Mili-

tary Road Company surveyed and definitely located the line

of its wagon road between the points and upon the route

designated in said act of Congress and in said act of the leg-

islative assembly of the State of Oregon, and completed

said road, and the same was approved and accepted by the

governor of the State of Oregon.

That The Dalles Military Road Company, on the 31st

day of May, 1876, sold said land grant to Edward Martin,

and that the complainant, the Eastern Oregon Land Com-

pany, by mesne conveyances became the purchaser of

said land grant from Edward Martin.

These facts are all admitted in the answers. But it is al-

leged by appellee that at the time of the passage of the act

of Congress on the 25th day of February, 1867, the lands in

dispute were not public lands subject to grant by Congress,

inasmuch as they had prior to that time, to-wit, on the 2nd

day of July, 1864, been granted to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company, and that therefore as to these lands The

Dalles Military Road Company took nothing by the act of



Congress of February 25th, 1867, or act of the Legislative

Assembly of the State of Oregon of October 20th, 1868.

It is admitted by the complainant that in the case of the

Company against Messinger the land in controversy is sit-

uated within twenty miles of the line of the Northern Pacific

Company's railroad as designated on the map of the general

route of said road, riled by said company August 13th, 1870;

and that in the case against Wilcox the land is situated

more than twenty miles and less than forty miles from said

line. .

After the passage of the act of Congress of September 29,

1890. entitled, "An act to forfeit certain lands heretofore

granted for the purpose of aiding in the construction of rail-

roads and other purposes," a large body of land, including

the land in dispute, was thrown open to settlement, and on

the 28th day of September, 1894, the United States sold to

John D. Wilcox the land claimed by him, and on that day ex-

ecuted to him a patent therefor, and on the . . . day of

, 1894, sold to E. T. Messenger the land claimed

by him and executed to him a patent for the same.

The Circuit Court held that the lands in controversy, be-

ing within forty miles of the line of the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company's road, as shown upon its map of general

route, were not public lands subject to grant by Congress

February 25, 1867, ancl tnat consequently neither the State

of Oregon nor The Dalles Military Road Company took any

title to or interest in said lands by said act, ancl dismissed

complainant's bills. From such holding these appeals are

taken.



The legislation referred to in the bill and neccessay to be

considered in this case is as follows:

Congress passed and the President approved, on July 2,

1864. an act entitled, "An Act granting lands to aid in the

construction of a railroad and telegraph line from Lake Su-

perior to Puget Sound, on the Pacific Coast, by the North-

ern route." (13 U. S. Statutes, p. 365).

The portions of said act material to be considered herein

are:

Sec. 3. And be it further enacted: that there be and

hereby is granted to the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany, its successors and assigns, for the purpose of aiding in

the construction of said railroad and telegraph line to the

Pacific Coast, and to secure the safe and speedy transporta-

tion of the mails, troops, munitions of war and public stores,

over the route of said line of railway, every alternate section

of public lands, not mineral, designated by odd numbers, to

the amount of twenty alternate sections per mile, on each

side of said railroad line as said company may adopt,through

the territories of the United States,a.nd ten alternate sec-

tions of land per mile, on each side of said railroad whenever

it passes through any State,and whenever on the line there-

of, the United States have full title, not reserved, sold,

granted, or otherwise appropriated, and free from pre-emp-

tions or otherwise claims or rights, at the time the line of

said road is definitely fixed and a plat thereof filed in the

office of the Commissioner of the General Land Office: And

whenever prior to said time, any of said sections, or parts

of sections, shall have been granted, sold, reserved, occu-

pied by homestead settlers or pre-empted or otherwise dis-

posed of, other lands shall be selected by said company in



lieu thereof, under the direction of the Secretary of the Inte-

rior, in alternate sections and designated by odd numbers,

not more than ten miles beyond the limits of said alternate

sections.

Provided. That if said route shall be found upon the line of

any other railroad route to aid in the construction of which

lands have been heretofore granted by the United States,

as far as the routes are upon the same general line, the

amount of land heretofore granted shall be deducted from

the amount granted by this act. Provided, further. That

the railroad company receiving the previous grant of land

may assign their interest to said "Northern Pacific Railroad

Company," or may consolidate, confederate, and associate

with said company upon the terms named in the first section

of this act: Provided, further. That all mineral lands be,

and the same are hereby, excluded from the operations of

this act, and in lieu thereof a like quantity of unoccupied and

unappropriated agricultural lands in odd numbered sections,

nearest to the line of said road may be selected as above pro-

vided: And provided further. That the word 'mineral."

when it occurs in this act, shall not be held to include iron or

coal: And provided further, That no money shall be drawn

from the treasury of the United States to aid in the construc-

tion of the said Northern Pacific Railroad."

Sec. 4. And be it further enacted: That whenever said

Northern Pacific Railroad Company shall have twenty-five

consecutive miles of any portion of said railroad and tele-

graph line ready for the service contemplated, the President

of the United States shall appoint three commissioners to

examine the same, and if it shall appear that twenty-five con-

secutive miles of said road and telegraph line have been com-

pleted in a good, substantial and workmanlike manner, as in
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all other respects required by this act, the commissioners

shall so report to the President of the United States, and

patents of lands, as aforesaid, shall be issued to said company

confirming to said company the right and tit leojsaid lands,

situated opposite to, and coterminus with said completed

section of said road, and from time to time, whenever twen-

ty-five additional, consecutive miles shall have been con-

structed, completed and in readiness as aforesaid, and ver-

ified by said commissioners to the President of the United

States, then patents shall be issued to said company convey-

ing the additional sections of land as aforesaid, and so on as

fast as every twenty-five miles of road is completed as afore-

said; provided, That not more than ten sections of land per

mile, as said road shall be completed, shall be conveyed to

said company for all that part of said railroad lying east of

the western boundary of the State of Minnesota until the

whole of said railroad shall be finished and in good running

order as a first class railroad from the place of beginning on

Lake Superior to the western boundary of Minnesota.

Sec. 6. And be it further enacted, That the President of

the United States shall cause the lands to be surveyed for

forty miles in width on both sides of the entire line of said

road, after the general route shall be fixed, and as fast as may

be required by the construction of said railroad
;

(b) and the

odd sections of land hereby granted shall not be liable to

sale or entry, or pre-emption before or after they are sur-

veyed, except by said company, as provided by this act; but

the provisions of the act of September, 1841, granting pre-

emption rights, and the acts amendatory thereof, and of the

act entitled "An act to secure homesteads to actual settlers

on the public domain," approved May 20, 1862, shall be, and



the same are hereby extended to all oilier lands on the

line of said road, when surveyed, excepting those hereby

granted to said company. And the reserved alternate

sections shall not be sold by the Government at a price less

than two dollars and fifty centsper acre when offeredfor

sale.

Sec. 8. And be it further enacted, That each and every

grant, right and privilege herein, are so made and given to

and accepted by, said Northern Pacific Railroad Companv,

upon and subject to the following conditions, namely: That

the said company shall commence the work on said road

within two years from the approval of this act by the Presi-

dent, and shall complete not less than fifty miles per year

after the second year, and shall construct, equip, furnish and

complete the whole road by the fourth day of July, Anno

Domini 1876.

Sec. 9. And be it further enacted that the United States

make the several conditioned grants herein, and that the

said Northern Pacific Railroad Company accept the same

upon the further condition, that if the said company make

any breach of the conditions hereof and allow the same to

continue for upwards of one year, then in such case, at any

time thereafter, the United States by its Congress, may do

any and all acts and things which may be needful and neces-

sary to insure a speedy completion of said road.

On April 10. 1869, the following joint resolution was

adopted. (16 Stat. U. S., p. 57):
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"Be it resolved by the Senate and House of Representa-

tives of the United States of America in Congress assem-

bled, that the Northern Pacific Railroad Company be and

hereby is authorized to extend its branch line from a point

at or near Portland, Oregon, to some suitable point on Pu-

get Sound to be determined by said company, and also to

connect the same with its main line west of the Cascade

Mountains, in the Territory of Washington; said extension

being subject to all the conditions and provisions; and said

Company in respect thereto, being entitled to all the rights

and privileges conferred by the act incorporating said com-

pany, and all acts additional or amendatory thereof, provided

that said company shall not be entitled to any subsidy in

money, bonds or additional lands of the United States, in re-

spect to such extension of its branch line as aforesaid, except

such lands as may be included in the right of way on the line

of such extension, as it may be located; and provided fur-

ther that at least twenty-five miles of said extension shall be

constructed before the 26. day of July, 1871, and forty miles

per year thereafter until the whole of said extension shall be

completed."

On May 31, 1870, Congress adopted the following joint

resolution. (16 U. S. Stat., p.378):

"Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives

of the United States of America in Congress assembled, that

the Northern Pacific Railroad Company be and hereby is

authorized to issue its bonds to aid in the construction and

equipment of its road, and to secure the same by mortgage

on the property and rights of property of all kinds and de-
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scriptions, real, personal and mixed, including- its franchises

as a corporation; and as proof and notice of its legal exe-

cution and effectual delivery, said mortgage shall be tiled and

recorded in the office of the Secretary of the Interior; also

to locate and construct under the supervisions and with the

privileges, grants and duties provided for in this act of incor-

poration, its main road to some point on Puget Sound, via

the valley of the Columbia River, with the right to locate and

construct its branch from some convenient point on its main

trunk line across the Cascade Mountains to Puget Sound;

and in the event of there not being in any State or Terri-

tory in which said main line or branch may be located, at the

time of the final location thereof, the amount of lands per

mile granted by Congress to said company, within the limits

prescribed by its charter, then said company shall be en-

titled under the directions of the Secretary of the Interior

to receive so many sections of land belonging to the United

States, and designated by odd numbers in such State or Ter-

ritory, within ten miles on each side of said road, beyond the

limits prescribed in said charter as will make up such defi-

ciency on said main line or branch except mineral, and other

lands as excepted in the charter of said company of 1864, to

the amount of the lands that have been granted, sold, re-

served, occupied by homestead settlers, pre-empted or other-

vise disposed of, subsequent to the passage of the act of Julv

2, 1864, and that twenty-five miles of said main line between

its western terminus and the City of Portland, in the State

of Oregon, shall be completed by the 1st day of January,

A. D. 1872. and forty miles of the remaining portion thereof

each year thereafter until the whole shall be completed be-

tween said points, etc."
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On February 25, 1867, Congress passed and the President

approved "An Act granting lands to the State of Oregon

to aid in the construction of a military wagon road from

Dalles City, on the Columbia River, to Fort Boise, on the

Snake River."

Section 1 of said act is as follows:

"That there be and hereby is granted to the State of Ore-

gon, to aid in the construction of a military wagon road from

Dalles City, on the Columbia River, by way of Camp Wat-

son, Canyon City, and Mormon or Humboldt Basin, to a

point on Snake River opposite Fort Boise, in Idaho Terri-

tory, alternate sections of public lands designated by odd

numbers to the extent of three sections in width on each side

of said road; provided. That the lands hereby granted shall

be exclusively applied to the construction of said road and

to no other purpose, and shall be disposed of only as the

work progresses. And provided further. That any and all

lands heretofore reserved to the United States or otherwise

appropriated by act of Congress or other competent author-

ity, be and the same are hereby reserved from the operation

of this act, except so far as it may be necessary to locate the

route of said road through the same in which case the right

of way to the width of one hundred feet is granted. And

provided further, That the grant hereby made shall not em-

brace any mineral lands of the United States."

On September 29, 1890, Congress passed and the Presi-

dent approved an act entitled "An x\ct to forfeit certain

lands heretofore granted for the purpose of aiding in the con-

struction of railroads, and for other purposes." (26 U. S.

Statutes, p. 496):
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The lollowing sections of said act are material in this

case:

Sec. i. Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Repre-

sentatives of the United States of America, in Congress as-

sembled, That there is hereby forfeited to the United States,

and the United States hereby resumes the title thereto,SL\\

lands heretofore granted to any State or to any corporation

to aid in the construction of a railroad opposite to and co-

terminus with the portion of any railroad not now com-

pleted and in operation, for the construction or benefit of

which such lands were granted; and all such lands are de-

clared to be a part of the public domain; Provided, That

this act shall not be construed as forfeiting the rights of way

or station grounds of any railroad company heretofore gran-

ted.

Sec. 5. That if it shall be found that any lands heretofore

granted to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company and so

resumed by the United States and restored to the public do-

main lie north of the line known as the "Harrison line," be-

ing a line drawn from Wallula, Washington, easterly to the

southeast corner of the northeast one-fourth of the south-

east quarter of section twenty-seven (27), in township seven

(7) north, of range thirty-seven (37) east of the Willamette

Meridian, all persons who had acquired in good faith the

title of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company to any por-

tion of said lands prior to July 1, 1885, or who at said date

were in possession of any portion of said lands, or had im-

proved the same, claiming the same under written contract

with said company, executed in good faith, or their heirs or

assigns, as the case may be, shall be entitled to purchase the

lands so acquired, possessed, or improved, from the United

States, at any time prior to the expiration of one year after

it shall be finally determined that such lands are restored to
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the public domain by the provisions of this act, at the rate of

two dollars and fifty cents per acre, and to receive patents

therefor upon proof before the proper land office of the fact

of such acquisition, possession, or improvement, and pay-

ment therefor, without limitation as to quantity: Provided,

That the rights of way and riparian rights heretofore at-

tempted to be conveyed to the City of Portland, in the State

of Oregon, by the Northern Pacific Railroad Company and

the Central Trust Company of New York, by deed of convey-

ance dated August 8, 1885, and which are described as fol-

lows: A strip of land fifty feet in width, being twenty-five

feet on each side of the center line of a water-pipe line, as the

same is staked out and located, or as it shall be hereafter

finally located according to the provisions of an act of the

Legislative Assembly of the State of Oregon, approved

November 25, 1885, providing for the means to supply the

City of Portland with an abundance of good, pure and

wholesome water over and across the following described

tracts of land: Sections nineteen (19) and thirty-one (31),

in township one (1) south, of range six (6) east; sections

twenty-five (25), thirty-one (31), thirty-three (33) and thirty-

five (35), in township one (1) south, of range five (5) east;

sections three (3) and five (5), in township two (2) south, of

range five east; section one (1), in township two (2) south,

of range four (4) east ; sections twenty-three (23), twenty-

five (25) and thirty-five (35), in township one (1) south, of

range four (4) east, of the Willamette Meridian, in the State

of Oregon, forfeited by this act are hereby confirmed unto

the said City of Portland, in the State of Oregon, its succes-

sors and assigns forever, with the right to enter on the here-

inbefore described strip of land, over and across the above

described sections, for the purpose of constructing, main-

taining and repairing a water-pipe line aforesaid.
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Sec. 6. That no lands declaredforfeited to the United

States by this act shall by reason of such forfeiture inure

to the benefit of any state or corporation to which lands

may hare been granted by Congress, except as herein

otherwise provided; nor shall this act be construed to en-

large the area of land originally covered by any such grant,

or to confer any right upon any State, corporation or per-

son to lands which were excepted from such grant. Nor

shall the moiety of the lands granted to any railroad com-

pany on account of a main and a branch line appertaining to

an uncompleted road,and hereby forfeited,within the conflict-

ing limits of the grants for such main and branch lines, when

but one of such lines has been completed, inure by virtue of

the forfeiture hereby declared, to the benefit of the completed

line.

The Northern Pacific Railroad Company filed two maps

of its road relating to these lands.

First—The map of March 6, 1865: 'The Perham map,

Exhibit "B." The letter of Josiah Perham, president of the

Northern Pacific Railroad Company accompanying this

map, together with the letter from the Secretary of the In-

terior, transmitting the same to the Commisioner of the

General Land Office, and the Commissioner's reply, are to be

found on pp. 64 to 72, Transcript of Record herein.

Second—The map of August 13, 1870, pleaded in com-

plainant's bill. pp. 22 and 23, Abstract Record.
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ARGUMENT.

It is urged in the brief filed by appellant in this case that

appellant in any view of the matter, was entitled to "no-

tice" under the provisions of Section 5 of the act of Con-

gress, entitled "An Act to provide for the adjustment of

land grants made by Congress to aid in the construction of

railroads,and for the forfeiture of unearned lands, and for

other purposes," approved March 3d, 1887.

But this position is not correct. That was a piece of leg-

islation referring exclusively to land grants to aid in the con-

struction of railroads. It is so liminted in the title. Sec-

tions one (1) and two (2) of the act are as follows:

"Section 1. That the Secretary of the Interior be and is

hereby authorized and directed to immediately adjust in ac-

cordance with the decisions of the Supreme Court each of

the railroadlandgrantsma.de. by Congress to aid in the con-

struction of railroads, and heretofore unadjusted.

"Section 2. That if it shall appear upon completion of

such adjustments respectively, or sooner, that lands have

been from any cause heretofore erroneously certified or pat-

ented by the United States to or for the use or benefit of any

company claiming by, through, or under grant from the

United States, to aid in the construction of a railroad

it shall be the duty of the Secretary, &c."

Section five of this act, relied upon by appellant, provides

for innocent purchasers from the railroad company. But

there are no innocent purchasers from any railroad com-

pany in this case.

It is the uniform holding in the Department of Justice
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that this act applies only to railroad land grants. In the

Department of the Interior also this construction of the act

obtains.

In the contest of Rums II. King vs. The Eastern Oregon

Land Company, the Department of the Interior made the

following decision December 26th, 1896:

Department of the Interior,

Washington, D. C, December 26, 1896.

Rufus H. King,

vs.

The Eastern Oregon Land Company.

Railroad Land x\ct of March 3, 1887.

The Commissioner of the General Land Office:

Sir—The land in this controversy is the southeast quarter

of section 27, township 2 south, of range 16 east, The Dalles

Land District, Oregon, and is within the limits of that por-

tion of the grant made by the act of July 2, 1864, (13 Stat.,

356,) to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company, which was

forfeited by act of September 29, 1890, (26 Stat., 496,) as

well as within the limits of the grant made by the act of

February 25, 1867, (14 Stat., 409,) to aid in the construction

of The Dalles Military Road.

The grant to the Northern Pacific Road being prior, de-

feated the grant to The Dalles Road, to the extent of the

overlap, and your office included the unpatented lands in

said limits in the restoration of the forfeited lands of the

Northern Pacific Railroad. Under this restoration Rufus

H. King made homestead entry No. 4922 of said land, on

October 1, 1893, and made proof on the day appointed there-
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for. The Eastern Oregon Land Company tiled a protest

against the admission of such proof, claiming a prior right,

as a purchaser from The Dalles Military Road Company, and

by reason thereof, the preference right to purchase said land,

under the act of March 3, 1887, (24 Stat., 556).

The entryman made proof, and evidence was submitted

by the protes.tant in support of its claim. On July 20th,

1895, the local office decided in favor of the entryman.

The Company appealed. Your office on April 23, 1896,

reversed the decision of the local officers and sustained the

company's protest.

The entryman appeals to the Department. The question

arises: Does the act of Congress of March 3, 1887, supra,

entitled, "An Act to provide for the adjustment of land

grants made by Congress to aid in the construction of rail-

roads, and for the forfeiture of unearned land, and for other

purposes," extend to lands granted to the State of Oregon,

to aid in the construction of wagon-roads in said State?

It is a rule of construction that remedial statutes are to be

liberally constructed so as to suppress the mischief and ad-

vance the remedy. But this rule is only applicable when the

words of the statute will admit of its application.

When they are plain and clearly define its scope and limit,

construction cannot extend it. "If we depart from the plain

and obvious meaning, we do not in truth construe the act,

but alter it. We supply a defect which the legislature could

easily have supplied, and are making the law, not interprea-

ing it."

Southerland on Statutory Construction, p. 430,. p. 556.

The statute under consideration is plain, precise and un-
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ambiguous, and, by its terms, only applies to grants of land

to railroads.

It has recently been held by the Department that said act

"relates specifically to the adjustment of railroad grants,"

and that it does not apply to a suit instituted for the recov-

ery of title to lands certified on account of a wagon road

grant in the State of Oregon.

California and Oregon Land Company, 22 L. D., 170.

I am therefore of the opinion that the decision of the reg-

ister and receiver, recommending that King's entry be ap-

proved for patent and the company's protest dismissed,

should be affirmed.

Your office decision is reversed, and the papers are here-

with returned.

Very respectfully,

DAVID R. FRANCIS,

Secretary.

See also Secretary's Decisions in

16 Land Decisions, pp. 459-461.

17 Land Decisions, pp. 432-437.

LATERAL LIMITS OF THE GRANT.

It is claimed in counsel's brief that the grant to the Nor-
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thern Pacific Railroad Company in no event could exceed

twenty miles from the line of the road in a State; and this

without regard to whether the line of the road was in the

State or in an adjoining Territory. This is not the language

of the act, and is not the construction put upon it by the

Land Department or the Courts.

The act of July 2nd, 1864, reads, "to the amount of twen-

ty alternate sections per mile on each side of said railroad line

as said Company may adopt through the Territories of the

United States, and ten alternate sections of land per mile on

each side of said railroad wherever it passes through any

State."

In the case of Denny vs. Dodson, 32 Federal Rep., p. 910,

Judge Deady, having this same grant to the Northern Paci-

fic Railroad before him for consideration, says:

"But independently of this consideration, there does not

appear to be any serious question as to the lateral extent of

the grant. The act of Congress makes that depend upon

the location of the road, whether in a Territory or in a

State. If in the former, the grant has twice the extent that

it has when located in the latter. It is the place of location

which determines this matter. The nearness of the line to

any other Territory or State has nothing to do with it.

Such an understanding has been the uniform ruling of the

Department and that mode of determining the lateral ex-

tent of the grant is the only practicable one."

In construing grants by the Government of this nature

the rule is settled that as between the Government and the

grantee company the construction will be against the gran-

tee. In R. R. Co. vs. Litchfield, 23 How., 66, the Supreme

Court says:
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"All grants of this description are strictly construed

against the grantee. Nothing passes but what is conveyed

in clear and explicit language; and as the rights here claim-

ed are derived entirely from the act of Congress, the dona-

tion stands upon the same footing of a grant by the public

to a private company, the terms of which must be plainly

expressed in the statute, and if not thus expressed they

cannot be implied."

This language is quoted and approved in Leavenworth

R. R. Co. vs. U. S., 92 U. S., 733, and the Court there

adds:

"And if a right be asserted against the Government it

must be so clearly defined that there can be no question of

the purpose of Congress to confer it. In other words, what

is not given expressly or by necessary implication is with-

held."

PUBLIC LANDS.

The grant to the State of Oregon of February 25, 1867,

is "alternate sections of public land."

It is clear that if the lands, title to which is involved in

this controversy, were not "public lands" on February 25,

1867, they did not pass to the State under the act.

The Supreme Court of the United States has in every

case where the question was presented to it as to what were

"Public lands" within the meaning of railroad land grant

acts, decided that this term did not include lands reserved



22

for any purpose or in any manner or to which a claim of any

kind whatever had attached.

In Wilcox vs. Jackson, 13 Peters, 498, 513, the Court

said:

"We go further and say that whenever a tract of land

shall have been once legally appropriated to any purpose

from that moment the land thus appropriated becomes sev-

ered from the mass of public lands, and that no subsequent

law, proclamation or sale would be construed to embrace or

operate upon it, although no reservation was made of

it."

In Leavenworth R. R. Co. vs. United States, 92 U. S.,

733, the Supreme Court quotes this portion of the opinion

in Wilcox vs. Jackson, and adds:

"It may be said that it was not necessary for the Court

in deciding the case to pass upon this question, but, how-

ever this may be, the principle asserted is sound and reas-

onable, and we adopt it as a rule of construction.
*****

"Every tract set apart for some special use is reserved to the

Government, to enable it to enforce that use. And there

is no difference in this respect whether it be appropriated for

Indian occupancy or for other purposes. There is an equal

obligation resting on the Government to see that neither

class of reservations is deviated from the uses to which it is

assigned."

In Newhall vs. Sanger, 92 U. S., 761, the question again

came up and the Court said:

"The subject of grants of land to aid in constructing works

of internal improvement was fully considered at the present
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term, in Leavenworth, Lawrence & Galveston R. R. Co. vs.

U. S., (Ante, 634).

"We held that they attached only to so much of our na-

tional domain as might be sold or otherwise disposed of, and

that they did not embrace tracts reserved by competent

authority for any purpose or in any manner, although no

exception of them was made in the grants themselves. Our

decision confined a grant of every alternate section of

"land" to such whereto the complete title was absolutely

vested in the United States. The acts which govern this

case are more explicit, and leave less room for construction.

The words "public lands" are habitually used in our legis-

lation to describe such as are subject to sale or other dis-

posal under general laws. That they were so employed in

this instance is evident from the fact that to them alone

could, on the location of the road, the order withdrawing

lands from pre-emption, private entry and sale, apply."

In Kansas City Ry. Co., Dunmeyer 113, U. S., 629, the

Court held that a homestead entry having attached previous

to the grant to the railroad company took the lands out of

the grant, although the entryman abandoned his claim."

Mr. Justice Miller, delivering the opinion, said:

"It is argued by the company that, although Miller's

homestead entry had attached to the land, within the mean-

ing of the excepting clause of the grant, before the line of

definite location was filed by it, yet when Miller abandoned

his claim, so that it no longer existed, the exception no

longer operated, and the land reverted to the company

—

that the grant by its inherent force reasserted itself and ex-

tended to or covered the land as though it had never been

within the exception.
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"We are unable to perceive the force of this proposi-

tion."

"No attempt has ever been made to include lands re-

served to the United States, which reservation afterwards

ceased to exist, within the grant, though this road, and

others with grants in similar language, have more than once

passed through military reservations for forts and other pur-

poses which have been given up or abandoned as such res-

ervation, and were of great value. Nor is it understood

that, in any case where lands have been otherwise disposed

of, their reversion to the government brought them within

the grant."

"Of all the words in the English language this word at-

tached was probably the best that could have been used-

It did not mean mere settlement, residence or cultivation

of the land, but it meant a proceeding in the proper land

office by which the inchoate right to the land was initiated.

It meant that by such a proceeding a right of homestead

had fastened to that land which could ripen into perfect

title by future residence and cultivation. With the per-

formance of these conditions the company had nothing to

do. The right of the homestead having attached to the

land, it was excepted out of the grant as much as if in a deed

it had been excluded from the conveyance by metes and

bounds."

Mr. Justice Field dissented in the Leavenworth case ,92
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LT
- S., 7$$, supra, but subsequently in Bardon vs. The Nor-

thern Pacific Railroad Company, 145 U. S., 535, he wrote

the opinion of the Court, and says:

"Three justices, of whom the writer of this opinion was

one, dissented from the majority of the Court in the Leaven-

worth case; but the decision has been uniformly adhered to

since its announcement, and this writer, after a much larger

experience in the consideration of public land grants since

that time, now readily concedes that the rule of construction

adopted, that, in the absence of any express provision indi-

cating otherwise, a grant of public lands only applies to

lands which are at the time free from existing claims, is bet-

ter and safer, both to the Government and to private parties,

than the rule which would pass the property subject to the

liens and claims of others. The latter construction would

open a wide field of litigation between the grantees and third

parties."

"Land to which any claim or right of others has attached

does not fall within the designation of public land."

R. R. Co. vs. Whitney, 132 U. S., 357.

R. R. Co. vs. Ailing, 99 U. S., 463.

Van Wvck vs. Knevals, 106 U. S., 360.

Desert Salt Co. vs. Tarpey, 142 U. S., 241.

N. P. R. R. Co. vs. Sanders, 49 Fed. Rep., 132-3.

U. S. vs. N. P. R. R. Co.. 41 Fed. Rep., 845-

Denny vs. Dodson, 32 Fed. Rep., 903.
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Upon this point we particularly call the Court's attention

to the language of the Supreme Court in the case of the

United States vs. Northern Pacific Railroad Company, 152

U. S., 284.

In that case the Court had this Northern Pacific grant

before it—the grant by the joint resolution of May 31, 1870,

insofar as the same affected lands between Portland and

Tacoma.

The lands in dispute in that case had been granted to

the Oregon Central Railroad Co., May 4th, 1870. This

grant was forfeited January 31, 1885. The lands were also

included in the grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Com-

pany by the resolution May 31, 1870. The Northern Paci-

fic Company claimed that by reason of the forfeiture of the

grant to the O. & C. these lands went to them. But the

Court held otherwise, and said. (Page 298-9)

:

"So that the rights of the Oregon Central Railroad Com-

pany, whose grant preceded that to the Northern Pacific

Railroad Company of May 31, 1870, by nearly one month,

attached, as of the date of its grant, although the latter

company filed a map of general route before the former

filed a map of definite location the lands in question

had been disposed of by the United States prior to the

passage of the joint resolution of May 31, 1870, namely, by

the act of May 4, 1870, granting lands to the Oregon Cen-

tral Railroad Company in aid of the construction of its road.

And as they were embraced by the latter grant, and were not

included in any other grant then existing, they were not

public lands within the meaning of the grant of May 31,

1870, to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company, and were,

consequently, excepted out of that grant as having been

previously disposed of by the United States.
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When, therefore. Congress by the act of 1885, forfeited

to the United States and restored to the public domain so

much of the lands granted by act of May 4, 1870, for the

benefit of the Oregon Central Railroad Company, as were

adjacent to and coterminous with the uncompleted portions

of the road, the United States was reinvested with the title

for its own benefit exclusively. And the title did not pass

to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company by reason of the

failure of the Oregon Central Railroad Company to con-

struct its road, or because of the subsequent forfeiture of

the latter's rights by the act of 1885. The restoration to

the public domain of the lands so forfeited took from the

Northern Pacific Railroad Company no lands granted to it

by the act of 1870."

This decision is directly in point. If the lands in that

case "were not public lands within the meaning of the grant

of May 31, 1870," because they "had been disposed of by the

United States" by act of May 4, 1870, certainly the lands

involved in this controversy "were not public lands within

the meaning of the" act of February 25, 1867, because they

"had been disposed of by the United States," by the act of

July 2, 1864.

As to these lands, therefore, the State of Oregon took

nothing by its grant of February 25, 1867, and the patents

described in the bill should not be cancelled.

U. S. vs. Stone, 2 Wallace, 525.

The grant to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company

was by the act of July 2, 1864, and not by the Joint

Resolution of May ji, i8jo.

It has been claimed that, as to lands on the "branch"
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from Wallula to Portland, there was no grant of lands until

the passage of the joint resolution of May 31, 1870.

It will be observed that in section three of the act of July

2, 1864,—the section which makes the grant—the words

"main line," or "branch," do not occur. There is no qual-

ification to the grant as applying to the "main line" only.

It is claimed now that designating one portion of the road

"Main Line" confers upon that portion greater rights than

are to be accorded to the "branch." This contention is not

sound. The term "Main Line" is not a distinction, but a

description merely. It is used in the first section of the

act. The line from Lake Superior to Puget Sound is called

the main line, and the line running down from the main line

to Portland is called the branch. These lines were so desig-

nated presumably on account of their relative length. The

terms "long line" and "short line" would have answered the

purpose equally as well. Why the terms "main line" and

"branch" were chosen it is unnecessary to consider, except

to say that they are appropriate. No change was made up

to the passing of the joint resolution of May 31, 1870. Up
to that time the building of the road had not progressed.

No power was given by the act of 1864 to mortgagethe

landgrants. It was found that without such power funds

could not be obtained to carry on the work. Hence the

resolution of May 31, 1870. The joint resolution

of April 10, 1869, was a useless piece of legislation,

and the company did not act under it, because while it au-

thorized the extension of the branch from Portland to the

Sound, it made no land grant for such extension and gave

no right to mortgage anything but the right of way, road-

bed and telegraph line, which power was given by the act

of March 1, 1869.
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By that time it was also found to be advantageous to build

down the valley of the Columbia to Portland, and from

Portland to Puget Sound. Portland was then the metrop-

olis of Oregon and the largest city in the Northwest. The

towns which have since grown to be cities on the Sound

were small, and in the way of furnishing business for a rail-

road were comparatively unimportant. It was desirable,

therefore, to build to Portland first, to the end that business

might be secured at once for the new road. There was an-

other reason. It was well known to those whose business it

was to find out, that a road from the Upper Columbia over

the Cascade Mountains to Puget Sound would be very difficult

to build, and it was doubted whether a pass would be

found through the Cascades and whether it would be pos-

sible to ever build the portion of the road from Wallula over

the mountains to the Sound. The object of the act of

1864 being to connect the East with the Pacific Ocean, if

the line over the Cascades failed the road must necessarily

run down the valley of the Columbia to Portland, and thence

to Puget Sound. In order to provide for the building of

this road a new land grant was necessary—from Portland to

the Sound. The joint resolution of 1869 gave the company

the right to build this extension, but made no grant of

lands, and it failed. Therefore, in the joint resolution of

May 31, 1870, we find this provision:

"Also to locate and construct under the provisions and

with the privileges grants and duties provided for in this

act of incorporation its main roadto some point on Puget

Sound via the valley of the Columbia river with the right

to construct its branch from some convenient point on its

main trunk line across the Cascade Mountains to Puget

Sound."



30

The reason why the terms "branch" and "main line" in

the act of 1864 were transposed in this joint resolution is

not apparent unless Congress and the company, knowing

that the line down the valley of the Columbia could he built,

and being uncertain of the feasibility of building over the

Cascades, proposed to designate that portion "main line"

which was most likely to be constructed.

Attention has been called to the fact that in the indemnity

clause in the resolution of May 31, 1870, these words occur:

"To the amount of lands that have been granted sold, re-

served, occupied by homestead settlers, pre-empted, or

otherwise disposed of subsequent to the passage of the act

ofJuly 2, 1864."

It is claimed that these italicised words"subsequent to the

passage of the act ofJuly 2, 1864" refer to all the lands

from Wallula down. This is unreasonable. If these words

apply to the lands from Wallula to Portland, they

apply to the lands from Wallula across the mountains to the

Sound, and there was no grant to the line of road over the

mountains by the act of 1864. And nobody has ever

claimed that. The indemnity for lands "granted subsequent

to the passage of the act of July 2, 1864," referred solely to

the new grant from Portland to the Sound. It was intended

that this new grant from Portland to the Sound should stand

on the same footing with the old grant.

This is the more apparent from what immediately fol-

lows in the resolution:

"And that twenty-five miles of said main line between

itsWestern terminus and the City of Portland, in the State of

Oregon, shall be completed by the first day of January, 1872,
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and forty miles of the remaining portion thereof each year

thereafter until the whole shall be completed between said

points."

It was claimed in the argument in the Court below that

the decision of the Supreme Court in United States vs. The

Northern Pacific Railroad Company, 152 U. S., 284, sus-

tains appellant's contention in this regard. But that case

holds nothing of the kind. The controversy in that case

was over lands lying between Portland and Puget Sound

upon the lire of road not provided for by the act of 1864, but

authorized by the joint resolution of 1870, and the Court

said, (p. 294):

"We cannot agree that this resolution is to be held in this

respect as simply a recognition by Congress of an existing

right in the company to locate and construct a road from

Portland to Puget Sound with the right to obtain lands in

aid thereof as provided in the act of 1864. On the con-

trary, it should be regarded as giving a subsidy of lands in

aid of the construction of a new road not before contem-

plated that would directly connect Portland and its vicinity

with Puget Sound."

This decision, we insist, not only does not sustain appel-

lant's position, but is a conclusive refutation of that claim.

THE PERHAM MAP.

The map of the general route, filed by the Company March

6, 1875, i s known as the Perham Map. As to the lands
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granted to the Company for the branch from Wallula to

Portland, this map is sufficient as a map of general route.

It is not necessary to consider whether it is sufficiently defi-

nite on the main line farther East.

In Buttzz vs. The Northern Pacific Railroad Company, 119

U. S., p. 55, the Supreme Court had under consideration

this very act of July 2, 1864, and was passing upon the point

raised by counsel as to when the general route of the road

might be considered as fixed. In deciding that point the

Court uses this language:

"The third section declares that after the general route

shall be fixed, the President shall cause the lands to be sur-

veyed for forty miles in width on both sides of the entire

line, as fast as may be requried for the construction of the

road, and that the odd sections granted shall not be liable

to sale, entry, or pre-emption, before or after they are sur-

veyed, except by the company. The general route may be

considered as fixed when its general course and direction are

determined after an actual examination of the country, or

from a knowledge of itawl is designated by a line on a map
showing the general features of the adjacent country and the

places through or by which it will pass. The officers of the

land department are expected to exercise supervision over the

matter so as to require good faith on the part of the com-

pany in designating the general route, and not to accept an

arbitrary and capricious selection of the line, irrespective

of the character of the country through which the road is to

be constructed. When the general route of the road is thus

fixed in good faith, and information thereof given to the

land department by filing the map thereof with the Commis-

sioner of the General Land Office, or the Secretary of the In-
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terior, the law withdraws from sale or pre-emption the odd

sections to the extent of forty miles on each side. The ob-

ject of the law in this particular is plain; it is to preserve the

land for the company to which, in aid of the construction of

the road, it is granted. Although the act does not require

the officers of the land department to give notice to the lo-

cal land officers of the withdrawal of the odd sections from

sale or pre-emption, it has been the practice of the depart-

ment in such cases, to formally withdraw them. It cannot

be otherwise than the exercise of a wise precaution by the

department to give such information to the local land officers

as may serve to guide aright those seeking settlements on

public lands; and thus prevent settlements and expendi-

tures connected with them which would afterwards prove

useless."

In St. Paul and Pacific R. R. Co. vs. The Northern Pacific

R. R. Co., 139 U. S., p. 19, the Court, in construing this act

of July 2, 1864, says:

"It is indeed contended that there is no evidence that any

general route was fixed, meaning thereby the general route

for the whole length of the road. If this were the fact,

which is not conceded, the result would not be changed, as

supposed by counsel. The contemplated railroad from Lake

Superior to Puget Sound was about two thousand miles in

length, and it was not expected that there should be a gen-

eral designation of the whole route over this distance before

any land should be withdrawn or any rights of the company

should attach. The general purpose of the act was accom-

plished if such reasonable portions of the general route were

located as would intelligently guide the officers of the Land

Department with reference to the patents to be issued for

lands intended for the company. The withdrawal in any
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case would extend along the route which was fixed, and a

map of which was filed in the department."

Under these authorities this Perham map, insofar as the

grant from Wallula to Portland is concerned, was such a

map of general route as was contemplated in the third sec-

tion of the act of 1864. It was, from the nature of the coun-

try, practically the only map that ever could be filed. True,

no withdrawal of lands was made by the Commissioner of the

General Land Office upon the filing of this map. But the

action of the land department with reference to the map is

not important. There is no provision in the act of 1864 that

contemplates an approval of the map of general route by the

Commissioner of the General Land Office or the Secretary

of the Interior. The act contained a legislative withdrawal

within itself upon the filing of the map. In this respect it

differed from nearly all the land grant acts up to that time.

And it was this difference, or in the overlooking of it

rather, that led the Commissioner of the General Land Of-

fice into the error contained in his letter to the Secretary of

the Interior of June 22, 1865. Transcript of Record, pp.

68-69.

This is sufficiently shown by comparing the description of

a map of general route in Bultz vs. Northern Pacific R. R.

Co., supra, and the commissioner's description, which is:

"The evidence required of the route under the established

ruling of the department is a connected map showing the ex-

act location; the map indicating by flagstaffs the progress

of the survey; the map to be authenticated by the affidavit

of the engineer, with the approval of the accredited chief

officer of the grantee. That proof is required to show the

precise portions of each section, or smallest legal subdivis-

ions cut bv the route."
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The commissioner was evidently mistaken as to what con-

tituted a map of general route under the act. But this mis-

take could not affect the company. The company had filed

its map, and by so doing had complied with the act. The

refusal of the Commissioner to order a withdrawal upon the

filing of this Perham map, so far as the branch road is con-

cerned, did not defeat the legislative withdrawal provided for

in the act upon the filing of such a map. The rights of the

company were the same irrespective of the action of the

Commissioner.

"It is a well established principle that where an individual

in the prosecution of a right does everything which the law

requires him to do and he fails to obtain his right by the mis-

conduct or neglect of a public official, the laws will protect

him."

Lyttle et al vs. The State of Arkansas, 9, How., 333.

Shepley vs. Cowan, 91 U. S., 339.

This map remained on file in theLand Department as a

public record. It must be presumed that the act of Feb-

ruary 25, 1867, was passed by Congress with a full knowledge

of the existence of this map and its legal effect, and that the

State of Oregon took its grant with a like knowledge.

In 1867, when the State of Oregon took its grant, the

Northern Pacific Company had a qualified title to these lands

by the location of the branch road "down the valley of the

Columbia," by the act of 1864, and by the filing of the Per-

ham map, and a survey or filing of any other map was neces-

sary only to particularize the odd sections within the limits

of the grant.

In construing the acts of 1864 and 1867 it is the duty of
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the Court to ascertain and give effect to the intention of
Congress in passing those acts.

U. S. vs. Southern Pacific Co., 146 U. S., 570.

Winona & St. Paul R. R. Co. vs. Barney, 113 U. S.,

618.

Considering the length of the road, the condition of the

country through which it passed, the difficulties, engineer-

ing and financial, which attended its construction at all, the

length of time allowed for its construction—twelve years by

the act (subsequently increased to sixteen years)—it would

be unreasonable to assume that Congress within three years

from the passage of the act, intended to take away any por-

tion of the land granted the Northern Pacific Company.

Title to these lands was vested by the act in the Northern

Pacific Company upon condition subsequent, and that title

remained in said Company until Congress declared a forfeit-

ure of it for the non-performance of such condition subse-

quent. No person or corporation could assert any valid

claim to said lands until after such forfeiture was declared.

Schulenberg vs. Harriman, 21 Wallace, 63.

Something is claimed by reason of the acquiescence of the

Northern Pacific Company in the refusal of the Commis-

sioner to order a withdrawal on the Perham map. But

there was no acquiescence. The commissioner declined to

order a withdrawal, and there was no law to compel him to

do it. The Company kept on asking for withdrawal, and en-

deavoring in every way to the best of its abiltiy to overcome

the objections of the Land Office.
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THE WORD "GRANTED" IN THE EXCEPTIONS TO

THE GRANT IN SEC. 3 OF THE ACT OF 1864.

It is claimed by appellant that it is aided by the exception

contained in the grant of July 2, 1864, and that where the

act excepts out of the grant lands "reserved, sold, granted

or otherwise appropriated," etc., Congress had in contempla-

tion this subsequent "grant" to the State of Oregon," or

some similar one. On principle this is unsound. By au-

thority it is completely overthrown. The law is

settled by the Supreme Court that the exceptions in

a grant to a railroad company are not for the benefit of,

and cannot be taken advantage of by, another railroad

company with a subsequent grant, where the two grants

conflict.

In the case of the M. T. & K. Ry. Co. vs. The K. & P. Ry.

Co., 97 U. S., 491, the reservation was of "lands" sold, re-

served, or otherwise disposed of by the United States, or to

which a pre-emption or homestead claim had attached ,and

"mineral lands." And the Court, speaking of this reservation

in the grant says: "It was not within its language or pur-

pose to except from its operation any portion of the desig-

nated lands for the purpose of aiding in the construction of

other roads."

It will not do to say that this is dictum. It is not dictum.

The very question, and the only question in that case was,

as to the right of two railroads under conflicting grants.

One road received its grant in July, 1862, the other in

March, i863.And the Court said, speaking of the grant of

1863:
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"Upon the principle already announced in considering

the time when the grant to the plaintiff took effect, the

title of the defendant to the lands thus set apart to it, had

there been no previous disposition or reservation of them,

would have become perfect and by relation have vested from

the date of the act. But so far as the lands were identical

with those covered by the previous grant to the plaintiff by

the acts of 1862 and 1864 the title could not attach, as it had

already passed from the Government."

True, the word "granted" is not included in the descrip-

tion of the lands reserved, but certainly it is no stronger

word than the words used, and might well be included in the

phrase "or otherwise disposed of." If the lands in that case

were not reserved out of the grant it. is difficult to see why

they should be in this.

But that there may be no question as to the proper con-

struction of this reservation in the act of July 2, 1864, we

ask the Court's consideration of the case of the St. Paul and

Pacific Railroad, 139 U. S., pp. 1 to 19.

The facts in that case were as follows:

By the act of March 3, 1857, lands were granted to the

Minnesota and Pacific Railroad Company, which afterwards

became the St. Paul and Pacific. Some of the lands thus

granted were the same as those afterwards granted to the

Northern by act of July 2. 1864.

The route of the M. & P. Ry. was subsequently changed

by joint resolution of Congress, July 12, 1862.

By act of Congress, March 3, 1865, this joint resolution

was repealed, and the lands granted by the act of 1857 were

again granted to the St. Paul and Pacific Company.
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By act of Congress, March 3, 1871, the route of the St.

Paul and Pacific was again changed, and other lands granted

it in consideration of its reliquishing those previously

granted on certain portions of its route. The identical point

was raised there as here, namely, that the grant to the Nor-

thern Pacific reserved lands which might subsequently be

granted to some other Company, as they were in that case

subsequently granted to the St. Paul and Pacific. The Su-

preme Court holds against such a construction, and says:

"But independently of this conclusion we are of opinion that

the exception in the act of making the grant to the Northern

Pacific Railroad Company was not intended to cover other

grants for the construction of roads of a similar character,

for this would be to embod a provision which would often

be repugnant to and defeat the grant itself."

This decision is conclusive of the question raised here.

This is certainly not dictum. By reference to this case,

as it was tried and decided in the Court below, it will be seen

that the very point urged here was relied on there, and that

the decision of the case in a great measure depended on the

decision of that point. The case is reported in the 26th Fed.

Rep., 551, and for the convenience of the Court we quote

the following from the opinion, pp. 557, 558:

"Assuming the priority of the Northern Pacific grant, it

is earnestly contended that by its terms all subsequent

grants made prior to the definite location of its road are ex-

cepted. The definite location, it is conceded, was not made

until after the act of 1871. The difference between the lang-

uage of the grant to the Union Pacific, construed in 97 U. S.,

supra, and that in the grant to the Northern Pacific, is the

basis of this argument. The former grant reads thus:
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"Five alternate sections per mile on each side of said rail-

road, on the line thereof, and within the limits of ten miles

on each side of said road, not sold, reserved, or otherwise dis-

posed of by the United States, and to which a pre-emption

or homestead claim may not have attached, at the time the

line of said road is definitely fixed."

12 St. at Large, 492, Sec. 3.

In the latter we find these words:

"And whenever, on the line thereof, the United States

have full title, not reserved, sold, granted, or otherwise ap-

propriated, and free from pre-emption or other claims or

rights at the time the line of said road is definitely fixed, and

a plat thereof filed in the office of the Commissioner of the

General Land Office, and whenever, or prior to said time,

any of said sections or parts of sections, shall have been

granted, sold, reserved, occupied by homestead settlers, or

pre-empted, or otherwise disposed of, other lands shall be

selected by said company in lieu thereof, under the direction

of the Secretary of the Interior in alternate sections, and des-

ignated by odd numbers, not more than ten miles beyond

the limits of said alternate sections."

The question is as to the intent of Congress in these acts;

for as to its power as owner to dispose of these lands as it

pleases, there can be no question. In Missouri, K. & T. Ry.

Co. vs. Kansas Pacific Ry. Co., 97 U. S., 497. the Supreme

Court said:

"It is always to be borne in mind in construing a congres-

sional grant that the act by which it is made a law as well

as a conveyance, and that such effect must be given to it as

will carry out the intent of Congress. That intent should
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not be defeated by applying to the grant the rules of the

common law, which are properly applicable only to transfers

between private parties. To the validity of such transfers

it may be admitted that there must exist a present power of

identification of the land, and that where no such power ex-

ists, instruments with words of present grant are operative,

if at all, only as contracts to convey. But the rules of the

common law must yield to this, as in all other causes, to the

legislative will."

We are not limited, therefore, to the technical force and

meaning of terms as used in conveyances and contracts be-

tween individuals. We must construe this act as any other

law of Congress, and ascertain from all means at command

the intent of the legislator. Stress is laid on the use of the

word "granted" in the one act, and its omission from the

other. This word, it is claimed, has a well-recognized mean-

ing in the land legislation of Congress, distinct from "sale,"

"pre-emption" and "homestead." Its use indicates the in-

tention of future grants within this territory, and notifies

the grantee that such future grants, if made before its defi-

nite location, will have precedence. In fact it reserves from

this all such future grants. The vastness of this grant, and

the wide range given for the location of the road, are sug-

gested as the reasons why Congress increased the exceptions

previously made to the Union Pacific act. The fact, as sta-

ted, that this is the only land grant act in which this word is

used in a similar connection is noticed as evidence of the in-

tent. At the hearing, the arguments in favor of these

views were forcibly presented and seemed to me very persua-

sive. Subsequent reflection has led me to a different con-

clusion. I state briefly my reasons. The decision in 97

U. S., supra, places all land grant roads on the same plane
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—and that, a different one from that occupied by settlers

and private purchasers—and settles all conflicts of title by a

rule clear, simple and just,viz: priority of grant. Congress may

fairly be regarded as standing indifferent between all roads,

and intending to apply this just and simple rule of priority

as between successive beneficiaries. Before any departure

from such intent is adjudged, the fact should be made clear.

The burden is on the latter beneficiary averring such depar-

ture. The language of each act is broad, and covers every

possible disposition by the Government intermediate the act

and the location. "Sold, reserved, or otherwise disposed of"

in one, "reserved," so\<\,granted or otherwise appropriated"

in the other. Is any term broader or more comprehensive

than "disposed of?" Used in a similar private contract be-

tween individuals, would anyone doubt the sweep of the ex-

ception? Yet the Supreme Court ruled that it did not ex-

cept "any portion of the designated lands for the purpose of

aiding in the construction of other roads." Counsel would

limit the scope of the term on the principle noscitur a

sociis. The use of the qualifying word "otherwise" makes

against the application of that principle. But, giving it full

force, is not a grant a disposition kindred to a sale, if not a

reservation? Counsel's argument rests on the technical

force of the phraseology, while I understand the Supreme

Court to base the rule on the presumed attitude of Congress

towards such public improvements. While the grant is vast,

the line to be constructed in order to earn it is continental.

The grant was made because Congress believed the public

good required the road, and in view of the length of the line,

the character of the country through which it was to pass,

the paucity of settlements therein, and the supposed diffi-

culties in the operation of a road in that northern latitude, it
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is fairer to presume that Congress intended the freest boun-

ty, rather than to believe that it burdened the grant with

extra exceptions, which, when construction became feasible,

might largely deplete it of value. Further, Congress had in

thought at the time other railroad grants,and in the first pro-

viso made special provision therefor. It there deducted from

this grant any lands theretofore granted to any road whose

line should prove to be upon the same general route, and

authorized consolidation of companies. Without consolida-

tion, the Northern Pacific would fail of such lands, and that

without any right of indemnity elsewhere along its line. If

further special provision for conflict with other land grants

was intended, would not such intention have been made

manifest by further proviso, or at least by language of un-

mistakable import? I can but think the rule laid down in

97 U. S., supra, applicable to the Northern Pacific land

grant, and therefore must hold that its title to the lands in

place antedates that of the defendant."

In the light of these authorities counsel's position is un-

tenable. These lands were not reserved out of the grant to

the Northern Pacific Company because of the use of the

word "granted," and the State of Oregon took nothing by

the act of 1867, as far as these particular lands are con-

cerned.

Upon this point we call the Court's attention to the decis-

ion of the Supreme Court in the case of the United States

vs. The Southern Pacific Co., 146 U. S,. 570.

This Court is familiar with the facts in that case. In de-

ciding the case the Supreme Court says (pp. 604-6-7):

"Again, it is urged that the grant to the Atlantic and Pa-

cific Railroad Company having been forfeited, there is noth-



44

ing now in the way of the Southern Pacific Railroad Com-
pany's grant attaching to these lands; that in the

interpretation of rights under land grants, regard

has always been had by this Court to the inten-

tion of Congress; that it was the intention of

Congress that these lands should pass to some

Atlantic and Pacific Railroad Company or the Southern Pa-

cific Railroad Company; that they cannot now be applied

to aid in'' the construction of the former company's road;

and that, therefore, to carry into effect the intent of Con-

gres, they should be applied to aid in the construction of the

latter company's line. We think this contention is errone-

ous, both as to the law and to the intent of Congress.

"Indeed, the intent of Congress in all railroad land grants

as has been understood and declared by this Court

again and again, is that such grants operate at

a fixed time, and shall take only such lands as

at that time are public lands, and, therefore, grant-

able by Congress, and is never to be taken as a floating

authority to appropriate all tracts within the specified limits

which at any subsequent time may become public lands."

"Again, there can be no question, under the authorities

heretofore cited, that, if the act of forfeiture had not been

passed by Congress, the Atlantic and Pacific could yet con-

struct its road, and that, constructing it, its title to these

lands would become perfect. No power but that of Con-
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gress could interfere with this right of the Atlantic and Pa-

cific. No one but the grantor can raise the question of a

breach of a condition subsequent. Congress, by the act of

forfeiture of July 6, 1886, determined what should become

of the lands forfeited. It enacted that they be restored to

public domain. The forfeiture was not for the benefit of the

Southern Pacific ; it was not to enlarge its grant as it stood

prior to the act of forfeiture. It had given to the Southern

Pacific all that it had agreed to in its original grant; and

now, finding that the Atlantic and Pacific was guilty of a

breach of a condition subsequent, it elected to enforce a for-

feiture for that breach, and a forfeiture of its own benefit"

THE JOINT RESOLUTION OF MAY 31, 1870.

It was urged on the trial in the Court below that the joint

resolution of May 31, 1870, was not an amendment to the

act of 1864, but was a "complete piece of legislation" in it-

self.

This, we submit, is not correct. This resolution could

not stand alone. Without reference to the act of 1864 it is

a meaningless thing. In interpreting this resolution refer-

ence must be constantly made to the act of 1864. It starts

out by authorizing the company to issue bonds and "secure

the same by mortgage upon its property and rights of prop-

erty of all kinds and descriptions, real, personal and mixed,

including its franchises as a corporation." To what "prop-

erty" and "franchises" is reference made here? Without the

act of 1864 there could be no answer. It refers to the "priv-
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ileges, grants and duties provided for in its act of incorpora-

tion." What privileges, grants and duties? Again the an-

swer is found in the act of 1864.

All that this resolution does is to amend the act of 1864

by:

First—Authorizing the company to mortgage its land

grant (which before it could not do).

Second—Changing the designation of the road down the

Columbia River from "Branch" to "Main Line," and the

road across the Cascades from "Main Line" to "Branch."

Third— Providing an additional ten miles on each side

of the line of the road for indemnity lands.

Fourth—Making a new grant from Portland to Puget

Sound.

Otherwise the act of 1864 remains in full force and effect,

and all the other sections of the act of 1864 apply to the new

grant from Portland to Puget Sound.

This resolution is a legislative recognition of the right of

the company to these lands.

By authorizing the company to mortgage them Congress

indicated clearly enough that it was not then understood

that any other company had any right to them. As was said

by the Circuit Judge in

Denny vs. Dodson, 32 Fed. R., 903.

"But, in advance of the construction of the road and tele-

graph line, or of particular portions, the lands could not be

used without the permission of Congress, so as to cut off the

rights of the United States mentioned above. Such per-
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mission was given when, on the thirty-first of May, 1870, by

joint resolution of the two houses, Congress authorized the

company to issue its bonds to aid in the construction and

equipment of its road, and to secure the same by mortgage

on its property and rights of property, of all kinds

and description, real, personal, and mixed, in-

cluding its franchise as a corporation. In the prop-

erty mentioned, the lands granted to the company are

included. It can hardly be supposed that Congress would

have allowed this mortgage if the company had no legal title

to the lands which could be held as security for the moneys

advanced on the bonds and transferred by sale upon fore-

closure, in case default should be made in their payment.

To suppose that Congress would sanction such a proceeding

would be to impute to it complicity in a fraud, which cannot

be entertained for a moment. The conclusion follows that

it allowed the execution of the mortgage because it had

transferred to the company a title to the lands covered by its

grant, which could in this way be made available to raise

funds for the work."

THE MAP OF AUGUST 13, 1870.

It is immaterial whether we call the map of 1870 a map of

"general route" or of definite location." So far as appears

it wras filed as soon as it was practicable to file it. Insofar as

concerns the road from Wallula to Portland, it is identical

with the Perham map. Under this map a withdrawal of all

these lands was ordered by the officers of the Land Depart-

ment. This map is a recognition of the Perham map, and



48

shows that there was a legislative withdrawal at the time of

filing the Perham map. Any uncertainty or change as to

the main line did not affect the branch line, which remained

unchanged from the beginning.

THE ACT OF SEPTEMBER 29, 1890—FOR-
FEITURE ACT.

A reference to the forfeiture act shows conclusively that

Congress considered that by that act these lands were for-

feited. The first section of the act provides for the forfeit-

ure of unearned grants, and says:

"And the United States hereby resumes title thereto."

"And all such lands are declared to be part ofthe

public domain.''''

In the fifth section provision is made for confirming title

to "lands heretofore granted to the Northern Pacific Rail-

road Company and so resumed by the United States and re-

stored to the public domain north of the line known as the

Harrison line, drawn from Wallula, Washington, easterly,"

etc. Also for

"rights of way and riparian rights, heretofore attempted to

be conveyed to the City of Portland, in the State of Oregon,
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by the Northern Pacific Railroad Company and the Central

Trust Company of New York, by deed of conveyance dated

August 8, 1886, (descriptive of lands) * * forfeited by

this act are hereby confirmed unto the said City of Port-

land."

The iands above described as being confirmed to the City

of Portland are with reference to the Northern Pacific grant

situated similarly to the lands in controversy here.

If the contention of appellant is correct here, this legisla-

tion was entirely unnecessary. But Congress did not think

so, because in the act these lands are described as *"forfeited

by this act." If a part of the lands from Wallula to Portland

were forfeited it needs no argument to show that they were

all forfeited.

That there might be no doubt as to the meaning of the act

and plainly intending to provide against any misunderstand-

ing of the effect of the act upon overlapping grants (such as

arises in this case) the 6th section of the act says:

"Sec. 6. That no lands declared forfeited to the United

States by this act shall by reason of such forfeiture inure to

the benefit of any state or corporatio7is to which lands may

have been granted by Congress,except as herein otherwise

provided; nor shall this act be construed to enlarge the area

of land originally covered by any such grant, or to confer any

right upon any state, Corporation or person lands which

are excepted from such grant. Nor shall the moiety of

the lands granted to any railroad company on account of a

main and a branch line appertaining to uncompleted road,

and hereby forfeited, within the conflicting limits of the

grants for such main and branch lines, when but one of such
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lines has been completed, inure by virtue of the forfeiture

hereby declared, to the benefit of the completed line."

While the decisions of the Secretary of the Interior are

not authority, yet as to questions involving title to public

lands, they are entitled to and have always been accorded

great respect by the Courts.

In this connection, therefore, we call the Court's attention

to the letter of Secretary Noble, Secretary of the Interior

to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, date Feb-

ruary 17, 1892.

Every proposition made by appellant here was contended

for in a protest then before the Secretary for consideration

and made by the Oregon and California against the decision

of the Commissioner of the General Land Office, holding

these lands as forfeited by the act of September 29, 1890, and

the Secretary overruled all the objections of contestants and

held the lands as forfeited.

Respectfully submitted.

J. L. STORY, and

GEARIN, SILVESTONE & BRODIE,

Attornes for Appellees.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Judicial

Circuit, Northern District of California.

IN EQUITY.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON, a

Femme Sole

Complainant,

vs.

THE OITY OF NEVADA, in the

County of Nevada and State of Cali-

fornia, and D. S. BAER, T. H. CARE,

A. GAULT, J. F. HOOK, and J. C.

RICH, Composing the Board of City

Trustees of the said City of Nevada,

Respondents.

Bill of Complaint.

To the Judges of the Circuit Court of the United States

in and for the Ninth Judicial Circuit, Northern Dis-

trict of California:

Eleanor C. Huntington, a femme sole, of the city, coun-

ty, and State of New York, and a citizen of the State of

New York, United States of America, brings this her bill

against the city of Nevada, of the county of Nevada,
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State of California, United States of America, and a cit-

izen of said State of California, United States of America,

and D. S. Baker, of the city of Nevada, State of Califor-

nia, and a citizen of the State of California, United States

of America; and T. H. Carr of the city of Nevada, State

of California, and a citizen of the State of California,

United States of America; and A. Gault of the city of Ne-

vada, State of California, and a citizen of the State of

California, United States of America; and J. F. Hook of

the city of Nevada, State of California, and a citizen of

the State of California, United States of America; and J.

C. Rich of the city of Nevada, State of California, and a

citizen of the State of California, United States of Amer-

ica.

And thereupon your oratrix complains and says:

That heretofore, to-wit, on the 12th day of March, 1878,

an act was passed by the legislature of the State of Cali-

fornia, entitled "An act to amend an act to incorporate

the city of Nevada, and all acts supplemental thereto,

and to repeal all acts in conflict herewith," approved

March 12th, 1878, and that by virtue of the said act of the

legislature of the State of California, approved March

12th, 1878, the people of the city of Nevada in the State

of California became and were, and ever since have been,

a municipal corporation under the name and style of the

City of Nevada, and by that name may complain and de-

fend in all courts and in all actions and proceedings, pur-

chase, receive, and hold property and sell or otherwise

dispose of the same for their common benefit, and that

the said city of Nevada is still in existence under the
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said corporate name and style mentioned and referred to

in said act; and solely by virtue of the provisions of said

act of March 12th, 1878, and not otherwise.

And your oratrix further shows that the respondents

D. S. Baker, T. H. Carr, A. Gault, J. F. Hook, and J. O.

Rich are now and have been for more than six months

last past the members of the board of city trustees of

said city of Nevada, and as such compose said board of

city trustees and that they are the legislative body of

said city of Nevada.

That your oratrix is now and has been for many years

last past a taxpayer and the owner of property situate in

said city of Nevada, and that said property has annually

been placed upon the assessment-roll of said city of Ne-

vada according to law, and that during all of said times

she has annually and within the time prescribed by law

paid to said city of Nevada and to the State of California

all taxes which were levied or assessed against the said

property of your oratrix situate in said city of Nevada

aforesaid, and that she is still a taxpayer therein, and

said property is now upon the assessment-roll of said

city of Nevada, for the fiscal year 1895-96, and that she

has paid all State, county, and municipal taxes thereon.

And your oratrix further alleges and shows that the

people of the State of California in the year 1879 did in

convention duly assembled adopt a new constitution to

supersede the old constitution of the State of California,

and that said new constitution of the State of California

was thereafter ratified by the people of the State of Cal-

ifornia at an election held on the 7th day of May, 1879,

and that said new constitution of the State of California
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took effect on July 1st, 1879, for some purposes, and upon

January 1st, 1880, for all purposes, and that ever since

said last-named date the said new constitution of the

State of California has formed and has been the only

constitution for the government of the State of California

and its legislative, executive, and judicial departments,

and the people, citizens, and residents of the said State

of California.

And your oratrix further shows that the said act of

the legislature of the State of California so approved

March 12th, 1878, as hereinabove shown, was passed and

adopted and was the law for more than two years prior to

the time the said new constitution of the State of Califor-

nia was adopted, ratified, or took effect, and that said act

of March 12th, 1878, has never been altered, amended, or

repealed either by the legislature of the State of Califor-

nia, or under or by virtue of any of the terms or provis-

ions of the said new constitution of the State of Califor-

nia, and that said act of the legislature of the State of

California, approved March 12th, 1878, incorporating

said city of Nevada is now in full force and effect.

And your oratrix further shows that heretofore, to-

wit, on the 18th day of July, 1895, the said board of trus-

tees of said city of Nevada did pass an ordinance known

as Ordinance No. 127, in the words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

Ordinance No. 127.

An ordinance determining the necessity of the city of

Nevada acquiring and owning waterworks and water,

the cost of which will be in excess of its ordinary annual

income.



The City of Nevada, et at. 5

The board of trustees of the city of Nevada do ordain

as follows:

Section 1.

It is hereby determined that the public interest of Ne-

vada City demands the acquisition and ownership by

said city of waterworks, water, reservoirs and reservoir

sites, pipes, aqueducts conduits, and all other appliances

and things necessary or convenient for the storage of wa-

ter by said city and the supplying of water to the resi-

dents thereof.

Section 2.

That the necessary cost thereof will be in excess of the

ordinary annual income and revenue of said city.

Section 3.

This ordinance shall be published for three weeks in

the Nevada City Daily 'Transcript,' and shall take effect

on the 12th day of August, 1895.

Passed by the following vote:

Ayes: Raker, Carr, Hock, Gault, Rich.

Noes: .

Passed the 18th day of July, 1895.

D, S. BAKER,

President of the Board of City Trustees of Nevada City.

Attest: T. H. Carr, Clerk of the Board."

That said ordinance No. 127 has never been modified

or rescinded, but is still in full force and effect.



6 Eleanor G. Huntington vs.

That heretofore, to-wit, on the 17th day of September,

1895, the said board of trustees of the city of Nevada did

pass an ordinance known as Ordinance Number 128, call-

ing a special election, and submitting to the qualified

voters of said city of Nevada at said election the proposi-

tion of incurring a municipal indebtedness to the aggre-

gate sum of $60,000.00 for the purpose of acquiring lands,

water rights, rights of way, reservoirs, and other rights

and things whatsoever necessary to construct and com-

plete public waterworks for the said city, the cost of

which would be too great to be paid out of the ordinary

annual income and revenue of said city, and providing

for the issuance of bonds of said city to said amount for

said purpose, and prescribe the time and manner of hold-

ing such election and the voting for or against incurring

the said indebtedness, and otherwise regulating said

election and that the said Ordinance Number 128 was

and is in the words and figures following, to-wit:

Ordinance No. 128.

An ordinance calling for a special election in the city

of Nevada submitting to the qualified voters of said city

at said election the proposition of incurring a municipal

indebtedness to the aggregate amount of $60,000.00 for

the purpose of acquiring lands, water rights, rights of

way, reservoirs, and other rights and things whatsoever

necessary to construct and complete public waterworks

for the said city, the cost of which will be too great to be

paid out of the ordinary annual income and revenue of

said city; providing for the issuance of bonds of said city
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to said amount for said purpose; prescribing the time and

manner of holding such election, and the voting for or

against incurring such indebtedness, and otherwise reg-

ulating such election.

The board of trustees of the city of 'Nevada do ordain

as follows:

Section 1.

Whereas, the board of trustees of the city of Nevada by

ordinance heretofore duly passed by a vote of more than

two-thirds of its members, i. e., by a unanimous vote, ap-

proved and published as required by law, has determined

that the public interest and necessity demand, and

whereas, the public interest and necessity do demand the

acquisition of lands, water rights, rights of way, reser-

voirs, and the construction and completion of a system

of waterworks that will furnish for the present and fu-

ture an ample supply of pure, wholesome water to pro-

tect the health, comfort, safety, and best interest of the

inhabitants of said city, and that the cost thereof is too

great to be paid out of the ordinary annual income and

revenue of said city; and

Whereas, said board of trustees has determined and

does hereby determine that the assessed value of all

property, both real and personal, in said city for taxable

purposes is the sum of $855,299.00, and that the annual

income and revenues of said city do not amount to more

than the sum of $8,000.00; and

Whereas, by resolution, said board did duly appoint

and authorize F. M. Miller, Geo. L. Nusbaumer, and W.

F. Boardman, as civil engineers to make surveys, plans
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and estimates of said contemplated waterworks on behalf

of and in the interest of said city of Nevada, and

Whereas, said board of trustees has heretofore caused

to be made by F. M. Miller, Geo. P. Nusbaumer, and W.

F. Boardman, plans and estimates of the cost of said con-

templated public improvements, which said plans aud

estimates were duly submitted to said board, and by

thein heretofore duly accepted and approved after care-

ful examination and consideration by said board; and

Whereas, said Geo. L. Nusbaumer and W. F. Board-

man are each and all competent civil engineers, who be-

fore doing said work have had successful experience in

such work as the aforesaid contemplated public improve-

ments, which facts said board of trustees has determined

and does now unanimously adjudge and determine here-

by; and

Whereas, it appears by said plans and estimates that

the cost of such contemplated public improvements will

amount to $60,000.00 in the aggregate, which amount is

largely in excess of the ordinary aunual income and reve-

nue of said city;

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, and

in pursuance of the acts, ordinances, and proceedings

aforesaid, and of the statutes in such cases made and pro-

vided, a special election is hereby called and ordered to

be held and conducted in and for the city of Nevada,

State of California, at the time and in the manner here-

inafter fixed and prescribed, at which special election

Ul -re shall be submitted to the qualified voters of said

city of Nevada, to be voted upon at said special elec-

tion as hereinafter provided, the proposition of incur-
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ring an indebtedness by said city of iNevada amounting in

the aggregate to the sum of f60,000.00 for the purpose of

acquiring lands, water rights, rights of way, reservoirs,

and all other rights and things whatever necessary for

the construction and completion of public waterworks

for the said city of Nevada and constructing and complet-

ing said waterworks.

Section 2.

The objects and purposes for which the said indebted-

ness is proposed to be incurred are as follows: The ac-

quisition by the said city of Nevada of reservoirs, rights

of way, lands, and all other rights and things whatsoever,

necessary for constructing and completing public water-

works for said city and its inhabitants, and to establish,

complete, and thoroughly equip a system of public works

therein with reservoirs, pipes, mains, laterals, and what-

soever things shall be necessary therefor to supply said

city and its inhabitants with an adequate supply of

wholesome water.

Section 3.

The estimated cost of the acquisition and construction

of said reservoirs, lands, rights of way, water rights, and

other rights and things whatsoever necessary therefor,

and of the whole of said public improvements is as fol-

lows, to-wit, the sum of f60,000.

Section 4.

The acquisition of said lands, reservoirs, rights of way,
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water rights, and all other rights and things whatsoever

required for constructing and completing said public

waterworks, and the said construction and completion of

said waterworks as aforesaid are necessary to the city of

Nevada and its inhabitants for the following reasons, to-

wit

:

First.—Because it now is, and for many years last past

has been, utterly impossible to obtain an adequate supply

of pure, wholesome water for the use of said city and its

inhabitants for any fair or reasonable sum of money, the

price charged therefor being exorbitant.

Second.—Because the present system of waterworks

owned by Mrs. E. O. Huntington, and the only source of

supply now and for many years last past supplying said

city and its inhabitants thereof with water, is imperfect,

the pipes, mains, and laterals are corroded and clogged

with rust, and do not extend to all parts of the city, or

supply all the inhabitants thereof with water.

Third.—Because in case of emergency, fire, etc., there

is a wholly adequate supply and insufficiency of pressure

of water for the needs and requirements of said city, and

that by no means other than the acquisition of the afore-

said property, rights, and things, and the construction

and completion of said public waterworks as hereinbe-

fore set forth, can said city and its inhabitants be prop-

erly supplied. That the public interest and necessities of

the city of Nevada and its inhabitants demand the acqui-

sition, construction, and completion of such public water-

works.



The City of Nevada, et al. 11

Section 5.

That the cost of the acquisition of said property, rights,

and things and of the construction and completion of

said reservoirs is and will be too great to be paid out of

the ordinary annual income and revenue of said city of

Nevada, and that it is necessary to incur an indebted-

ness in the aggregate sum of $60,000.00, and to issue

bonds of the said city to that amount to pay the cost

thereof.

Section 6.

That bonds of the city of Nevada of the character

known as 'serials,' to the aggregate amount of $60,000.00,

will be issued for the cost of said public improvements

above in this ordinance set forth if the proposition to in-

cur said indebtedness be accepted by two-thirds of all the

qualified voters voting at said election, and said bonds

will be issued and made payable so that one-fortieth part

of the whole amount shall be paid each and every year on

a day and at a place to be fixed by said board of trustees,

together with interest on all sums unpaid at such date

at the rate of six per cent per annum, until the entire

debt shall be paid.

Section 7.

The special election hereby called as aforesaid shall be

held on Monday, the 28th day of October, 1895, and shall

be held and conducted, the votes thereat received and

canvassed, returns thereof made, and the result thereof
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ascertained and determined as herein provided, and ac-

cording to the law governing elections in said city of Ne-

vada, and the polls of such election shall be and remain

open from sunrise of the 28th day of October, 1895, to

the hour of five o'clock in the afternoon of said day,

when the polls shall be closed.

Section 8.

Notice of the said special election shall be published

for not less than two weeks prior to said day of election,

and after the final publication of this ordinance as here-

inafter provided in at least one of the newspapers pub-

lished in said city of Nevada, in accordance with the

terms of the statute in such cases made and provided.

Section 9.

The ballots which shall be used at the said special elec-

tion shall be of the same character and form as those

ballots used at other municipal elections in the said city

of Nevada, except as otherwise provided herein. Each

of said ballots shall have printed thereon the following

heading, to-wit, 'Municipal Ticket,' underneath which

shall be printed the number of the precinct in which such

ballot is to be voted, underneath which shall be printed

the following words, to-wit, 'proposition for incurring an

indebtedness by the city of Nevada to the aggregate

amount of $60,000 for the acquisition of reservoirs, lands,

rights of way, water rights, and all other things and

rights whatsoever necessary for constructing and com-
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pleting said waterworks, and constructing and complet-

ing the same as set forth in Ordinance No. 128.' Under-

neath this shall be printed the following: 'To vote for or

against incurring said indebtedness stamp a cross (X) to

the right of and against the answer which you desire to

give.' Underneath which shall be printed in one line

the following: 'For incurring the indebtedness,' to the

right of which shall be printed in one square the word

'Yes,' with a blank square to the right thereof, and im-

mediately below the same, in one line the following: 'For

incurring the indebtedness,' to the right of which shall

be printed in one square the word 'No,' with a blank

square to the right thereof. Every voter desiring to vote

in favor of the proposition of incurring the said indebt-

edness shall, in voting, stamp a cross (X) in the blank

square to the right of the word 'Yes' printed upon his bal-

lot as aforesaid; and every voter desiring to vote against

said proposition shall, in voting, stamp a cross (X) in the

blank square to the right of the word 'No' printed upon

his ballot as aforesaid.

Section 10.

The election precincts and the numbers and boundaries

thereof shall be the same as those heretofore established,

creating, and designated by the board of trustees of the

said city of Nevada, and now existing therein. The places

of election, and the officers who shall conduct said special

election in each of the several precincts of said city of

Nevada, shall be and they are hereby designated and ap-

pointed as follows, to-wit:
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The places of election shall be:

For Precinct One: 'Cutter's Carriageshop,' on Boulder

Street;

For Precinct Two: 'City Hall,' on Broad Street.

For Precinct Three: 'Transcript Building,' on Com-

mercial Street.

The officers who shall conduct said special election

shall be:

For Precinct One:

Inspectors.—Bichard Tremain and John Brodie.

Judges.—J. D. Fleming and Samuel Curtis.

Clerks.—H. C. Weisenburger and J. J. Jackson.

Ballot Clerks.—George B. Johnson and John Bafter.

For Precinct Two:

Inspectors.—A. D. Allen and C. J. Brand.

Judges.—John Swart and E. Booth.

Clerks.—I. J. Bolfe and E. J. Rector.

Ballot Clerks.—Max Isoard and John Webber.

For Precinct Three:

Inspectors.—Geo. M. Hughes and John Dunnicliff.

Judges.—B. N. Shoecraft and Henry Lane.

Clerks.—J. E. Carr and J. E. Isaac.

Ballot Clerks.—Felix Gillett and A. Hartung.

Section 11.

As soon as the polls are closed in each of said precincts

the judges of election shall canvass the votes cast in their

respective precincts for and against incurring the indebt-

edness aforesaid, as nearly as practicable, in the manner

provided by law for canvassing votes for municipal offi-
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cers elected at elections held in the city of Nevada. The

returns for the said precincts shall be made out and

signed in the usual form by the officers of election for

said precincts respectively, and shall be forthwith de-

posited with the clerk of the board of trustees of said

city of Nevada, together with the ballots cast at said spe-

cial election in said precincts respectively. The board

of trustees of said city shall as soon as the said returns

and ballots from all of said precincts have been deposited

with said clerk canvass the said returns in the manner

provided by law for canvassing returns of election of mu-

nicipal officers of said city. If, upon the canvass of said

returns, it shall be ascertained and determined that at

least two-thirds of all the votes voting at said special

election have voted in favor of the aforesaid proposition

for incurring the said indebtedness of f60,000.00, then

the bonds of said city of Nevada hereinbefore mentioned

shall be issued by the board of trustees as herein by law

provided, and as hereafter prescribed by said board.

Section 12.

Immediately upon the passage of this ordinance and

its approval by the president of the board of trustees

aforesaid, the said ordinance is hereby ordered and di-

rected to be and shall be published in the 'Daily Trans-

cript,' a daily newspaper published in said city of Ne-

vada for the period of two weeks, and shall be published

in each issue of said paper as often as the same is pub-

lished during said period, and the last publication there-

of shall not be less than fifteen days prior to the day of

the special election hereby called.
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In the board of trustees of the city of Nevada, Septem-

ber 18th, 1895.

Passed by the following vote:

Ayes: Baker, Oarr, Gault, Hook, Kich.

Noes

:

D. D. BAKER,

President of the Board of City Trustees of the City of

Nevada.

attest: T. H. Carr. Clerk of the Board.

Approved September 18th, 1895.

D. S. BAKER,

President of the Board of Trustees of the City of Nevada

and the Executive of said City."

That said Ordinance Number 128 has never been mod-

ified or rescinded, but is still in full force and effect.

And your oratrix further alleges and shows that there-

after and on the 10th day of October, 1895, the said board

of trustees of the city of Nevada did give and cause to be

given notice of such special election so thereafter to be

held on said 28th day of October, 1895, touching the mat-

ters just hereinabove referred to with reference to the in-

curring of said indebtedness and the proposed issue of

said bonds, and that on said 28th day of October, 1895,

said special election was in fact held, and that more than

two-thirds of all the voters voting at such special election

authorized the issuance of the said bonds aggregating

sixty thousand dollars as aforesaid.

And your oratrix further shows that since said special

election so held on said 28th day of October, 1895, said

board of trustees of said city of Nevada have caused to
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be issued, printed, published, and circulated, a notice en-

titled "Notice to Bond Buyers," which said notice is in

the words and figures following, to-wit:

"Notice to Bond Buyers.

Sealed bids will be received by the clerk of the board

of city trustees for the purchase of $60,000, six per cent

annual interest water bonds of the city of Nevada, Cali-

fornia, up to 8 o'clock, P. M., of the 12th day of Decem-

ber, 1895. The bonds are all of the denomination of $500.

Three of said bonds, together with the interest due on all

the bonds, will be payable at the office of the treasurer

of said city on the first Monday in December, 1896; and a

like number with all interest due will be payable each

year thereafter on the same date for 40 years.

The law requires the bonds to be sold for gold coin. The

bonds are payable in gold coin or lawful money of the U.

S. Bids for the whole or any specified number of said

bonds will be considered. The bonds cannot be sold for

less than their par value. Money for the bonds must be

paid within twenty days after sale. No bids will be con-

sidered unless accompanied by a certified check for at

least 5 per cent of the amount bid.

T. H. CARR,

Clerk of the Board, Nevada City, Cal."

That said last named notice to bond buyers has never

been rescinded or altered, but still remains in full force

and effect.

And your oratrix further alleges and shows that in

passing said ordinances ^Numbers 127 and 128, respect-
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ively, and in calling said special election hereinabove re-

ferred to, and in causing said notice to bond buyers to be

so printed, published, advertised, and circulated the said

city of Nevada and said board of city trustees of said city

of Nevada did assume to act under and by virtue of the

act of the legislature of the State of California, entitled

"An act authorizing the incurring of indebtedness by

cities, towns, and municipal corporations, incorporated

under the laws of this State, for the construction of

waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public improve-

ments, or for any purpose whatever, and to repeal the

act approved March 9, 1885, entitled an act to authorize

municipal corporations of the fifth class, containing more

than three thousand and less than ten thousand inhab-

itants, to obtain waterworks; also to repeal an act ap-

proved March 15, 1887, entitled an act authorizing the

incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal

corporations, incorporated under the laws of this State."

Approved March 19, 1889.

And also under and by virtue of an act supplemental

to said act approved March 19, 1889, and entitled "An

act to amend section five of an act approved March 19,

1889, entitled "An act authorizing the incurring of in-

debtedness by cities, towns, and municipal corporations

incorporated under the laws of this State, for the con-

struction of waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public

improvements, or for any purpose whatever, and to re-

peal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act to

authorize municipal corporations of the fifth class, con-

taining more than three thousand and less than ten thou-

sand inhabitants, to obtain waterworks'; also, to repeal
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an act approved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act authoriz-

ing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and

municipal corporations incorporated under the laws of

this State, March 19, 1889.' " Approved March 11, 1891.

And also under and by virtue of the provisions of an

act supplemental to said two last-named acts, and enti-

tled "an act to amend section two of an act approved

March 19, 1889, entitled "An act authorizing the incur-

ring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal cor-

porations incorporated under the laws of this State, for

the construction of waterworks, sewers, and all necessary

public improvements, or for any purpose whatever, and

to repeal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An

act to authorize municipal corporations of the fifth class,

containing more than three thousand and less than ten

thousand inhabitants, to obtain waterworks'; also,

to repeal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An

act authorizing the incurring of indebtedness by cities,

towns, and municipal corporations incorporated under

the laws of this State.' n Approved March 11, 1891.

And also under and by virtue of an act supplemental to

said three last-named acts, and entitled "An act to amend

sections nine and ten of an act entitled 'An act author-

izing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and

municipal corporations incorporated under the laws of

this State, for the construction of waterworks, sewers,

and all necessary public improvements, or for any pur-

pose whatever; and to repeal the act approved March 9,

1885, entitled 'An act to authorize municipal corpora-

tions of the fifth class, containing more than three thou-

sand and less than ten thousand inhabitants, to obtain
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waterworks'; also, to repeal an act approved March 15,

1887, entitled 'An act authorizing the incurring of indebt-

edness by cities, towns, and municipal corporations in-

corporated under the laws of this State.' " Approved

March 19, 1889. Approved March 19, 1891.

And also under and by virtue of an act supplemental to

said four last-named acts, and entitled "An act to amend

section six and section eight of an act approved March 19,

1895, entitled 'An act authorizing the incurring of in-

debtedness by cities, towns, and municipal corporations,

incorporated under the laws of this State, for the con-

struction of waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public

improvements, or for any purpose whatever.' And to re-

peal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act to

authorize municipal corporations of the fifth class, con-

taining more than three thousand and less than ten thou-

sand inhabitants, to obtain waterworks'; also to repeal

an act approved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act author-

izing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and

municipal corporations incorporated under the laws of

this State.' " Approved March 1, 1893.

And in that behalf your oratrix further avers and

shows that said five acts of the said legislature of the

State of California, so approved respectively March 19th,

1889, March 11th, 1891, March 11th, 1891, March 19th,

1891, and March 1st, 1893, did not nor did or could any or

either of them increase or diminish, enlarge, or in any-

Avise affect the powers or authority of the said board of

city trustees of said city of Nevada, which were fixed in

and by said act of the legislature of the State of Califor-

nia incorporating said city of Nevada, and that since said
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last-named act took effect it has constituted and been a

special charter to the said people of the city of Nevada

as hereinabove shown.

That as your oratrix is informed and believes said act

of the legislature of the State of California, so approved

March 12th, 1878, was a special law, and that the same

was not repealed by the adoption of the said new consti-

tution of the State of California hereinabove referred to.

And your oratrix further shows that the said city of

Nevada has never been disincorporated, nor has it elect-

ed or chosen to reincorporate under the said new consti-

tution of the State of California or to avail itself of any

legislation adopted since said new constitution took ef-

fect.

And in that behalf your oratrix further avers and

shows that, among other things, it was provided in said

charter of said city of Nevada under and by virtue of the

provisions of said act of the legislature of the State of

California, approved March 12th, 1878, as aforesaid, in

subdivision 18 of section 8 of said act as follows, that is

to say:

"Said board of trustees shall not contract any liabili-

ties , either by borrowing money, loaning the credit of the

city, or contracting debts which, singly or in the aggre-

gate, shall exceed the sum of two thousand dollars."

And your oratrix having shown that notwithstanding

the fact that the said city of Nevada and said board of

directors of said city are prohibited from contracting any

liabilities, either by borrowing money, loaning the credit

of the city, contracting debts which, singly or in the ag-
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gregate, shall exceed the sum of two thousand dollars, as

provided in said charter of said city of Nevada, yet the

said board of city trustees have taken each and all the

said proceedings hereinabove referred to and have ad-

vertised and given public notice, as hereinabove shown,

that a municipal indebtedness in the sum of sixty thou-

sand dollars is about to be incurred on behalf of said

city of Nevada, and that water bonds of said city of Ne-

vada will immediately be issued in the form and upon

the terms and conditions specified in said Ordinances

numbered 127 and 128, respectively, and as set out in

said notice to bond buyers, a copy of which is hereinabove

set forth, and said board of said trustees has given out

its intention to annually levy a tax upon all the assess-

able property situate within the corporate limits of the

said city of Nevada for the next coming forty years to

provide for the payment of the interest and the ultimate

redemption of the principal of said bonds, aggregating

said sum of sixty thousand dollars, and that under said

five acts just hereinabove referred to it will be and be-

come the duty of said board of city trustees to annually

levy and cause the same to be collected.

And your oratrix further shows in that behalf that the

property of your oratrix will annually be taxed for said

forty years to come, together with other property situate

in said city of Nevada equally liable for said tax for the

purposes aforesaid, which, as your oratrix is informed

and believes, and therefore alleges, will be illegal and

contrary to law and to the irreparable injury and damage

of your oratrix.

And your oratrix further shows that after said taxes
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have been so levied and assessed against her said prop-

erty for the purpose hereinabove set forth that the same

will be subjected to sale, and, unless paid, will be sold,

to her irreparable damage and loss.

And your oratrix further shows that unless restrained

and enjoined by this Honorable Court that said city of

Nevada and said board of trustees of said city will incur

said indebtedness aggregating said sum of sixty thou-

sand dollars, and will issue and sell said water bonds

to the amount aforesaid as set out in said notice to bond

buyers hereinabove set forth in full, and that said pro-

posed and threatened action of said city of Nevada and

said board of trustees is in excess of the powers of said

city of Nevada and said board of trustees, and will great-

ly affect the market value of the property of your ora-

trix and the property of all other persons owning proper-

ty in said city of Nevada similarly situated as the prop-

erty of your oratrix and subject to said special tax, and

that she will thereby be irreparably damaged.

And your oratrix further avers and shows, on her in-

formation and belief, that said city of Nevada and its in-

habitants are already furnished and supplied with pure,

fresh water for domestic and all other necessary pur-

poses, and that said supply of said water is abundant in

every respect and for all the wants and necessities of the

said city of Nevada and its inhabitants, except in a few

remote districts, and that the same is sufficient for all

purposes of every kind, domestic, irrigating, extinguish-

ment of fires, and other purposes, and that therefore the

interests and demands of said city of Nevada and its in-
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habitants do not require the incurring of said indebted-

ness, nor the issuing nor sale of said bonds aggregating

said sum of sixty thousand dollars or any part or portion

thereof.

And your oratrix further shows that the rates of the

sale and disposition of said water are annually fixed by

the said board of city trustees of said city of Nevada, and

being the five individual respondents hereinabove named,

and that said rates are fair and reasonable, and not op-

pressive or unjust or discriminating.

And your oratrix further shows that she is the owner

of the present system of waterworks at said city of Ne-

vada, and that if said indebtedness be incurred and said

bonds be issued and sold as hereinabove set forth, that

the same will injure your oratrix and her said property,

and that the same will be wholly lost to her, and that the

same will greatly affect and impair the value of her said

property, to her great loss and damage unless the said

city of 'Nevada and said board of trustees of said city of

Nevada be enjoined and restrained by this Honorable

Court from further proceeding in said matter.

Wherefore, and because of the matters and things

aforesaid, your oratrix respectfully prays this Honorable

Court that upon the hearing of this cause an injunction

be issued out of and from and under the seal of this Hon-

orable Court enjoining and restraining said city of Neva-

da and said board of trustees of said city of Nevada, and

their and each of their officers, agents, employees, and at-

torneys from further proceeding in said matter, or from

receiving or accepting any bids for the purchase of said
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bonds or any part thereof, or from selling, issuing or de-

livering said bonds or any part thereof, or from levying or

collecting said special tax or any part thereof, and that

upon such hearing such injunction be made perpetual,

and also for her costs and disbursements in this behalf

incurred, and for such other and further relief as may be

conformable to equity and good conscience.

FRANK T. NILON,

WILSON & WILSON,

Solicitors for Complainant.

RUSSELL J. WILSON,

i
Of Counsel.

State of California, )

\ ss
City and County of San Francisco,

\

Eleanor 0. Huntington, being duly sworn, deposes and

says that she is the complainant in the above-entitled ac-

tion; that she has read the foregoing bill of complaint

and knows the contents thereof, and that the same is true

of her own knowledge, except as to the matters which

are therein stated on her information or belief, and as to

those matters that she believes it to be true.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON.

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 6th day of De-

cember, A. D. 1895.

[Seal] JAMES MASON,

Notary Public in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed]: Filed December 10, 1895. W. J. Costigan,

Clerk. By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

/// the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Judicial

Circuit, Northern District of California.

IN EQUITY.

.. . . .. i

Subpoena ad Respondendum.

The President of the United States of America, Greeting,

to the City of Nevada, in the County of Nevada, and

State of California, D. S. Baker, T. H. Carr, A. Gault,

J. F. Hook, and J. C. Rich, composing the board of

city trustees of the said city of Nevada.

You are hereby commanded that you be and appear in

said Circuit Court of the United States aforesaid, at the

courtroom in San Francisco, on the third day of Feb-

ruary, A. D. 1896, to answer a bill of complaint exhibited

against you in said Court by Eleanor C. Huntington, a

femme sole, who is a citizen of the State of New York,

and to do and receive what the said Court shall have con-

sidered in that behalf. And this you are not to omit, un-

der the penalty of five thousand dollars

:

•

Witness, the Honorable MELVILLE W. FULLER,

Chief Justice of the United States, this 10th day of De-

cember in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-

dred and ninety-five, and of our Independence the 120th.

[Seal] W. J. COSTIGAN, Clerk.

By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.
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Memorandum Pursuant to Rule 12, Rules ofPractice for

the Courts of Equity of the United States.

You are hereby required to enter your appearance in

the above suit, on or before the first Monday of February

next, at the clerks office of said Court, pursuant to said

bill; otherwise the said bill will be taken pro confesso.

[Seal] W. J. COSTIGAN, Clerk.

By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.

United States Marshal's Office, )

Northern District of California. )

I hereby certify that I received the within writ on the

11th day of December, 1895, and personally served the

same on the 11th day of December, 1895, on T. H. Carr,

A. Gault, J. F. Hook, and J. C. Rich, composing the board

of city trustees of the city of Nevada, by delivering to

and leaving with T. H. Garr, A. Gault, J. F. Hook, and

J. C. Rich, composing the board of city trustees of the

said city of Nevada, said defendants named therein, at

the county of Nevada, in said district, an attested cop3r

thereof.

San Francisco, December 14th, 1895.

BARRY BALDWIN,
U. S. Marshal.

By S. P. Monckton, Deputy.

United States Marshal's Office,
)

Northern District of California. (

I hereby certify that I received the within writ on the
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11th day of December, 1895, and personally served the

same on the 12th day of December, 1895, on D. S. Baker,

one of the board composing the board of city trustees of

the city of Nevada, by delivering to and leaving with D.

S. Baker, one of the board composing the board of city

trustees of the city of Nevada, said defendant named

therein, personally, at the county of Nevada in said Dis-

trict, a certified copy thereof.

San Franciscoj December 14th, 1895.

BARRY BALDWIN,

U. S. Marshal.

By S. P. Monckton, Deputy.

United States Marshal's Office,

Northern District of California• ila. )

I hereby certify that I received the within writ on the

11th day of December, 1895, and personally served the

same on the 12th day of December, 1895, on the city of

Nevada in the county of Nevada and State of California,

by delivering to and leaving with D. S. Baker, chairman

of the board of city trustees' of the said city of Nevada,

said defendant named therein, personally, at the county

of Nevada, in said District, a certified copy thereof, to-

gether with a copy of the bill in equity.

BARRY BALDWIN,

U. S. Marshal.

By S. P. Monckton, Deputy.

San Francisco, December 14th, 1895.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 16, 1895. W. J. Costigan,

Clerk. By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.
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In the' Circuit Court of the United States, in and for the

Ninth Judicial District, Northern District of California.

IN EQUITY.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON, a Femme

Sole,

Complainant,

vs.

THE OITY OF NEVADA, in the Coun-

ty of Nevada, and State of California,

and D. S. BAKER, T. H. CARR, A.

GAULT, J. F. HOOK, and J. C. RICH

Composing the Board of City Trustees

of the said City of Nevada,

Respondents.

Demurrer.

To the Judges of the Circuit Court of the United States in

and for the Ninth Judicial District, Northern Dis-

trict of California:

Now, by attorneys, come the above-named respondents,

and demur to complainant's bill herein, on the following

grounds, to-wit:

1.

That the bill of complaint herein does not state facts
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sufficient to constitute a cause of action against respon-

dents, or either of them.

Wherefore, respondents ask to be hence dismissed with

their costs.

ALFRED D. MASON,

City Attorney.

J. M. WALLING,

Attorney for Respondents.

State of California, /
' V ss.

County of 'Nevada, \

I, J. M. Walling, attorney and counselor at law, hereby

certify that in my opinion the foregoing demurrer is well

founded in point of law, and that the same is interposed

in good faith, and not for the purpose of delay.

Witness my hand this 4th day of January, A. D. 1896.

J. M. WALLING,

Attorney and Counselor at Law and Attorney for Re-

spondents.

State of California, )
> ss.

County of 'Nevada,

)

T. H. Carr, being first duly sworn, according to law, de-

poses and says: I am a citizen of the United States over

the age of 21 years, and am one of the respondents named

in the above-entitled action. Affiant further says that I

have read the foregoing demurrer on behalf of respond-

ents, and that the same is interposed in good faith and

not for the purposes of delay.

T. H. OARR.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of Jan-

uary, A. D. 1896.

[Seal] JOHN CALDWELL,

Superior Judge, Nevada Co., Cal.

[Endorsed]: Service of the within by copy admitted

this 14th day of January, A. D. 1896. Frank T. Nilon,

Wilson & Wilson, Attorneys for Complainant. Filed

Jany. 16th, 1896. W. J. Costigan, Clerk.

At a special session of the Circuit Court of the United

States of America, of the Ninth Judicial Circuit, in

and for the Northern District of California, held at

the courtroom in the city and county of San Fran-

cisco, on Wednesday, the 17th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and

ninety-six.

Present: The Honorable JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit

Judge.l&o

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,

vs.
;

n

CITY OF NEVADA, et al.

Order Sustaining Demurrer.

The demurrer of the respondents to the bill of com-

plaint herein having been heretofore submitted to the
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court for consideration and decision, and the same having

been fully considered, and the oral opinion of the court

having been delivered, it is ordered that said demurrer

be, and the same is hereby, sustained with leave to the

complainant to amend her bill of complaint within ten

days if she shall be so advised.

At a stated term, to-wit, the July term, A. D. 1896, of the

Circuit Court of the United States of America, of the

Ninth Judicial Circuit, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, held at the courtroom in the city

and county of San Francisco, on Friday, the 24th

day of July, in the year of our Lord one thousand

eight hundred and ninety-six.

Present: The Honorable JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit

Judge.

ELEANOR C. HUNTI'HGTON,

vs. ... 12.141;.

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et al

Order Dismissing Bill of Complaint.

It appearing to the satisfaction of the Court that the

time within which complainant was allowed to file an

amended bill herein expired upon the 18th instant, and

that no amended bill has been filed, and the time for fili-

ng the same not having been extended,

Now, upon motion of J. M. Walling, Esq., counsel for
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respondents, it is ordered that the default of said com-

plainant be and hereby is entered, and it is further or-

dered that a decree be filed and entered herein dismissing

complainant's bill of complaint, and that respondents

have judgment for their costs.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Circuit,

^Northern District of California.

ELEANOR C.HUNTINGTON, a Femme

Sole,

Complainant,

vs. \ No. 12,146.!

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et al.,

Respondents.
d

Enrollment.

The complainant filed her bill of complaint herein on

the 10th day of December, 1895, which is hereto annexed.

A subpoena to appear and answer in said cause was

thereupon issued, returnable on the 3rd day of February,

A. D. 1896, which is hereto annexed.

The respondents appeared herein on the 6th day of

January, 1896, by Alfred D. Mason and J. M. Walling,

Esqs., their solicitors.

On the 16th day of January, 1896, a demurrer was filed

herein, which is hereto annexed.
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On the 17th day of June, 1896, an order sustaining said

demurrer, with leave to complainant to amend her bill

within ten days, was made and entered herein, a copy of

which order is hereto annexed.

On the 24th day of July, 1896, the default of complain-

ant was by order of Court duly entered herein, a copy of

which order is hereto annexed.

Thereafter, a final decree was signed, filed, and entered

herein, in the words and figures following, to-wit:

At a stated term, to-wit, the July term, A. D. 1896, of the

Circuit Court of the United States of America, of the

Ninth Judicial Circuit, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, held at the courtroom in the city

and county of San Francisco, on Friday, the 24th day

of July, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and ninety-six.

•Present: The Honorable JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit

Judge. .
|

ELEANOR C.HUNTINGTON, a Femme
•Sole,

Complainant,

vs. - } No. 12,146.

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et al.,

Respondents.

Pinal Decree.

Jn this cause the demurrer of respondents to the bill of
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complaint of complainant having, on the 17th day of

June, 1896, been sustained, with leave to complainant to

amend her bill within ten days, and said time, with the

extensions thereof, having expired, and no amendment to

said bill, or amended bill having been filed, and the de-

fault of said complainant having been this day entered,

and the Court having, upon motion of J. M. Walling,

Esq., counsel for respondents, ordered that complainant's

bill be dismissed, and that respondents have judgment

for their costs

:

Whereupon, upon consideration, thereof, it is ordered,

adjudged, and decreed, that the complainant's bill of

complaint herein be and the same hereby is dismissed,

and that respondents recover from complainant their

costs herein expended, taxed at $17.00.

JOSEPH McKENNA,
Circuit Judge.

Filed and entered July 24th, 1896. W. J. Costigan,

Clerk.

Certificate to Enrollment.

Whereupon, said pleadings, subpoena, copies of orders,

final decree are hereto annexed, said final decree being

duly signed, filed, and enrolled, pursuant to the practice

of said Circuit Court.

Attest, etc.

[Seal] W. J. COSTIGAN, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Enrolled papers. Filed July 24th, 1896.

W. J. Costigan, Clerk.
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Hon. JOSEPH McKENNA, Judge.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Circuit,

czzsbm Northern District of California.

ELEANOR 0. HUNTINGTON,
Complainant,

vs.

CTTY OF NEVADA, et al.,

Respondents.

No. 12,146.

Opinion.

Wednesday, June 17, 1896.

Decision of the Court upon demurrer to bill of com-

plaint: Demurrer sustained.

Appearances : Messrs. F. T. Nilon and Wilson & Wil-

son, for the Complainant;

Messrs. Alfred D. Mason and J. M.

Walling, for the Respondents.

The Court (Orally).—This is a suit to restrain the issu-

ance of bonds under an ordinance of the city of Nevada,

which is claimed to be illegal.

The ordinance was passed to provide for the erection

and maintenance of waterworks, the ordinary expendi-

tures of the city authorized by its charter not being suffi-

cient for that purpose.

The city of Nevada was incorporated prior to the adop-

tion of the new constitution, so-called. The ordinance

complained of was passed under an act of the legislature
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of this State, with reference to which the following lan-

guage is contained in the bill

:

"And your oratrix further alleges and shows that in

passing said Ordinances Numbers 127 and 128, respec-

tively, and in calling such special election hereinbefore

referred to, and in causing said notice to bond buyers to

be so printed, published, advertised, and circulated, the

said city of Nevada and said board of city trustees of said

city of Nevada did assume to act under and by virtue of

the act of the legislature of the State of California, en-

titled 'An act authorizing the incurring of indebtedness

by cities, towns, and municipal corporations, incorpo-

rated under the laws of this State; for the construction of

waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public improve-

ments, or for any purpose whatever, and to repeal the

act approved March 9, 1885, entitled "An act to authorize

municipal corporations of the fifth class, containing more

than three thousand and less than ten thousand inhabi-

tants, to obtain waterworks"; also to repeal an act ap-

proved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act authorizing the

incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal

corporations, incorporated under the laws of this State,"

approved March 19, 1889; and also under and by virtue of

an act supplemental to said act approved March 19, 1889,

and entitled 'An act to amend section five of an act ap-

proved March 19, 1889, entitled "An Act authorizing the

incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, " ' " etc.

It is urged by complainant that these acts are not ap-

plicable to cities or towns incorporated before the adop-

tion of the new constitution. The provision of the con-
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stitution relied on is section 6 of article XI, which is as

follows

:

"Corporations for municipal purposes shall not be cre-

ated by special laws; but the legislature, by general laws,

shall provide for the incorporation, organization, and

classification, in proportion to population, of cities and

towns, which clause may be altered, amended, or re-

pealed. Cities and towns heretofore organized or incor-

porated may become organized under such general laws

whenever a majority of the electors voting at a general

election shall so determine, and shall organize in con-

formity therewith; and cities and towns heretofore or

hereafter organized, and all charters thereof framed or

adopted by authority of this constitution, shall be subject

to and controlled by general laws."

Desmond v. Dunn, 55 Cal. 245, is cited to sustain the

complainant's contention, and the case appears to justify

this. But almost immediately the Court began to modify

that case. This appears in Barton v. Kallock et al., 56 Cal.

204, and more distinctly in Wood v. Election Commission,

58 Cal. 569.

After a preliminary explanation, which may be omit-

ted, the Court said: "Yet the city and county of San

Francisco remains a subdivision of the State, and is not

entirely free from legislative control. For, in the same

section of the constitution in which the then existing city

and town organizations are recognized and the continu-

ance of their existing charters permitted, it is declared

that 'cities and towns heretofore .... organized ....

shall be subject to and controlled by general laws.'

"

A case preceding that is the case of Earl v. Board of
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Supervisors, 55 Cal. 489. The case of Desmond v. Dunn

was not passed on there; the ease turns on the effect of

special laws.

In Donahue v. Graham, 61 Oal. 276, Mr. Justice Mc-

Kinstry, in a dissenting opinion, held that Desmond v.

Dunn decided that the consolidation act was continued in

existence as an entirety. The majority of the Court, how-

ever, did not pass on Desmond v. Dunn. It held certain

provisions of the constitution to be self-operative, and as

the street law of San Francisco was inconsistent with it,

it was held to be repealed, following McDonald v. Patter-

son, 54 Cal. 245.

The case of Staude v. Election Commission, 61 Cal. 320,

explains Desmond v. Dunn, and interprets the constitu-

tion to mean that it is only in the "incorporation, organi-

zation, and classification of cities and towns incorporated

prior to the new constitution, which are preserved"

—

that in all else cities and towns are subject to the control

of the legislature by general laws.

The case of In re Carillo, 66 Cal. 5, is to the same ef-

fect as the case of Staude v. Election Commission.

In re Guerrero, 69 Cal. 89, is not in conflict with In re

Carillo or Staude v. Election Commission, but confirms

them. The question in the case was the power of the

city of Los Angeles to license certain employments. It

Avas held doubtful under the charter, but confirmed by

the new constitution. The Court said, at page 92, that

the legislature has no power, after the adoption of the

new constitution, by special legislation, but intimates

that it has by general laws.

I wish to say in passing that I am only making a run-
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ning comment on the decisions, and not attempting a

complete review of them—only instancing their point.

In Thomson v. Ashworth, 73 Cal. 73, there is a clear in-

terpretation of the constitution. It is there interpreted

to mean that the limitation on the power of the legisla-

ture over corporations (except as to organization, etc.,

which may be beyond control) formed prior to it (the con-

stitution) is only by special laws. It cannot be done under

special laws, but must be done under general laws. In

other words, the legislature may exercise (except as

above stated) control by general laws. The Court in that

case said:

"It is argued that, according to the views herein ex-

pressed, a city may have its charter totally changed with-

out its consent. This is a proper deduction from the rul-

ing herein, but this cannot be done by a special or local

law, applicable alone to a particular charter. The result

can only be reached by a general law affecting all munici-

pal corporations, or may be all of a class "

In City of Stockton v. Insurance Commissioners, 73 Cal.

624, there seems to be a modification, also, of Desmond v.

Dunn, in part. The Court in that case say:

"We do not mean to imply that the legislature, even by

a general law, can substitute an entirely new charter for

an old one, without the consent of the people of the local-

ity. To that extent we understand the decision in Des-

mond v. Dunn, supra, to be the law.

In passing, this may be said to be an inconsistency, be-

cause, if a charter can be amended by general laws, what

is the limit of change? We are not now concerned with

this apparent or real inconsistency.
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The case of People v. Henshaw, 76 Cal. 437, affirms the

power over corporations formed prior to the constitution

by the legislature by general laws.

There are some other objections to the legality of the

ordinances and the issue of the bonds, which I think are

not well taken. Upon these views, it follows that the

demurrer must be sustained. As I have said, this is a

somewhat crude review of the cases, because I have not

had the time to put it in proper shape, but the essence of

the cases has been properly given.

Mr. Wilson.—It is doubtful, if your Honor please,

whether the bill can be amended, but with your Honor's

permission, I will take ten days to consider the question.

The Court.—Very well. Let an order be entered grant-

ing the complainant ten days in which to amend.

[Endorsed]: Filed June 17th, 1896. W. J. Costigan,

Clerk. By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the Northern

District of California, Ninth Circuit.

SUIT 1M EQUITY.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,

Fernme Sole,

Complainant,

vs.

THE OITY OF NEVADA, in the Coun-

ty of Nevada, and State of California,

and D. S. BAKER, T. H. CARR, A.

GAULT, J. F. HOOK, and J. C. RICH,

Composing the Board of City Trus-

tees of the said City of Nevada,

Respondents.

> No. 12146.

Petition for Appeal.

To the Judges of the Circuit Court of the United States

for the Northern District of California:

Eleanor C. Huntington, feeling aggrieved by the decis-

ion and decree of the said Circuit Court in sustaining the

demurrer to and in dismissing her bill in the above-en-

titled action, by the undersigned, her solicitors herein,

respectfully prays and makes application for, and gives

notice of, an appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit, from the decree of
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said Circuit Court given and rendered in the above-en-

titled action on the 24th day of July, A. D. 1896, in favor

of the above named respondents and against the above-

named complainant dismissing her bill. The complain-

ant files herewith her assignment of errors to said decis-

ion and decree, showing wherein said decision and decree

are erroneous and wherein the complainant has been ag-

grieved by said decision and decree, and prays that an

appeal from said decree may be allowed.

January 22d, 1897.

RUSSELL J. WILSON,

MOUNTFORD S. WILSON,

Solicitors for Complainant.

[Endorsed]: Petition for Appeal. Filed January 22d,

1897. W. J. Costigan, Clerk.
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In the^Circuit Court of the United States for the Northern

District of California, Ninth Circuit.

SUIT IN EQUITY.

ELEANOR G
Femme Sole,

HUNTINGTON, a ^l

Complainant,

vs.

THE CITY OF NEVADA, in the Coun-

ty of Nevada, and State of California,

and D. S. BAKER, T. H. CARR, A.

GAULT, J. F. HOOK and J. C.

RICH, Composing the Board of City

Trustees of the said City of Nevada,

Respondents.

No. 12146.

Assignment of Errors.

In accordance with Rule Eleven of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit, the

complainant files with her petition for an appeal from

the decree of the Circuit Court in and for the Northern

District of California dismissing her bill an assignment

of errors setting out separately and particularly each er-

ror asserted and intended to be urged in support of her

appeal

:
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The Court erred in sustaining the demurrer of the re-

spondents to the bill filed against them by the complain-

ant in the above-entitled suit in equity.

II.

The Court erred in sustaining the demurrer upon the

ground that complainant has no cause of action upon the

facts set forth and alleged in the bill against the respond-

ents.

III.

The Court erred in sustaining the demurrer upon the

ground that the legislature of California is not restrained

by section six of article XI of the constitution of Cali-

fornia adopted in 1879 from exercising control, by gen-

eral laws, over municipal corporations created prior to

its adoption, but only from passing special laws affect-

ing such corporations.

IV.

The Court erred in holding that the case of Desmond v.

DunD, reported in 55 Cal. 245, does not sustain the con-

tention of complainant that the city of Nevada is not

subject to the control of the legislature, by general laws,

and that the said case has been so modified by subse-

quent decisions as to nullify its force and effect, so far as

bearing upon the case at bar.
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V.

The Court erred in holding that the acts of the legisla-

ture of California set forth in this specification of error

are applicable to cities and towns incorporated before the

adoption of the "new constitution," so-called, the said

acts being described and entitled as follows:

1. "An act authorizing the incurring of indebtedness

by cities, towns, and municipal corporations, incorpo-

rated under the laws of this State, for the construction of

waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public improve-

ments, or for any purpose whatever, and to repeal the

act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act to authorize

municipal corporations of the fifth class, containing more

than three thousand and less than ten thousand inhabi-

tants, to obtain waterworks'; also to repeal an Act ap-

proved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act authorizing the

incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal

corporations, incorporated under the laws of this

State,' " approved March 19, 1889.

2. "An act to amend section five of an act approved

March 19, 1889, entitled 'An act authorizing the incurring

of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal corpora-

tions incorporated under the laws of this State, for the

construction of waterworks, sewers, and all necessary

public improvements, or for any purpose whatever, and

to repeal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act

to authorize municipal corporations of the fifth class, con-

taining more than three thousand and less than ten
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thousand inhabitants, to obtain waterworks' ; also, to re-

peal an act approved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act au-

thorizing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns,

and municipal corporations incorporated under the laws

of this State,' March 19, 1889," approved March 11, 1891.

3. "An act to amend section two of an act approved

March 19, 1889, entitled 'An act authorizing the incur-

ring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and municipal cor-

porations, incorporated under the laws of this State, for

the construction of waterworks, sewers, and all necessary

public improvements, or for any purpose whatever'; and

to repeal the act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act

to authorize municipal corporations of the fifth class,

containing more than three thousand and less than ten

thousand inhabitants, to obtain waterworks'; also to re-

peal an act approved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act au-

thorizing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns,

and municipal corporations incorporated under the laws

of this State,' " approved March 11, 1891.

4. "An act to amend sections nine and ten of an act en-

titled 'An act authorizing the incurring of indebtedness

by cities, towns, and municipal corporations incorporated

under the laws of this State, for the construction of

waterworks, sewers, and all necessary public improve-

ments, or for any purpose whatever'; and to repeal the

act approved March 9, 1885, entitled 'An act to authorize

municipal corporations of the fifth class, containing more

than three thousand and less than ten thousand inhabi-

tants, to obtain waterworks'; also, to repeal an act ap-

proved March 15, 1887, entitled 'An act authorizing the
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incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and munici-

pal corporations incorporated under the laws of this

State, approved March 19, 1889.' " Approved March 19,

1891.

5. "An act to amend section six and section eight of

an act approved March 19, 1889, entitled 'An act author-

izing the incurring of indebtedness by cities, towns, and

municipal corporations, incorporated under the laws of

this State, for the construction of waterworks, sewers,

and all necessary public improvements, or for any pur-

pose whatever; and to repeal the act approved March 9,

1885, entitled 'An act to authorize municipal corpora-

tions of the fifth class, containing more than three thou-

sand and less than ten thousand inhabitants, to obtain

waterworks'; also to repeal an act approved March 15,

1887, entitled 'An act authorizing the incurring of in-

debtedness by cities, towns, and municipal corporations

incorporated under the laws of this State.'

"

VI.

The Court erred in holding that the said Ordinances

Numbers 127 and 128, adopted by the board of trustees

of the city of Nevada, and herein complained of, were le-

gally adopted, said ordinances having been passed under

the acts of the legislature last above described in the

fifth assignment of error herein.

VII.

The Court erred in holding that the said Ordinance
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Number 127 so passed by the board of trustees of said

city of Nevada, was legally adopted, contrary to the ob-

jection of the complainant; that the same was not ap-

proved by the executive officer of the municipality, as re-

quired by law. The said Ordinance Number 127 in full

being as follows:

"Ordinance No. 127.

An ordinance determining the necessity of the city of

Nevada acquiring and owning waterworks and water,

the cost of which will be in excess of its ordinary annual

income.

The Board of Trustees of the city of Nevada do ordain

as follows:

.

.

,, * •

Section 1.

It is hereby determined that the public interest of

Nevada City demands the acquisition and ownership by

said city of waterworks, water, reservoirs and reservoir

sites, pipes, aqueducts, conduits, and all other appliances

and things necessary or convenient for the storage of wa-

ter by said city and the supplying of water to the resi-

dents thereof.

Section 2.

That the necessary cost thereof will be in excess of the

ordinary annual income and revenue of said city.

Section 3.

This ordinance shall be published for three weeks in
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the Nevada City 'Daily Transcript,' and shall take effect

on the 12th day of August, 1895.

Passed by the following vote:

Ayes : Baker, Carr, Hook, Gault, Kich.

Noes:

Passed the 18th day of July, 1895.

D. S. BAKEK,
President of the Board of City Trustees of Nevada City.

Attest: T. H. Oarr, Clerk of the Board." .

.." m

VIII.

The Court erred in not holding that the proceedings

leading up to the issue of bonds were illegal.

IX.

The Court erred in holding that the various acts of the

legislature set forth in the bill and also in the fifth as-

signment of error, approved respectively on March 19,

1889, March 11, 1891, March 11, 1891, March 19, 1891, and

March 1st, 1893, affect the powers of the board of trus-

tees of said city of Nevada, contrary to the act of the leg-

islature, approved March 12, 1878, incorporating said city

of Nevada.

•X.

The Court erred in not holding that said city of Nevada

had no right or authority to contract any liability, either
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by borrowing money, loaning the credit of the city, or

contracting debts which, singly or in the aggregate,

should exceed the sum of two thousand dollars, as lim-

ited and prescribed in its charter under the act of the

legislature of the State of California, approved March

12th, 1878.

XI.

The Court erred in not holding that all the acts and

proceedings of the said board of trustees in passing said

ordinances leading up to the issue of said bonds and the

borrowing of the sums contemplated, were illegal and

void ab initio.

XII.

The Court erred in rendering its decree dismissing the

bill.

XIII.

The Court erred in not rendering its decision in favor

of the complainant in said action and granting the relief

prayed for in the bill of complaint therein.

XIV.

For the manifest errors appearing in the decision and

in the decree dismissing the bill complainant prays that

the decision and decree be reversed.

January 22d, 1887.

RUSSELL J. WILSON,

MOUNTFORD S. WILSON,

Solicitors for Complainant.
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[Endorsed]: Assignment of Errors. Filed January

22d, 1897. W. J. Costigan, Clk.

At a stated term, to-wit, the November term, A. D. 1896,

of the Circuit Court of the United States of America,

of the Ninth Judicial Circuit, in and for the North-

ern District of California, held at the courtroom in

the city and county of San Francisco, on Friday, the

22d day of January, in the year of our Lord one thou-

sand eight hundred and ninety-seven.

Present: The Honorable JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit

Judge.

IN EQUITY.

ELEANOR C, HUNTINGTON, a

Femme Sole,

Complainant,

vs.

THE CITY OF NEVADA, in the Coun-

ty of Nevada, and State of California, >
Xo. 1 :

and D. S. BAKER, T. H. CARE, A
GAULT, J. F. HOOK and J. C.

RICH, Composing the Board of City

Trustees of the said City of Nevada.

Respondents.

Order Allowing Appeal.

Upon motion of Russell J. Wilson, Esq., one of the
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members of the law firm of Wilson & Wilson, and one of

the Solicitors for complainant, and upon the presentation

and filing of a petition for an order allowing an appeal,

and an assignment of errors

—

It is ordered that an appeal to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the final

decree heretofore on the 24th day of July, A. D. 1896,

filed and entered herein be, and the same is hereby, al-

lowed, and that a certified transcript of the pleadings,

exhibits, record, and all proceedings herein be forthwith

transmitted to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

It is further ordered that a bond on appeal in the sum

of five hundred (f500) dollars be approved and filed.

Tn the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Circuit,

Northern District of California.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,
Complainant and Plaintiff,

vs. I No. 12 '

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et ai.,

Respondents and Defendants. /

Bond on Appeal.

Know All Men by These Presents, that we Eleanor C.
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Huntington, as principal, and Charles G. Lathrop and

Charles H. Lovell, as sureties, are held and firmly bound

unto the said defendants and respondents, in the full and

just sum of five hundred (f500.00) dollars, to be paid to

the said defendants and respondents, their attorneys, suc-

cessors, or assigns; to which payment, well and truly to

be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, and ad-

ministrators, jointly and severally, by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this twenty-second day

of January, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and ninety-seven.

Whereas, lately at a session of the Circuit Court of the

United States, for the Northern District of California, in a

suit depending iD said Court, between the said complain-

ant and the said respondents a decision and decree w,as

rendered against the said complainant, and the said com-

plainant, having obtained from said Court an order al-

lowing an appeal, to reverse the said decision and decree

made and entered, in the aforesaid Court, and a citation

directed to the said respondents and defendants is about

to be issued citing and admonishing them to be and ap<-

pear at a United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, to be holden at San Francisco, in the State

of California, on the nineteenth day of February next

—

Now, the condition of the above obligation is such, that

if the said complainant and appellant shall prosecute her

said appeal according to law and to effect, and shall an-

swer all damages and costs that shall be awarded

against them, if she fail to make said plea good, then the
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above obligation to be void; else to remain in full force

and virtue.

CHAS. G. LATHROP. [Seal]

CHAS. H. LOVELL. [Seal]

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON. [Seal]

By RUSSELL J. WILSON, and

MOUNTFORD S. WILSON,

Her Solicitors.

United States of America,

Northern District of California, )> ss.

City and County of San Francisco.

Charles G. Lathrop and Charles H. Lovell, being duly

sworn, each for himself, deposes and says that he is a

householder in said district, and is worth the sum of five

hundred ($500.00) dollars, exclusive of property exempt

from execution, and over and above all debts and liabili-

ties.

CHAS. G. LATHROP.

CHARLES H. LOVELL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 22nd day of

January, A. D. 1897.

[Seal] JAMES MASON,

Notary Public in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed]: Bond on Appeal. Form of bond and suffi-

ciency of securities approved. JOSEPH McKENNA,

Judge. Filed January 22, 1897. W. J. Costigan, Clerk.



56 Eleanor C. Huntington vs.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, of the Ninth Judi-

cial Circuit, Northern District of California.

12146.

ELEANOR O. HUNTINGTON,
Complainant, _

vs.
^
No -

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et al.,
j

[Respondents. J

Certificate to Transcript.

I, W. J. Costigan, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the

United States of America, of the Ninth Judicial Circuit,

in and for the Northern District of California, do hereby

certify the foregoing pages, numbered from 1 to 54 inclu-

sive, to be a full, true, and correct copy of the record and

proceedings in the above-entitled cause, and that the

same together constitute the transcript of the record here-

in, upon appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that the cost of the foregoing tran-

script of record is $31.60, and that said amount was paid

by appellant.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed the seal of said Circuit Court this 9th day of

February, A. D. 1897.

[Seal] W. J. COSTIGAN,

Clerk United States Circuit Court, Northern District of

California.
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Citation.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ss.

The President of the United States, to the City of Nevada,

in the County of Nevada, and State of California, and

I). S. Baker, T. H. Carr, A. Gault, J. F. Hook, and J.

C. Rich, composing the board of city trustees of the

said city of Nevada, Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear

at a United States Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth

Circuit, to be holden at the City of San Francisco, in the

State of California, on the 19th day of February next, pur-

suant to an order allowing an appeal entered in the

clerk's office of the Circuit Court of the United States,

Ninth Circuit, Northern District of California, in a cer-

tain action numbered 12146, wherein Eleanor C. Hunting-

ton, a femme sole, is complainant and appellant, and you

are respondents and appellees, to show cause, if any there

be, why the decree rendered against the said complain-

ant and appellant as in the said order allowing an appeal

mentioned, should not be corrected, and why speedy jus-

tice should not be doue to the parties in that behalf.

Witness, the Honorable JOSEPH McKENNA, Judge

of the United States Circuit Court, Ninth Circuit, North-

ern District of California, this 22nd day of January, A.

D. 1897.

JOSEPH McKENNA,
U. S. Circuit Judge.
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Service of within citation and receipt of a copy thereof

is hereby admitted this first day of Feb. 1897.

J. M. WALLING and

A. D. MASON.

Attorneys for Defendants and Respondents.

[Endorsed]: Citation. Piled Feby. 9th, 1897. W. J.

Costigan, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: No. 356. In the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Eleanor C. Hunt-

ington, Appellant, v. The City of Nevada, et al., Appel-

lees. Transcript of Record. Appeal from the Circuit

Court of the United States of the Ninth Judicial Circuit,

in and for the Northern District of California.

Filed February 18th, 1897.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.
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IN THE UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,
Appellant,

VS.

THE CITY OF NEVADA et al.,

Appellees.

$nef of Complainant antr Appellant

RUSSELL J. WILSON,

MOUNTFORD S. WILSON,

Solicitors for Complainant and Appellant.

Filed the 12th day of June, i8gj.

Clerk.

H. S. CROCKER COMPANY, PRINTERS, 8. P.





IN THE

United States Circuit Court ofAppeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,
Appellant,

vs.

THE CITY OF NEVADA, et al.

Appellees.

Appealfrom the Circuit Court of the United States

of the Ninth Judicial Circuit, Northern

District of California.

flricf of Appellant

This is an action praying that an injunction be

issued enjoining and restraining theCity ofNevada

and its Board of Trustees, the appellees herein,

from proceeding any further in the matter of issu-

ing bonds for the purpose of establishing water

works. The demurrer interposed by the respond-

ents to complainant's bill was sustained by the



Court below, and, the complainant declining to

amend, her bill was dismissed and final decree

entered, and this appeal is from the decree ren-

dered in favor of the respondents and against the

complainant and appellant, dismissing her bill.

An assignment of errors was duly filed setting out

the errors asserted and intended to be urged in

support of appellant's appeal, to which assign-

ment we respectfully invite the attention of this

Honorable Court.

The facts are fully set forth in the bill of com-

plaint and show that the City of Nevada was duly

incorporated by Act of the Legislature of the State

of California, passed on the 12th day of March,

1878, and that from that time the City of Nevada

became and was a municipal corporation, and still

is in existence under and solely by virtue of the

provisions of said Act of March 12, 1878, and not

otherwise, and that said Act was, and still is, in

full force and effect; that in July and September,

1895, its Board of Trustees passed two certain or-

dinances looking to the creation of an indebted-

ness of |60,000, for the purchase of water works,

although that sum was largely in excess of the

amount of indebtedness allowed or permitted to

be created by the provisions of the Act of March

12, 1878, under which alone the city had power to

act, as claimed by appellant. That, thereafter, fur-

ther proceedings were had, and in October, 1895,



a special election was held at which more than

two-thirds of all the voters voting at said election

authorized the issuance of bonds aggregating $60,-

000 in value. That, thereafter, the said Board of

Trustees issued, printed, published and circulated

notices calling for bids for the said proposed bonds

up to the 12th day of December, 1895, but that this

complainant filed her bill in equity on the 10th

day of December, 1895, and that from that time-

thereafter nothing further has been done by the

said Board of Trustees in the matter of the sale or

disposal of said bonds. That the said Board of

Trustees, in taking all the steps set forth looking

to the issuance of said bonds assumed to act under

and by virtue of certain Acts of the Legislature

(fully set forth in the bill and in the 5th assign-

ment of errors), passed after the adoption of the

new Constitution of the State of California, which

took effect, for some purposes, on July 1, 1879, and

for all purposes on Januar}^ 1, 1880.

It is the contention of appellant that the Act of

March 12, 1878, under which the City of Nevada

was incorporated, was not in anywise affected by

the new Constitution, and that, therefore, the pow-

ers of the Board of Trustees were in no degree

enlarged or extended by the subsequent Acts of

the Legislature (set forth in the 5th assignment

of errors), passed in 1889, 1891 and 1893. If this

contention be true, then it follows that the Board



of Trustees of the City of Nevada had no authority

whatsoever to incur an indebtedness for a sum

greater than $2,000, the amount authorized by

the Act of March 12, 1878, and that all the acts of

the Board looking to the creation of an indebted-

ness of $60,000 were, and are, null and void ah

initio.

And it was further shown by the bill that the

City of Nevada had never been disincorporated,

and had never elected or chosen to reincorporate

under the general Municipal Act of 1883, or under

the said new Constitution, or to avail itself of any

legislation adopted since said new Constitution

took effect. It was further shown that the incur-

ring of such an indebtedness as $60,000 was wholly

unnecessary and would be a burden upon all tax

payers, and would work a great and irreparable

injury upon complainant, a tax payer.

The main reliance of complainant and appellant

was, and is, the case of Desmond vs. Dunn, 55 Gal.,

243, and we respectfully contend that this case is

conclusive of the case at bar and that the decree

of the Circuit Court should be reversed. We re-

spectfully insist that the criticisms on the case of

Desmond vs. Dunn have not overruled it, but have

in some instances, explained and modified its

effects, though still leaving it the law on this sub-

ject in this State, and controlling on this appeal.



As stated by counsel for complainant at the oral

argument, the question at once arose when the

new Constitution took effect as to what was the

status of municipal corporations which had an

existence anterior to the adoption of the new Con-

stitution, and in view of the importance of this

question it was not singular that the City and

County of San Francisco was the first munici-

pality in the State to invoke the consideration and

decision of the highest tribunal in the State,

which was done in the now well-known case of

Desmond vs. Dunn, supra.

For the convenience of the Court, we will here

insert such parts of that decision as are directly

applicable to the question at issue here, and they

are as follows:

"The first question which we shall consider is

this: If the McClure Charter be constitutional, can

it have any force or effect within a municipal cor-

poration which was incorporated prior to the

adoption of the Constitution, until a majority of

the electors of such corporation vote to accept or

organize under it? Section 6 of Art. XI provides

that 'Cities and towns heretofore organized or in-

corporated ma) become organized under general

laws whenever a majority of-the electors voting at

a general election shall so determine, and shall

organize in conformity therewith; and cities and

towns heretofore or hereafter organized, and all



charters thereof framed or adopted by authority

of tliis Constitution, shall be subject to, and con-

trolled by general laws.' Both of these clauses

plainly refer to charters which may be framed by

authority of the present Constitution, and the lat-

ter clause is expressly limited to charters so

framed. Neither applies to charters which existed

before the adoption of the present Constitution.

All such charters must remain in force until super-

seded or changed in the mode prescribed by the

Constitution. In the absence of any positive pro-

vision to the contrary, this is necessarily implied.

These are the only provisions which are expressly

made applicable to cities incorporated previously

to the adoption of the Constitution; and the first

expressly provides that any of such cities may

become organized under general laws whenever a

majority of the electors of such city shall so deter-

mine; and the other, that any charter framed or

adopted under the present Constitution shall be

subject to, and controlled by general laws. But

charters not framed or adopted by authority of

said Constitution, need not be subject to or con-

trolled by general laws. Therefore, the charter of

the City and County of San Francisco, which ante-

dates the present Constitution, and was not

framed or adopted by authority of it, is not sub-

ject to, or controlled by general laws. From

which it follows, that if the McClure Charter falls

within the term 'general laws,* it cannot have any



force or effect within the City and County of San

Francisco, until a majority of the electors thereof

so determine, in the manner provided in the Con-

stitution, unless there be some other provision of

the Constitution which gives force and effect to

said Charter, without such determination of a ma-

jority of the electors.

"As these two clauses are the only ones which

expressly refer to cities which had charters before

and at the time of the adoption of the Constitu-

tion, and as many of the other provisions of the

Constitution unmistakably refer to charters to be

framed or adopted after the adoption of the Con-

stitution, it is clearly our duty, upon well-estab-

lished principles of construction, to hold that any

general provisions which seem to conflict with

these special provisions, were intended to apply

to charters framed subsequently to the adoption

of the Constitution. (Dwarris on Statutes, 765;

Cooley's Const. Lim., 03; Commonwealth v. The

Council of Montrose, 52 Pa. St., 391; Wise v. But-

ton, 25 Wis., 109).

"To the foregoing views, one objection is raised,

which is not wholly devoid of plausibility. It is,

that the cities mentioned in section 6 are corpora-

tions other than consolidated cities and counties,

and that, therefore, the provisions of that section

do not apply to the City and County of San Fran-

cisco. It seems to us, however, that there is a

clause in section 7 which whollv obviates this ob-



jeetion. It reads as follows: 'The provisions of

this Constitution, applicable to cities, and also

those applicable to counties, so far as not incon-

sistent or not prohibited to cities, shall be appli-

cable to such consolidated governments.' The

meaning of this plainly is, that all the provisions

of the Constitution applicable to cities shall be

applicable to consolidated governments; and all

the provisions applicable to counties shall also be

applicable to such consolidated governments, ex-

cept such as are inconsistent with the provisions

of the Constitution applicable to cities or pro-

hibited to cities; which indubitably makes all the

provisions of the Constitution which are appli-

cable to cities likewise applicable to consolidated

governments, although provisions applicable to

counties may also be applicable to such consoli-

dated governments, if not inconsistent with the

provisions of the Constitution applicable to cities,

or prohibited by it to them. This strikes us as

being such a complete answer to the objection

above stated as to render it unnecessary to sug-

gest any other.

"Our first conclusion, therefore, is, that the Mc-

Clure charter, if constitutional, cannot take effect

as the corporation known as the City and County

of San Francisco, until a majority of the electors

of said corporation, voting at a general election,

shall so determine.
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"On the argument, it was insisted that the con-

sequence of this would be to leave said city and

county without any government after the first of

next month. This suggestion would be entitled

to some weight if the language of the Constitution

on this point were so ambiguous as to leave room

for doubt as to the intention of its framers. In

the absence of any such doubt, however, our deci-

sion upon the proper construction of tile Constitu-

tion cannot be influenced by what may be the con-

sequences of a proper construction. But there is

no ground for any alarm. Impliedly the Constitu-

tion provides that cities, incorporated previously

to its adoption, shall continue to exist under their

existing acts of incorporation, until a majority of

the electors determine to be organized under gen-

eral laws, or frame a charter for their own govern-

ment. The argument that the existing charter

must cease after the first of next month, because

it is inconsistent with the clause of section 7 of

the Constitution, which provides, that 'in consoli-

dated city and county governments of more than

one hundred thousand population there shall be

two Boards of Supervisors, or Houses of Legis-

lation,' is based upon what we conceive to be a

very narrow view of the provisions of the Con-

stitution; because, if the Constitution has pro-

vided, as we think it has, by necessary implication,

that the present charter shall remain in force and
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effect until superseded or supplanted by one

framed and adopted in accordance with the pro-

visions of the Constitution, then no provision of

the present charter can be justly said to be incon-

sistent with any provision of the Constitution.

The clause relating to two Boards, or Houses of

Legislation, has reference to general laws passed

or charters framed for the government of cities,

subsequently to the adoption of the Constitution.

Otherwise, cities previously incorporated might, by

the neglect of the Legislature to pass general

laws, or of the people to frame charters .for their

government, be left without any governments

after the first of next month. If the existing gov-

ernments of cities, or of consolidated cities and

counties, expire on the first of July, 1880, the fram-

ers of the Constitution could not have overlooked

the contingency which might arise, by which such

municipalities would be wholl3T without govern-

ments after that date. And if they foresaw it, as

they must have foreseen it, if it can arise, they

would have provided against it. AYe certainly

could not, upon a clause of doubtful meaning, hold

that the Convention intentionally or heedlessly

paved the way for the introduction of 'disorgani-

zation and chaos;' or that it intended to deprive

any municipality of all government, unless such

municipality should frame a charter for its own

government, or organize under general laws,
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which might be obnoxious to a majority of its

electors, within an unreasonably short period.

'When the Legislature means to invade previously

invested rights, to disregard the public interest,

and endanger the peace of the commonwealth, its

intention must be expressed in terms free from all

ambiguity' (Packer v. S. & E. R. Co., 19 Pa. St.,

211).

"The conclusion at which we have arrived is

that the Act of incorporation of the City and

(Nmiity of San Francisco, commonly known as

The Consolidation Act,' is within the first, and not

within the last clause of section 1 of the Schedule

to the Constitution. And we base this conclusion

upon what we conceive to have been the intention

of the framers of the Constitution, as we gather it

from the language of the instrument itself. To us

the general intention to emancipate municipali-

ties, as far as it consistently could be done, from

the control of the Legislature, is apparent; and

we cannot hold that general laws for the govern-

ment of such municipalities can take effect in any

of them until a majority of the electors so de-

termine, without violating not only the spirit, but

likewise the plain letter of the < institution. The

intention being clear, it is our duty to give effect

to it."

In Desmond vs. Dunn, Mr. Justice Myrick was

exceptionally careful in his separate concurring
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opinion, to be found on page 253, to point out in-

dustriously the situation, so to speak, and indicate

the three courses, either one of which might be

pursued by the people of the City and County of

San Francisco under the then, and now, existing

circumstances: First, that the City and County of

San Francisco could frame and adopt, subject to

ratification by the Legislature, a new charter, and

which, if ratified and approved, would supersede

any existing charter; second, that if the Legisla-

ture should pass a general law providing for the

incorporation, organization and classification, in

proportion to the population, of cities and towns,

that, the people of San Francisco might determine

to become organized under such general law

whenever a majority of the electors voting at the

general election should express their wish so to

do; or, third, by non-action, that is, by failing to

pursue to the end either of the two courses above

indicated, they might retain and act under their

present charter, known as the "Consolidation

Act," except as to such parts as might be in con-

flict with the Constitution, viz, method of street

improvements, and the like.

The City of Nevada is in no different situation

to-day than was the City and County of San Fran-

cisco when Desmond vs. Dunn was decided, and as

the. City and County of San Francisco now is.

No new charter has ever been proposed, adopted

or ratified by the people of the City of Nevada, and
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it has not become organized under any general

law by a vote of a majority of its electors, voting

at either a general or a special election, ami has

seemed to be contented, as was the City and

County of San Francisco, with its present charter,

limited and restricted as it may be, and without

all the authority which possibly it might covet.

The case of Desmond vs. Dunn was the only

case in which the central point considered was,

were the old charters before the adoption of the

new Constitution affected by its adoption and de-

clared void, and in that case it was squarely held,

and has, we contend, not since been overruled,

that the old charters remained in existence until

the particular municipality, such as the City of

Nevada, might see fit to either adopt a new char-

ter, or elect by popular vote, to become organized

under such general law as the Legislature might

thereafter see tit to pass.

A general municipal Act was passed in 1883 by

the Legislature of the State of California provid-

ing for the incorporation, organization and classi-

fication, by population, of cities and counties

throughout the State, but it will be seen, by refer-

ence to the new Constitution and the Act of 1883

and Acts supplemental thereto and amendatory

thereof, that such incorporation, organization and

classification could only be effected by a popular

vote of the particular municipality seeking to
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avail itself of the benefits of the Act, and we in-

sist that until the City of Nevada shall, by popu-

lar vote, so determine, that the old charter of 1878

must remain intact, and that the power of the

Board of Trustees of that City cannot be enlarged

by a general law such as the Act of 1889 and the

amendatory Acts thereof.

The attention of this Honorable Court is invited

to the provisions of the charter of the City of Ne-

vada, wherein it will be seen that the powers of

the Board of Trustees were exceedingly limited,

and in many places perhaps inadequate to the

growing necessities of the City; but the people of

the City of Nevada saw fit, whether wisely or not,

to insist upon a limitation of these powers, and

these were the conditions, and only conditions,

upon which they agreed to become incorporated,

subject to the approval and consent of the Legis-

lature of the State of California.

This consent and approval was manifested by

the passage of the Act of the Legislature of

March, 1878, incorporating the City of Nevada,

and this Act has remained upon the statute books

unimpaired ever since.

If prior to the adoption of the new Constitution

in 1880 the people of the City of Nevada had de-

sired that these powers of the Board of Trustees

of the City of Nevada should be increased or en-

larged they would have been compelled to have
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made application to the Legislature of the State

of California for such new and enlarged powers,

and which, if granted by the Legislature prior to

the adoption of the new Constitution, they could

have exercised; but, had the Legislature denied it,

they could not have exercised any additional

powers, other than those originally set out in the

charter of 1878.

It is evident that one of the objects of the new

Constitution was to provide for local self-gov-

ernment as far as possible.

This was stated by counsel for complainant on

the oral argument, and this thought will be found

in one of the decisions of the Supreme Court of the

State of California in Thomason vs. Ruggles, 69

Cal., 470, where it is said:

"Id arriving at a proper conclusion in this case,

we labor under the great difficulty of endeavoring

to harmonize apparently conflicting provisions of

the Constitution. One idea seems to be prominent

in that instrument, tit at is, local government for

local purposes."

The people of the State of California, almost ex-

hausted, it may be said, with local bills and special

legislation, passed from time to time at protracted

sessions of its Legislature, reluctant always to ad-

journ, saw fit in 1880 to frame and adopt a new

Constitution, declaring that a new order of things

should thenceforth prevail, and by most stringent
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provisions declared that thereafter no special or

loca] Legislation should be had, and limited the

sessions of the Legislature, so far as the compen-

sation of its members was concerned, at least, to

sixty days, which substantially fixed the life of the

Legislature at sixty days, as even the patriotism

of its members, without compensation, rarely ex-

tended it beyond that period.

Had the people of California, in 1880, seen fit

to express^ provide in the new Constitution that

all previously existing charters of municipalities

should cease after a fixed time, we would not now

be before this Honorable Court on behalf of the

complainant, but this was omitted from the new
m

Constitution, and, as held in Desmond vs. Dunn,

all these charters were expressly continued in ex-

istence, at least by the strongest implication, until

otherwise changed as provided by law.

The incorporation, organization and classifica-

tion of cities should first have claimed and re-

ceived the attention of the Legislature which con-

vened after the adoption of the new Constitution,

but this was not effectually done until 1883, by the

general Municipal Act, providing for such incor-

poration, organization and classification.

The unquestioned theory of the new Constitu-

tion was that all the municipalities of the State

should come in under this general law by popular

vote of the respective municipalities and become

incorporated under this general law.
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No general law providing for such incorpora-

tion, organization and classification had been

passed when Desmond vs. Dunn was decided, and

since the passage of the general law, Desmond vs.

Dunn has been several times expressly affirmed

and recognized by the Supreme Court of this State,

and whenever the Court has had opportunity to

recognize the principle of this case it has done so

in no equivocal terms.

In The case of The People vs. Pond, 89 Cal., 143,

Mr. Justice Paterson, speaking for the Court, said:

"The questions argued by counsel for petition-

ers are not new. They may not have been pre-

sented so forcibly or with as great perspicuity be-

fore, but they have been determined adversely to

the contentions of the petitioners, after careful

consideration of the constitutional and statutory

provisions germane to the subject, and we feel

constrained to adhere to the construction hereto-

fore adopted. The contention of petitioners, who

claim to have been elected as members of the first

Board of Supervisors has been settled adversely

to them by the decisions in Desmond vs. Dnnn, 55

Cal., 248, 249, and People vs. Board of Election

Commissioners, 2 West Coast Rep., 366; and the

• claim of the others, by the decisions in Stande vs.

Board of Election Commissioners, 61 Cal., 313;

Heinlen vs. Sullivan, 64 Cal., 378, and People vs.

Hammond, 66 Cal., 655. The effect which a deci-
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sion overruling those cases would have upon

municipal proceedings for over ten years past is

so apparent, that it is unnecessary for us to point

out the reason why we should adhere to the deci-

sions referred to,—at least so far as the Board of

Supervisors is concerned,—even though we should

believe that they were based upon an erroneous

construction of the provisions involved. And al-

though the rule applies with less force to the case

of the Police Commissioners, no good reason has

been shown why the decisions heretofore rendered

should be departed from. If the principle is

wrong, or the system works unsatisfactory, the

remedy remains Avith the people."

This decision of Associate Justice Paterson was

concurred in by Associate Justices Harrison, De

Haven, Garoutte, McFarland and Mr. Chief Jus-

tice Beatty.

The repeated efforts of learned counsel

throughout the State to break down and destroy

Desmond vs. Dunn have, it will be seen, at least

up to the present time, been fruitless, and the Su-

preme Court of California has, perhaps ingen-

iously, protected itself each time that the question

of the relation of a general law to a particular

municipality has been before it, and thus we note

in Thomason v. Buggies, 69 Cal., 471, the following-

observations of the Court:
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"It would be a very difficult matter to determine

how far a prior existing charter may remain in-

tact in all its provisions, and yet be 'subject to and

controlled by general laws.' To illustrate: Sup-

pose a general law were passed that the presiding

officer and executive of every municipality in the

State should be called the president of the corpora-

tion; would the Mayor of the City and County of

San Francisco cease to have that title, and be

compelled to take on the title of President of the

City and County of San Francisco? or could he,

under the existing charter, retain his title of

mayor?

" It is not necessary to attempt to lay down a

rule in advance of an existing case. It is sufficient

to take the case now before us."

The methods by which a municipality, existing

under an old charter, can relieve itself from its,

perhaps, unhappy state, laid down in the separate

concurring opinion of Mr. Justice Myrick in Des-

mond vs. Dunn, were subsequently adopted by the

entire Supreme Court, in a later opinion, in the

case of People vs. Hammond, 66 CaL, 656.

This last case was one of several cases in which

an effort was made to oust the Board of Police

Commissioners of the City and County of San

Francisco, ami which are alike familiar to the

Bench and Bar of ( 'ajifornia. The Board of Police

Commissioners were appointed under an Act of
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the Legislature of April 1, 1878, prior to the

adoption of the new Constitution, and which was

practically an amendment to the Consolidation

Act of the City and County of San Francisco, and

as such has ever since remained the law of this

State, and under which a majority of the commis-

sion, originally appointed, have continuously held

office for a period of upwards of sixteen years, not-

withstanding general laws providing for the police

control and power of municipalities, and, every

time that the question has been before the Su-

preme Court of tile State of California, it has ad-

hered to its earlier decisions, and practically af-

firmed the case of Desmond vs. Dunn.

Desmond vs. Dunn was referred to in Barton

vs. Kalloch, 56 Cal., 104, and Desmond vs. Dunn

was cited with approval by Mr. Justice Thornton.

The question of the relation of a municipality

under an old charter was again considered in the

case of Wood vs. Board of Election Commission-

ers, 58 Cal., 562, where the Court says:

"It is as clear as language could make it that

the present 'City and County of San Francisco is

a continuation of the late municipal corporation

known as the 'City of San Francisco.' Under the

Consolidation Act and the Acts amendatory

thereof, it is nothing more nor less than a munici-

pal corporation, and the question whether a gen-

eral law affects it or not must be solved bv rules
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which have been established for determining

when a general law does or does not apply to a

municipal corporation.

"Ordinarily, a general law, when it relates to a

matter concerning which no provision is made in

the charter of a municipal corporation or any

special Act relating exclusively thereto, applies

to such corporation the same as to any other

political subdivision of the State. But ' it is a

principle of very extensive operation that statutes

of a general nature do not repeal by implication

charters and special acts passed for the benefit

of particular municipalities
1

(1 Dill. Mini.

Corp., Sec. 87).

"Such repeals are not favored. And it has ac-

cordingly been held that where the provisions of

a city charter and the general law upon the same

subject were conflicting and irreconcilable, the

provisions of the former were not repealed by the

latter (S. S. Bank vs. Davis, 1 McCarter, 286; State

vs. Minton, 1 Dutch, 529; State vs. Clark, Id., 54;

Walworth Co. vs. Whitewater, 17 Wis., 193; Janes-

ville vs. Markoe, 18 Id., 350; State vs. Branin, 3

Zab., 484). And a clause in the general statute

repealing all Acts and parts of Acts in conflict

with it, although sufficiently comprehensive to in-

clude any repugnant provision of law wherever

found, has been held not to repeal provisions of

city charters which were repugnant to such gen-
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era! law (Walworth Co. vs. Whitewater, Janes-

ville vs. Markoe, and State vs. Branin, supra). ,}
.

In this ease Desmond vs. Dunn was again re-

ferred to, but nowhere overruled, and is cited with

approval at the top of page 567 in the decision.

In the ease of Staude vs. Election Commission-

ers, C51 CaL, 320, Judge Eoss refers to Desmond vs.

Dunn, and says:

"If, therefore, the Legislature has, by a gen-

eral law, provided for the incorporation, organi-

zation and classification, in proportion to popula-

tion, of cities and towns, or, if not, whenever it

shall do so, the City and County of San Francisco

may become organized under such general law

whenever a majority of its electors voting at a gen-

eral election shall so determine, and shall organ-

ize in conformity therewith. And until a majority

of such electors do so determine, the Consolidation

Act of the city and county cannot be vacated or

abrogated by any general act of incorporation,"

and cites Desmond vs. Dunn, supra.

We thus see that Desmond vs. Dunn, decided as

early as 55 California, has never been overruled,

but stands as the law of the State of California

to-day.

If it be claimed that Desmond vs. Dunn, in any

of the decisions, has been in any way modified, it

could only be claimed that such modification re-

lated to State matters.



23

Indeed, this thought is echoed by Mr. Justice

Myrick, in the Case of Earle vs. Board of Educa-

tion, 55 Cal., 495, where he says:

"The Consolidation Act may remain for munici-

pal purposes—that is, city and county government

—yet the educational department, as a State mat-

ter, be subject, under the Constitution, to general

laws passed for that purpose.'''

We have no doubt that in all matters touching

the general taxation policy of the State of Califor-

nia, and in all matters where the interests of the

State of California, as a State or Commonwealth,

are affected, that general laws may be passed

which may supersede certain clauses of existing

charters, or charters existing prior to the adop-

tion of the new Constitution, but this does not

belong to that class of cases.

The powers of the Trustees of the City of Ne-

vada Mere fixed by the charter of its incorpora-

tion, and no general law could be passed to en-

large those powers, as contended for by the re-

spondents here.

Notwithstanding the abundant opportunities of

the Supreme Court to overrule Desmond vs. Dunn

in the many cases in which that case has been

cited or referred to, the Supreme Court has not

seen tit to vacate or scl aside this case and, in the

State of California at least, it must be accepted as

established law, and until the City of Nevada has
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seen fit to frame and adopt a new charter, or t<>

elect by popular vote to incorporate under thegen-

eral Municipal Act, so often referred to in the ar-

gument, the powers of its Board of Trustees must

remain as we find them, written in its original

charter.

For the reasons herein set forth, it is respect-

fully urged that the decree entered in the Circuit

Court should be set aside, and that the demurrer

interposed by respondents and appellees should

be overruled.

J Respectfully submitted,

KUSSELL J. WILSON,

MOUNTPORD 8. WILSON,

Solicitors for Appellant.

P. S.—Since the foregoing brief has been in the

hands of the printer, the Supreme Court of Cali-

fornia has rendered an elaborate opinion, filed

May 20, 1897, in the case entitled P. W. Murphy,

Plaintiff and Appellant vs. The City of San Luis

Obispo, and others, Defendants, which deals

with the whole subject of the issuance of bonds by

municipalities, but it is too late to do more than to

refer to that case, and to add that, in our judg-

ment, it is determinative of the case at bar iu favor

of the plaintiff in this action.



No. 356.

jn the United States Circuit Court of jippeals

TOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

:leanor & fiuntington,

Appellant.

vs.

:be City of Hewda et al

Appellees.

grief of Respondent^ and Appellee^.

^\. ®. |f\ason,

©J. W\- Walliag,

So/ictors for Respondents and jtfppeitaes.

Filed the 18th day of June, 1897.

^S^w^T

FILED
City Daily Transcript Print.

JUN 1 91897





No. 356.

In the United Stales Circuit Court of Appeals,

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

ELEANOR C. HUNTINGTON,

Appellant,

vs.

THE CITY OE NEVADA ET AL,

Appellees.

Appeal from the Circuit Court of the United States of

the Ninth Judicial Circuit, Northern District

of California.

BRIEE Or APPELLEES.

The Complainant as a femme sole, filed her Bill in the

Circuit Court praying that an injunction be issued en-

joining the City of Nevada and its Board of Trustees

from proceeding further in the matter of issuing Bonds

for the purpose of establishing and constructing water
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works for the use of the citizens of the municipality.

Respondents appeared in said action, and filed there-

in, a general demurrer to Complainant's Bill, on the

ground "that the Bill of Complaint herein, does not

state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action

against respondents, or either of them."

After hearing in the Circuit Court, Respondents'

demurrer was sustained, and Complainant declining to

amend, her Bill was dismissed and final decree en-

tered in favor of Respondents.

Thereupon this appeal was taken.

The contention in this case involved but a single

question which may be properly stated as follows: Has

the City of Nevada the authority to issue the Bonds

referred to in Complainant's Bill, for the purpose of

erecting and constructing water works to be owned by

the municipality ?

Appellant contends that the City has no such author-

ity, while Appellees maintain that it possesses the au-

thority to issue and sell the bonds referred to, under

and by virtue of the provisions of the Act of the Legis-

lature of the State of California entitled, "An Act au-

thorizing the incurring of indebtedness by Cities,

Towns and Municipal Corporations, incorporated un-



der the laws of this State," Approved March 19th,

1889, and amendments thereof, approved March nth,

1 89 1, March 19th, 1 891, and March 1st, 1893.

In support of the Contention of Appellant, she seems

to rely upon the case of Desmond vs. Dunn, 55

Cal. 243, and on the case of P. W. Murphy vs. the

City of San Luis Obispo, et al., decided May 20th,

1897, by the Supreme Court of the State of California,

reported in "California Decisions" of date May 26th,

1897, being volume 13, No. 811.

This case, Desmond vs. Dunn, arose under the Mc-

Clure Charter to San Francisco. The Supreme Court

seem to hold that Charters adopted prior to the new

Constitution are not subject to be controlled by general

laws. That Section 6 of Article n of the Constitution

of 1879, applies only to Charters framed under the new

Constitution. The Charters framed prior thereto re-

main in force until changed by the mode prescribed

thereby.

The above case, Desmond vs. Dunn, has been

frequently cited since it was decided by the

Supreme Court of this State, viz'. Earl vs. San

Francisco Board of Education, 55 Cal. 495, in

the concurring opinion of Judge Myrick. In this

case it was held by the Supreme Court that the



educational department would be subject under the

Constitution, to general laws passed for that purpose.

In the case of Barton vs. Kallock et al., 55 Cal. 104,

the case is cited as authority that the election of

the officers of San Francisco, is not required by law to

be held in 1880, t:nder General laws.

In Wood vs. Election Commissioners, 58 Cal., 569,

the case of Desmond vs. Dunn is cited to the point:

that the Consolidation Act of San Francisco cannot be

vacated by any general act of incorporation, until a

majority of electors determine to organize under it, but

the City is not free from legislative control, and is sub-

ject to general laws so far as elections are concerned.

The case is again cited in the case of Donohoe vs.

Graham, 61 Cal., 281. This case decided that the

street law of San Francisco of 1872 was inconsistent

with the Constitution of 1879 and therefore superseded.

The case of Desmond vs. Dunn is cited in the dis-

senting opinion of McKinstry, Justice.

In the case of Staude vs. Election Commissioners,

61 Cal., 320, Desmond vs. Dunn was relied upon, and

the Supreme Court held that "whether the City and

County elects to organize under such general laws or

to continue its existence under the Consolidation Act, it



is subject to and controlled by general laws; for in the

same section of the Constitution, in which the then ex-

isting City and Town organizations are recognized, and

the continuance of their existing charters permitted, it

is declared that "Cities or Towns Heretofore or

Hereafter Organized and all Charters Thereof

Framed or Adopted by Authority of This Consti-

tution, Shall be Subject to and Controlled by

General Laws." The framers of the instrument

meant something when they inserted this language in

it, and we are not at liberty to hold they did not mean

what they said. Giving, as they did, to all cities and

towns, and cities and counties, the rights to organize

under a general act of Incorporation, which the Legis-

lature was directed to pass, or to continue their exist-

ence under their existing charters as they might elect,

they nevertheless said that whichever course should be

pursued, such cities and towns, and cities and counties,

should be subject to and controlled by general laws

—

such general laws as should be passed by the Legis-

lature, other than those for the "incorporation, or-

ganization and classification of cities and towns."

In the case of In Re Carrillo, 66 Cal., 5, Desmond

vs. Dunn is cited to the point that the Charter of the

City of San Jose of 1874 remained in force, regardless

of the adoption of the Constitution of 1879, and the

Legislative Acts of 1880, relative to Courts of Justice,

etc., as there was no showing that a Police Judge had
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been elected, but "the City itself and the Charter of

the City were therefore subject to the provisions of the

General Laws of 1880."

Desmond vs. Dunn again came before the Supreme

Court in the case In Re Guerrero, 69 Cal., 100. The

same question was presented in this case as in 66 Cal.,

5, Supra, as to Judicial officers. The real question was

as to the validity of a liquor license ordinance.

In the case of Thomasson vs. Ashworth, 73 Cal., 73,

Desmond vs. Dunn was again cited. This case holds

that general laws as to street work control the Charter

of San Francisco of 1872, that corporations are subject

to general laws.

Again, in the case of City of Stockton vs. Insurance

Company, 73 Cal., 624, the Court says:

"We do not mean to imply that the Legislature, even

by a general law, can substitute an entirely new Char-

ter for an old one without the consent of the people of

the locality. To that extent, we understand the decis-

ion in Desmond vs. Dunn, (Supra) to be the law."

This case related to a municipal tax.

In People vs. Pond, 89 Cal., 143, Desmond vs. Dunn

is cited as authority that City Charter controlled, as no

election has been had to change the same. This was

the case of an application for a writ of Mandate to com-



pel the Registrar and Election Commissioners to count

certain votes for certain persons as Police Commission-

ers.

Appellant contends that Desmond vs. Dunn is still

recognized as law by the Supreme Court of the State of

California. To a limited extent, we think that this

contention is correct, but an examination of the cases

cited wherein Desmond vs. Dunn has been commented

upon, leads to the couclusion that it is law only in so

far as it holds that general laws passed by the Legis-

lature changing the "Incorporation, organization and

classification" of cities and towns do not supersede the

provisions of the Charters of such cities and towns, but

that in all other matters, except incorporation, organi-

zation and classification, the Charters of cities and

towns, whether enacted before or subsequent to the

adoption of the Constitution of 1879, are subject to be

controlled by general laws.

If our contention as to the true construction to be

placed upon Desmond vs. Dunn is correct, then we sub-

mit that instead of that case being an authority in fa-

vor of Appellants position, viz: that the City of Nevada

cannot incur an indebtedness in excess of $2,000, be-

cause its ' harter, approved in 1878, prohibited its

Board of Trustees from incurring any indebtedness

which should exceed $2,000, it clearly is an authority

holding that in all matters except those of incorpora-
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tioiij organization and classification, the City is con-

trolled by and subject to the provisions of general laws

passed by the Legislature for the government of cities

and towns, regardless of whether the City was organ-

ized prior or subsequent to the adoption of the Consti-

tution of 1879.

The provision of the Charter of the City of Nevada,

which Appellant claims limits the authority of the

Board of Trustees and of the City to incur an indebted-

ness, is set out in the Bill of Complaint herein as fol-

lows: "Said Board of Trustees shall not contract any

liabilities, either by borrowing money, loaning the

credit of the City or contracting debts, which, singly

or in the aggregate, shall exceed the sum of $2,000."

(See Trans., Page 21.)

Appellees contend that this provision of the Charter,

even if a limitation upon the power of the Board of

Trustees, in their capacity as such, that it is not a limi-

tation upon the power of the City to incur an indebt-

ednes s where such indebtedness is incurred by a

vote of the citizens, qualified electors of such munici-

pality.

It was no doubt a wise provision so far as limiting

the authority of the Board of Trustees to contract

debts on behalfof the City, but it seems to us clear

it is a forced construction, to hold that by reason of
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the provision above quoted, the voters of the City could

not, in accordance with general law, contract a greater

debt.

Indeed, we think, that instead of being a limitation

upon the power of the City, as such to contract debts,

in accordance with the provisions of general laws, it

was a clear delegation of authority to the Trustees to

contract debts on behalf of the City to an amount not

exceeding $2,000 without being under the necessity of

submitting the question of the incurring of such in-

debtedness to the voters.

At the close of Appellant's brief, and as a P. S., Ap-

pellant says: "Since the foregoing brief has been in the

hands of the printer, the Supreme Court of California

has rendered an elaborate opinion, filed May 20th,

1897, in the case entitled P. W. Murphy, Plaintiff and

Appellant vs. the City of San Luis Obispo et al., De-

fendants, which deals with the whole subject of the is-

suance of bonds of municipalities, * * * * and,

in our judgment, it is determinative of the case at bar

in favor of the Plaintiff in this action."

An examination of the case will show that there

were but three grounds of attack upon the bonds in

question in that case, and the Commissioner who wrote

the opinion has clearly stated the points involved as

follows: "First: That the bonds are made payable in
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''Gold Coin of the United States,' instead ofGold Coin

or lawful money of the United States.' Second: That

the question as to whether the interest on the bonds

would be payable annually or semi-annually, was not

submitted to the voters. Third: That the voters voting

for said bonds voted by stamping a cross opposite the

proposition submitted to them, instead of indicating

their wish by writing 'Yes' or 'No' opposite the propo-

sition they desired to vote for."

We are almost tempted to conclude that Counsel

for Appellant was misinformed as to this case. As we

read the opinion, it nowhere attempts to deal with the

question of whether or not general laws control the

provisions of the Charter of Incorporated cities or

towns.

Indeed, the clear effect of this decision is to hold that

a general law passed by the Legislature in 1889 was

controlling as to the method to be pursued in elec-

tions held ior the purpose of bonding a municipality.

It will be observed that the same Act provided that

the Legislative branch of the City should, by ordi-

nance, "fix the day on which such special election shall

be held, the manner of holding such election, and the

voting for or against incurring such indebtedness; such

elections shall be held as provided by law for holding



13

such elections in such city, town or municipal corpora-

tion."

The Supreme Court held that the provisions of the

Charter as to the method and manner of holding such

elections controlled, because the Statute of 1889 pro-

vided that such Charter provisions should control.

Again, we call attention of the Court to the fact that

the Charter of San Luis Obispo was adopted in 1884,

under the general incorporation law of 1883, and as is

evident from the opinion provided the method to be

pursued in voting at City elections.

In the case at bar, no question is presented analagous

to any one of the three propositions involved in the case

of Murphy vs. the City of San Luis Obispo.

That, all municipal corporations are subject to the will

of the Legislature, and liable to be controlled by gen-

eral law, will be found supported by a very large array

of authorities, a few of which we cite, as well as by the

provisions of the Constitution itself.

Section 6, Article 11, of the Constitution provides:

"And cities and towns heretofore or hereafter organized

and all Charters thereof, framed or adopted by authority

of this Constitution, shall be subject to and controlled by

general laws. v



14

Prior to the adoption of the Amendment of Novem-

ber 3d, 1896, the above was the reading of Section 6, so

far as quoted.

Section 12, Article n, reads as follows: "The Legis-

lature shall have no power to impose taxes upon coun-

ties, cities, towns or other public or municipal corpora-

tions, or upon the inhabitants or property thereof, for

county, city, town or other municipal purposes, but

may, t-y general laws, vest in the corporate authorities

thereof the power to assess and collect taxes for such pur-

poses!'

In the language of the Supreme Court of the State

of California in the case of Staude vs. Election Com-

missioners, 61 Cal., 320, Supra, "the framers of the in-

strument meant something when they inserted this

language in it, and we are not at liberty to hold that

they did not mean what they said."

The language is plain and unambiguous, expressly

declaring that all cities and towns are subject to general

laws, and that all cities or towns might be empowered

by the Legislature to levy and collect taxes for muni-
cipal purposes. This the Legislature have done, and

hf the Acts approved March 19th, 1889, and the Acts

amendatory thereof, and it is admitted that in this case

the Board of Trustees of the Cityr of Nevada have com
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plied in all particulars with the provisions of said

respective Acts.

In the case of Rice vs. Board of Trustees, 107 Cal.,

398, the question of the right of the town of Haywards

to incur an indebtedness in excess of the amount of the

annual tax levy was before the Supreme Court. In

that case, the Supreme Court held that the Municipal

Indebtedness Act of 1889 is controlling in the cases

provided for therein. In speaking of the Municipal

Indebtedness Act of 1889, the Supreme Court says:

"That Act is a general Act, and makes provision for

just suck contingencies as that confronting the authorities

of the town of Haywards in this instance,.''

In the case of the People vs. Henshaw, 76 Cal. 436,

the Supreme Court said: "The decision of this Court in

Thomasson \s. Ashworth, 73 Cal., 73, renders it un-

necessary for us to dwell upon the question of the

right of the Legislature to pass general laws affecting

municipal corporations without reference to whether

such corporations were formed before or after the

Constitution of 1879."

At the time of the rendition of this decision, the City

of Oakland was existing under an Incorporation Act

approved March 25th., 1854, and the/efore prior to the

adoption of the present Constitution.

In the case of Thomasson vs. Ashworth, 73 Cal., 73,
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the Supreme Court directly passed on Section 6, Ar-

ticle ii of the Constitution, and held that the Legis-

lature has power to pass a general law affecting the

Charter of the City and County of San Francisco, with*

out the consent of suck City and County.

In the case of Santa Cruz vs. Hnright, 95 Cal. 105,

the Supreme Court says: "It may be conceded for the

purposes of this decision, that the Charter of the. City

of Santa Cruz confers no authority upon the municipal

authorities to condemn water for the use of the inhabit-

ants of the City. Its warrant for the exercise of the

power is found in the Constitution and general laws of

the State. Section 6 of Article 11 of the Constitution

provides that "cities or towns heretofore or hereafter

organized, and all Charters thereof framed or adopted

by authority of this Constitution, shall be subject to

and controlled by general laws."

And again, on page 112, the Court says: "And the

Act of March 19th, 1889, which is also a general law,

provides how indebtedness for such works may be se-

cured and paid \>y municipal corporations."

By reference to California Blue Book for 1895, page

278, it will be found that Santa Cruz was Incorporated

by Special Act of the Legislature in 1876.

And in the same case it is held that certain Sections of
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the Code of Civil Procedure and the Civil Code are "gen-

eral laws applicable to municipal corporations which

were formed before, as well as to those which were

formed after the adoption of the Constitution of 1879."

If the Code Sections cited by the Supreme Court

in this case apply to corporations whose Charters had

been granted prior to the adoption of the L onstitution

of 1879, it is difficult to understand why a general law

adopted by the Legislature in 1889, is not also applicable

to such corporations.

In the case of In Re Wetmore, 99 Cal. 146, the Su-

preme Court declare that "the provisions of the Act of

March 19th, 1889, are general in their character, and

give to every municipal corporation incorporated under

the laws of this State, the power to create a bond-

ed indebtedness for any of the purposes authorized

by the Act."

In the case of Davies vs. The City of Los Angeles,

86 Cal., and on page 41, after quoting that portion of

Section 6, Article 11, of our Constitution hereinbefore

recited, the Court says: "The language of this latter

Section is plain and unambiguous and cannot be ex-

explained away by any reasoning, however ingenious."

See also Derby vs. City of Modesto, 104 Cal. 515.

That all municipal corporations are subject to the
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will of the Legislature, (see also Dillon on Mnn. Cor.,

Sees. 52, 80.)

The City of Nevada is a public or municipal cor-

poration.

"A municipal corporation is but a branch of the State

Government, and is established for the purpose of aid-

ing the Legislature in making provision for the wants

and welfare of the public within the territory for which

it is organized, and it is for the Legislature to deter-

mine the extent to which it will confer upon such cor-

poration, any power to aid it in the discharge of the ob-

ligation which the Constitution has imposed upon

itself." Harrison, Judge, In Re. Wetmore, 99 Cal.,

150.

"The Charter or Incorporating Act of a municipal cor-

poration is in no sense a contract between the State and

the corporation." 1 Dill. Mun. Cor. Sec. 54, 3d Ed.

Notwithstanding this, the learned Counsel for Ap-

pellant contend that this public corporation is not sub-

ject to the control of the Legislature which created it.

That because it was incorporated prior to 1879—the

new Constitution's adoption—it has passed beyond

Legislative control and its Charter fixes its authority,

franchises and powers, and is in fact the alpha and

omega thereof.
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(See Appellant's Br., Pg. 3, 4 and 23).

Not only this, but necessarily then, all the other

municipal corporations of this State incorporated prior

to 1879, occupy this anomalous position, and are beyond

Legislative control. "They must disincorporate and

their citizens elect to re-incorporate under the general

Municipal Act of 1883" or else the Legislature has no

control or power over them. (See Page 4, Applt's

Brief).

One proposition, we submit, is clear and beyond ques-

tion, viz: that if the Legislature possesses any power or

authority over this class of municipal corporations, if it

may enlarge, contract or abrogate their corporate pow-

ers, it must do so by a general law and not by a Special

Act. (See Cal. Con. Art IV, Sec. 25, and many of the

above cases.)

As it is said by McFarland, Justice, in one of the late

cases cited ante, this Constitutional inhibitation against

special legislation is so broad as to almost cover all sub-

jects of legislation. If the Legislature then is invested

with such sower, it could only exercise it through gen-

eral laws. I ad the Legislature such power ?

I

Says Dillon: "In the language of Chief Justice Mar-

shall, when the whole interests and franchises are the

exclusive property and dominion of the Government it-
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self, such as quasi corporations, (so called), counties

and towns or cities, upon which are conferred the pow-

ers of local adminstration, there are public corpora-

tions. 1 hepaver of the Legislature over such corpora-

tions is supreme and transcendent; it may erect, change,

divide, and even abolish them, at pleasure, as it deems

the public good to require." i Dill. Mun. Cor., Sec.

54, post.

See Note 2, Sec. 54, Dill. Mun. Cor., and in People

vs. Morris, 13 Wend. 325, wThere the defendant insisted

that the rights and privileges conferred upon a city by

the Act incorporating it were vested, and could not

be impaired by subsequent legislation. Nelson, Judge,

said: "It is an unsound and even absurd proposition

that political power conferred by the Legislature can be-

come a vested right against the Government in any in-

dividual cr body of men."

"A municipal corporation in which is invested some

portion of the admistration of the Government, may be

changed at the will of the Legislature.

Per McLean, J., 16, U. S. 369:

"The special powers conferred upon them are not

vested rights as against the State, but being only politi-

cal, exist only during the will of the general Legisla-

ture; otherwise, there would be numberless petty Gov-
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erntnents existing within the State and forming part of

it, but independent of the control of the sovereign power.

Such powers may at any time be repealed or abrogated

by the Legislature, either by a general law operating

upon the whole State, or by a special Act altering the

powers of the corporation. It may enlarge or contract

its powers or destroy its existence."

End of Note 2: "Since the Legislature cannot alien-

ate any part of its legislative power, it cannot therefore

by legislative act or contract, invest any municipal

corporation with an irrevocable franchise of government

over any part of its territory."

Yet, as seen, the learned Counsel claim that by the

Act of incorporation, the Legislature has so irrevocably

fixed the powers of the City of Nevada, that it cannot

enlarge or contract such powers by any legislation

whatever; Nevada City is outside the pale of the law

until she surrenders her Charter.

As to absolute "legislative control to create, change,

modify or destroy the powers of public corporations."

See also 15 A. & E. Enc. cf Law, Page 976, Sec VI and

notes.

The law in question, called the "Municipal Improve-

ment Law," has repeatedly been before the California

Supreme Court, and that Court has thus construed it,
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per Harrison, Judge, In Re Wetmore, 99 Cal. 150.

"The provisions of the Act of March 19th, 1887, are

general in their character, and give to every municipal

corporation incorporated under the laws of this State,

the power to create a bonded indebtedness for any of

the purposes authorized by the Act."

The words are spoken ex-cathedra in construing the

Act, and determining to what it relates. A cursory read

ing of this case will show the fallacy of the narrow

construction placed on this Act by opposing Counsel.

See also, 104 Cal. 515, Derby vs. City of Modesto.

91 Cal. 549, City of San Luis Obispo vs. Haskin.

"Every municipal corporation," etc., means the old

as well as the new.

Skinner vs. City of Santa Rosa, 107 Cal., 464,

was a case in which the Defendant City was incorpor-

ated even before Appellee, viz: 1872; yet the applica-

bility of this law to that city is not questioned. Many

other of the authorities cited are decisions upon this

law, some under Charters before, others after the New
Constitution, and in every one it appears that the Su-

preme Court construes this Act as general and appli-

cable to all cities.
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Thus see, City of Santa Cruz vs. Enright, 95 Cal.,

105.

Santa Cruz was incorporated in 1876. Read page

112, last sentence of first paragraph, and cases before

cited.

Among the enumerated powers conferred upon the

Trustees of the City of Nevada, by its Act or Incorpor-

ation, by the terms of Subdivision 20 of Section 8, is

the following: "To provide for supplying the City with

water and regulate the sale and distribution thereof,

provided that this provision shall in no manner alter or

affect any contract or contracts heretofore made with any

parties or corporation for supplying of said City or any

part thereof, with water, but all such contracts shall be

and remain in full force and virtue.''

By the Charter, power is given to the Board of Trus-

tees to provide for supplying the City with water, and

under the Act of 1889, and Acts amendatory thereof,

the method of procedure is provided, and no claim is

made in this case but what the Trustees have fully

complied with the provisions of such Acts.

In the case of Ellenwood vs. City of Reedsburg, 64

N. W., Rep. 885, the Supreme Court of Wisconsin

says: "Revised Statutes, Section 942, provides that any

city may issue its bonds for the erection of water works



24

or to accomplish any other purpose within its lawful

power. The Reedsburg C ity Charter, (Section i), pro-

vides that it shall have the powers possessed under

the general Statutes. Sections 119 and 129 provide

that the City shall contract no debts exceeding the

revenues of the Fiscal year, except as expressly author-

ized by Charter. Held, that the City had power to is-

sue bonds in the manner provided by law, for the

erection of water works and an electric light plant."

Rules of Construction of State Statutes.

U. S. Courts are bound by the decisions of the State

Supreme Court as to the construction of Statutes of

the State.

Hancock vs. Louisville & N. R. Co., 145 U. S.,

409.

Pullman Car Co. vs. Penn., 141 U. S., 18.

The greater part of Appellant's Brief is devoted to

the proposition that Desmond vs. Dunn lays down the

doctrine that a municipal corporation organized under

the old Constitution is not subject to be controlled by

general laws passed thereafter. This doctrine it seems

to us is clearly overruled and repudiated by the Su-

preme Court of this State, and that no further citation

of authorities on that point is necessary. The later
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cases clearly lay down the law that all municipal cor-

porations, being the creatures of the Legislature, are

subject to be controlled by general laws passed, except

as to the three matters of organization, incorporation and

classification.

As the Act of 1889 did not purport to affect and does

not affect the corporation Act of the City of Nevada, in

either of these particulars, we submit that it is con-

trolling, and the Acts of the City Trustees, Respond-

ent, valid and legal.

That the Legislature intended the Act of 1889 to re-

late to all cities, the following quotations therefrom

will show, viz: Sec 1. "Any city." Sec 2: "Any city."

Sec. 3. "Any municipality." Sec 7. "The Legislative

branch of any city, etc." Sec. 9. "Every city, town,

etc." Sec. 11. "Any municipality." These excerps

clearly show the intention of the Legislature to make

this Act applicable to all cities.

Counsel, however, seem to think the Legislature did

not mean, and further, did not have the right to affect

Charter provisions by said Act. The first of these

propositions is answered by the Act itself. Thus Sec-

tion 12 provides (after expressly repealing certain

municipal improvement Acts therefore passed) "And

all general acts or special acts orparts of Acts conflicting

with this Act are hereby repealed.''''
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To what do the words "special acts refer" if not to

Charters?

The citation made by opposing counsel, viz: i Dill

Mun. Cor., Sec 87, shows that the Legislature may, by

a general law, repeal Charter provisions.

That the cases before cited, and the law generally

clearly establishes the principle, that municipal cor-

porations are the creatures of the L egislature, may be

controlled after the incorporation bv general laws, we

think is too clear to require further recitation of au-

thorities. The case at bar, however, does not even go

that far; the Charter delegates to the City of Nevada

certain enumerated powers, among which is the power

"to provide for supplying the City with water." Is

power so delegated meaningless, as it would be, if the

only power here given, was restricted or bounded by

the annual income, or by the provision that the Trus-

tees could not incur indebtedness exceeding $2000?

Even if it be admitted that the limitation contained

in the City Charter prior to the passage of the Act of

1889 and the amendments thereto, was a clear limita-

tion upon the right of the City, by vote or otherwise,

to incur a municipal indebtedness, yet our contention is

that as the Legislature, by the Act of 1889, has pro-

vided that any city may incur an indebtedness up to

one-fifteenth of the assessed value of all its property,
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for public improvements, etc., that such Act, being the

last expression of the Legislative will, must control.

The question at issue in this case is not, what are the

powers of the City, but, has the Legislature the power

by general law to confer upon the municipal corpora-

tions organized prior to the adoption of the new Con-

stitution, additional powers to those included in their

Charter ?

Section 6 of Article n, of the Constitution, expressly

declares that "all municipal corporations are subject to

general laws ?

It is elementary that the Constitution of the State is

not a delegation of powers, but a limitation, and in so

far as the Legislature is not inhibited by the Constitu-

tion of the State or of the United States, it possesses

supreme power over all matters of legislation,

A consideration of the provision of the Charter, and

of the Act of 1889, and Acts amendatory thereof, will

readily show that they are not in conflict with each

other. The Charter of the City limited the rights of

the Trustees to incur an indebtedness over the sum of

$2000, while the Act of 1889 enlarged that right forcer-

tain purposes and conferred upon the City the right to

incur an indebtedness for the purposes therein men-
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tioned, in the manner therein provided, of any amount

not exceeding one-fifteenth of its assessed valuation.

It would seem to follow as a necessary conclusion

that if the Legislature had a right to restrict the cor-

poration in the matter of incurring indebtedness, it

possesses the right to enlarge that restriction.

We concede that so far as the incorporation, organi-

zation and classification of cities are concerned the

power of the Legislature to affect them in these par-

ticulars is limited by the Constitution, but not other-

wise, except that its power must be exerted by the

passage of general laws.

To hold that the Act of 1889 is a general law, and in

the same breath to insist that it does not apply to all

municipal corporations, would seem illogical.

Comsel fr-r Haiutiff contend that by reason of the

provisions of the General Municipal Act of 1883 and of

the Constitution, municipal corporations can only be

affected as to their incorporation, organization and

classification by a popular vote of the particular munici-

pality, and then insist that unles" the City of Nevada

shall, by a popular vote, reorganize under the General

Municipal Act of 1883, the old Charter of 1878 must re-

main intact, and that the power of the Board of Trus-

tees of the City or of the municipality cannot be en-
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lagged by a general law such as the Act of 1889 andthe

Acts amendatory thereof.

The fallacy, as it seems to us, of the argument pre-

sented is, that the Act of 1889, authorizing the in-

curring $>£ j municipal indebtedness, for the purposes

therein) -:enhirfterated, does not, in any sense, interfere

wltiriitae i*icm'pnraticn< organization and classification of

a city. Indeed, Counsel do not claim that the Act of

1889 affect municipal corporations in these particulars.

If it does not, then clearly no inhibitation has been

pointed out against the power of the Legislature in

passing the Act of 1889 and making it applicable to all

municipal corporations. It is an elementary rule ap-

plicable to all municipal corporations, that they possess

all such powers as is necessary to carry into effect the

objects of their formation, except in so far as they are

limited by the provisions of their Charters or by Acts of

the Legislature.

-sVL lo vj'

"tit ifcalso: elementary that an Act of the Legislature

of one Session is not controlling or binding upon sub-

sequent Legislatures. Such former Acts may be

amended, enlarged or wholly repealed, so long as the

Legislature is not, itself, incapacitated by some Consti-

tutional provision.

Applying the foregoing rules to this case it seems

clea:- that it must be held that while the Legislature of
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1878 had a right to limit the incurring of indebtedness

by the City of Nevada, the Legislature of 1889 and sub-

sequent Legislatures had an equal right to enlarge

the powers of the City in that direction.

Counsel for Complainant cites the case of the People

vs. Pond, 89 Cal., Page 141, in support of their conten-

tention in this case. We submit that a most casual -

reading of that case will show that it has no applica-

tion here. There the contention was that the Con-

solidation Act of the City and County of San Fran-

cisco had been changed by a general law. The Su-

preme Court determined simply that the incorporation

and organization of the city could not be changed by a

general law of the Legislature, but that it required a

vote of the people. No such question is presented

here.

The Complainant alleges in her Bill that she is "a

tax-payer and owner of property in the City of Ne-

vada," but the value of the property or the amount of

taxes paid does not appear. See Trans. 3.

Again, on page 23, Trans., it is averred that the acts

of the Trustees "will greatly affect the market value of

the property of your Oratrix * * * and subject (the

same 1

) to said special tax, and that she will thereby be

irreparably damaged." Nowhere in the Complaint

does the market or other value of the property of the
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Oratrix, or the amount of taxes which she will be

obliged to pay, appear—nor does she claim she had any

franchise or contract which will be violated.

Complainant also avers "that said City of Nevada
* * * are already furnished and supplied with

pure, fresh water * * *
;

that the interests of said

C ity of Nevada * * * do not require the incurring

of said indebtedness."

The question of whether the public health or com-

fort requires a water supply cannot be determined by

private citizens.

St. Tammany Water Works Co. vs. New Orleans.

120 U. S., 64.

Appellant has specified 14 assignments of error. By

stipulation of Counsel filed in this case, Assignment No.

VII. is waived. As all other errors are predicated upon

a single proposition, viz: that the City has no power to

issue the bonds in question here, we do not deem it

necessary to reply to each separately.

In conclusion we submit that the decree of the Circuit

Court should be affirmed.

A. D. MASON,

J. M. WALLING,

Solicitors for Appellees.
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United States, )

/ ss
District of Alaska. (

Pleas and proceedings begun and held in the District

Court of the United States for the District of Alaska at

the adjourned November term, 1896.

Present: The Honorable ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, DISTRICT OF

ALASKA.

In the District Court of the United States for the District of Alaska-

THE UNITED STATES OF AMER-
ICA,

yg# ( 23 U. S. Statutes

at Large, Chapter
53, Section 14.

MAX EtfDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD.

Indictment.

At the adjourned November term of the District Court

of the L'nited States of America, within and for the Dis-

trict of Alaska, in the year of our Lord one thousand
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eight hundred and ninety-six, begun and held at Juneau,

in said District, commencing on the 9th day of Novem-

ber, 1896.

The Grand Jurors of the United States of America, se-

lected, impaneled, sworn, and charged within and for

the District of Alaska, accuse Max Endleman and Ed-

ward Lord by this indictment of the crime of unlawfully

selling intoxicating liquors within said district, commit-

ted as follows:
»

The said Max Endleman and Edward Lord at or near

Juneau within the said District of Alaska, and within the

jurisdiction of this Court, on or about the 7th day of De-

cember, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-

dred and ninety-six, and at divers other times before, did

unlawfully and willfully sell to John Doe and Eichard

Eoe and to divers other persons, whose real names are to

the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown, an intoxicating

liquor, called whisky, to-wit, one glass, pint, quart, gal-

lon of said liquor, the real quantity is to the Grand Jur-

ors aforesaid unknown, without having first complied

with the law concerning the sale of intoxicating liquors

in the District of Alaska.

And so the Grand Jurors duly selected impaneled,

sworn, and charged as aforesaid upon their oaths do say,

that Max Endleman and Edward Lord did then and there

unlawfully sell intoxicating liquors in the manner and

form aforesaid to the said John Doe and Eichard Eoe,

and to divers other persons, whose real names are to the
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Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown, contrary to the form

of the statutes in such cases made and provided, and

against the peace and dignity of the United States of

America.

BURTON E. BENNETT,
United States District Attorney.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. United States of America vs.

Max Endleman and Edward Lord. Indictment for vio-

lating 23 U. S. Statutes at Large, chap. 53, sec. 14. A
true bill. Edward de Groff, Foreman of Grand Jury.

Witnesses examined before the Grand Jury: C. W.

Young, Karl Koehler, Fred Heyde, S. M. Graf. Filed

Dec. 8, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. Burton E. Ben-

nett, U. S. Attorney.

And afterwards, to-wit, on the 8th day of December,

1896, a bench warrant wras issued which is in words and

figures following, to-wit:

Bench Warrant.

United States of America,

)

1 ss.
District of Alaska. \

The President of the United States of America, to the

Marshal of our District of Alaska or his Deputy,

Greeting:

Whereas, at a District Court of the United States for

the District of Alaska, holden at the city of Juneau, on
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the 9 day of November, 1896, the Grand Jurors in and

for said district found a true bill of indictment against

Max Endleman and Edward Lord for the crime of un-

lawfully selling intoxicating liquors in the district of

Alaska, against the form of the Statutes of the United

States in such cases made and provided, as by the said

indictment now remaining on file, and of record in said

court more fully appears. Now, therefore, you are

hereby commanded to forthwith apprehend the said Max

Endleman and Edward Lord if they may be found in

your district, and them bring before the said Court, at

the courtrooms thereof, in the city of Juneau, to answer

the indictment aforesaid.

Hereof fail not; and make due return of this writ with

your doings thereon, into our said court.

Witness, the Honorable ARTHUR K. DELANEY
Judge of said District Court, and the seal thereof affixed

this 8 day of December, A. D. 1896.

[Seal] CHAKLES D. ROGERS,

aerk.

By Walton D. McNair,

Deputy.

United States of America, }

District of Alaska. C
ss#

Tn obedience to the within warrant I have the body of

l he said Max Endleman and Edward Lord before the
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Honorable District Court of the United States for the

District of Alaska, this 8 day of December, 1896.

LOUIS L. WILLIAMS,

Marshal.

By William M. Hale,

;

Deputy.

[Endorsed]: U. S. District Court, District of Alaska.

No. 612. The United States vs. Max Endleman and Ed-

ward Lord. Bench warrant. The defendant to be ad-

mitted to bail in the sum of dollars. ,

Clerk. Returned and filed Dec. 8, 1896. Charles D.

Rogers, Clerk.

And afterwards, to-wit, on the 9th day of December,

1896, the following further proceedings were had and

appear of record in said cause to-wit:

UNITED STATES, \

Plaintiff, I

vs.

No. 612.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

Arraignment,

Now, at this day comes the plaintiff by Burton E. Ben-

nett, United States Attorney, and the defendants being
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personally present, and their counsel, C. S. Blackett,

Esq., and upon arraignment waive the reading of the in-

dictment, and upon request of counsel are given until

Thursday, December 10, 1896, at 10 o'clock A. M. to plead

to the indictment.

And afterwards, to-wit, on December 10, 1896, defend-

ants filed their motion to quash, which is in words and

figures following, to-wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

United States of America,

)

f ss.

District of Alaska. (

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

VS*
l 23 U. S. Statutes

at Large, Chapter
53, Section 14.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

Motion to Quash Indictment.

romes now the above-named defendants and move the

Court to quash the indictment returned against them,

No. 612, upon the following grounds:
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1. That two or more offenses are charged in the same

count and same indictment.

2. That the indictment is fatally defective for duplic-

ity.

3. That two or more offenses are charged in the same

indictment in the same count against two defendants

without segregating the offenses committed by each de-

fendant.

4. That the indictment is too vague, indefinite, and un-

certain to afford the accused proper notice of the crime

charged against them to enable them to properly plead

or prepare their defense.

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,
Defendants' Attorneys.

I, Max Endleman and Edward Lord, being first duly

sworn, depose and say that I am one of the defendants

in the above-entitled action, and that the foregoing mo-

tion to quash is true as I verily believe.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

December, 1896.>

Notary Public for the District of Alaska.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska, U. S. of Amer-

ica, Plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward Lord, De-

fendants. Motion to quash. Filed Dec. 10, 1896. Charles

D. Rogers, Clerk. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, Attorneys for

Defendants. Office, Juneau, Alaska.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on December 12, 1S96, the fol-

lowing proceedings were had and appear of record in

said cause to-wit:

UNITED STATES,

vs.

Plaintiff,

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LOED, Defendants.

• #o. 612.

;

Order Denying Motion to Quash Indictment.

Now, at this day conies the plaintiff by Burton E. Ben-

nett, U. S. Attorney, and the defendants by their attor-

neys, and the motion to quash the indictment coming on

to be heard and being argued by counsel, and the Court

being sufficiently advised in the premises, denies said

motion, to which ruling the defendants now except.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 12, 1896, de-

fendants filed a demurrer, which is in words and figures

following, to-wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD, Defendants.

Demurrer to Indictment.

Comes now the above-named defendants and demur to

the indictment rendered against them in the above-enti-

tled court and cause upon the following grounds, to-wit:

1. That the Court has no jurisdiction over the sub-

ject matter of the action.

2. That more than one crime is charged in the indict-

ment against the defendants in the same count.

3. That the facts stated in the indictment do not con-

stitute a crime, or any crime, against the defendants, or

either of them.

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY,

Defendants' Attorneys.

T, Max Endleman and Edward Lord, being first duly

sworn, depose and say that I am one of the defendants
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in the above-entitled action; and that the foregoing de-

murrer is true as I verily believe.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

December, 1896.

Notary Public for the District of Alaska.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. U. S. of Amer-

ica, Plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward Lord, De-

fendants. Demurrer. Filed Dec. 12, 1896. Charles D.

Rogers, Clerk. By Walton D. McNair, Deputy, Crews,

Hannum & Ivey, Attorneys for Defendants. Office, Ju-

neau, Alaska.

And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 12, 1896, the

following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs-
, \ No. 612.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD, Defendants.

1

f

Order Overruling Demurrer.

The demurrer filed herein coming on to be heard, and

the Court being fully advised in the premises, overrules

said demurrer, to which ruling defendants now except.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 12, 1896, the

following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES, \
Plaintiff,

vs.

> No. 612.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.
/

Plea.

Now, at this day comes the plaintiff by Burton E. Ben-

nett, United States Attorney, and the defendants each

being personally present, and their counsel, Messrs.

Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, enter a plea

of not guilty to the indictment.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 12, 1896, the

following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.
i

Xo. 612.

Trial.

This cause coming on for trial, the plaintiff being rep-

resented by Burton E. Bennett, United States Attorney,

and the defendants being personally present in court,

and their counsel, Messrs. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and

0. S. Blackett, the venire of the petit jury was called by

the clerk, and the same being exhausted and the requi-

site number of qualified jurors not having been obtained,

it is ordered that this cause be continued until Monday,

December 14, 1896, at 10 o'clock A. M.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on December 14, 189G, the fol-

lowing further proceedings were had and appear of rec-

ord in said cause, which are in words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs.

\No. 612.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants. J

Trial (Continued).

Come again the parties hereto, the plaintiff appearing

by Burton E. Bennett, U. S. Attorney, and each of the

defendants being personally present, and their counsel,

Messrs. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, the

clerk proceeded to call the special venire of the petit jury,

and the jurors being sworn as to their qualifications, and

being passed for cause, the following jurors were sworn

to try the issues:

Nicholas Bolshanin,

Peter Callsen,

Pete Skogland,

John McCormick,

Wm. Wilheim,

James G. Smith,

The evidence being heard, the cause being argued by

J. T. Yager,

Frank Howard,

J. J. Rutledge,

VV. D. McLeod,

Chas, Boyle,

Oscar Cling.
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counsel, the jury was charged by the Court, and retired

for deliberation in charge of a sworn officer.

And afterwards, to-wit, on December 15, 1896, the fol-

lowing further proceedings were had and appear of rec-

ord in said cause, which are in words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

'

V Ko. <-
:

;i2,

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWAKD
LOKD,

Defendants.

Trial (Continued),

Oomes again the plaintiff by Burton E. Bennett, Unit-

ed States Attorney, and the defendants by their attor-

neys, as also come the jury heretofore impaneled and

sworn herein, in charge of their sworn bailiff, and being

called by the clerk, under the direction of the Court, and

all answering to their names, and report to the Court

that they are unable to agree upon a verdict.

Whereupon it is ordered by the Court that they be dis-

charged from further service in this cause.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on December 17, 1896, the fol-

lowing further proceedings were had and appear of rec-

ord in said cause, which are in words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,
Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWAED
LOKD,

Defendants.

No. 612.

Rehearing.

Now, at this day this cause coming on for a rehearing,

the plaintiff being represented by Burton E. Bennett,

United States Attorney, and the defendants being per-

sonally present and their counsel, Messrs. Crews, Han-

num & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, Esq., the venire of the

petit jury was called by the clerk, and the jurors sworn

as to their qualifications, and being passed for cause, the

following jurors were sworn to try the issues:

Charles Clapp.

Louis Levy.

John Williams.

J. K. Clark.

John Myers.

W. C. Meydenbauer.

Neil McLeod.

Jo. Edmonds.

J. F. Bodwell.

L. A. Moore.

W. R. Murdock.

Adam Corbus.
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The evidence being heard, the cause being argued l>y

counsel, the jury was charged by the Court, and retired

for deliberation in charge of a sworn officer.

The jury in the above-entitled cause having come. into

court, and being called by the clerk, and all answering,

the plaintiff being represented by Burton E. Bennett, If.

S. Attorney, the defendants being personally present

and their counsel, Messrs. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and 0.

S. Blackett, Esq., the jury returned the following ver-

dict:

THE UNITED STATES OF AMEEICA, DISTRICT OF
ALASKA.

In the District Court of the United States for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Adjourned No-
vember Term, 1896.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD.

Verdict.

We, the jury impaneled and sworn in the above-enti-

tled cause, ilnd the defendant Max Endleman guilty as

charged, in the indictment, and Edward Lord not guilty.

A. W. CORBUS,
Foreman.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. United States of America vs.

Max Endleman and Edward Lord. Indictment for vio-

lating 23 U. S. Statutes at Large, chap. 53, sec. 14. Ver-

dict. Filed December 17, 1896. Charles D. Rogers,

Clerk.
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Whereupon the jury are discharged by the Court from

further attendance in this cause.

Order Releasing Detendant Edward Lord.

The jury in the above-entitled cause having returned a

verdict of not guilty as to the defendant Edward Lord, it

is ordered by the Court that he be discharged from custo-

dy, and go hence without day.

UNITED STATES,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD.

> No. 612.

Charge to the Jury.

Gentlemen of the Jury, the Act of Congress provided a

civil government for this territory, which is commonly

known here as the Organic Act, and which became a law

on the 17th day of May, 1884, and has established the

government that we have up here in this country, pro-

hibits by expressed enactment the importation, manu-

facture, and sale of intoxicating liquors in this district.

The indictment in this case charges the defendants,

Max Endelman and Mr. Lord, with having violated this

provision of the law. It is not for you to pass upon the

sufficiency of that indictment; that is entirely for the

Court, and the Court instructs you that within the alle-
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gations of that indictment, if you believe from this evi-

dence, beyond a reasonable doubt, that these defendants

have sold liquor within the territory of Alaska contrary

to this law, then the defendants are guilty as charged in

that indictment. The fact that it was a glass, pint or

quart cuts no figure, as the law authorizes the allegation

to be made in that way.

Now, in order to authorize a conviction, you want to

direct your attention to three propositions: First. Has

there been a sale? Second. Was the sale an intoxicat-

ing liquor? And third. Was it sold by these defend-

ants, or either of them in person or through any agent,

servant or employee?

A sale means, as used in this statute, the ordinary and

usual signification of the word; that is, it is the transfer

of any kind of property from one person to another per-

son for current money of the United States.

I charge you that if you find that a sale was made and

that the sale was the liquor commonly called whisky, you

must find that it was an intoxicating liquor that was

sold, for this Court takes judicial knowledge of the fact

that the liquors commonly known as whisky, rum, gin,

and brandy are intoxicating liquors.

Now, as to the sale by these defendants. You may

under this indictment and this evidence if you think the

evidence warrants it, after I give you thp whole of the

law, find both or either one of these defendants guilty or

not guilty; that is, you may find them both guilty or you

may acquit them both; you may find either one guilty

and acquit the other, just as you feel warranted in doing

from the evidence in this case.
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Now, gentlemen, upon the subject of the principal or

the proprietor being liable for the acts of his servant or

employee: That principle applies to a proprietor who has

charge of a manufacture and also any institution where

intoxicating liquors are sold; he is liable for any and

every sale that is made by any and every person that is

in his employ, acting for him as a servant, agent, or em-

ployee. I charge you further that a bartender is an em-

ployee and a servant within the meaning of the law. A
waiter who carries drinks from the bar and furnishes

them to customers in the boxes, he is the servant, agent,

or employee of the proprietor of the establishment and if

either the bartender or the waiter have carried or fur-

nished drinks to any person or customers in that house,

that is, assuming the drinks were sold and they received

money for them, the principal or proprietor is guilty

within the purview of this indictment.

Now, in view of the offer of Mr. Crews, in behalf of the

defendants to introduce the Internal Revenue License

Tax, I feel it my duty to see that you are not misled, and

that you do not misapprehend the law in that regard.

The license which is granted under the Internal Eevenue

Law is granted for the purpose of raising money to sup-

ply the treasury of the United States with funds to carry

on the government and to pay the principal and interest

on the public debt, and to pay the pensions of the sol-

diers, and it is one of the methods which Congress has

provided for keeping the treasury of the United States

in funds. They therefore give to liquor dealers a license,

and charge them twenty-five dollars for it, and any per-

son who carries on the business of a retail liquor dealer
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without having put up his money and got his license is

liable under another and different statute from the one

which we have under consideration, section 3242 of the

Revised Statutes, which provides a punishment much

more severe than this statute for any man who carries on

the business without the license; so, therefore, the li-

cense cuts no figure whatever in this case. You must

not consider it at all, because it is no defense to the vio-

lation of the statute now under consideration.

JYou have a right in considering this evidence, and I

instruct you, that you must consider it all; if there are

any discrepancies, try and reconcile them; if not, come

to such a conclusion as the truth points to, and satisfy

your mind what are true. And in viewing the testimony

you have a right to use your own observation and expe-

rience as reasonable and sensible men; you have a right

to consider what you know from your own experience of

bars and bar fixtures and a saloon outfit is used for. You

have a right to consider the common practices of proprie-

tors of such establishments in engaging bartenders and

employees to wait upon customers. You have a right to

take into consideration the practical operation of elec-

tricity, the emploj^ment of which is a common occur-

rence everywhere, the use of the electric bell for the pur-

pose of calling a waiter to order the drinks served. It

is a matter of every-day occurrence now, just like the tel-

ephone and telegraph through which hundreds of thou-

sands of dollars' worth of business is transacted every

day. These are matters of every-day occurrence, and

you have a right to use your own knowledge and expe-

rience in that direction in weighing this testimony.
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It is also your duty to take into consideration the ap-

pearance of the Avitnesses; their apparent candor and

fairness in testifying, whether they are unwilling and

trying to keep back something in order to shield the de-

fendant or not. You have a right to take into considera-

tion all the opportunities which any witnesses might

have had for knowing or seeing the matters he testified

to. You have a right to consider the probable or im-

probable nature of the story which the witness tells, and

from the whole of this testimony and your judgment, ex-

perience, and observation as reasonable men applied to

this evidence arrive at the true facts.

Now, it is true that the defendants are entitled to the

benefit of the doubt; this is a criminal prosecution, but

you must not be misled as to the nature of that doubt or

as to what your duties in connection with any such doubt

in weighing this evidence may be. A reasonable doubt

is not something you imagine the possibility that the de-

fendant is not guilty or some speculative or chimerical

doubt which may have arisen in your minds outside of

the evidence, but the doubt must be based upon the testi-

mony in the case, or based upon a want of testimony. It

must arise out of this trial itself and the testimony that

has been disclosed to you on that trial, or the want of

such testimony; in other words, I charge you that in or-

der to make a reasonable doubt you must have in your

minds an honest and substantial misgiving founded on

the testimony that the defendant is not guilty.

Now, one step further, and I am through. The fed-

eral courts allow the Judges sometimes to give an opin-

ion on the evidence.
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I gave my judgment to the other jury and I will give it

to you. 1 do not see any way that these defendants can

be acquitted, notwithstanding I charge you that you are

(he judges of the evidence and from that evidence it is for

you to say whether or not they, or either of them, are

guilty. You must not forget in this trial, you have no

right whatever when you get into the jury room to ques-

tion any provision of law, or to question this prohibitory

liquor law; it is the law of this country, passed by the

highest legislative power in the United States, and it is

our duty to obey it. The very highest duty of good citi-

zenship is to support the constitution and uphold the

laws of the United States, no matter what they may be.

And, gentlemen, if you believe from this evidence that

these defendants, or either of them, are guilty, beyond

a reasonable doubt, as I have charged you the law to be,

you will find them guilty; if you do not so believe you

will return a verdict of not guilty.

In addition to that, inasmuch as some reference has

been made to the fact that these defendants did not take

the witness stand and testify, you will not consider that.

The law authorizes them to be sworn if they want to, but

if they do not want to be sworn that raises no presump-

tion one way or the other; so you will not consider that

fact.

(Counsel for the defendants in open court and in the

presence of the jury duly excepted to each and every part

of the Court's instructions to the jury and also to the in-

structions as a whole.)
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The Court further instructs the jury:

If you find from this evidence that any intoxicating li-

quor or whisky was furnished by any agent or employee

of the defendant Endelman, he being the proprietor of

the Louvre building, if you so find, then the proprietor is

responsible for the acts of the agent or employee, so far

as such sales are concerned, and is equally guilty with

the employee.

The principal can be convicted under this evidence if

you find beyond a reasonable doubt that the liquor was

sold by his agent, servant, or employee acting for him.

(Excepted to by counsel for defendants.)

And afterwards, to-wit, on December 18, 1896, a mo-

tion in arrest of judgment was filed in said cause, which

is in words and figures following, to-wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMEEICA, \

Plaintiff,

TS.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LOED,

Defendants.
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\

Motion in Arrest of Judgment.

Comes now the above-named defendant, Max Endle-

man, and moves the Court, in arrest of judgment upon

the following grounds, to-wit:

1st. That the Grand Jury, by which the indictment

against the defendants was found had no legal authority

to inquire into the crime charged, because the Court has

no jurisdiction of the subject matter of the action.

2d. That the facts stated in the indictment do not con-

stitute a crime.

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,

Defendant's Attorneys.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward

Lord, defendants. Motion in arrest of judgment. Filed

December 18, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. By Wal-

ton D. McNair, Deputy. Crews, ITannum & Ivey, and C.

S. Blackett, Attorneys for defendants. Office, Juneau,

Alaska.
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And afterward, to-wit, on said December 18, 1896, a

motion for new trial was filed in said cause, which is in

words and figures following, to-wit:

No. G12.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

Motion for New Trial.

Comes now the above-named defendant, Max Endel-

man, and moves the Court to set aside the verdict ren-

dered against him in the above-entitled action and to

grant a new trial; that this motion is made and based

upon the following grounds affecting the substantial

rights of this defendant:

1st. Irregularity in the proceedings of the Court dur-

ing the trial of the defendant, excepted to by the defend-

ant.

2d. Abuse of discretion on the part of the Court in

permitting the prosecution to prove, or attempt to prove,
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a sale of whisky at any time and to any person within

one year prior to the finding of the indictment against

the defendant, by which this defendant was prevented

from having a fair trial.

3d. Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the ver-

dict.

4th. That the verdict is against law.

5th. Error in law occurring at the trial and except-

ed to by the defendant.

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,

Defendant's Attorneys.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In- the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward

Lord, defendants. Motion for new trial. Filed

December 18, 1896. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. By Wal-

ton D. McXair, Deputy. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C.

S. Blackett, Attorneys for defendants. Office, Juneau,

Alaska.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 18, 1896, the

following further proceedings were had and appear of re-

cord in said cause, which are in words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

UNITED STATES,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN,

Plaintiff,

J.
.no. 612.

Defendant.

Order Denying Motion in Arrest of Judg-

ment, and for New Trial.

Now, at this time comes the plaintiff, by Burton E.

Bennett, U. S. Attorney, and the defendant appearing

by counsel, Messrs. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S.

Blackett, Esq., present their motion in arrest of judg-

ment and for a new trial, and the Court being fully ad-

vised in the premises, denies both said motions.

And afterwards, to-wit, on said December 18, 1896, the

following further proceedings were had and appear of

record in said cause, which are in words and figures fol-

lowing, to-wit:
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Plaintiff,

UNITED STATES,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN,

Judgment,

Now conies the plaintiff, by Burton E. Bennett, U. S.

Attorney, as also the defendant in person, with Messrs.

Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, Esq., his

counsel, and appearing for judgment

—

It is ordered, adjudged, and decreed that defendant be

and he is hereby convicted of the crime of unlawfully

selling intoxicating liquors within the District of Alaska,

and sentenced to pay a tine of one hundred dollars, and

that he be imprisoned in the jail at Sitka until said fine

is paid, for a term not exceeding 60 days.
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And afterwards, to-wit, on January 7, 1897, a petition

for writ of error was filed in said cause, which is in words

and figures following, towit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, \

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

Petition for Writ of Error.

In the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial

District.

To the Honorable ARTHUR K. DELANEY, Judge of the

United States District Court for the District of

Alaska.

The petition of Max Endleman and Edward Lord

shows to this Honorable Court as follows:

1. That your petitioners are the defendants above

named; that in said cause there was entered at a term

of court held at Juneau, in the District of Alaska, be-

ginning on the 9th day of November 1896, the final judg-
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ment entered upon the verdict of a jury on the 18th day of

December, 1896, wherein the defendant, Max Endelman,

was adjudged to be guilty of violating the prohibitory

law prohibiting the manufacture, importation, and sale

of intoxicating liquors in the District of Alaska, whereas

the defendant, Max Endelman, was adjudged to pay a

fine of one hundred dollars (flOO.OO), and in default of

the payment of said fine that he be confined in the peni-

tentiary of Sitka, Alaska, for a period of sixty days (60),

which said judgment and proceedings incident thereto

are erroneous in many particulars, to the great injury

and prejudice of complainants, your petitioner; that man-

ifest error has been made in this case in the rendering of

said judgment, to the great damage and injury of your

petitioner, as the same fully appears from the assign-

ment of errors in bill of exceptions filed herewith.

Wherefore, that in order your petitioner have relief

in the premises, and for an opportunity to show the er-

rors complained of, your petitioners pray that they may

be allowed a writ of error in said cause, and that upon

the giving by your petitioners of a bond, as by law re-

quired, all proceedings in this court be suspended and

stayed until the determination of said writ of error in

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Judicial District, and that a transcript of the records,

proceedings, and all papers in this case duly authenti-

cated may be transmitted to the Honorable Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial District, holding terms

in San Francisco, State of California, to determine said

writ of error.

MAX ENDELMAN,
Petitioner.
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United States of America

District of Alaska.

Due service of the within petition is hereby accepted in

the District of Alaska, this day of December, 1896,

by receiving a copy thereof, duly certified to as such by

0. S. Hannum, one of the attorneys for defendants.

BUBTON E. BENNETT,

United States District Attorney for the District of

Alaska.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for District of Alaska. United States of

America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endelman and Edward Lord,

defendants. Petition for writ of error. Filed January

7, 1897. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. By Walton D. Mc-

Nair, Deputy. Crews Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett,

Attorneys for petitioners. Office, Juneau, Alaska.
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And afterwards, on said date, defendant filed his as-

signment of errors, which is in words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

vs.

t

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWAED '

LOED,
Defendants.

Assignment of Errors.

Comes now the above-named defendant, Max Endel-

man, in error in the aboye-entitled cause, by Messrs.

Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, his attorneys

and solicitors, and says, that in the records, proceedings,

and trial in the above-entitled cause there is manifest

error affecting the substantial rights of the defendant

to his injury, as follows:

I.

That the Court erred in denying the defendant's mo-

tion to quash the indictment returned against him and

Edward Lord; to the ruling of the Court denying said mo-
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tion this defendant then and there duly excepted, which

exception was duly allowed by the Court.

II.

That the Court erred in overruling defendant's demur-

rer to the indictment; to the overruling of said demur-

rer the defendant then and there excepted, and his excep-

tions were duly allowed by the Court.

III.

That the Court erred in denying defendant's motion

made at the beginning of the trial to require the district

attorney to elect upon what particular sale set forth in

the indictment he would rely upon for a conviction in

this cause against the defendant; to the ruling of the

Court denying said motion, the defendant then and there

duly excepted, which exception was duly allowed by the

Court.

TV.

That the Court erred in overruling the defendant's ob-

jection to the introduction of any testimony on behalf of

the Government in this cause, which motion was based

upon the ground that the indictment does not state facts

sufficient to constitute a crime, and upon the further

ground that the defendant had no notice from the indict-

ment upon what charge he would be put upon trial; to

this overruling of the objection by the Court defendant

duly excepted, which exception was duly allowed.
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V.

That the Court erred in allowing the district attorney

to introduce testimony tending to prove a sale of intox-

icating liquors by the defendant at any time within one

year prior to the finding of the indictment; to the order

and ruling of the Court the defendant duly excepted,

which exception was allowed by the Court.

VI.

That the Court erred in permitting the prosecution to

introduce in evidence over the objection of the defend-

ant a printed advertisement, purporting to be an adver-

tisement of the Louvre Theatre, which advertisement ap-

pears in the "Mining Record," a newspaper published at

Juneau, Alaska; to the overruling of defendant's objec-

tion the defendant duly excepted, and the exception was

allowed by the Court.

VII.

That the Court erred in denying defendant's motion to

discharge the defendant at the time the prosecution rest-

ed its case; to the ruling of the Court denying said mo-

tion defendant duly excepted, which exception was duly

allowed by the Court.

VIII.

That the Court erred in denying defendant's motion to

require the district attorney to disclose and elect at the
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time he rested the case upon what particular sale, and at

what particular time, to what particular person he relied

upon for a conviction in this case; to the ruling of the

Court denying said motion the defendant duly excepted,

and the exception was allowed by the Court.

IX.

The Court erred in refusing to allow the defendant to

introduce in evidence a license granted to the defend-

ant, Max Endelman, by the Collector of Internal Reve-

nue for the District of Oregon, of which the District of

Alaska forms a part, authorizing the defendant, Max

Endelman, to sell and retail spirituous liquors in the

town of Juneau, District of Alaska; to the ruling of this

Court denying defendant's offer and excluding the testi-

mony offered, the defendant duly excepted, which ex-

ception was allowed by the Court.

X.

That the Court erred in giving the following instruc-

tions to the jury:

First.—"If you believe from this evidence, beyond a

reasonable doubt, that these defendants have sold liquor

within the territory of Alaska contrary to this law, then

the defendants are guilty as charged in that indictment.

That the fact that it was a glass, pint, or quart cuts no

figure, as the law authorizes the allegation to be made in

that way.*'
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Second.—Now, in order to authorize a conviction, you

want to direct your attention to three propositions:

First. Has there been a sale? Second. Was the sale

an intoxicating liquor? And Third. Was it sold by these

defendants, or either of them, in person or through any

agent, servant, or employee?"

Third.—A sale means, as used in this statute, the or-

dinary and usual signification of the word; that is, it is

the transfer of any kind of property from one person to

another person for current money of the United States."

Fourth.—"I charge you that if you find that a sale was

made, and that the sale was the liquor commonly called

whisky, you must find that it was an intoxicating liquor

that was sold, for this Court takes judicial knowledge of

the fact that the liquors commonly known as whisky,

rum, gin, and brandy are intoxicating liquors."

Fifth.—"Now, as to the sale by these defendants: You
may under this indictment and this evidence if you

think the evidence warrants it, after I give you the whole

of the law, find both or either one of these defendants

guilty or not guilty; that is, you may find them both

guilty, or you may acquit them both; you may find either

one guilty and acquit the other, just as you feel warrant-

ed in doing from the evidence in this case."

Sixth.—"Now, gentlemen, upon the subject of the prin-

cipal or the proprietor being liable for the acts of his ser-

vants or employee; that principle applies to a proprietor

who has charge of a manufacture and also any institution
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where intoxicating liquors are sold; he is liable for any

and every sale that is made by any and every person that

is in his employ, acting for him as a servant, agent, or

employee."

Seventh.—"I charge you further, that a bartender is

an employee and a servant within the meaning of the

law. A waiter who carries drinks from the bar and fur-

nishes them to customers in the boxes is the servant,

agent, or employee of the proprietor of the establishment,

and if either the bartender or the waiter have carried or

furnished drinks to any persons or customers in that

house, that is, assuming the drinks were sold and they

received money for them, the principal or proprietor is

guilty within the purview of this indictment."

Eighth.—"Now, in view of the offer of Mr. Crews, in

behalf of the defendants to introduce the Internal llev-

enue License Tax, I feel it my duty to see that you are

not misled and that you do not misapprehend the law
h

in that regard. The license which is granted under the

Internal Revenue Law is granted for the purpose of rais-

ing money to supply the treasury of the United States

with funds to carry on the government, and to pay the

principal and interest on the public debt, and to pay the

pensions of the soldiers, and it is one of the methods

which Congress has provided for keeping the treasury of •

the United States in funds. They, therefore, give to the

liquor dealers a license, and charge them twenty-five

dollars for it, and any person who carries on the business

of a retail liquor dealer without having put up his money
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and got his license is liable under another and different

statute from the one which we have under consideration,

section 3242 of the Revised Statutes, which provides a

punishment much more severe than this statute for any

man who carries on the business without a license; so,

therefore the license cuts no figure whatever in this case.

You must not consider it at all, because it is no defense

to the violation of the statute now under consideration."

Ninth.—"And in viewing the testimony you have a

right to use your own observation and experience as rea-

sonable and sensible men; you have a right to consider

what you know of your own experience of bars and bar

fixtures and a saloon outfit is used for."

Tenth.—"You have a right to consider the common

practices of proprietors of such establishments in engag-

ing bartenders and employees to wait upon customers."

Eleventh.—"You have a right to take into considera-

tion the practical operation of electricity, the employ-

ment of which is a common occurrence everywhere, the

use of the electric bell for the purpose of calling a waiter

to order the drinks served. It is a matter of every-day

occurrence now, just like the telephone and telegraph,

through which hundreds of thousands of dollars' worth

of business is transacted every day. These are matters

of every-day occurrence, and you have a right to use

your own knowledge and experience in that direction in

weighing this testimony."
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Twelfth.—"The federal courts allow the judges some-

times to give an opinion on the evidence. I gave my judg-

ment to the other jury and I will give it to you. I do not

see any way that these defendants can be acquitted, not-

withstanding I charge you that you are the judges of

the evidence, and from that evidence it is for you to say

whether or not they, or either of them, are guilty."

To all and each of said instructions the defendant duly

excepted, which exceptions were duly allowed by the

Court.

XI.

That the Court erred in giving the following additional

instructions to the jury:

First.—"If you find from this evidence that any intoxi-

cating liquor or whisky was furnished by any agent or

employee of the defendant Endelman, he being the pro-

prietor of the Louvre building, if you find so, then the

proprietor is responsible for the acts of the agent or em-

ployee so far as such sales are concerned, and is equally

guilty with the employee."

Second.—"The principal can be convicted under this

evidence if you find beyond a reasonable doubt that the

liquor was sold by his agent, servant, or employee acting

for him."

To all and each of said additional instructions the de-

fendant duly excepted, which exceptions were duly al-

lowed by the Court.
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XII.

That the Court erred in denying defendant's motion in

arrest of judgment; to the ruling of the Court denying

said motion the defendant duly excepted, which excep-

tion was allowed by the Court.

XIII.

That the Court erred in denying defendant's motion

for a new trial; to the ruling of the Court in denying said

motion defendant duly excepted, which exception was

duly allowed by the Court.

XIV.

That the Court erred in entering any judgment as pro-

nouncing any sentence against the defendant; to which

the defendant duly excepted, which exception was al-

lowed by the Court.

Wherefore, defendant prays that the judgment ren-

dered and entered against him in the above-entitled court

and cause be reversed, set aside, and held for naught;

that the indictment under which defendant was tried be

dismissed, and that the defendant go hence without day,

and for such other and further relief as he may in law be

entitled to have.

CKEWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,
Defendant's Attorneys.
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United States of America

District of Alaska.

' I ss.

Due serviceof the within assignment of errors is hereby

accepted in the District of Alaska, this 29th day of De-

cember, 1896, by receiving a copy thereof duly certified

to as such by C. S. Hannum, one of the attorneys for de-

fendant.

BURTON E. BENNETT,

U. S. District Attorney for Plff.,District of Alaska.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward

Lord, defendants. Assignment of errors. Filed January

7, 1897. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. By Walton D. Mc-

Nair, Deputy. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Black-

ett, Attorneys for defendants. Office, Juneau, Alaska.



42 Max Endelman and Edward Lord vs.

And afterwards, on said date, the following further

proceedings were had and appear of record in said

cause, which are in words and figures following, to-wit:

No. 612.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, \

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

Order Allowing Writ of Error.

In the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial

District.

Now, on this 7th day of January, 1897, comes the de-

fendants, Max Endelman and Edward Lord, by their at-

torneys, Messrs. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and C. S. Black-

ett, and file herein and present to the Court their peti-

tion praying for an allowance of a writ of error intended

to be urged bythem; praying also for thetranscript of the

records, proceedings, and papers upon which the judg-

ment herein was rendered, together with all other papers,

records, and files in said cause, duly authenticated may

be sent to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Judicial District, and that such other and fur-
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tker proceedings may be had that may be proper in the

premises.

In Consideration "Whereof, the Court does not allow the

writ of error, and all proceedings in this case shall be

stayed and suspended during the pendency of said writ

in said Court.

Done in open court at Juneau, Alaska, this Tth day of

January, 1897.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge of the United States District Court, for the Dis-

trict of Alaska.

And afterward, on said date, a writ of error was issued

in said cause, which is in words and figures following, to-

wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 1

Plaintiff,

vs.
[

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants,
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Writ of Error.
ngg --n,r«>-

;>

United States of America, ss.

The President of the United States to the Honorable

AKTHUK K. DELATEY, Judge of the United

States District Court, for the District of Alaska,

Greeting:
r'jj

The cause in the record and proceedings, as also in the

rendition of the judgment of a plea which is in the said

District Court, before you, between the government of

I lie United States of America, plaintiff, and Max Endel-

nian and Edward Lord, defendants, a manifest error has

happened to the great prejudice, injury, and damage of

I lie said defendant, Max Endelman, as is said and ap-

pears by the petition herein.

We being willing that error, if any hath been,

should be duly corrected and full and speedy justice

done to the parties aforesaid in this behalf do command
you, if judgment be given therein, that then under your

seal, distinctly and openly, you send the record and pro-

ceedings aforesaid, with all things concerning the same,

to the justices of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Mnth Circuit, in the city of San Francisco,

State of California, together with this writ, so as to have

Hie same at said place in said Circuit on the 6th day of

February, 1897, that the record and proceedings afore-

said being inspected, said Circuit Court of Appeals may
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cause further to be done therein to correct those errors

what of right and according to the laws and customs of

the United States should be done.

Witness, the Honorable MELVILLE W. FULLER,
Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of the United States,

this 7th day of January, 1897

Attest my hand and seal of the United States District

Court for the District of Alaska, begun at the clerk's of-

fice at Juneau, Alaska, on the day and year last above

written.

[Seal] CHARLES D. ROGERS,

Clerk of United States District Court for the District of

Alaska.

Allowed.

Dated this 7th day of January, 1897.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge of the U. S. District Court, for the District of

Alaska.

United States of America, )
I ss.

District of Alaska. \

Due service of the within writ of error is hereby ac-

cepted in the District of Alaska, this 7th day of January,

1897, by receiving a copy thereof, duly certified to as

such, by C. S. Hannum, one of the attorneys for defend-

ant.

BURTON E. BENNETT,

United States District Attorney for the District of

Alaska.
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[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of 1he

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward

Lord, defendant. Writ of error. Filed January

8, 1897. Charles D. Kogers, Clerk. Crews, Hannum &
Ivey, and C. S. Blackett, Attorneys for Defendants. Of-

fice, Juneau, Alaska.

And afterwards, on said date, there was issued out of

said District Court of Alaska, a citation, which is in

words and figures as follows

:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.

UNITED STATES OF AMEEICA, 1

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWAED
LOED,

!

Defendants.

Citation.

United States of America, ss.

To the Honorable Burton E. Bennett, United States Dis-

trict Attorney for the District of Alaska.

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear
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at a term of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, to be held at the city of San Fran-

cisco, State of California, on the 6th day of February, in

the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and

ninety-seven, pursuant to a writ of error filed in the

clerk's office of the United States District Court for the

District of Alaska, wherein Max Endelman and Edward

Lord, plaintiffs in error, and the government of the

United States of America is defendant in error, to show

cause, if any there be, why the judgment rendered

against the said defendants, as in said writ of error men-

tioned, should not be corrected and reversed, and why

speedy justice should not be done to the parties in that

behalf.

Witness, the Honorable ARTHUR K. DELANEY.
Judge of the United States District Court for the Dis-

trict of Alaska, this 7th day of January, 1897.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge of the U. S. District Court, for the District of

Alaska.

United States of America,

District of Alaska. ^

( ss.

Due service of the within citation is hereby accepted

in the District of Alaska this 7th day of January, 1897, by

receiving a copy thereof, duly certified to as such, by C.

S. Hannum, one of the attorneys for defendant.

BURTON E. BENNETT,

United States District Attorney for the District of

Alaska.
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[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endleman and Edward

Lord, defendants. Citation. Filed January 8, 1897.

Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. Crews, Hannum & Ivey, and

C. S. Blackett attorneys for defendants. Office, Juneau,

Alaska.

And afterward, to-wit, on January 19, 1897, the fol-

lowing further proceedings were had and appear of re-

cord in said cause, to-wit:

No. 612.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 1

vs.
|

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD
y

LORD,
|

Defendants,
J

Order Allowing Extension of Timw.

Now, on this day this cause came on to be heard upon

the application of Max Endelman, plaintiff in error, for

an order to enlarge the time, allowing the clerk of this

Court thirty days' additional time to make his return

to the writ of error heretofore issued and served in this

cause.

It is ordered that the time be, and the same is, hereby
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extended for a period of thirty days from the expiration

of the time mentioned in said writ.

Dated at Sitka, Alaska, Jan. 19th, 1897.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge.

And afterwards, to-wit on said date, the defendant

filed his bill of exceptions, which is in words and figures

following, to-wit:

No. 612.

In the United States District Court for the District of Alaska

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

MAX ENDLEMAN and EDWARD
LORD,

Defendants.

y

Bill of Exceptions.

Be it remembered that at the adjourned November

term of the United States District Court, for the District

of Alaska, commencing on the 9th day of November,

1896, the Grand Jurors of the United States of America,

for the said District of Alaska, on the 8th day of Decem-

ber 1896, returned and caused to be filed in said court a

true bill of indictment against the above-named defend-

ants, which indictment is in the following words and

figures:
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United States of America, )

District of Alaska. I
ss#

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, "|

23 U. S. Stat-
* s*

i utes at Large,

f Chapter 53, Sec-

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD
I

tloa 14>

LORD.
j

At the adjourned November term of the District Court

of the United States of America, within and for the Dis-

trict of Alaska, in the year of our Lord, one thousand

eight hundred and ninety-six, begun and held at Juneau,

in said district, commencing on the 9th day of Novem-

ber, 1896.

The Grand Jurors of the United States of America,

selected, impaneled, sworn, and charged within and for

the District of Alaska, accuse Max Endelman and Ed-

ward Lord by this indictment of the crime of unlawfully

selling intoxicating liquors within said district, commit-

ted as follows: The said Max Endelman and Edward

Lord at or near Juneau, within the said District of Alas-

ka, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, on or about"

the 7th day of December, in the year of our Lord, one

thousand eight hundred and ninety-six, and at divers oth-

er times before, did unlawfully and willfully sell to John

Doe and Richard Roe and to divers other persons, whose

real names are to the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown,
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an intoxicating liquor called whisky, to-wit, one glass,

pint, quart, gallon of said liquor, the real quantity is to

the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown; without having

iirst complied with the law concerning the sale of intox-

icating liquors, in the District of Alaska. And so the

Grand Jurors duly selected, impaneled, sworn, and

charged as aforesaid upon their oaths do say : That Max
Endelman and Edward Lord did then and there unlaw-

fully sell intoxicating liquors in the manner and form

aforesaid to the said John Doe and Richard Roe, and to

divers other persons, whose real names are to the Grand

Jurors aforesaid unknowTn, contrary to the form of the

statutes in such cases made and provided, and against

the peace and dignity of the United States of America.

(Signed) BURTON E. BENNETT.

United States District Attorney.

That there is indorsed on the back of said indictment

the following words and figures:

"No. 612. United States of America vs. Max Endel-

man and Edward Lord. Indictment for violating 23 U. S.

Statutes at Large, chap. 53, sec. 14. A true bill. Ed-

ward De Groff, Foreman of Grand Jury. Witnesses ex-

amined before Grand Jurors: G. W. Young, Karl Koeh-

ler, Fred Heyde, S. M. Graf." (Signed) "Burton E.

Bennett, U. S. Attorney. Filed Dec. 8, 1896. Charles

D. Rogers, Clerk."

That prior to the time the defendants were required to

plead to said indictment they duly made and caused to

be filed with the clerk of said court a motion to quash
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said indictment which said motion was based upon the

following grounds:

1st That two or more offenses are charged in the same

count in the indictment.

2d. That the indictment is fatally defective for du-

plicity.

3d. That two or more offenses are charged in the same

indictment in the same count against the defendants

without segregating the offenses committed by each de-

fendant.

4th. That the indictment is too vague, indefinite, and

uncertain to afford the accused proper notice of the

crime charged against them to enable them to properly

plead or prepare their defense.

That said motion and the questions of law raised there-

by were duly argued and submitted to the Court; after

duly considering the same the Court made an order de-

nying defendants' said motion; to the ruling of the Court

the defendants then and there duly excepted, which ex-

ception was allowed by the Court.

That immediately after the making of the order by the

Court denying said motion to quash the defendants filed

a demurrer to the said indictment upon the following

grounds:

1st. That the Court has no jurisdiction over the sub-

ject matter of the action.
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2d. That more than one crime is charged in the in-

dictment against the defendants in the same count.

3d. That the facts stated in the indictment do not

constitute a crime or any crime against the defendants or

either of them.

That the Court declined to hear any argument from

counsel upon said demurrer and made and caused to be

entered an order overruling said demurrer; to the order

and ruling of the Court the defendants then and there

duly excepted, which exception was allowed by the

Court.

That immediately after the entry of the order overrul-

ing said demurrer aud allowing defendants' exceptions,

the Court required said defendants to plead to said in-

dictment; that each of the defendants then and there en-

tered a plea of not guilty.

That thereafter and on the 17th day of December, 1896,

this cause came on for trial, and after the jury had been

impaneled and sworn to try said cause; whereupon Will-

iam Hale was called and sworn as a witness on behalf of

the prosecution.

That thereupon and before any evidence was intro-

duced the defendants moved the Court as follows:

"That inasmuch as the indictment charges that on or

about the 7th day of December, 1896, the defendants sold*

intoxicating liquors to John Doe, Richard Roe, and other

parties, that the district attorney be required to elect
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upon what particular sale he chooses to rely for a con-

viction in this cause." Which motion was denied by the

Court; to the ruling of the Court the defendants then and

there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by the

Court.
i

Thereupon the defendants interposed the following

objections:

"Counsel for the defendants objected to the introduc-

tion of any testimony in this cause, for the reason that

the indictment does not state facts sufficient to consti-

tute a crime; for the further reason that the defendants

have no notice from the indictment upon what charge

they are put upon their trial." The objection was over-

ruled by the Court, and the defendants duly excepted,

which exception was allowed by the Court.

The prosecution called W. H. Swinehart, who was

sworn as a witness on behalf of the United States, and

testified that he was the business manager for the Alaska

"Mining Eecord," a weekly newspaper published in Ju-

neau, and knew Max Endelman, one of the defendants,

and knew his (Endelmaus) place of business. The dis-

trict attorney then asked the following questions:

"From who did you obtain that ad?" (Called the witness'

attention to an ad. in the Alaska "Mining Record.") The

witness answered: "I didn't obtain the ad. My brother

solicited the advertisement." Question. "Did you ever

do any collecting on that ad.?" Answer. "Yes, sir."

Question. "From whom did you collect?" Answer.

"Max Endelman." After which testimony, it being all
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the material testimony given by the said witness, the dis-

trict attorney offered in evidence the advertisement

above referred to, which read as follows:

"THE LOUVEE THEATKE.
Max Endleman, Proprietor.

Newest, Most Completely Equipped in Alaska.

Juneau, Alaska.

The latest and Best Vaudeville performances rendered

Nightly by the Leading Histronic Artists. Special at-

tractions weekly."

To the introduction of said advertisement in evidence

the defendants interposed the following objection:

"Counsel for the prosecution offered in evidence the ad-

vertisement above referred to.

"Counsel for the defendants objected to said advertise-

ment, for the reason that the same shows that Max En-

delman is the proprietor of the Louvre Theatre, and for

the further reason that it is incompetent and immaterial

so far as the defendant Lord is concerned, and for the

further reason that the proprietorship of the Louvre The-

atre, and the proprietorship of the barroom has not been

connected, and for the further reason that the foundation

for the introduction of the same has not been laid, for

it has not been shown that the advertisement was pub-

lished at the request of the defendant."

Objection overruled by the Court, and defendants duly

excepted, which exception was allowed by the Court.

At the close of the evidence on the part of the prosecu-

tion the defendants moved the Court as follows:
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"Counsel for the defendants moved the Court that the

defendants and each of them be discharged at this time,

for the reason that the government has failed to make
out a case against them, jointly or severally; that the in-

dictment charges Max Endelman and Edward Lord with

having violated the prohibitory law of Alaska on and

prior to the 7th day of December; that the indictment

charges that the defendants sold to John Doe and Kich-

ard Roe and other parties; that indictment charges two

separate and distinct offenses committed by two separate

and distinct individuals at different times, and the testi-

mony in no way has connected them with each other, or

has shown any privity or relation between them, but as it

stands under the indictment the proof shows them to be

two separate and distinct defendants, and shows two

separate and distinct crimes committed at different

times."

The Court declined to hear defendants' counsel, and

made the following remarks in the presence and hearing

of the jury:

"By the Court.—In declining to hear counsel for the

defendants this morning upon the motions and objec-

tions interposed touching the indictment, the Court de-

clined to hear him for the reason that the question as to

the validity of the indictment was heard upon a motion

to quash after which a demurrer was interposed and over-

ruled; and then upon the former trial before the other

jury arguments were presented on motions and objections

touching the indictment, and the Court felt on the hear-

ing today that the matter had been sufficiently heard,
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and therefore declined to hear further argument. I shall

now also deny the motion made by counsel to discharge

the defendants."

To the remarks, ruling, and order of the Court the de-

fendants duly excepted which exception was allowed by

the Court.

The defendants then interposed the following motion:

"Counsel for the defendants moved the Court that the

District Attorney be required as the testimony discloses,

an attempt to prove several different sales of liquor at

several different times and dates to elect upon what par-

ticular sale and what particular time he chooses to rely

for a conviction in this case."

Motion denied by the Court, and the defendants duly

excepted, which exception was allowed by the Court.

The defendants then made the following offer:

"The indictment charges that Max Endelman and Ed-

ward Lord on or prior to the 7th day of December sold in-

toxicating liquors in the District of Alaska, without first

complying with the law ; under the indictment as it reads

the defendants are not advised as to what law they are

charged with violating, whether it is the prohibitory law

in the District of Alaska, or section 3242 of the Revised

Statutes, and therefore defendants now tender in evi-

dence a license granted by the Collector of Internal Rev-

enue of the District of Oregon, of which Alaska is a por-

tion, authorizing the defendants to sell and retail spirit-

uous liquors in the District of Alaska."
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"We desire to offer this to show to the jury that we are

not guilty of violating the revenue law; that we have

complied with the statute in that respect, having paid

out money to the government, and they have received it

and by their license have authorized us to engage in the

sale of liquor so far as the revenue part of the govern-

ment is concerned."

That the evidence offered is in the following words and

figures

:

"125.00. No. F. 58182.

Series of 1896. Series of 1896.

United States.

[Stamp for Special Tax.]

Internal Eevenue Act of October 1, 1890.

Received from Max Endelman the sum of twenty-five-

100 dollars, for special tax on the business of retail li-

quor dealer at Juneau, Alaska, for the period represented

by the coupon or coupons hereto attached.

Dated at Portland, July 7, 1896.

HENRY BLACKMAN,
Collector Dist., State of Oregon.

<5<>e: -noT. vpar i
United States j

<W"° Pei J^"*1 '
j Internal Revenue.}

Severe penalties are imposed for neglect or refusal to

place and keep this stamp conspicuously in your estab-

lishment or place of business.

That the coupons referred to as being attached to said

evidence so offered are in the following words and fig-

ures:

"Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

June, 1897.
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Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for May,

1897.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

April, 1897.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

March, 1897.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

February, 1897.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

January 1897.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

Dec, 1896.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

Njov., 1896.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

Oct., 1896.
I

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

Sep., 1896.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

Aug., 1896.

Coupon for Retail Liquor Dealer's Special Tax for

July, 1896."

That there is also printed in red ink upon the face of

said written evidence the following words and figures:

"This stamp is simply a receipt for a tax due the gov-

ernment, and does not exempt the holder from any pen-

alty or punishment provided for by the law of any state

for carrying on the said business within such State, and

does not authorize the commencement nor the continu-

ance of such business contrary to the laws of such State,

or in places prohibited by municipal law. See section

3242, Revised Statutes U. S."
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The offer was denied, and the evidence excluded by the

Court; to the ruling of the Court the defendants duly ex-

cepted, which exception was allowed by the Court.

That after the argument of counsel the Court proceed-

ed to instruct the jury; that in the Court's instructions to

the jury he erred in giving the following instructions:

First.—"If you believe from the evidence, beyond a

reasonable doubt, that these defendants have sold liquor

within the territory of Alaska, contrary to this law, then

the defendants are guilty as charged in that indictment.

The fact that it was a glass, pint, or quart cuts no fig-

ure, as the law authorizes the allegation to be made in

that way."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Second.—"Now, in order to authorize a conviction you

want, to direct your attention to three propositions:

First.—Has there been a sale? Second. Was the sale

an intoxicating liquor? And Third. Was it sold by these

defendants or either of them, either in person or through

any agent, servant, or employee?"

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed

by the Court.

Third.—"A sale means, as used in this statute, the or-

dinary and usual signification of the word; that is, it is
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the transfer of any kind of property from one person to

another person for current money of the United States."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Fourth.—"I charge you that if you find that a sale was

made, and that the sale was liquor commonly called whis-

ky, you must find that it was an intoxicating liquor that

was sold, for this Court takes judicial knowledge of the

fact that the liquors commonly known as whisky, rum,

gin, and brandy are intoxicating liquors."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed- by

the Court.

Fifth.—"Now, as to the sale by these defendants: You

may under this indictment and this evidence, if you think

I he evidence warrants it after I give you the whole of the

law, find both or either one of these defendants guilty or

not guilty ; that is, you may find them both guilty, or you

may acquit them both; you may find either one guilty and

acquit the other, just as you feel warranted in doing from

the evidence in the case."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Sixth.—Now, gentlemen, upon the subject of the prin-

cipal or the proprietor being liable for the acts of his ser-
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rant or employee. That principle applies to a proprietor

who has charge of a manufacture and also any institution

where intoxicating liquors are sold. Ue is liable for any

and every sale that is made by any and every person that

is in his employ, acting for him as a servant, agent, or em-

ployee."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Seventh.—"I charge you further, that a bartender is

an employee and a servant within the meaning of the

law. A waiter who carries drinks from the bar and fur-

nishes them to customers in the boxes, he is the servant,

agent, or employee of the proprietor of the establishment,

and if either the bartender or the waiter have carried

or furnished drinks to any persons or customers in that

house; that is, assuming the drinks were sold and they

received money for them, the principal or proprietor is

guilty within the purview of this indictment."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exceptions were allowed

by the Court.

Eighth.—"Now, in view of the offer of Mr. Crews in

behalf of the defendants to introduce the Internal Reve-

nue License Tax, I feel it my duty to see that you are not

misled and that you do not misapprehend the law in that

regard. The license which is granted under the Internal
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Revenue Law is granted for the purpose of raising money

to supply the treasury of the United States with funds to

carry on the government and to pay the principal and in-

terest on the public debt, and to pay the pensions of the

soldiers, and it is one of the methods which Congress has

provided for keeping the treasury of the United States

in funds. They therefore give to liquor dealers a license,

and charge them twenty-five dollars for it, and any per-

son who carries on the business of a retail liquor dealer

without having put up his money and got his license is

liable under another and different statute from the one

which we have under consideration, section 3242 of the

Revised Statutes, which provides a punishment much

more severe than this statute for any man who carries on

the business without a license; so, therefore, the license

cuts no figure whatever in this case. You must not con-

sider it at all, because it is no defense to the violation of

the Statute now under consideration."

To the giving of such instruction the defendants then

and there duly excepted which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Ninth.—"And in viewing the testimony you have a

right to use your own observations and experience as rea-

sonable and sensible men; you have a right to consider

what you know from your own experience of bars and

bar fixtures and a saloon outfit is used for."

To the giving of such instructions the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed

by the Court.
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Tenth.—"You have a riglit to consider the common

practices of proprietors of such establishments in engag-

ing bartenders and employees to wait upon customers."

To the giving of such instructions the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed

by the Court.

Eleventh.—"You have a right to take into considera-

tion the practical operation of electricity, the employ-

ment of which is a common occurrence everywhere; the

use of the electric bell for the purpose of calling a waiter

to order the drinks served; it is a matter of every day oc-

currence now, just like the telephone and telegraph,

through which hundreds of thousands of dollars' worth

of business is transacted every day. These are matters

of every day occurrence, and you have a right to use your

own knowledge and experience in that direction in weigh-

ing this testimony."

To the giving of such instructions the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

Twelfth.—"The federal courts allow the Judges some-

times to give an opinion on the evidence. I gave my judg-

ment to the other jury and I will give it to you. I do not

see any way that these defendants can be acquitted, not-

withstanding, I charge you that you are the judges of the

evidence and from that evidence it is for you to say

whether or not they, or either of them, are guilty."
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To the giving of such instructions the defendants then

and there duly excepted, which exception was allowed by

the Court.

That after being instructed by the Court the jury re-

tired to deliberate on their verdict; that before agreeing

upon the verdict the jury returned into court and request-

ed the evidence of certain witnesses to be read. Where-

upon, the testimony was read by the stenographer, after

which the Court gave the jury the following additional

instructions:

"If you find from this evidence that any intoxicating

liquor or whisky was furnished by any agent or employee

of the defendant, Endelman, he being the proprietor of

the Louvre building, if you so find, then the proprietor

is responsible for the acts of the agent or employee, so

far as such sales are concerned, and is equally guilty

with the employee.

"The principal can be convicted under this evidence,

if you find beyond a reasonable doubt that the liquor was

sold by his agent, servant, or employee acting for him."

To the giving of each of said additional instructions

the defendants duly excepted which exception was al-

lowed by the Court.

After which the jury again retired, and subsequently

returned into court with a verdict finding the defendant

Max Endelman guilty, and the defendant Edward Lord

not guilty.
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That thereafter and prior to the entry of judgment by

the Court against the defendant Max Endelman, defend-

ant made and filed a motion in arrest of judgment upon

the following grounds:

1st. That the Grand Jury, by which the indictment

against the defendants was found, had no legal authority

to inquire into the crime charged, because the Court has

no jurisdiction of the subject matter of the action.

2d. That the facts stated in the indictment do not con-

stitute a crime.

The motion was denied by the Court, and defendant

duly excepted which exception was allowed by the Court.

That thereupon the defendant Max Endelman filed his

motion for a new trial upon the following grounds:

1st. "Irregularity in the proceedings of the Court dur-

ing the trial of the defendant; excepted to by the defend-

ant."

2d. "Abuse of discretion on the part of the Court in

permitting the prosecution to prove, or attempt to prove,

sale of whisky at any time and to any person within one

year prior to the finding of the indictment against the

defendant, by which this defendant was prevented from

having a fair trial."

3d. "Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the ver-

dict."

4th. "That the verdict is against law."
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5th. "Error in law occurring at the trial and except-

ed to by the defendant."

That the Court overruled said motion for a new trial,

and defendant duly excepted to the ruling of the Court,

which exception was allowed by the Court.

That there was no evidence offered on behalf of the

prosecution proving or tending to prove that the defend-

ant Max Endelman ever in person sold to any one any

whisky, or any other intoxicating liquors, as charged in

the indictment, or otherwise.

That the only evidence offered tending to prove a sale

of whisky under said indictment shows that if any

whisky was sold it was sold either by the defendant Ed-

ward Lord or one James Morrison.

That the following is all the testimony offered, ex-

cept the testimony of the witness W. H. Swinehart, and

the advertisement above referred to in this bill of ex-

ceptions, tending to prove that the defendant Max Endel-

man was the owner, or proprietor, or had any interest in

the bar or bar-room situate in the Louvre Theater build-

ing, from and over which it is claimed that the whisky

was sold:

The witness William Hale testified: "That he knew

where the place of business called the Louvre was; that

it was on the waterfront in Juneau, Alaska; that there

was a theater in the back part of the building and a bar-

room in the front part; that the bar-room has a bar and
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bar fixtures, glasses, decanters, and mirrors; that there

are wide double doors between the bar-room and the the-

ater boxes in the theater, which are connected with the

bar-room by electric bells; that there is an elevator run-

ning from the bar-room to the upper floor, and that the

room above connects with the theatre, and that he had

seen beer and whisky sent up in the elevator, and had

seen beer and whisky sold over the bar by Edward Lord

and James Morrison between July 1st and December 7th,

1896."

The district attorney asked the following questions of

the Witness Hale:

"Do you know the proprietor of this place?" Answer.

"I do." "Who is he?" Answer. "Mr. Endelman." "The

defendant here?" Answer. "Yes, sir."

That the witness Hale upon cross-examination testified

that he was United States marshal for Juneau, Alaska,

and had held the position for three years, and was hold-

ing that position when he saw those sales of liquor made;

that they were made in his presence; that he made no ar-

rests nor any attempt to prevent the sale, nor did not

command them not to sell liquor in there at that time, or

at any time; that he made no attempt to prevent the

crime of selling liquor."

The witness Squire Howe testified: "That he had pur-

chased whisky a few times of Edward Lord and Mr. Mor-

rison at the Louvre; that he only knew by reputation who

the proprietor of the Louvre was; that he had heard Mr.

Endelman was; that he had seen him in there and around
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there ; that lie knew nothing about the relation defendant

Lord sustains to the proprietorship of the house (mean-

ing the Louvre), and that he did not know what relation

Mr. Endelm.'in sustained to the house."

That the witness William Rudolph testified: "That

he had purchased whisky in the theater part of the Lou-

vre of a waiter—he did not know his name; that he

touched a button and a waiter came; that he ordered

drinks; the waiter went away, came back with drinks,

and he (witness) paid waiter for them, and that it oc-

curred in the Louvre, but that he did not know where the

drinks came from; that they might have come from

George Rice's place, or the bar down stairs."

The witness James Morrison testified: "That he was

employed at the Louvre Theatre; that he did not know

who the proprietor was; that he was engaged by Max En-

dleman and had been paid by him; that he did not know

of his own knowledge that Max Endelman was the pro-

prietor of the Louvre; that Endelman was around there

all the while."

The witness Frank Nugett testified: "That he was a

waiter and employed in that capacity by the Louvre The-

atre; that Max Endelman employed him and paid him his

wages, and that he obeyed his orders; that he worked in

the theatre part; and that the theater and the bar-room

can be made one place, and that between the hours of

eight and twelve o'clock they are one place; that there

are boxes arranged in the upper part of the theatre and

seats in them for patrons to sit down in; the boxes have
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electric bells, did not know exactly where they led to,

but thought nearly to the bar-room; that he was employ-

ed to wait upon the customers of the theatre. I do not

know who constitutes the Louvre Theatre Company, and

do not know that Max Endelman is the company or the

cashier of the company; only know that he employed me
to work for the Louvre Theatre Company."

The witness Edward Kelly testified: "That he had

bought stuff of defendant Lord called "whisky" from be-

hind the bar; that he knew nothing about the proprietor-

ship of the Louvre, or any one's connection with it."

The witness Frank Young testified: "That he had pur-

chased whisky of Lord and Morrison; had seen them both

behind the bar; had seen Mr. Endelman around there the

greater part of the time he (witness) had been there, but

did not know who the Louvre Theatre Company was, and

did not know that the Louvre Theatre Company had any-

thing to do with the bar, and did not know that Max En-

delman was the owner or proprietor of any part of the sa-

loon; that Max Endelman had been in witness' place of

business and purchased some hardware and chairs; that

he (witness) had seen some of the chairs purchased in the

Louvre Theatre; that he did not deliver them; that some

one came after them, and that he guessed Max Endelman

had paid for them; that he did not know in what capacity

Mr. Endelman was acting in relation to the Louvre Thea-

tre Company. He might be agent or cashier."

Kichard Johnson testified: "That he purchased liquor

of Lord, and had seen Mr. Endelman about the place, but
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did not know what relation Lord or Endelman sustained

to the company."

John McCormick testifies: "That he had seen liquor

sold there, and bought it himself from Mr. Lord, but did

not know who composed the Louvre Theatre Company,

or any of its officers or agents."

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

Certificate to Bill of Exceptions.

The foregoing bill of exceptions is correct, and it is

hereby agreed that the same may constitute a part of the

record in this cause and be certified to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

CREWS, HANNUM & IVEY, and

C. S. BLACKETT,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

BURTON E. BENNETT,
United States District Attorney for the District of

Alaska.

The foregoing bill of exceptions is hereby settled and

allowed, and ordered to be made a part of the record in

this cause.

Dated at Sitka, Alaska, this 19th day of January, 1897.

ARTHUR K. DELANEY,
Judge.
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United States of America, )

District of Alaska. (

I, Max Endelman and Edward Lord, being first duly

sworn, depose and say that I am one of the defendants in

the above-entitled action, and that the foregoing bill of

exceptions is true as I verily believe.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

January, 1889.

Notary Public for the District of Alaska.

United States of America,
ss.

District of Alaska. {

Due service of the within bill of exceptions is hereby

accepted in the District of Alaska, this 18th day of Jan-

uary, 1897, by receiving a copy thereof, duly certified to

as such by C. S. Hannum, one of the Attorneys for plain-

tiff in error.

BURTON E. BENNETT,

U. S. Attorney for the District of Alaska.

[Endorsed]: No. 612. In the District Court of the

United States for the District of Alaska. United States

of America, plaintiff, vs. Max Endelman and Edward

Lord, defendants. Bill of exceptions. Filed January 19,

1897. Charles D. Rogers, Clerk. Crews, Hannum & Ivey,

and C. S. Blackett, Attorneys for defendants. Office, Ju-

neau, Alaska.
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Clerks Certificate to Transcript.

United States of America,
( ss.

District of Alaska.

I, Charles I). Rogers, clerk of the District Court of the

United States of America, for the District of Alaska, do

hereby certify, that the foregoing pages, numbered from

one to 57, inclusive, contain a true and complete tran-

script of the record and proceedings had in said court, in

the case of The United States of America, plaintiff, vs.

Max Endelman and Edward Lord, defendants, as the

same remains of record and on file in said office, except

the testimony adduced on the trial of said cause.

In Testimony Whereof, I have caused the seal of said

Court to be hereunto affixed, at the town of Sitka in said

District, the 17th day of February, A. D. 1897.

[Seal] CHARLES D. ROGERS,

Clerk.
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THE UNITED STATES OF AMER- ^

IOA,

ts. y
No

- 612 -

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD
LORD.

j

Clerk's Certificate as to Cost of Transcript.

I, Charles D. Rogers, Clerk U. S. District Court, Dis-

trict of Alaska, do hereby certify, that the cost for pre-

paring the transcript in the above-entitled cause is sev-

enteen dollars, which amount I have received from Max
Endelman, one of the above-named defendants.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed the seal of said Court.

[Seal] CHARLES D. ROGERS,

Clerk U. S. District Court.

[Endorsed]: No. 357. United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Max Endelman and Ed-

ward Lord, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The United States of

America, Defendants in Error. Transcript of Record. In

Error to the District Court of the United States for the

District of Alaska.

Filed March 1st, 1897.

FRANK D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.

By Meredith Sawyer,

Deputy Clerk.
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Plaintiffs In Error.

VS

THE UNITED STATES OF AHERICA,
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No. 357.

IN THE

UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

MAX ENDELMAN and EDWARD LORD,^

Plaintiffs in Error,

VS.

THE UNITED STATES OF AflERICA,

Defendant in Error.

Brief of flax Endelman, Plaintiff in Error.

At the adjourned November term of the District Court of the United States

for the District of Alaska Max Endelman and Edward Lord were jointly in-

dicted for an alleged unlawful selling of an intoxicating liquor called whiskey;

(transcript of record, pages i, 2, and 3, for copy of indictment.)

After two trials the plaintiff in error, Max Endelman, was found guilty as

charged in the indictment; (transcript, p. 16, for verdict.)

Thereafter and upon the verdict so rendered the Court pronounced judgment:

transcript, p. 28.)

Before pleading the defendants duly and regularly served and filed a motion



to quash the indictment; (transcript, pages 6 and 7,) which said motion was

duly argued and submitted to the Court and denied; (transcript, p. 8,) to which

ruling the defendants duly excepted, and now contend that the order so made

was an error effecting the substantial rights of Max Endelman, one of the

plaintiffs in error, and is set forth as the first assignment of error, (transcript,

p. 32.)

The indictment attempts to charge defendents with violating section 14, of

chapter 53, p. 28, of volume 23, United States Statutes at Large, which

reads as follows:

—

"SEC. 14. THAT THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER THREE, TITLE TWEN-

TY-THREE, OF THE REVISED STATUTES OF THE UNITED STATES, RELAT-

ING TO THE UNORGANIZED TERRITORY OF ALASKA, SHALL REMAIN IN

FULL FORCE, EXCEPT AS HEREIN SPECIALLY OTHERWISE PROVIDED;

AND THE IMPORTATION, MANUFACTURE AND SALE OF INTOXICATING LIQ-

UORS IN SAID DISTRICT, EXCEPT FOR MEDICINAL, MECHANICAL AND

SCIENTIFIC PURPOSES, IS HEREBY PROHIBITED UNDER THE PENALTIES

WHICH ARE PROVIDED IN SECTION NINETEEN HUNDRED AND FIFTY-FIVE

OF THE REVISED STATUTES FOR THE WRONGFUL IMPORTATION OF DIS-

TILLED SPIRITS. AND THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES SHALL

MAKE SUCH REGULATIONS AS ARE NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE PRO-

VISIONS OF THIS SECTION.

"APPROVED MAY 17, 1884."

This indictment being founded upon an alleged violation of a federal statute,

therefore, we must look to these statutes, or, in the absence of any, to the

common law, to determine the sufficiency of the indictment.

Section 1024, United States Revised Statutes, provides how indictments

shall be drawn, and reads as follows:

—

"SEC. 1024. WHEN THERE ARE SEVERAL CHARGES AGAINST ANY PER-

SON FOR THE SAME ACT OR TRANSACTION, OR FOR TWO OR MORE ACTS

OR TRANSACTIONS CONNECTED TOGETHER.OR FOR TWO OR MORE ACTS

OR TRANSACTIONS OF THE SAME CLASS OF CRIMES OR OFFENCES,

WHICH MAY BE PROPERLY JOINED, INSTEAD OF HAVING SEVERAL IN-

DICTMENTS THE WHOLE MAY BE JOINED IN ONE INDICTMENT IN SEPA-

RATE COUNTS; AND IF TWO OR MORE INDICTMENTS ARE FOUND IN SUCH

CASES, THE COURT MAY ORDER THEM TO BE CONSOLIDATED."

The first contention in the defendant's motion to quash is:

" That two or more offences are charged in the same count and in the

same indictment.'''1

If this be true it is in direct violation of Sec. 1024, above

quoted, and the Court erred in denying the motion.

Under the Statute alleged to have been violated (if any sale of intoxicating



liquor is a crime, and this subject will be treated hereafter) every sale is a

separate a?id distinct crime. The exact number of offences the Grand Jury

intended to charge the defendants with in this indictment cannot be determined

from the indictment ; however, several distinct offences are charged. The first

offence attempted to be charged is the alleged selling to ''''John Doe an intoxi-

cating liquor called whiskey, to-wit: one glass, pint, quart, gallon of said

liquor, * * * "If the sale of a glass of whiskey to John Doe is a crime under

the statute, the sale of a pint, a quart or a gallon, constitutes another, separate

and distinct crime. In other words, every sale to John Doe constitutes a crime,

and being of the same class of crimes, or offences, the statutes permits them to

be joined in one indictment, but each offence must be charged in a separate

count. If the defendants sold to John Doe a glass of whiskey this offence

should be charged in one count. If on the same dav, or at some other time, he

sold to John Doe a pint of whiskey this offence should be charged in a sepa-

rate count, and so on, in like manner, making a separate count for each offence.

The purpose and intent of the Statute is plain:

i. That the several offences of the same class may be tried at the same

time.

2. That a trial jury may be able to render a verdict intelligently by return-

ing a verdict of guilty upon some one or more counts, and not guilty on other

counts, as the evidence may warrant.

3. The verdict thus rendered better enables the Court to pass judgment and

fix the penalty, the extent of the defendant's punishment being determined in

a measure by the number of offences he may be found guilty of committing.

4. That the defendant's conviction or acquittal may inure to his subsequent

protection should he be again questioned on the same grounds.

The defendant Max Endelman was found guilty, "as charged in the indict-

ment." This means that he was found guilty of selling to John Doe and

Richard Roe, and to divers other persons, whose real names are unknown,

an intoxicating liquor called whiskey, to-wit : One glass, one pint, one

quart, one gallon of said liquor on or about the 7th day of December, 1896,

and at divers other times. To how many other persons did he sell liquor to

besides John Doe and Richard Roe? At how many other times did he sell

liquor than the 7th day of December, 1896, and when and to whom? The

indictment fails to disclose, and the verdict of the jury and the judgment of

the Court are as equally uncertain. How then could the defendants plead or

prepare for trial? Suppose Mr. Endelman was subsequently indicted for selling

liquor to Henry Jones ox some other person, whose true or real name is to the

Grand Jury unknown, on the 25th day of November, 1896. How would

the defendant or the Court be able to know that Henry Jones was not one of

3



the persons described in the former indictment as one of the "divers other per-

sons?" Likewise, how would the defendant or the Court be able to determine

whether or not the day of the alleged selling, November 25th, 1896, was not

one of the "divers other times," mentioned in the former indictment? It

might be the same date and person considered by the trial jury and upon

which they agreed and based their verdict, and still the defendant would be

deprived of the information that would enable him to plead a former con-

viction. He would be powerless to protect himself from being twice put in

jeopardy for the same offence. Again, if evidence was introduced to prove

twelve or more different offences (and in this case testimony was introduced

tending to prove several separate and distinct sales) the jury might find a

verdict of guilty without any two of them agreeing that the defendant was

guilty of any particular one of such offences; one juror might believe that he

was guilty of one offence ; another juror of another, and so on with respect to

all of the jurors and all of the offences which the evidence possibly tended

to prove, and yet no two of the jurors agreeing that the defendant was guilty

of the same offence.

The Statute under which the defendants were indicted makes every separate

sale a crime and in this respect it differs materially from an indictment charg-

ing the defendant with keeping a place or maintaining a nuisance where in-

toxicating liquors are sold. Under an indictment of this character any num-

ber of sales may be shown, and the State is not required to elect upon which

sale it will rely for a conviction. The gravamen of the offence, in the first in-

stance, is the sale of intoxicating liquors. In the second instance it is the

maintaining of a place as a nuisance where intoxicating liquors are sold.

It may be claimed from the language of the indictment that the

defendant only sold liquor to John Doe at one time and that the

Grand Jury were unable to determine whether it was one glass, one pint, one

quart, or one gallon. Under such a construction there would be but one offence

charged and only one count required in the indictment. But we contend that

such a construction is not the logical one, for the reason that if it was in-

tended by the Grand Jury to mean only one sale to John Doe instead of

enumerating several quantities, it would have been stated: " a quantity of

liquor, the amount of which is to the Grand fury unknown"

If the indictment charges a sale to fohn Doe, it also charges a sale to

Richard Roe ; the language of the indictment as to fohn Doe and Richard

Roe is identical. The sale to fohn Doe and Richard Roe are two separate

and distinct offences of the same class of crime, and while they may be

joined in the same indictment they must be set forth in separate counts, as

provided for in the Statute above mentioned. If it is a crime to sell to John

4



Doe, it Is equally as great a crime to sell to Richard Roe, both acts of selling

constituting a separate and distinct crime neither allegation can be rejected as

surplussage, and the crimes being charged in the same count in the same in-

dictment renders the indictment fatally defective Ifor duplicity, the second

ground assigned in defendant's motion to quash the indictment.

U. S. vs. Patty, et al, 2nd Fed. Rep. 664.

u Nye, " " " 888.

" '* Wanthworth, nth Fed. Rep. 52.

State of Kansas vs. Chandler, 1st Pac. Rep. 887.

" " Michael Crimmins, 2d Pac. Rep. 574.

" Hahn, 2d Pac. Rep. 574-

" Lund, 30th Pac. Rep. 518.

Leidtke vs. City of Saginaw, 4th Northwestern Rep. 627.

Burrell vs. the State of Nebraska, 41 Northwestern Rep. 399.

Com. vs. Ismahl, 134 Mass. 302.

Com. vs. Darling, 129 Mass. 112.

Pelts vs. Com., 126 Mass. 242.

Com. vs. Kimball, 73 Mass. 328.

Com. vs. Hill, 64 Mass. 530.

Carlton vs. Com., 46 Mass. 532.

State vs. Glidden, 55 Conn. 46.

Mergertheim vs. State, 107 Ind. 567.

Tahnestock vs. State, 102 Ind. 156.

Davis vs. State, 100 Ind. 154.

State vs. Weil, 89 Ind. 286.

Knoff vs. State, 84 Ind 316.

65 A. M. Dec. 383-386.

58 " " 338-334.

54 " " 499-

47 " " 588-599.

Gould and Tucker's notes on Revised Statutes, 343-4-5.

It may be contended that John Doe and Richard Roe are mythical persons.

This contention cannot prevail for the reason that the indictment sets forth a

sale to these persons without any reference to their being unknown. The

allegation of a sale to "divers other persons whose real names are unknown"

has no reference to John Doe and Richard Roe, and onlv relates to those un-

known persons referred to in the indictment. Had the indictment read to John

Smith and Richard Brown, and to divers others persons whose real names are

unknown, no one would contend that the words "whose real names are un-

known" had any reference to John Smith and Richard Brown. Why then
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should any other construction be placed upon it when the names of John Doe

and Richard Roe appear instead of John Smith and Richard Brown? Nothing

can be assumed in favor of the indictment. The indictment must be explicit

and leave nothing to inference, for nothing can be done by intendment.

State vs. Verrill, 54 Me. 408.

State vs. Philbrick, 31 Me. 401.

Com. vs. Rowel 1, 146 Mass. 128.

U. S. vs. Hess, 124 U. S. 483.

Because the names John Doe and Richard Roe are sometimes employed to de-

scribe persons whose real names are unknown it cannot be assumed that it was

the intention to so use the names in this indictment. On the other hand, if

they were used to represent persons whose real names are unknown it would

make no difference in the application of the Statute, Sec. 1024, above set forth,

because the same number of offences would still be charged in the same in-

dictment and in the same count, rendering the indictment fatally defective for

duplicity.

The authorities above cited, nearly all of which refer to the Statute quoted,

bear directly upon this question, and the Court in each of those cases held

that indictments drawn as this one is are fatally defective for duplicity.

The third ground set forth in the motion to quash is disposed of by the de-

cision of the Court in the case of

State of Kansas vs. Crimmins.
" " Hahn, 2nd Pac. Rep. 574.

" Lund, 30 " " 518.

We contend that the motion to quash should be granted upon the forth

ground set forth in said motion, for the reason that the indictment is too in-

definite and uncertain as to what law the defendant violated in the alleged sale

of intoxicating liquors. It does not state whether the defendants violated the

act providing a Civil Government for Alaska, or the Revenue laws, or the

Regulations issued by the President of the United States, and, further, that

the indictment is too vague, indefinite and uncertain to afford the accused

proper notice of the crime charged against them to enable them to properly

plead or prepare their defence.

State of Kansas vs. Burket, 32 Pac. Rep. 926.

U. S. vs. Cruikshank, et al, 92 U. S. 542.

Gould and Tucker's notes, p. 345.

U. S. vs. Goggon, 1st Fed. Rep. p. 49.

The motion to quash should have been granted.



Immediately after the order of the Court was entered denying the motion to

quash and exception taken, the defendants interposed a demurrer to the in-

dictment (transcript, p. 9,) which demurrer was overruled by the Court, (order

overruling demurrer, transcript, p. 10,) to which ruling the defendants duly

excepted and now contend that the order so made was an error effecting the

rights of Max Endelman, plaintiff in error, and is set forth as the second assign-

ment of error, (transcript, p. 33.)

The first ground of the demurrer " that the Court has no jurisdiction over

the subject matter of the action " presents the question as to the constitution-

ality of the law upon which the prosecution is based.

Sec. 14, Chap. 53, p. 28, Vol. 23, U. S. Statutes at Large.

We concede that the District Court of Alaska has jurisdiction of all crimes

and offences cognizable under the authority of the United States committed

within the district of Alaska.

U. S. Revised Statutes, Sec. 563 and 629, subdivision 20.

Sec. 7, p. 23, Vol. 23, U. S. Statutes at Large.

It is the duty of the Court to declare all legislative enactments that are in

conflict with the Constitution void.

Vol. 3, A. M. and Eng. Ency. of Law, p. 673-4 and notes.

Cooley's Con. Lim. p. 194-186-209.

The government of the United States is sovereign and supreme in its appro-

priate sphere of action, yet it does not possess all the powers which usually

belong to the sovereignty of a nation, because it can exercise only those specific

powers conferred upon it by and enumerated in the Constitution.

The powers of the government and the rights of the citizens under it are

positive and practical regulations plainly written down. The people of the

United States have delegated to it certain enumerated powers and forbidden it

to exercise any other. It has no power over the person or property of a citizen

except what the citizens of the United States have granted it. The legisla-

tive, executive nor judicial departments of the government can lawfully exer-

cise any authority beyond the limits marked out by the Constitution. The

power of Congress over the person or property of a citizen can never be a dis-

cretionary power under our constitution and form of government, for the reason

that the powers of government and the rights and privileges of the citizen are

plainly and specifically defined by the constitution itself. These questions

have been settled by the Supreme Court of the United States in the case of

Scott vs. Sandford, 19th How. U. S. pages 401 to 450.

and the principles of law laid down in that decision upon these questions have

been followed by the Courts of the United States in all subsequent adjudica-

tions.



The provisions of Sec. 3 of Article 4, of the Constitution, provides, among

other things, that "Congress shall make all needful rules and regulations

respecting the territories, etc.,'" has no application whatever to the Territory of

Alaska or the powers of the general government over Alaska, or the rights of

its citizens for the reason that that provision of the Constitution related solely

to the Territory ceded to the United States by the several Slates for the pur-

pose of enabling Congress to dispose of the Territory and appropriate the pro-

ceeds as a common fund for the common benefit, protection and preservation of

the several States, and was intended to be confined to the Territory which at

that time belonged to, or was claimed by the United States and within their

boundaries, as settled by the treaty with Great Britain, and has no application

to, or confers any power upon Congress to control, or regulate, or legislate for

any territory afterwards acquired from a foreign government, by treaty or con-

quest.

Scott vs. Sandford, 19th How. U. S. pages 432 to 446.

We concede that the National Government has the power through Congress

to acquire territory by treaty with foreign nations. This being the rule, the

next question to consider is the power of Congress over the territory acquired

and its right to legislate for the Territory and from what source it derives its

power. It has been held by the Supreme Court of the United States that the

right to acquire territory by the United States carries uith it the inevitable

right to govern the acquired territory, and that in so doing exercises the com-

bined powers of the National and State Government; hence, the right to govern

Alaska is derived from the right to acquire it.

Am. Ins. Co. vs. Carter, 1 Pet. U. S. 542.

Bunner vs. Porter, 9th Wow. U. S. 235.

Cross vs Harrison, 16th Hock U. S. 194.

Scott vs. Sandford, iQlh HotK" U. S. 439-454.

However, on the acquisition of territory by treaty the United States does not

succeed to the prerogative rights of the former sovereign, but holds it subject

to the institutions and laws of its own government, limited to the restricted

powers specifically conferred upon Congress by the Constitution. In other

words, whatever it acquires it acquires for the benefit of the whole people of

the several States who created it. The National Government is their trustee

acting for them, and charged with the duty of promoting the interest of the

whole people of the Union, limited, however, in the exercise of the powers

specially granted to it by the sovereign people who created it.

Taking this as a rule to guide us, and we contend that this is the correct

rule, we claim that citizens of the United States who emigrate to a Territory

belonging to the people of the United States cannot be ruled as mere colonists,
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dependent upon the will of the general government and to be governed by any

laws it may think proper to impose, except such laws as are clearly within the

enumerated and restricted powers delegated to Congress by the Constitution,

and we contend that Congress cannot by law restrict or abridge the rights and

privileges of citizens residing within the States in respect to their commercial

relations and dealings with the citizens of the United States who may emi-

grate to the acquired Territory any more or to any greater extent than it can or

does between citizens of different States. There is certainly no power given

by the Constitution to the National Government to acquire territory to be

ruled and governed at its own pleasure permanently. The only manner it can

enlarge its territorial limits in any way is by the admission of new States.

Scott vs. Sanford, 19 How. 445-454.

The power of Congress over the territory originally ceded to it by the

several States and that which the government may have acquired subsequently

by treaty or conquest is a very much different power than Congress exercises

over the district of Columbia, the territory ceded to the government and

accepted by Congress to become the seat of government of the United States.

In the first instance the power is restricted.

In the second instance the .power is unrestricted.

Constitution, Article 1, Sec. 8.

4> 3-

Scott vs. Sanford, 19 How. 440-454.

The Constitution guarantees to the citizens the right to own, hold and ac-

quire property, and makes no distinction as to the character of the property.

Intoxicating liquors are property and are subjects of exchange, barter, and

traffic, like any other commodity in which a right of property exists and are

so recognized by the usages of the commercial world and the decisions of

Courts and laws of Congress.

Leisy vs. Hardin, 135 U. S. p. 100.

No word can be found in the Constitution which gives Congress a greater

power over this species of property, or which entitles property of this kind

to less protection than property of any other description, and the power con-

ferred upon Congress is coupled with the duty of protecting the owner in all

of his property rights. The power to regulate commerce " among the the sev-

eral States'1 ''

carries with it the right to regulate commerce among the several

states, territories and districts.

Commerce has been judicially defined by Justice McLean in Smith vs. Tur-

ner, How. U. S. p. 401, to be "An exchange of commodities," and includes

" Navigation and intercourse." When the power to regulate commerce "* *

* * among the several states * * * * " was committed to Congress



there can be no doubt that the paramount idea in the minds of the framers of

the Constitution, was to secure a uniform and permanent system of commer-

cial relations between the whole people of the United States and prevent any

embarrassing restrictions that might be imposed by any State against the free

importation of commodities from another State. It does not tax the imagina-

tion to see how easily commerce could be obstructed, in fact, virtually de-

stroyed, if the power to control it within the exterior boundaries of each State

rested in the State Government. This power alone would create sectionalism,

and long since would have divided the Nation into geographical subdivisions

equal in number to the vacillating opinions of State legislators, and the caprice

of successful political party leaders and agitators ; hence, the power to regulate

commerce was committed to Congress in order to secure its absolute freedom

from all restrictions. Therefore, we contend that inasmuch as the power to

regulate commerce was committed to Congress to relieve it from all restrictions

that Congress itself cannot violate the spirit or intent which prompted the

placing this power under its control by doing the very thing sought to be

avoided, namely: restricting commerce. Therefore, we contend that an Act

of Congress passed in pursuance of this delegative authority, which restricts

the free importation of any commodity recognized by the usages of the com-

mercial world, the laws of Congress and the decision of the Courts as a proper

subject of commerce into any portion of the United States and permits the

same commodity to be freely exported into other portions, is in direct violation

of the rule governing interstate commerce, as recognized by Congress and the

decision of the Courts, to-wit : "That such commerce shall be free and un-

trammeled.'1 ''

The power delegated to Congress to regulate commerce has been jealously

guarded by the Courts, and every enactment of the several State Legislatures

that has tended to interfere with a free and untrammeled commerce has been

adjudged unconstitutional, and these decisions have been based upon the broad

principle that this nation is a great union of states in which the whole people

have a common interest c'oupled with the free and unrestricted right of com-

mercial relations with each other and to secure a more perfect union of interest.

Will the Courts, on the other hand, permit Congress to enact and enforce laws

that in any manner restricts and abridges the very end sought to be attained

by conferring the power to regulate commerce? We think not. The people of

Alaska are as much a part of the sovereignty of this nation as those of any of

the States and are equally entitled to the same rights, privileges and immuni-

ties, and entitled to enjoy free and untrammeled commercial relations With

every other section of the United States, and every citizen of the United

States residing outside of Alaska is entitled to enjoy by every principle upon



which the nation is founded free and unrestricted intercourse with the people

of Alaska, unhampered by any Act of Congress that is not made applicable to

every section of the United States.

The Supreme court in Leisy vs. Harding, 135 U. S. p. loo, In construing an

Iowa Statute prohibiting the importation of intoxicating liquors into the State

decided that the law was unconstitutional upon the ground that intoxicating

liquors are property and a recognized subject of commerce, barter and exchange,

and that it restricted the rights of its own citizens and those of the State of

Illinois in their commercial relations. No one would contend that Congress

under the delegated power to regulate commerce would have the right to en-

force a law prohibiting the importation of wheat grown in Minnesota into the

State of Illinois, nor into the Territory of Oklahoma and permit the wheat to

be imported into New Mexico, or to prohibit the importation of the products

of the soil of Wisconsin or of the factories of New Jersey into the Territory of

Alaska. As subjects of commerce, barter and exchange, intoxicating liquors

are entitled under the interstate commerce law to be as freely imported from

one section of the country to the other as any other recognized subject of

commerce.

Leisy vs. Harding, 135 U. S. p. 100,

and many other authorities cited by Chief Justice Fuller in support of his

opinion concurred in by a majority of the Supreme Court.

The sale of intoxicating liquors as a beverage is regulated by the several

States under police regulations, and it may be said that the sale of intoxicat-

ing liquors within the Territory of Alaska may be controlled by Congress ex-

ercising police regulations. We reply to such a contention ; first, that the

police powers belong to the State and have never been delegated to Congress,

except so far as Congress may exercise it over the territories and District of

Columbia.

Am. and Eng. Ency. of Law, Vol. 18, p. 745.

State vs. DeWitt, 9, Wal. U. S. 41.

and cases cited, where it is said that this principle is so well fixed as to be

beyond all controversy. Second, that if Congress has the right to regulate

the sale of intoxicating liquors within the territories, it can only enact laws

applicable to all the territories ; in other words, it has no power to enact a law

prohibiting the sale of intoxicating liquors in the Territory of Alaska that

would not be applicable to the Territory of New Mexico. In exercising its

legislative functions it cannot abridge the privileges of some of its citizens and

grant them to others any more than a State Legislature could enact a law pro-

hibiting the sale of intoxicating liquors in one country and permitting the sale

in another. Any state law regulating the sale of intoxicating liquors must be
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a general one applicable to the same class.' It was safd by Justice Taney in

his opinion in the Fred Scott case "That when the Constitution of the United

States was framed it created a new government separate and distinct from the

several State Governments, with limited and restricted powers." If the emin-

ent jurist was correct, and we think it has not been questioned, this new gov-

ernment exercising its legislative functions must frame its laws so as to make

them applicable to all of its citizens equally.

Police powers can only be exercised by legislative enactment, and while it

rests within legislative discretion to determine when public welfare or safety

requires its exercisce, courts are authorized to interfere and declare a statute un-

constitutional when it conflicts with the Constitution, and there must always

be a reason for the exercise of the police power and rights guaranteed by feder-

al or state constitutions cannot be violated by the mere declaration that an oc-

cupation or any particular act is injurious to the public welfare.

Am. and Eng. Ency. of law, Vol. 18, p. 746.

and numerous cases cited.

The Government of the United States was not formed to enlarge the rights

of citizens. It has no power to do so. Its functions are to secure and protect

the rights and privileges that are inherent in the people and it does not possess

any power to restrict or abridge these rights.

In passing upon the constitutionality of this law the Courts will inquire,

first, is there a reason for the law? Second, does it take away from the citizens

of Alaska any of the rights or privileges that other citizens of the United States

living under the direct control of the federal government enjoy? Construed

under the rule governing police regulations, as above set forth, if the Court

can find no reason for the law, it should be adjudged unconstitutional. And,

again, if the Court finds that by enforcing this federal police regulation that it

is not universal in its application and abridges rights to some of the citizens

that others enjoy, it should be declared of no force or effect.

What reason can be found for the law? It cannot be justified upon the hy-

pothesis that the people of Alaska are so depraved in comparison with the rest

ot mankind that they require special legislation in this respect. Nor upon the

ground that this is an Indian country. ,

In U. S. vs. Kie, 27 Fed. Rep. 355,

it was held that Alaska was not an Indian country.

The majority of the people of Alaska should be permitted to express their

will as to the prohibition of intoxicating liquors in Alaska; its importation,

sale and use should be regulated, if at all, by the expressed will of the major-

ity, and not by the arbitrary will of a legislative body composed of members

in the choice of which the Alaska citizen has no voice. The civil government
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act, in so far as it prohibits the importation and regulates the sale of intoxicat-

ing liquors in Alaska, violates the fundamental and time-honored principles of

republican institutions and should be declared void. Since the creation of our

National Government Congress, for the first time, has seen fit to depart from

those principles and enact arbitrary law, disregarding the will of the people,

and it should be stopped at its first attempt. Why should Alaska be singled

out? There can be no reason for it. Its condition does not differ from those

that existed in other territories acquired by treaty. Its natives are much less

fierce and warlike than those found in the territory ceded by the northwest

treaty. At the time the civil government act was passed the object in view

was to provide a civil government for Alaska. (The police regulation, if that

clause in the act prohibiting the importation, manufacture and sale of intoxi-

cating liquors in Alaska, can be called a police regulation), was not a proper

subject of legislation in connection with the act, and from the wording of the

paragraph and the position it occupies in the act, it is evident it was not under'

consideration by Congress, but was tacked on to meet the approval of some

member whose idea of the liquor traffic was more nice than wise. It is the

first time in the history of the Nation that a police regulation has been forced

upon the people without an expression of the people governed by it. If Alaska

is to continue to be governed by the Federal Government, Congress should not

be permitted to enact and enforce police regulations without first giving the

people of Alaska the right to be heard, either by submitting the proposed leg-

islation to a vote of the citizens or permit them to be heard through a repre-

sentative in Congress.

Article i, Section 9, of the Federal Constitution, in defining the restrictions

upon the powers of Congress, says:

"NO PREFERENCE SHALL BE GIVEN BY ANY REGULATION OF COM-

MERCE OR REVENUE TO PORTS OF ONE STATE OVER THOSE OF AN-

OTHER, * * *"

Forbidding the importation of intoxicating liquors into the Territory of

Alaska by Congress is a regulation of commerce, and a preference in favor of

every other port of the United States as against all Alaska ports. We contend

that this section of the Constitution bears directly upon the question under

consideration, and furnishes sufficient ground, standing alone, to warrant the

Court in adjudging that portion of the civil government act prohibiting the im-

portation of intoxicating liquors unconstitutional. We maintain in view of

the well established principle above set forth that the civil government act of

Alaska, in so far as it relates to the importation and sale of intoxicating
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liquors, in original packages, is unconstitutional, and that the demurrer should

be sustained.

If the Court should be of the opinion that, that portion of the civil govern-

ment act, which prohibits the importation of intoxicating liquors into Alaska,

and their sale in original packages is unconstitutional then the indictment is

fatally defective for uncertainty, for the reason that it does not contain a nega-

tive allegation to the effect that the alleged sale was not made in the original

packages. The right to import intoxicating liquor carries with it the right to

sell the same in original packages.

Leisy vs. Harding, 135 U. S. p. 100, and authorities cited.

The provisions of Chapter 3, Title 23, of the Revised Statutes, relating to

the unorganized Territory of Alaska, are kept in full force by the Act provid-

ing a civil government for Alaska. (Section 14 of Chapter 53, Vol. 23, U. S.

Revised Statutes at Large.)

SEC. 1955, Revised Statutes, provides, "That the president

SHALL HAVE POWER TO RESTRICT, REGULATE OR TO PROHIBIT THE

IMPORTATION AND USE OF FIREARMS, AMMUNITION AND DISTILLED

SPIRITS INTO AND WITHIN THE TERRITORY OF ALASKA * * * AND

ANY PERSON WILLFULLY VIOLATING SUCH REGULATIONS SHALL BE

FINED NOT MORE THAN $500.00, OR IMPRISONED MORE THAN SIX

MONTHS * * *"

The power of the President under this law is limited to making rules and

regulations restricting, regulating and prohibiting the importation and use of

distilled spirits into and within the Territory of Alaska. The President has no

power under this Statute to restrict, regulate, or prohibit the sale 0/ intoxicat-

ing liquors in Alaska, and in the executive order issued by the President he

only regulated the sale for medicinal, mechanical, and scientific purposes

;

sales for other purposes were not restricted, or attempted to be restricted by

the order.

Executive order dated March 12, 1892.

Section 14, of Chapter 53, above quoted, provides, "and the President of the

United States shall make such rules as are necessary to carry out the provisions

of this section."

Until such a time as the President promulgates regulations in regard to the

sale of intoxicating liquors this section remains inoperative. Subsequent to

the inactment of this Statute the President made rules and regulations concern-

ing the sale of intoxicating liquors, but did not provide by the rules so pro-
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mulgated any regulation relating to the sale of intoxicating liquors, except for

mechanical, medicinal, and scientific purposes.

Seetion 1955 of the Revised Statutes, above cited; imposes certain penalties,

i.e. "a fine of not more than $500.00, or imprisonment for more than six

months."

By reference to this Statute it will be observed that the penalties provided

for are not imposed for the importation, manufacture, or sale of intoxicating

liquors into and within the Territory of Alaska, nor for the violation of any

Statute prohibiting the importation, manufacture, or sale of intoxicating

liquors into or within the Territory of Alaska, but it provides that they

may be imposed for the willful violation of the REGULATIONS made by the

PRESIDENT. Until there are REGULATIONS to violate there is no PENALTY

to impose.

Section 14, of the Civil Government Act, provides that the importation,

manufacture and sale of intoxicating liquors in said district, except for certain

purposes enumerated in the Statute, is prohibited under the penalties which

are provided in Section 1955 of the Revised Statutes, and this statute is kept

in full force. As above stated, this section provides for no penalty, except for

the willful violation of the PRESIDENT'S RULES ; therefore, we contend that

until the President shall make rules regulating the sale of liquor that the said

section 14 of the Civil Government Act is inoperative.

From the records of this case there can be no reasonable contention that the

plaintiff in error has violated any rule or regulation made by the President.

Therefore he is not subject to any penalty and should have been discharged.

Again, under section 1955 no power is given to the President except to re-

strict, regulate or prohibit the importation and use of distilled spirits. It

does not clothe him with power to restrict, regulate, or prohibit the sale or

manufacture of intoxicating liquors within the Territory of Alaska.

We contend therefore that there is no law in Alaska prohibiting the acts

complained of in this Indictment; the Court however put the defendants on

trial.

After the jury had been empaneled and sworn to try this case, and the wit-

ness, William Hale, sworn on behalf of the prosecution, the defendants moved

the Court to require the District Attorney to elect upon which particular sale

he would rely for a conviction; (Bill of exceptions, transcript, p. 53, last par.)

To the ruling of the Court denying said motion the defendants excepted, and

now contend that the Court committed an error effecting the substantial rights
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of Max Endelman, as set forth in the third assignment of error; (transcript

P. 33).

Immediately after the prosecution rested its case, evidence having been in-

troduced tending to prove several distinct and separate sales at different times

to different persons, the defendants moved the Court to require the District

Attorney to elect upon which sale of liquor attempted to be proven he chose to

rely for a conviction; (Bill of exceptions, p. 37).

The Court denied the motion and his ruling is assigned as error. (8th as-

signment of error, transcript, p. 34).

The third and eighth assignment of error are considered together in this

brief.

- While the prosecution has offered evidence tending to prove several distinct

and substantive offences it is the duty of the Court upon the motion of the

defendant to require the prosecution, before the defendant is put upon his de-

fence to elect upon which particular transaction the prosecution will rely for a

conviction.

State vs. Schweiter, 27 Kan. 500-512.

State vs. Crimmins, 2 Pac. Rep. 574.

State vs. Hahn, 2 Pac. Rep. 574.

See opinion, p. 576, beginning with the last par.

State vs. O'Connell, 2 Pac. Rep. p. 579.

State vs. Guettler, 9th Pac. Rep. p. 200.

Justice Valentine in his opinion in State vs. Crimmins, clearly disposes of

this proposition of law in the followlug language:

"ANY OTHER RULE WOULD OFTEN WORK INJUSTICE AND HARDSHIP

TO THE DEFENDANT. IF ANY OTHER RULE WERE ADOPTED, THE DE-

FENDANT MIGHT BE CHARGED WITH A COMMISSION OF ONE OFFENCE,

TRIED FOR FIFTY, COMPELLED TO MAKE DEFENCE TO ALL, BE FOUND

GUILTY OF AN OFFENCE FOR WHICH HE HAD MADE NO PREPARATION

AND HAD SCARCELY THOUGHT OF, AND FOUND GUILTY OF AN OFFENCE

WHICH WAS REALLY NOT INTENDED TO BE CHARGED AGAINST HIM; AND,

IN THE END, WHEN FOUND GUILTY, HE MIGHT NOT HAVE THE SLIGHTEST

IDEA AS TO WHICH OF THE OFFENCES HE WAS FOUND GUILTY. ALSO

IF EVIDENCE WAS INTRODUCED TENDING TO PROVE TWELVE OR MORE
DIFFERENT OFFENCES THE JURY MIGHT FIND HIM GUILTY, WITHOUT

ANY TWO OF THE JORORS AGREEING THAT HE WAS GUILTY OF ANY

PARTICULAR ONE OF SUCH OFFENCES. ONE JUROR MIGHT BELIEVE
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THAT HE WAS GUILTY OF ONE OFFENCE, ANOTHER JUROR OF ANOTHER,

AND SO ON WITH RESPECT TO ALL OF THE JURORS AND ALL THE OF-

FENCES, EACH JUROR BELIEVING THAT DEFENDANT WAS GUILTY OF
SOME ONE OF THE OFFENCES WHICH THE EVIDENCE POSSIBLY TENDED
TO PROVE, BUT NO TWO JURORS AGREEING THAT HE WAS GUILTY OF
THE SAME IDENTICAL OFFENCE."

The law requiring the District Attorney to elect in such cases is in furtherance

of justice; hence, the refusal of the Court below to require the prosecution to

elect upon which one of the sales attempted to be proven it would rely upon

for conviction was material error, or affecting the substantial rights of the de-

fendants.

After the Court having refused to require the District Attorney to elect upon

which sale he would rely for a conviction defendants' motion to discharge the

defendants, made at the close of the prosecution, should have been granted ;

(Bill of Exceptions, transcript, p. 56, and the 7th assignment of error, trans-

cript, p. 34;) for the reason that the defendants should not have been required

to interpose anv defence to an indictment so vague, indefinite, and uncertain,

and for the further reasons set forth in said motion.

The Court committed manifest error, as set forth in the fith assignment of

error; (transcript, p. 34.)

The Court permitted the prosecution to prove any number of sales to any

number of persons at any time within one year prior to the date of the indict-

ment and without requiring the District Atttorny to state the several offences

alleged to have been committed in separate counts in the indictment, or to

elect upon which offence he would rely for a conviction, compelled the defend-

ants to go to trial without any knowledge or information as to what charge

the prosecution intended to convict, and after conviction would leave the de-

fendants without the slightest idea as to which of the offences they were found

guilty. The orders of the Court below inflicted upon defendants an injustice

against which they have no remedy, except in this Court.

The theory of the prosecution during the trial of these defendants was that

they and each of them had committed several separate and distinct offences by

selling intoxicating liquors to several persons at different times and upon this

theory the Court permitted them to try the case and allowed the prosecution,

over the objection of the defendant to prove any number of sales to any num-

ber of persons and at any time within one year prior to the date of the indict-



ment without any reference as to whether the defendants were charged in the

indictment with sales to those persons. The testimony introduced failed to

disclose any sale of ,'liquor to John Doe or Richard Roe ; the only two persons

named in the indictment to whom liquor was alleged to be sold ; thus leaving

the defendants absolutely ignorant and entirely helplesss to prepare a defence

and in this condition they were forced to trial by the Court.

At the trial the defendant Max Endelman offered in evidence in his behalf a

special tax stamp, issued by the Collector of Internal Revenue for the District

of Oregon, which includes the District of Alaska; (bill of exceptions, tran-

script, pages 58 and 59, for copy of stamp.) The Court refused to allow the

same to be introduced in evidence, and his refusal is assigned as error
; (ninth

assignment of error, transcript, p. 35.)

The evidence offered clearly shows that so far as the Government of the

United States is concerned the defendant had complied with all of its rules and

regulations relating to the revenue law. It clearly shows that Max Endelman

had paid the tax required by the government from a person engaged in the

business of a retail liquor dealer at Juneau, Alaska, from July 1st, 1896, to.

July 1st, 1897. We contend that the defendant had the right to have the fact

that he had paid his tax considered by the jury for the purpose of showing:

that he had complied with the Revenue laws, and had acted in good faith to-

wards the government of the United States, and for the further reason that it

bears directly upon the question of intent. When the government of the

United States took the defendant's money for a tax on his business as a retail

liquor dealer at Juneau, Alaska, he had the right to suppose that he could fol-

low that business unmolested by the government that received his money and

issued its receipts and required him, under severe penalties, to place and keep,

the stamp, or receipt, conspiciously in his establishment or place of business.

If the defendant honestly believed, (and he had a perfect right to believe), that

after paying this tax, which was received by the government, that he had

the right to pursue the business for which he had paid the tax in Alaska, he

was not guilty of any crime ; intent to violate the law or commit a crime is

one of the essential elements necessary to constitute a crime.

It will also be observed that there is printed in red ink upon the face of the

revenue stamp offered in evidence the following words and figures:

"This stamp is simply a receipt for a tax due the government, and does not

exempt the holder from any penalty or punishment provided for by the law of

any State for carrying on the said business within such State, and does not

authorize the commencement or continuation of such business contrary to the

18:



awsof said State, or in places prohibited by municipal laws." (Transcript,

p. 59).

If trfe defendant was conducting a retail liquor business within any State or

municipal corporation this would clearly be a notice to him that the tax re-

ceipt did not exempt him from any penalty or punishment provided for by the

laws of such State, or municipal corporation. In Alaska there is no State or

municipal law regulating the sale of intoxicating liquors to violate; the de-

fendant then would only be guilty, if guilty at all, of violating some law of

the general government.

Is it reasonable to say that the defendant would believe that the Government

would tax his business and take his money in payment of such tax and then

prosecute him for carrying it on? If the defendant can be charged with the

knowledge that it is unlawful to sell liquor in Alaska, the government of the

United States, which enacted the law, should at least be charged with equal

knowledge. If the Government intended to prosecute persons for carrying on

the retail liquor business in Alaska, was it not the plain duty of the Govern-

ment to so inform the defendant at the time he applied for the revenue stamp

and refuse to sell it to him? Was it not reasonable for the defendant to sup-

pose that when he paid his money and the Government received it that so far

as the Goverment was concerned that he would be permitted to carry on the

business? Defendant surely thought so, and he had a perfect right to think

so; hence the contention that the Court erred in refusing to admit the evidence.

If the Court's position was correct the Government has surely taken an anom-

alous position in these cases, by receiving some of the fruits of an unlawful

business and then prosecuting the other party to the crime.

In connection with the ninth assignment of error we desire to call the Court's

attention to subdivision eight of the tenth assignment of error; (p. 37 of the

transcript), and to that portion of the Court's charge to the jury bearing upon

the offer of the defendants to introduce the revenue stamp above referred to.

(charge of the jury, transcript, p. 19).

We contend that inasmuch as the Court excluded the testimony and refused

to allow the jury to consider it, that it was error for the Court to instruct the

jury in relation to the testimony so excluded; that the Court has no right to

comment upon or instruct the jury in regard to any testimony offered and ex-

cluded by him; that in so doing the jury is liable to be confused and the de-

fendant suffer thereby.

The Court erred in charging the jury as set forth in the tenth assignment of

error, (transcript, page 35), to which instructions the defendants duly excepted.

(Bill of exceptions, transcript, p. 60).
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..The Court . instructed the jury "that the fact that ft was a glass, pint, or

quart, cuts no figure, as the law authorizes the allegation to be made in that

way" tended to mislead the jury, they having the right to conclude from the

instructions that if they found that the defendants had sold any quantity of

liquor to any person within a year previous to the date of the indictment that

it became their duty to find the defendant guilty without reference to his op-

portunities of having any knowledge of what particular offence the Govern-

ment would attempt to prove against him, and without any opportunity of

preparing a defense or meeting the allegation.

The Court committed manifest error in giving instructions to the jury, as

set forth in the 12th paragraph of the 10th assignment of error; (transcript, p.

39); to the giving of such instructions the defendant duly excepted. (Bill of

exceptions, par. 12, p. 64).

As to whether the defendants were guilty or not is a question of fact to be

determined by the jury, and not by the Court. The Court has no right in his

charge to the jury in criminal cases to express an opinion as to the guilt or

innocence of the defendants. This is wholly the province of the jury.

U. S. vs. Battiste, 2nd Sum. 234.

Settinius vs. U. S., 5 Cranch, C. C. 584.

Some of the authorities hold that a judge in civil cases may express his

opinion on the weight of evidence, and in cases where the jury is likely to be

influenced by their prejudice it is well for him to do so, but care must be taken

that the jury is not misled into the belief that they are alike bound by the

views expressed upon the evidence and instructions given as to the law.

They must distinctly understand that what is said as to the facts is only ad-

visory and is in no wise intended to fetter the exercise finally of their own in-

dependent judgment, and even in these cases if the language of the Court be

intemperate and unfair^though it does not withdraw the facts from the consid-

eration of the jury it is ground of reversal. Striking and intense expressions

when used by a judge can only mislead instead of aiding a jury in arriving at

a- correct conclusion as to the facts. All comments upon evidence by the Court

should be given in a cool, dispassionate manner, and should be a fair statement

calculated to aid and assist the jury rather than to mislead them or coerce them

into the belief entertained by the Court. Such expressions as: "I do not see

any way that these defendants can be acquitted;'' can only produce one im-

pression in the minds of the jury. It is such an expression that might be ex-

pected to fall from the lips of the prosecuting attorney, bat never from a trial

judge in his charge to the jury.

U. S. vs. 14 Packages, Gilp. 335.
. " " Sarchet, " 273.

Lynn " Commonwealth, Penn. St., 288.



It will be observed that the Court in his charge to the jury in no place com-

mented upon the evidence given by the different witnesses at the trial, or ex-

plained to the jurv the effect of such evidence, but after having instructed them

as to what the Court considered the law to be and near the close of his charge

he practically told the jury that it was their duty to convict the defendants

and to render a verdict of guilty as charged in the indictment. This is clearly

a ground of reversal. Trial judges should never be permitted to so far invade

the functions of the trial jury.

The Court committed manifest error in giving the instructions as found in

the first and second paragraphs of the nth assignment of error, (transcript, p.

29). To the giving of these instructions the defendants duly excepted. (See

bill of exceptions, p. 65).

We contend that the Court did not correctly state the law of principal and

agent, servant, or employe. We concede the law to be that if an agent acting

for his principal and within the scope of his authority violates a penal statute

that the principal may be found guilty. But if the agent violates a penal

statute and commits a crime who does not act within the scope of his authority

the .principal cannot be held criminally liable for the acts of his agent. The

Court should have so instructed the jury. The only inference the jury could

draw from the instructions of the Court, as given, would be that the principal

in every event would be guilty of every criminal act committed by his agent

during the time the relation of principal and agent existed. This is clearly not

the law, and we contend that the Court should have charged the jury that if

they found that liquor had been sold by the agents, servants, or employes of

the defendant Max Endelman, acting within the scope of their authority and

under iustructions and with the knowledge of the principal, then the principal

would be liable, but not otherwise. A principal cannot be charged with the

criminal acts of his agents unless he has knowledge of or acquiesced in those

guilty acts.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

CREWS & HANNUM and C. S. BLACKETT,
Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

21





No. 357.

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

MAX ENDLEMAN and

EDWARD LORD,
Plaintiffs in Error,

vs. >

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Defendant in Error. J

BRIEF OF THE UNITED STATES.

BURTON E. BENNETT,
United States Attorney.

H. S. FOOTE,

U. S. Att'y Northern District

of California, Of Counsel.

FILED
'2-1897
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

MAX ENDLEMAfl and

EDWARD LORD,
Plaintiffs in Error,

vs.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Defendant in Error.

BRIEF OF THE UNITED STATES.

STATEMENT.

At the adjourned November term of the United States

District Court for the District of Alaska, Max Endleman

and Edward Lord were indicted by the (hand Jury for

unlawfully selling- intoxicating liquor in the District, in

violation of what is known as the prohibitory liquor law

of Alaska. This law is found in Section 1055 of the Re-

vised Statutes of the United States, Section 14 of Chapter



53, of Volume 23, of the United States Statutes at Large,

and the rules and regul ations prescribed by the President

in conformity therewith Section 1955 of the United

States Revised Statutes is ais follows:

"The President shall have power to restrict and regu-

" late or to prohibit the importation and use of fire arms,

" ammunition, and distilled spirits into and within the

" Territory of Alaska. The exportation of the same from

" any other port or place in the United States, when des-

" tined to any port or place in that territory, and all such

" arms, ammunition, and distilled spirits, exported or at-

" tempted to be exported from any port or place in the

" United States and destined for such territory, in viola-

" tion of any regulations that may be prescribed under

" this section, and all such arms, ammunition, and dis-

" tilled spirits landed or attempted to be landed or used

" at any port or place in the territory, in violation of such

'• regulations, shall be forfeited; and if the value of the

" same exceeds four hundred dollars the vessel upon

" which the same is found, or from which they have been

" landed, together with her tackle, apparel, and furniture

"and cargo, shall be forfeited; and any person willfully

" violating such regulations shall be fined not more than

" five hundred dollars, or imprisoned not more than six

" months. Bonds may be required for a faithful observ-

" ance of such regulations from the master or owners of

" any vessel departing from any port in the United States

" having on board fire arms, ammunition, or distilled spir-

" its, wThen such vessel is destined to an}' place in the ter-

" ritory, or if not so destined, when there is reasonable



" ground of suspicion that such articles are intended to

" be landed therein in violation of law; and similar bonds

" may also be required, on the landing of any such articles

" in the territory, from the person to whom the same may
" be consigned."

Section 14 of Chapter 53 of Volume 23 of U. S. Statutes

at Large is as follows:

"That the provisions- of Chapter three, title twenty-

" three, of the Revised Statutes of the United States, re-

" kiting to the unorganized territorv of Alaska, shall re-

" main in full force, except as herein specially otherwise

" provided;

" And the importation, manufacture and sale of intoxi-

" eating liquors in said District except for medicinal, me-

" chanical and scientific purposes, is hereby prohibited,

" under the penalties which are provided in Section nine-

"teen hundred and fifty-five of the Revised Statutes, for

" the wrongful importation of distilled spirit*.

"And the President of the United States si 1 all make

" such regulations as are necessary to carry out the pro-

" visions of this section."

Endleman ran what is known as the Louvre Theatre,

in Juneau, Alaska, the theatre being in the back part of

the building, and the bar in the front part, in the eve-

ning tie large double doors connecting the two rooms

were thrown open, and the whole floor was practically

one room. In the theatre part there was an upstairs with

boxes which were connected with the bar by electric bells

used by patrons to summon waiters so as to older,

through them, from the bar, intoxicating liquor. Liquor



was also sold in all parts of the house, if ordered, as well

as at the bar. Lord was one of Endleman's barkeepers.

They were charged with having sold whiskey in that

place, to divers persons, on or about the 7th day of De-

c-ember, 1896, and at divers other times before. Evidence

was introduced showing sales to various persons at vari-

ous times, within one year previous to said 7th day of De-

cember, 1896. The defendants, in the Court below, of-

fered no evidence. The jury acquitted Lord, but could

not agree as to Endleman, and was discharged. Endle-

man was immediately re-tried before another jury, and

found guilty as charged.

ARGUMENT.

The Court below very properly denied defendant's mo-

tion to quash the indictment.

The material part of said indictment is as folowe:

" That saidMax Endleman and Edward Lord, at or near

" Juneau, within the said District of Ala-ska, and within

" the jurisdiction of this Court, on or about the 7th

" day of December, in the year of our Lord one

" thousand eight hundred and ninety-six, and at divers

" other times before, did unlawfully and willfully sell to

" John Doe and Richard Eoe, and to divers other persons,

" whose real names are to the Grand Jurors unknown,

" an intoxicating liquor called whisky, to wit, one glass,

" pint, quart, gallon of said liquor, the real quantity is



" to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, without having

" first complied with the law concerning the sale of intox-

" ieating liquors in the District of Alaska."

Counsel for defendant Endleman contend that two or

more offenses are charged in. the indictment. In order

to have their contention logical, we must suppose

that at times Endleman could have lawfully sold whisky

in Alaska, or that he could have lawfully sold it to certain

persons, or that he could have lawfully sold it in certain

quantities. As a matter of fact he was absolutely pro-

hibited from selling whisky in Alaska. The gist of the

offense is the selling of the whisky, and with that crime

he is charged in the indictment, and it was sustained

when it was shown that he had made sales that were not

barred by the statute of limitations.

Nelson vs. United States, 30 Fed., page 112, et seq.

2 Wharton Crim. Law, paragraph 1510.

Black on Intoxicating Liquors, par. 464, and the

many cases cited.

It is not necessary to name the persons who purchased

tlie whisky, or that their names were unknown to the

(Irand Jury. In this case, however, the Grand Jury did

state that their names were unknown.

State rs. Bielby, 21 Wis., 204.

It is, we think, a good thing to show a reasonable num-

ber of sales of whisky by the defendant, so as to make

out as strong a catse as possible for the jury, to show thai

he is keeping a saloon and is pursuing the business of a



6

retail liquor dealer, and violating the prohibitory liquor

law of Alaska. The offense consists in selling whisky in

violation of this law, and it is necessary to prove one or

more sales. Therefore, even though a particular sale is

alleged in the indictment, it is not necessary to allege to

whom it was sold.

Mansfield vs. State, 17 Tex. App., page 468.

State vs. Muse, 1 Dev. & B., page 319.

We contend that it is immaterial whether or not any

vendee is named in the indictment, or whether one, two,

or more are named. We do not believe that counsel for

defendant Endleman are seriously contending that they,

or any one else, might have believed that John Doe and

Richard Roe, named in the indictment, were real persons.

The mode of procedure in this case was according to the

laws of Oregon, as they existed in 1884, when what is

called as the Organic Act of Alaska was passed by Con-

gress. The Oregon Criminal Code, at paragraph 80, de-

clares that the indictment is sufficient if it can be under-

stood therefrom "(1) that the act charged ae a crime" is

"clearly and distinctly set forth in ordinary and concise

" language, in such a manner as to enable a person of

" common understanding to know what is intended," and

(2) that such act "is stated with such a degree of certainty

" as to enable the Court to pronounce judgment, upon a

" conviction according to the right of the case."

But one crime is charged in the indictment. Selling

intoxicating liquor is but one crime. If Congress had

thought it wise, it could have passed a law that running



a saloon and maintaining a liquor nuisance to which peo-

ple resorted in Alaska was a crime. If this had been

done by Congress, in charging a person in the same indict-

ment with violating that law, as well as the one prohibit-

ing the sale of intoxicating liquor, it would have been

necessary to do it in two counts.

State vs. Lund, 30 Pac, 518.

We submit that the indictment squarely informed de-

fendant Endleman of what he was charged and of what

law he violated.

The Court below very properly overruled defendant's

demurrer to the indictment

Alaska was acquired by the United States by purchase

from Russia. Alaska belongs to the United States, and it

lias a right to govern it as it sees lit.

Story, Const., par. 1324.

It has never thought best to grant Alaska a Legisla-

ture, but makes the laws for Alaska through Congress.

In 1881 when Congress passed what is known as the Or-

ganic Act, it was expressly provided therein that intoxi-

cating liquors should not be sold as a beverage in Alaska.

That it has the power to so legislate is well settled.

Nelson vs. United States, 30 Fed., page 112 et seq.

When Congress so legislated it assumed the combined

powers of the Federal and State governments and had

a right so to do.

American Ins. Co. vs. Can/ti, 1 Pet., 516.



I take it for granted that it is now well settled that a

State has power to pass a prohibitory liquor law. Such

being the caise, Congress has the power to pass a prohibi-

tory liquor law, ais well ais a State, and such a. law does

not in any manner conflict with the Constitution of the

United States.

State vs. Lmdgrove, 41 Pac.
y 688; Kan App., page

51.

It is thus seen that Congress has all the powers to gov-

ern Alaska that Alaska would have to govern itself were

it a State. And it follows that Congress has the absolute

power to prohibit the manufacture and sale of intoxicat-

ing liquor in Alaska. In Crawley vs. Christenisen, 137

TL S., at page 91, the Court most ablj expressed the opin-

ion of the thinkers of the present day when it said : "There

" are few sources of crime and misery equal to the dram-

" shop. * * * ^T

t only may a license be exacted

" from the keeper of the saloon before a glass of his li-

" quors can be thus disposed of, but restrictions may be

" imposed as to the class of persons to whom they may be

" sold, and the hours of the day, and the days of the week,

" on which the saloon may be opened. Their sale in that

" form may be absolutely prohibited. It is a question of

" public expediency and public morality, and not of Fed-

" eral law. The police power of the State is fully compe-

" tent to regulate the business, to investigate the evils,

" or to suppress it entirely. * * * A-s it is a business

"attended with danger to the community, it may, as has

" already been said, be entirely prohibited. * * * It

" is a matter of legislative will onlv."
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The sale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska is entirely

with Congress, and is a matter of legislative will only.

Congress used its power, and absolutely prohibited the

sale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska, which it had full

authority to do.

Cantini vs. Tillman, 54 Fed., page 969, et -scq.

Nor is such legislation repugnant in any way with the

Constitution of the United States.

Cantini vs. Tillman, 54 Fed., page 969, et seq.

Beer Co. vs. Massachusetts, 97 IT. S., page 25.

Foster vs. Kansas, 112 IT. S., page 201.

Mugler r.s. Kansas, 123 U. S., page 623.

Black on Intoxicating Liquors, paragraphs 37, 80

to 90, both inclusive, and the large number of au-

thorities cited thereunder.

In Mugler vs. Kansas, 123 U. S., Mr. Justice Harlan,

in delivering the opinion of the Court, said: "That legis-

" lation by a State prohibiting the manufacture within

" her limits of intoxicating liquors to be there sold or bar-

" tiered for general use as a beverage, does not necessarily

" infringe any right, privilege, or immunity secured by

" the Constitution of the United States, is made clear by

" the decisions of this Court, rendered before and since

"the adoption of the Fourteenth Amendment, to some

" of which, in view of the questions to be presently con-

" sidered, it will refer." He then reviewed the following

cases

:

License Cases, 5 How., 504.
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Bartemeyer vs. Iowa, 18 Wall., 129.

Beer Co. vs. Massachusetts, 97 I". 8., 25.

Foster vs. Kansas, 112 U. S., 201.

Initoxicating liquors cannot be imported into the Dis-

trict of Alaska in original packages, or otherwise, or at

all. Chapter 728 of Volume 26 of the United States Sta-

tutes at Large entirely disposes of this question. It reads

as follows:

"That all fermented, distilled, or other intoxicating

" liquors transported into any State or Territory, or re-

" maining therein for use, consumption, sale, or storage

" therein, shall upon arrival in such State or Territor3r
,

" be subject to the operation and effect of the laws of such

" State or Territory, enacted in the exercise of its police

" powers, to the same extent and in the same manner as

" though such liquids or liquors had been produced in such

" State or Territory, and shall not be exempt therefrom

" by reason of being introduced in original packages or

" otherwise."

That Congress has the power to goyern Alaska is un-

questioned. It follows from the fact that it belongs to

the United States. In such goyerning, in exercising the

police powers incidental thereto, it has the power to ab-

solutely prohibit the manufacture, importation, and sale

of intoxicating liquors in the territory, as it has done.

In re Bahrer, 110 U. S., page 515, et seq.

That the police power is distinct from the commercial

power is shown in the last aboye cited case. At times

the police power and commercial power nearly run into

each other.
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Brown vs. State of Maryland, 12 Wheat., 441.

The contention of counsel for the defendant that there

is no law prohibiting the sale of intoxicating liquors in

the District of Alaska is, we think, entirely wrong. Sec-

tion 14 of Chapter 53 of Volume 23 of the United States

Statutes at Large says, among other things:

" And the importation, manufacture and sale of imtoxi-

" eating liquors in said District, except for medicinal, me-

tk chanical and scientific purposes, is hereby prohibited

" under the penalties which are provided in Section nine-

" teen hundred and fifty-five of the Revised Statutes, for

*' the wrongful importation of distilled spirits.

"And the President of the United States may make

" such regulations as are necessary to carry out the prove

" sions of this section."

It will be observed that the manufacture, importation,

and isale of intoxicating liquors in Alaska, except for cer-

tain prescribed purposes, are absolutely forbidden by

this section. To find out what the penalty is for break-

ing this law, we simply turn back to Section 1055 of the

Revised Statutes.

3.

A prohibitory law is different from a law

which aims to regulate the liquor traffic. In the

one cast, no sales are allowed; while in the other,

liquor may be sold under certain conditions. In

the one case, all sales are illegal, in the other,

some are legal and some are not. Therefore, with such a.

law as Alaska possesses, there is no reason why the gov-



12

eminent should be compelled to rely upon any particular

sale. If the jury believe from all the evidence in a ease,

that tine defendant sold intoxicating- liquor in Alaska,

and the same is not outlawed, then he is found guilty as

charged. He is not found guilty of any particular sale,

but of selling. To hold otherwise would be most oppres-

sive for the government, for juries in Alaska will acquit

if the least reason can be found for them to do so. It has

taken 17 yeans to secure a conviction from a petit jury in

a liquor case. If the government is compelled to rely

upon some one particular sale, while the jury may be sat-

isfied beyond any doubt that the defendant is guilty, it

gives it a chance to at least not agree. There is no reason

for any such rule as this. The offense, when committed,

is that of selling intoxicating liquor, when the selling of

the same is entirely prohibited. Even in States where

the law is not. strictly prohibitory, as this law is, other

sales are allowed to be proven other than those set out in

the indictment.

State vs. Smith, 22 Vt., page 74.

State vs. Croteau, 23 Vt., page 14; 54 Am. Dec,

page 90.

4.

The Court below very properly allowed the plaintiff to

show any sales of whisky made by the defendant within

one year previous to obtaining the indictments against

him. The gist of this offense is, as we contend, the selling

of whisky, and particular sales to particular persons at

particular times has nothing to do with it. If the de-
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fendant sold any intoxicating liquor in Alaska, he com-

mitted a crime, and if the same is not barred by the sta-

tute of limitations, he was properly prosecuted therefor.

State vs. Rem, 41 Kan., page 674.

The special tax stamp of the defendant was properly

excluded as evidence for him by the Court, as he was not

being prosecuted for violating the Revenue Laws of the

United States, but the local prohibitory Act of Alaska.

In Maine and Massachusetts it has been declared by sta-

tute that it is prima facie evidence that a person is selling

intoxicating liquors, if he has a special tax stamp. These

statutes have been declared to be valid, and only declara-

tory of the common law.

Gomm. vs. Unrig, 146 Mass., page 132.

5.

The Court below very properly instructed the jury as

to the law of this case, and when it stated that "the fact

" that it was a glass, pint, quart, cuts no figure, as the

" law authorizes the allegation to be made in that way."

The quantity or amount of liquor cuts no figure, but only

the sale. The prohibitory law of Alaska is different from

the laws of some of the States where liquor is allowed

to be sold in certain quantities, for instance, not more

than a quart at a time. In such case, the quantity is ma-

terial, and it would be necessary to allege that not toore

than one quart was sold. In this case, the Grand Jury

said, in the indictment, that the exact quantity of whisky

sold by the defendant was to them unknown.
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6.

The Court below very properly instructed the jury as

follows:

"The Federal Courts allow, the Judges sometimes to

" give an opinion on the evidence. I gave my judgment

" to the other jury, and I will give it to you. I do not

" see any way that these defendants can be acquitted,

" notwithstanding I charge you that you are the judges

" of the evidence, and, from that evidence, it is for you

" to say whether or not they, or either of them, are

" guilty."

In the State Courts where, from the undisputed testi-

mony, it is evident that no other verdict than the one ar-

rived at could have been returned, the instructions of the

Judge are immaterial.

Martin vs. Union Mutual Insurance Co., 13 Wash.,

page 275.

Hardin vs. Mullin, 16 Wash., page 647.

In criminal cases in Federal Courts, Judges have even

gone so far as to instruct the jury to convict the defend-

ant.

United States vs. Anthony, II Blatch., page 200.

This practice has been severely criticised, but the rule

is well settled that they have a right to express their opin-

ion to the jury.

United States vs. Taylor, 3 McCrarry, page 500, et

seq.

4 Fed. E., page 470, et seq.

Wharton, Orim. Law (7th Ed.), par. 82a.
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In this ease the Court below expressly said, after ex-

pressing its opinion, "notwithstanding I charge you that

"you are the judges of the evidence, and from that evi-

4k dence it. is for you to say whether or not they, or either

" of them, are guilty." The charge was clear and fair,

although from the evidence, no other conclusion could

be reached than that the defendant was guilty.

The Court below very properly instructed the jury as

to the law in regard to principal and agent, servant, or

employee, and its instructions were correct.

A person is guilty of unlawfully selling intoxicating

liquor when it is supported by proof that he sold by his

servant, agent, or employee.

Comm. vs. Park, 1 Gray, 553.

Parker vs. State, 4 Ohio St., 563.

And evidence that the sale was made in defendant's bar-

room or saloon^ by a barkeeper or person apparently in

charge there Ls prima facie evidence of the knowledge and

consent of the owner.

Kirkwood vs. Autenreith, II Mo. App., page 515.

Amerman vs. Kail, 34 Hun., 126.

And a conviction for selling intoxicating liquor lias

even been sustained where a man went to defendant's

saloon on Sunday, and, he (the defendant) not being pres-

ent, was told by a boarder to help himself from a certain

bottle, which he did, leaving the price thereof on the coun-

ter.
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Black on Intoxicating Liquors, paragraph 510.

Pierce vs. State, 109 Ind., 535.

CONCLUSION.

We respectfully submit that the Court below, in this

caise committed no reversible errors, and that the judg-

ment thereof should be sustained.

BURTON E. BENNETT,

United States Attorney.



ADDENDA.

If the Congress of the United States does not possess

the power under the Constitution, to restrict the sale and

importation of intoxicating liquors into a territory such

as Alaska, then it mast follow according to the theory

advanced by the plaintiff in error, since Alaska has no

Legislature, that there is no legislative power which can

make regulations in that behalf, and the citizens of such

territory would have no protection whatever against the

evil of unrestricted importation and sale of liquors, with

all the evils which might confessedly flow therefrom; and

no power whatever exists anywhere to regulate commerce

as affecting Alaska.

The contention of the plaintiff might perchance have

some plausibility, if there was any legislative body in

Alaska.

But the whole power of legislating for that territory

seems to be vested in the Congress of the United States,

and to suppose that the trainers of the Constitution of the

United State sintended to leave the citizens of any terri-

tory which might be acquired by the United States by

purchase or treaty, without any protection in this regard,

would be to make it a peculiar hardship on such territory

and its citizens, and to cast a very severe reflection both

on the patriotism, and the good sense of the makers of

that venerated instrument, the charter of all our rights as

a great and civilized nation.
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The Constitution of thie United States it is true does

reserve to the States all rights not granted there-

in to the general government, but the States own

the territories in common, and their representa-

tives legislating for the preservation of such re-

served rights, it would seem, have the power to pass just

such an intoxicating liquor law as the one under discus-

sion.

If, therefore, the States, who own in common, the terri-

tory of Alaska, by their Congress, choose to legislate as

to one of the rights reserved to all such States in common,

and to prohibit the importation and sale of intoxicating

liquors into their territor}', it would seem that they have

the right to do it.

Whenever any citizen of the United States, is in a terri-

tory which belongs to the States in common, he is there

with full knowledge of the power possessed by the States,

through their Congress, and if he goes there with such

knowledge, how can he justly complain, of the exercise

of a power inherent by the Constitution in the States?

It seems to me that there is no other sound Constitu-

tional theory, than the contention here made,which Would

reserve to the States as to their common territory, the

rights guaranteed to them by the Constitution.

It does not look reasonable that a territory without a

legislative body, and which belongs to the States in com-

mon, can, have as great a right as the States, which have

the attribute of sovereignty and possess legislative bod-

ies; and neither sovereignty inheres in the territory under

the Constitution, or does any legislative body exist in
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the territory which can make any laws on the subject.

The basis of all the decisions ais to this matter cited by

counsel in support of their position seems to point nm-rr-

iqgly to the proposition, that the States have reserved

rights, but that as to tine territories, the common property

of the States, Congress alone can legislate as to common

property of the States, especially where no territorial

Legislature exists.

It would be a heavy blow struck at the sovereign rights

of States, and the power of their Congress to deny the

Constitutionality of such a law, and to leave Alaska, and

all other territories which may hereafter be acquired by

the States, without any law on the subject of the importa-

tion and sale of intoxicating liquors. Congress has the

right to admit new States into the Union, and to prescribe

what kind of Constitutions they must possess, so that it be

republican in form.

As was the case in reference to the institution of slav-

ery, Congress had the right to demand that States seeking

admission must prohibit the further existence of that in-

stitution.

So also as in the case of T
Ttah, Congress had

and exercised the right to prohibit polygamy, in

the new State. To declare, at this date, and

in view of the history of our common country, and the

decisions of the Courts of last resort, that ( Congress has no

power to pass such a law as that now under consideration,

would be to erect into sovereign States territories which

have never yet been so declared by Congress, to exist as

sovereign States of the Union, So it would happen if
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/;/ the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

ALBERT E. GRAY,

Plaintiff,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH et ais.,

Defendants.

Statement under Amendment to Section 7 of

Rule 23, Adopted February 17th, 1896.

A. E. Gray, the plaintiff in error, herewith files a state-

ment of the errors in which he intends to rely in the

above entitled action, and of the parts of the record

which he thinks necessary for the consideration thereof.

STATEMENT OF ERRORS.

i—The Court erred in deciding that the plaintiff did

not at^any time have the means or ability to pay Joseph

A. Donohoe, Sr., the purchase price demanded by him

for the Market Street lot.

2—The Court erred in giving judgment against the

plaintiff and for the defendants for their costs, because

Edgar Mills, having refused to take the title of said

Market Street lot, and having given notice to plaintiff,

that, because of such alleged defect in title, he refused
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to carry out his contract for the purchase from the plain-

tiff of said Market Street lot, became and was liable to

the plaintiff for such breach of his contract without

regard to plaintiff's ability to pay said Donohoe the pur-

chase price demanded by him for said Market Street lot.

3—The Court erred in giving judgment against the

plaintiff and for the defendants for their costs.

PARTS OF THE RECORD DESIRED TO BE PRINTED.

Fourth Amended Complaint. (Pages i to 1 1 in-

clusive.)

Answer to the Fourth Amended Complaint. (Pages

1 8 to 28 inclusive.)

Findings. (Pages 29 to 44 inclusive.)

Bill of Exceptions, omitting therefrom the findings,

which are set forth in the transcript of the record com-

mencing on line 12, page 70, and ending on line 8, page

85, and inserting in lieu of the findings so omitted, after

the word "following," on line 12, page 70, the words

("Here follows true copy of findings"). Then add

without setting out copy of same—Petition for writ of

error, filed, etc. Bond approved, filed, etc. Writ of

Error and Answer thereto, filed, etc. Citation, filed, etc.

March 19, 1897.

VINCENT NEALE,
SIDNEY V. SMITH,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

[Endorsed:] Service admitted, March 19, 1897.

Denson & DeHaven.

Filed March 19, 1897. F. D. Monckton, Clerk.



S. Prentiss Smith et als.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, Northern

District of California, Ninth Circuit.

ALBERT E. GRAY,

Plaintiff,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH, FRANK
MILLER, and WILLIAM P.

HARRINGTON, Executors of

the last Will and Testament of

Edgar Mills, Deceased,

Defendants.

Fourth Amended Complaint.

Albert E. Gray, a subject of Victoria, Queen of Great

Britain and Ireland, and Empress of India, an alien, by

this his fourth amended complaint, complains of S. Pren-

tiss Smith, Frank Miller and William P. Harrington,

Executors of the last will and testament of Edgar Mills,

deceased, all of said defendants being residents and citi-

zens of the State of California, and thereupon plaintiff

alleges and avers the citizenship and residence of the

parties herein as hereinabove set forth.

II.

That on or about the 7th day of October, 1891, the

plaintiff and said Edgar Mills, who was during his life-
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time a resident and citizen of the State of California, en-

tered into mutual written agreements signed by both of

them, wherein and whereby the plaintiff agreed to sell

and convey to said Edgar Mills by a good and sufficient

deed free of all incumbrances, and the said Edgar Mills

agreed to buy from plaintiff the following lot of land, sit-

uate in the City and County of San Francisco, State of

California :

Commencing at a point in the southeasterly line of

Market Street distant thereon two hundred and seventy-

five (275) feet northeasterly from the point of intersec-

tion of the northeasterly line of Eighth Street, formerly

Price Street, with the said southeasterly line of Market

Street ; thence northeasterly along the last mentioned

line eighty-two feet and six inches ; thence southeasterly

and parallel with Eighth Street one hundred and sixty-

five (165) feet to the northeasterly line of Stevenson

Street ; thence southwesterly along the last mentioned

line eighty-two (82) feet and six (6) inches, and thence

northwesterly one hundred and sixty-five feet (165) to

the place of beginning, being a subdivision of lot No.

264 of the 100 vara survey, according to map of W. M.

Eddy, on file in the office of the County Recorder of

said City and County, which is hereinafter styled the

Market Street lot ; and the said Edgar Mills agreed to

psy to the plaintiff as and for the consideration for said

Market Street lot the sum of one hundred and twenty

thousand dollars ($120,000) in cash, and in addition to

convey to the plaintiff in fee free from all incumbrances,

certain tracts of land situate in Colusa and Tehama
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Counties, State of California, aggregating 8421 acres

and briefly known and described as the Eureka Ranch,

containing 2400 acres, and Mills' lands at Sites, contain-

ing 3281*^ acres, both situate in Colusa County, also

the Ehorn Ranch consisting of 1060 acres of land be-

longing to said Edgar Mills, and 400 acres close adjoin-

ing the Town of Kirkwood, and 1280 acres belonging to

said Edgar Mills a few miles west of the Town of Kirk-

wood, all situate in Tehama County.

That on said 7th day of October, 1 89 1, the 400 acres

of land belonging to the said Edgar Mills close adjoining

the Town of Kirkwood, were more particularly described

by legal subdivisions as follows :

The south half of the south half of Section 14, and the

N. E. *4 °f Section 23, in Township 23 North, Range 3

West, M. D. B. & M., and on said 7th day of October,

1 89 1, the said Edgar Mills did own the above lastly de-

scribed lands, and did not own any other lands close ad-

joining the Town of Kirkwood.

That on said 7th day of October, 1891, the 1280 acres

of land belonging to the said Edgar Mills, situate a few

miles west of the Town of Kirkwood, were more particu-

larly described by legal subdivisions as follows ;

All Section 16, and all Section 17, in Township 23,

North, Range 3 West, M. D. B. & M., and on said 7th

day of October, 1891, the said Edgar Mills did own the

above lastly described lands, and did not own any other

lands situate a few miles west of the Town of Kirkwood.

That on said 7th day of October, 1891, the said Ehorn
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Ranch consisted of the following- lands more particularly

described by legal subdivisions as follows :

All Section 25, the east half of the east half, and the

S. W. % of the S. E. i^ °f Section 26, and that portion

of said Section 26 beginning at the quarter section cor-

ner of the southern boundary line of Section 26 ; thence

running due north 20 chains ; thence due east 20 chains
;

thence north 60 chains to the northern boundary line of

said Section 26 ; thence west along said section line to the

intersection of said lands with the line of the Northern

railway
; thence southerly along the line of said railway to

the intersection of the line of said railway with the south-

ern boundary line of said Section 26 ; thence east along

the southern boundary line of said section to the place of

beginning ; all of said lands hereinbefore described as

constituting part of the Ehorn Ranch being situate in

Township 23 North, Range 3 West, M. D. B. & M.

Also in Township 23 North, Range 2 West, M. D. B.

& M., lots 1 and 2 of the N. W. ^, and lots 3, 4 and 5

of the S. W. y^ of Section 30 ; all of said lands herein-

before described, situate in Sections 25 and 26 of Town-

ship 23 North, Range 3 West, and in Section 30 of

Township 23 North, Range 2 West, constituting the

Ehorn Ranch.

That on said 7th day of October, 1891, the said Edgar

Mills did own the above lastly described lands, and did

not own any other lands designated or known as the

Ehorn Ranch.

That on said 7th day of October, 1891, the said Edgar

Mills owned certain lands at Sites containing 3281^3
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acres, more particularly described by legal subdivisions

as follows :

In Township 17 North, Range 5 West, M. D. B. & M.,

all Section 1 ; the east half of the east half of Section 2
;

the east half, and the east half of the west half of Section

12; the west half, the S. E. j£, the west half of the

N. E. i^, and the S. E. ^ of the N. E. ^ of Section 10
;

the west half, and the S. W. ^ of the S. E. ^ of Section

14; all Section 15; the N. E. y^ of Section 22; the

N. W. i^, and the west half of the N. E. *^ of Section 23.

That the 3281^ acres at Sites referred to in said mu-

tual written agreements were the same lands as are here-

inbefore lastly described.

That the following is a more particular description by

legal subdivisions of the Eureka Ranch :

In Township 16 North, Range 3 West, Mount Diablo

Base and Meridian, all Sections 20, 21 and 29; the

north half, and the north half of the south half of Sec-

tion 28.

That on said 7th day of October, 1891, the said Edgar

Mills did own the above lastly described lands, and did

not own any other lands designated or known as the

Eureka Ranch.

III.

That said Market Street lot was worth to the plaintiff

as of said 7th day of October, 1891, and thereafter down

to the date of the breach of the contract hereinafter

alleged the sum of one hundred and sixty-five thousand

dollars ($165,000), and that said 8421 acres of land were
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on said day of the value of one hundred and seventy-

three thousand four hundred dollars ($173,400).

IV.

That the plaintiff was able, ready and willing from

October 7th, 1891, to and until Noveniber 18th, 1891, to

sell and convey to said Edgar Mills said Market Street

lot by a good and sufficient deed conveying to the said

Edgar Mills a perfect title to said lot, but that on said

November 1 8th, 1891, said Edgar Mills refused to buy

said lot, or to accept a conveyance thereof, and refused

to comply with, or carry out his said agreement to buy

said lot as aforesaid, on the ground and for the reason

that the title thereto was imperfect ; that by reason of

such refusal, the plaintiff suffered damages in the sum of

one hundred and twenty-eight thousand four hundred

dollars ($128,400).

V.

That on the 10th day of January, 1893, the said Edgar

Mills died in the City and County of San Francisco,

leaving a will, whereof he named the defendants Execu-

tors ; that on the 26th day of January, 1893, an order

was duly made by the Superior Court of the City and

County aforesaid, that being the Court having jurisdic-

tion in the matter of the estate of Edgar Mills, deceased,

admitting said will to probate and ordering letters testa-

mentary to issue to the defendants. That thereafter

defendants qualified as such executors and letters testa-

mentary were issued to them out of said Court and defend-

ants entered upon their duties as such executors, and
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have been ever since and are now the duly qualified

acting executors of the last will and testament of Edgar

Mills, deceased.

That on the 26th day of January, 1893, an order was

duly made by said Superior Court in the matter of the

estate of Edgar Mills, deceased, ordering publication of

notice to creditors, and that in accordance with such

order the said executors did on the 30th day of January,

1893, publish for the first time a notice to the creditors

of and all persons having claims against the said dece-

dent to exhibit them within ten months after the first

publication of said notice to said executors.

VI.

That on the nth day of September, 1893, the plaintiff

duly presented and exhibited to the defendants as such

executors, at the place mentioned in said notice, his

claim against the estate of said decedent for breach of

contract as hereinbefore alleged for the sum of $144,398

inclusive, being the principal sum of $128,400, with in-

terest from November i8th, 1891, for one year and ten

months, which claim was accompanied by copies of the

said written agreements and was supported by the affi-

davit of the plaintiff that the amount therein specified

was justly due to him, that no payments had been made

thereon which were not credited, and that there were no

offsets to the same to the knowledge of said affiant, a

copy of which said claim is hereto attached marked Ex-

hibit A, and is hereby expressly referred to and made a

part of this complaint. That on the 23d day of Septem-
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ber, 1893, said claim was by said defendants as such

executors rejected in whole.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays judgment against the de-

fendants for the sum of one hundred and twenty-eight

thousand four hundred dollars, with interest thereon

from the 18th day of November, 1891, and costs of suit.

VINCENT NEALE,
SIDNEY V. SMITH,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

EXHIBIT A.

In the Superior Court, City and County of San Fran-

cisco, State of California, Dept. 10, Probate.

In the Matter of the Estate of) ~ ,. , ^ 1

Edgar Mills, Deceased.
j

Letters testamentary of the estate of Edgar Mills, de-

ceased, having been granted to S. Prentiss Smith, Frank

Miller and William P. Harrington, the undersigned, a

creditor, presents his claim against the estate of said de-

ceased, with the necessary vouchers of said executors for

their approval, to wit

:

Estate of Edgar Mills, Deceased,

To Albert E. Gray, Dr.

To damages for breach of agreement to buy real prop-

erty under written contract, a copy of which, ap-

pears below, date of breach November 18th, 1891. . .$128,400

To interest on same from November 18th, 1891, to date,

1 year and 10 months 16,498

$144,898
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1

On October 7th, 1891, Edgar Mills agreed in writing to

buy from Albert E. Gray the following property situate

in the City and County of San Francisco : Commencing

at a point in the southeasterly line of Market Street dis-

tant two hundred and seventy-five (275) feet northeast-

erly from the point of intersection of the northeasterly

line of Eighth (8th) Street, formerly Price Street, with

the said southeasterly line of Market Street, thence

northeasterly along the last mentioned line eighty-two

feet and six inches, thence southeasterly and parallel

with Eighth Street one hundred and sixty-five (165) feet

to the northwesterly line of Stevenson Street, thence

southwesterly along the last mentioned line eighty-two

feet and six inches, thence northwesterly one hundred

and sixty-five (165) feet to the place of beginning. Be-

ing a subdivision of lot No. 264 of the 100 vara lot sur-

vey, according to map of W. M. Eddy, on file in the of-

fice of the Recorder of said City and County.

The value of said property to said A. E. Gray on said

day was $165,000.

The consideration agreed to be paid by Edgar Mills

for said San Francisco property was $120,000 cash and

8421 acres of land more or less situate partly in Colusa

and partly in Tehama Counties, California, of the value

of $173,400.

The said A. E. Gray agreed in writing to sell said San

Francisco property to the said Edgar Mills, and was at

all times ready and willing to do so, but on November

1 8th, 1 89 1, said Edgar Mills refused to carry out his

agreement.
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Copy of contract above referred to.

September 16th, 1891.
To Albert E. Gray, Esq.,

405 California Street,

San Francisco.
Dear Sir

:

Provided you take the following described property

situate in Tehama and Colusa Counties as part payment

up to one hundred and fifteen thousand dollars ($115,-

000), I hereby make you an offer to purchase the lot sit-

uate on the south side of Market Street in this City

extending through to Stevenson Street, lying on the east

side of and adjoining Central Park and running east

therefrom eighty-two and one half (82^) feet by a depth

of one hundred and sixty-five (165) feet, at the price of

two hundred and forty thousand dollars ($240,000),

namely

:

In Cash $125,000

And in land as above 1 15,000

$240,000

This offer to hold good for three weeks from this date

to enable you to inspect my said lands. Said lands de-

scribed over page.

Yours &c,

(Signed) Edgar Mills.

(over page) in colusa county.

My ranch near Colusa Junction, consisting of 2400 acres

known as " Eureka Ranch," at $20 $ 48,000

Land at Sites consisting of 328 1}4 acres at $5 16,400
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IN TEHAMA COUNTY.

My ranch known as Ehorn Ranch, consisting of 1060

acres at $30 31 ,800

Four hundred acres belonging to me close adjoining

Kirkwood at $20 8,000

And 1280 acres belonging to me a few miles west of

Kirkwood at $15 19,200

$115,400
Say 8421 acres at $115,000.

My agent Mr. Houx will show you the above lands and

give you sectional descriptions.

Yours, etc.,

(Signed) Edgar Mills.

October 6th, 189.1.

Edgar Mills, Esq.,

Pacific Union Club,

San Francisco.

Dear Sir :

—

Referring to your letter to me of the 1 6th September,

1891, wherein you say "provided you take the following

described property situate in Tehama and Colusa Coun-

ties as part payment up to one hundred and fifteen thou-

sand dollars ($115,000), I hereby make you an offer to

purchase the lot situate on the south side of Market

Street in this city, extending through to Stevenson Street,

lying on the east side of and adjoining Central Park and

running east therefrom eighty-two and one-half (82^)

feet by a depth of one hundred and sixty-five (165) feet,

at the price of two hundred and forty thousand dollars

($240,000), namely

:
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In Cash $125,000

And in land as above 1 15,000

$240,000

"This offer to hold good for three weeks from this date

to enable you to inspect my said lands thereinafter de-

scribed."

I now and hereby accept your said offer in the said let-

ter contained.

I am most respectfully,

(Signed) Albert E. Gray.

San Francisco, October 7th, 1891.

Dear Sir :

—

I hereby accept the modification in the terms of your

letter to me of the 16th September, 1891, now made by

you, namely

:

That you pay in cash one hundred and twenty thousand

dollars $1 20,000

And in lands (as specified in your said letter) 115,000

$235,000

Yours respectfully,

(Signed) Albert E. Gray.

To Edgar Mills,

Pacific Union Club,

San Francisco.

I hereby confirm the above and direct you to forward

abstract of title to me or my attorneys, Messrs.

(Signed) Edgar Mills.
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State of California, 1

City and County of San Francisco. J

Albert E. Gray, whose foregoing claim is herewith pre-

sented to the Executors of the estate of said deceased,

being duly sworn, says that the amount thereof, to wit,

the sum of $144,898 with accruing interest at the rate of

7 per cent, per annum on the sum of $128,400, is justly

due to said claimant. That no payments have been made

thereon which are not credited, and that there are no

offsets to same to the knowledge of said claimant.

ALBERT E. GRAY.

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 8th day of

September, 1893.

(seal.) D. A. CURTIN, Notary Public.

VINCENT NEALE,
SIDNEY V. SMITH,

Attorneys for Claimant.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco '

Albert E. Gray, being duly sworn, says that he is

the plaintiff in the above entitled action ; that he has

read the foregoing Fourth Amended Complaint, and

knows the contents thereof, and that the same is true of

his own knowledge, except as to the matters therein

stated on information and belief, and as to such matters

he believes it to be true.

ALBERT E. GRAY.
Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 18th day of

November, 1895.

(seal.) D. A. CURTIN, Notary Public.
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[Endorsed :] Service of a copy of the within Fourth

Amended Complaint is hereby admitted this 19th day of

November, 1895.

DENSON & DeHAVEN,
Attorneys for Defendants.

Filed November 19th, 1895. W. J.
Costigan, Clerk.

By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, Northern Dis-

trict of California, Ninth Circuit.

ALBERT E. GRAY,
Plaintiff,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH, FRANK
MILLER and WILLIAM P.

HARRINGTON, Executors

of the Last Will and Testa-

ment of Edgar Mills, De-

ceased,

Defendants.

Answer to Fourth Amended Complaint.

Now come said defendants, and by leave of Court first

had and obtained file and present this their answer to the

Fourth Amended Complaint therein of said plaintiff and

allege that they have no information or belief sufficient

to enable them to answer the allegations of the said com-

plaint that the said plaintiff was a subject of Victoria,
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Queen of Great Britain and Ireland and Empress of

India, an alien, and they therefore deny that at the com-

mencement of this action, or that at any time since, the

said plaintiff was or that he now is a subject of Victoria,

Queen of Great Britain and Ireland and Empress of

India, an alien, or that the said plaintiff was at any of said

times or that he now is an alien.

Further answering the said fourth amended complaint,

the said defendants deny that the alleged description set

out in the said complaint of the land which the said plain-

tiff agreed to sell and convey to the said Edgar Mills a

good and sufficient deed free from all incumbrances and

which the said Edgar Mills agreed to buy from said

plaintiff, is true and correct, and they allege that the true

description of the said land and premises so agreed to be

sold and conveyed and purchased is as follows, to wit

:

The lot of land situate on the south side of Market Street

in the said City and County of San Francisco, extending

through to Stevenson Street, lying on the east side of and

adjoining Central Park, and running east therefrom

eighty-two and one-half (82^) feet by a depth of one

hundred and sixty-five (165) feet, and that the land so

agreed to be sold and conveyed to the said Edgar Mills

included not only the said Market Street lot, but also all

the land lying between the southeasterly line of said

Market Street lot as described in said complaint and the

center of said Stevenson Street, subject, however, to the

easement of the right of way in the public over said

Stevenson Street ; that said defendants are informed and

believe and therefore allege that said Stevenson Street
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now is, and at all the times set out and referred to in the

said complaint was, of a certain width, to wit, of the width

of thirty-five (35) feet, and extended along and across the

whole of the southeasterly end of the said Market Street

lot.

Further answering the said complaint, said defendants

deny that the said Market Street lot, or the land described

and referred to in said contract of sale and purchase, was

worth to the said plaintiff as of said seventh (7th) day of

October, 1891, and thereafter down to the date of the

alleged breach of the contract referred to in said com-

plaint, or at any time in said complaint alleged or at any

time, o'r at all, the sum of one hundred and sixty-five

thousand dollars ($165,000.00) or any other sum what-

ever ; and the said defendants deny further that the lands

of said Edgar Mills, described and alleged in the said

complaint or described or referred to in said alleged

agreements, were, on said day or at any other time, of

the value of one hundred and seventy-three thousand

four hundred dollars ($173,400.00), or that they were on

said day or at any time of any greater value than fifty-

nine thousand and forty-five dollars ($59,045.00).

Further answering, said defendants allege that they

are informed and believe and therefore allege that said

Edgar Mills did not at any time alleged or referred to

in said fourth amended complaint, or at any time what-

ever, own any land known as or called " Mills' land, or

lands at Sites," or "Land, or lands at Sites," and allege

further that they are informed and believe and therefore

alleo-e that the land particularly described in said fourth
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amended complaint by legal subdivisions and referred to

in said fourth amended complaint as " certain lands at

Sites containing 3281^2 acres," was never at any time

known or called by any such name, or designated as

aforesaid, or as " Lands at Sites," and that if the words

in said alleged contract referred to the said land so de-

scribed by legal subdivisions, it was the first time that

the same or any part thereof was so designated, and

said defendants allege that on said seventh (7th) day of

October, 1891, the said Edgar Mills did own other lands

at Sites in said complaint referred to, and allege that on

said day and at all the times in said complaint referred

to, to and including the time of his death, said Edgar

Mills owned a certain tract or body of land containing

thirty-two hundred and eighty-one and one-half (3281 ^2)

acres of land situate in said Colusa County, in sections

twenty-one (21), twenty-two (22), twenty-seven (27),

twenty-eight (28), thirty three (2,5) and thirty-four (34),

in township seventeen (17) North, Range four (4) west,

Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, and that at and dur-

ing all of said times there was a certain town or village

called Sites, which was situated within one mile of the

western line of said tract of land hereinabove lastly re-

ferred to, while said town is about two miles from the

nearest point and points of said land which in said com-

plaint is referred to by legal subdivisions as Mills' lands

at Sites, and they therefore deny that the 3281^ acres

at Sites referred to in said alleged agreement were the

same lands as are in said complaint described by legal

subdivisions and therein alleged to be the same lands.
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Further answering, said defendants allege that they

are informed and believe that said plaintiff was not, and

they therefore on their information and belief deny, that

at the time alleged, or at any time whatever, said plain-

tiff was able, ready and willing, or that he was able, or

ready to sell and convey, or to sell, or convey, to said

Edgar Mills said Market Street lot by a good and suf-

ficient, or good, or sufficient, or any, deed conveying to

the said Edgar Mills a perfect, or any, title to said lot,

or that said plaintiff at the time alleged, or at any time,

was able, or ready to convey the said lot, or any title

thereto whatever to said Mills ; and said defendants are

informed and believe that the said Edgar Mills did not

refuse, and they therefore deny that the said Edgar

Mills on November 18, 1 891, or at any other time what-

ever, refused to carry out his part of said alleged con-

tract of sale and purchase either in whole or in part, or

in any respect whatever, or that he refused to purchase

the property so agreed by him to be purchased, or to

accept a conveyance thereof made, or tendered under, or

pursuant to, or in performance of, said alleged contract

of sale and purchase, or that he refused to comply with,

or to carry out his said alleged agreement to buy said

lot as alleged, or at all ; and said defendants are in-

formed and believe, and therefore allege that heretofore,

to wit, on the eighteenth (18th) day of November, in

the year 1891, there was tendered to said Edgar Mills

by one Joseph Donohoe, and in his own behalf only, a

deed executed by said Donohoe and his wife conveying

to said Mills the said Market Street lot, and that said
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tender was made solely on the condition that said Mills

should then and there pay to said Donohoe the sum of

$165,000 cash, in gold coin of the United States, and

should also assume and pay one-half of the taxes on said

lot for the then current year ; that neither the said deed,

nor any other deed for said lot was ever at any time ten-

dered to said Mills on any other condition, or for, or on

behalf of any other person whatever ; and they therefore

deny that said Mills ever refused to accept a conveyance

of said lot ; and said defendants are informed and be-

lieve that the said plaintiff did not suffer any damages,

and they, therefore, deny that by the acts and omissions,

or either of them, of the said Edgar Mills, alleged in

said complaint, or that by any act or omission of the said

Edgar Mills, or at all, the said plaintiff suffered damages

in the sum of one hundred and twenty-eight thousand

four hundred dollars ($128,400.00), or in any other sum

whatever, or at all.

Further answering, the said defendants allege that

they are informed and believe, and they therefore allege

that the said plaintiff on the said seventh day of October,

in the year 1891, did not have, and that he never at any

time whatever, either before or since said day, had any

right, title, interest or estate whatever in or to, or pos-

session of, the said Market Street lot or the land de-

scribed and referred to in said contract of sale and pur-

chase, or any part thereof, and that he never at any time

whatever had any right or power to sell, or to convey, or

to deliver the possession of, the same or any part there-

of, or to make a contract to do so ; and that neither the
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said plaintiff, nor any one else for him, ever tendered to

the said Edgar Mills, or to any one for him, a'good and

sufficient or any deed whatever of or for said lot, or the

land described and referred to in said contract of sale

and purchase, or any part thereof.

Further answering, the said defendants allege that

they are informed and believe, and they therefore allege

that on the said seventh (7th) day of October, in the

year 1891, and at the time of the entering into of the

mutual written agreements between said plaintiff and said

Edgar Mills alleged and referred to in the said complaint

and continuously thereafter and to and until a day subse-

quent to the death of the said Edgar Mills, to wit, the

twenty-eighth (28th) day of September, in the year 1892,

one Joseph A. Donohoe was the owner seized in fee of all

of the said Market Street lot set out and described in the

said complaint, except an estate in fee after the ter-

mination of an estate for the life of one Mary Penniman

in an undivided one-twelfth (^) part of that part of said

Market Street lot lying on the northeasterly side thereof

and which said part is of a uniform width of thirteen (13)

feet and nine (9) inches by one hundred and sixty-five

(165) feet in length and fronting on said Market Street

and running back to the said Stevenson Street, and that

at and during all of said times prior to a certain day, to

wit, the twentieth (20th) day of July, in the year 1892,

the said estate in said undivided one-twelfth Q2 ) was

owned by one Robert Penniman and one Walter Penni-

man, on which said last mentioned day the estate of

said Robert and Walter was conveyed to the said
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Joseph A. Donohoe ; that the remainder of the land de-

scribed and referred to in said contract of sale and pur-

chase, to wit, the part lying between the said southeasterly

line of said Market Street lot and the center of said Ste-

venson Street, was during all of the times referred to or

mentioned in said complaint owned in fee, subject to the

easement of a right of way in the public as aforesaid, by

some person or persons other than the said plaintiff, and

who are and at all the times herein or in said complaint

referred to have been unknown to these defendants or

to any or to either of them.

For a further and separate answer said defendants

allege that they are informed and believe and therefore

aver that under and by virtue of the terms of the alleged

contract set out and referred to in said fourth amended

complaint, the said plaintiff herein was required to the

said Edgar Mills an abstract of title to the land in San

Francisco agreed to be sold and conveyed by said plain-

tiff to said Mills, that thereafter what purported to be an,

abstract of title to the said San Francisco land was sup-

plied and handed to the said Edgar Mills and the said

abstract was represented by the said plaintiff to the said

Mills to be an abstract of the title to the said San Fran-

cisco land ; that said defendants are advised, informed,

and believe, and therefore aver that said abstract of title

showed that said plaintiff had no right, title or interest

whatever in or to the said land in San Francisco, but on

the contrary, so far as said abstract showed at all, that

one Joseph A. Donohoe was the owner, seized in fee of

all of the said land in San Francisco set out and described
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in the said contract of purchase, except that part of the

said land which lies between the southeasterly line of the

lot described in said complaint as the Market Street lot

and the center of Stevenson Street, and except further

that said abstract left open and subject to question as to

whether or not an interest in said property was not still

vested in some undisclosed devisees of a former owner

thereof, to wit, one William Martin, who was then dead

and administration upon whose estate was then pending

and unclosed and in which there was nothing- to establish

who were the children of one Mary Penniman and who

under the terms of the will of said William Martin were

entitled to share in the said property as devisees ; and

said defendants are informed and believe, and therefore

aver that upon further investigation it was found and the

said Edgar Mills was informed and believed that an

estate in fee, after the termination of an estate for the

life of one Mary Penniman in an undivided one-twelfth

(12) part of that part of said land in San Francisco lying

on the northeasterly side thereof and which said part is

and was of a uniform width of thirteen (13) feet and nine

(9) inches by one hundred and sixty-five (165) feet in

length and fronting on said Market Street and running

back to said Stevenson Street, was then owned by one

Robert Penniman and one Walter Penniman, and said

defendants are informed and believe, and therefore aver

the ownership of the said San Francisco land continued

to be as hereinabove set out during all of the times

referred to in said complaint prior to a certain day, to

wit, the twentieth (20th) day of July, in the year 1892,
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on which said day the estate of said Robert and Walter

Penniman was granted and conveyed to the said Joseph

A. Donohoe ; and said defendants are informed and

believe and therefore aver that upon the investigation as

aforesaid of the title to the said San Francisco property

and the disclosure of its condition as aforesaid it was

agreed and conceded by all of the parties to and by all

of the parties in any way interested in said contract of

sale and purchase that the title to the said San Francisco

property was not good and could not be granted or con-

veyed by the said plaintiff to the said Edgar Mills, and

thereupon, to wit, on the twenty-seventh (27th) day of

October, in the year 1891, the said contract of sale and

purchase was abandoned and rescinded by the consent

of all the parties thereto and that never at any time there-

after during the lifetime of the said Edgar Mills did the

said plaintiff make any claim thereon or thereunder, upon

or against the said Edgar Mills, or ask that the same be

enforced or further carried out in any way or manner

whatever, and that therefore the said plaintiff should not

be heard to make or maintain any claim on or under the

said contract, or be permitted to seek in any manner to

enforce the same :

Wherefore, said defendants demand judgment against

the said plaintiff that he take nothing and that they do

have and recover of the said plaintiff their costs in this

behalf incurred.

DEiNSON & DeHAVEN,
Attorneys for Defendants.

RICHD. BAYNE,
Of Counsel.
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State of California, )

City and County of San Francisco,
j

S. Prentiss Smith, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says : That he is one of the defendants referred to in

the foregoing- answer ; that he has read said answer and

knows the contents thereof; that the same is true of his

own knowledge, except as to the matters therein stated

on information or belief, and as to those matters that he

believes it to be true.

S. PRENTISS SMITH,

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 23d day of

November, in the year 1895.

(seal.) JAMES MASON,
Notary Public, in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed :] Answer to Fourth Amended Complaint.

Due service of copy of the within on us is hereby ad-

mitted this November 25th, 1895.

VINCENT NEALE,

SIDNEY V. SMITH,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Filed November 25th, 1895, as °f November 19th,

1895, by order of Court pursuant to stipulation of parties.

W. J. Costigan, Clerk.
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No. 11,878.

In the United States Circuit Court, Ninth Judicial Dis-

trict, Norther7i District of California.

ALBERT E. GRAY,
Plaintiff,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH and others,

Executors, etc.,

Defendants.

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

From the evidence adduced upon the trial of this

cause I find the following facts :

I.

On the 1 6th day of September, A. D. 1891, Edgar

Mills, the decedent named in plaintiff's complaint herein

and the testator under whose will the defendants are

acting as executors, executed and delivered unto Albert

E. Gray, the plaintiff herein, a document which was and

is in the words and figures following

:

" 16 Sept., 1891.

" To Albert E. Gray, Esq.,

" 405 California Street, San Francisco.

" Dear Sir :

—

"Provided you take the following described property,

situate in Tehama and Colusa Counties, as part payment

up to one hundred and fifteen thousand dollars ($115,-

000), I hereby make you an offer to purchase the lot
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situate on the south side of Market Street in this city,,

extending through to Stevenson Street, lying on the east

side of and adjoining Central Park and running east

therefrom eighty-two and one-half feet (82^ feet) by a

depth of one hundred and sixty-five feet (165 feet), at

the price of two hundred and forty thousand dollars

($240,000), namely :

In Cash $125,000

And in land as above 115 000

$240,000

This offer to hold good for three weeks from this date to

enable you to inspect my said lands. Said lands de-

scribed over page.
" Yours, etc.,

" EDGAR MILLS."

The following appears on back of above letter

:

"in couusa county.

My ranch near Colusa Junction, consisting of 2400 acres,

known as Eureka Ranch, at $20.00 $ 48,000

Land at Sites consisting of 3281^ acres at $5.00 , 16,400

" IN TEHAMA COUNTY.

My ranch known as Ehorn Ranch, consisting of 1060

acres, at 30 31, 800

Four hundred acres belonging to me close adjoining

Kirkwood, at 20 8,000

And 1280 acres belonging to me a few miles west of

Kirkwood, at 15 19,200

$115,400

Say 8421 at $115,000.
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" My agent, Mr. Houx, will show you the above lands

and give you sectional descriptions.

" Yours, etc.,

"EDGAR MILLS."

II.

On the 6th day of October, A D. 1891, the plaintiff

executed and delivered unto the said Edgar Mills a doc-

ument which was and is in the words and figures follow-

ing, to wit

:

"San Francisco, October 6th, 1891.

" Edgar Mills, Esq.,

" Pacific Union Club, San Francisco.

" Dear Sir :

—

"Referring to your letter to me of the 16th Septem-

ber, 1 89 1, wherein you say: 'Provided you take the fol-

lowing described property situate in Tehama and Colusa

Counties as part payment up to one hundred and fifteen

thousand dollars ($115,000), I hereby make you an offer

to purchase the lot situate on the south side of Market

Street, in this City, extending through to Stevenson

Street, lying on the east side of and adjoining Central

Park, and running east therefrom eighty-two and one-

half feet (82^ feet) by a depth of one hundred and sixty-

five feet (165 feet), at the price of two hundred and forty

thousand dollars ($240,000), namely :

In Cash $125,000

And in land as above 1 15,000

$240,000

" 'This offer to hold good for three weeks from this



3° Albert E. Gray vs.

date to enable you to inspect'my said lands, thereinafter

described, 'I now and hereby accept your said offer in the

said letter contained.

"I am, most respectfully,

"ALBERT E. GRAY."

III.

And on the 7th day of October, A. D. 1891, the said

Edgar Mills and the plaintiff herein executed and deliv-

ered a certain document, which was and is in the words

and figures following, to wit

:

" San. Francisco, Oct. 7th, 1891.
" Dear Sir :

—

" I hereby accept the modification in the terms of your

letter to me of the 16th September, 1891, now made by

you, namely, that you pay,

In cash, one hundred and twenty thousand dollars. $ 120,000

And in land (as specified in your said letter) 1 15,000

$235,000
"Yours respectfully,

"ALBERT E. GRAY.
-To Edgar Mills, Esq,

" Union Pacific Club, San Francisco."

"I hereby confirm the above and direct you to forward

abstract of title to me or my attorney herein.

"EDGAR MILLS."

The property referred to by the said several documents

as situated on the south side of Market Street, etc., was

and is properly described as follows

:
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" Commencing at a point on the southeasterly line of

Market Street distant thereon 275 feet northeasterly

from the point of intersection of the northeasterly line

of Eighth Street, formerly Price Street, with the said

southeasterly line of Market Street ; running thence

northeasterly along said last mentioned line 82 feet 6

inches ; thence southeasterly parallel with Eighth Street

165 feet to the northwesterly line of Stevenson Street
;

thence southwesterly along said last named line 82 feet

6 inches, and thence northwesterly 165 feet to the place

of beginning."

IV.

The title to said Market Street lot was from a date

prior to the commencement of the negotiations between

plaintiff and Edgar Mills until some time in the year

1892, vested in Jos. A. Donohoe, Sr.

On the 4th day of September, A. D. 1891, a paper

writing was executed by one J. H. Cavanagh and Albert

E. Gray, the plaintiff herein, which was and is in the

words and figures following, to wit

:

" Sept. 4, 1891.

"To Albert E. Gray,

" Dear Sir :

—

" With reference to the Market Street property be-

tween 7th and 8th Streets having a frontage of S/j4

feet on Market, extending through to Stevenson Street

in the rear, which I have for sale, being at present the

property of Joseph Donohoe, it is understood and agreed

between us that we divide equally between us the com-
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mission payable on the sale thereof or the net excess be-

tween the selling price and the price your customer (or

buyer introduced through your efforts) may give in cash

or partly in cash and part in real estate exchange.

"J. H. CAVANAGH.
"ALBERT E. GRAY."

V.

On the 7th day of October, A. D. 1891, the plaintiff

herein and the said Cavanagh executed a paper writing,

which was and is in the words and figures following, to

wit

:

"San Francisco, Oct. 7th, 1891.

"To J. H. Cavanagh,

" Dear Sir :

—

" With reference to my contract with Mr. Edgar Mills

wherein he agrees to purchase Mr. Donohoe's property

on the south side of Market Street, having a frontage of-

eighty-two and a-half feet by one hundred and sixty-five

feet between Seventh and Eighth Streets, as appears in

his letter of contract of the sixteenth of September last,

I hereby acknowledge that you hold an equal interest

with myself in said contract. The lands mentioned in

said contract to be granted and conveyed to us as ten-

ants in common ; and I hereby authorize you to act for

us both in your negotiations with Mr. Donohoe. I have

duly accepted Mr. Edgar Mills' letter of contract of the

1 6th ulto. as above.
" Yours truly,

" Approved :
" ALBERT E. GRAY.

"J. H. CAVANAGH."
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VI.

That on the 18th day of September, 1891, one J.
H.

Cavanagh made a written offer to said Donohoe for the

purchase of said Market Street property, which written

offer was in the words and figures following :

"San Francisco, Septr. 18th, 1891.

" Joseph A. Donohoe, Esq.,

" San Francisco.

" Dear Sir :

"Regarding sale of your property, 82^x165 feet be-

tween 7th and 8th Streets, I hereby offer you firm $160,-

000.00 cash. I cannot wait for letter, and as I stated to

you to-day must have answer by cable as I have only a

limited time and wish to reiterate what I said to you to-

day. This is a good price for the property simply

because I can get you better property for less money.

Please let me hear from you at your earliest convenience

and much oblige,
" Very truly,

"J. H. CAVANAGH."

That said offer in writing was delivered by said Cava-

nagh to one Joseph A. Donohoe, Jr., who was the son

and agent of Joseph A. Donohoe, Sr. That said Joseph

A. Donohoe, Sr., was absent from the State of Califor-

nia. That said Joseph A. Donohoe, Jr., reported the

fact of said offer to his father, who in writing signed by

him authorized his said son to sell said land for one hun-

dred and sixty-five thousand ($165,000) dollars and for

one-half the taxes of the current year.
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That said Donohoe, Jr., did not know anything of the

resources or responsibility of the said Cavanagh, and

therefore would not enter into a contract to sell to him

or whereby Cavanagh might go upon the street and seek

a purchaser, but demanded to know of said Cavanagh

the name of the proposed purchaser, and was thereupon

given the name of Edgar Mills. The said Donohoe, Jr.,

as agent of Donohoe, Sr., then executed a paper, which

he placed in an envelope addressed to J. H. Cavanagh

and delivered to him the document which was and is as

follows :

"San Francisco, October 7th, 1891.

"I hereby agree to sell my lot 82^ feet on south side

of Market Street, immediately east and adjoining the

Central Park between 7th and 8th Streets and running

through to Stevenson Street in the rear, to Edgar Mills

for one hundred and sixty-five thousand dollars U. S.

gold coin ($165,000), payable on delivery of deed after

examination of title, say fifteen days from date. The

purchaser to pay half of the taxes for the current year.

"JOS. A. DONOHOE, Jr.,

"per J. A. DONOHOE, Jr."

That the signatures to said instrument were intended

for and meant Joseph A. Donohoe, Sr., per Joseph A.

Donohoe, Jr.

On the 8th day of October, 1891, said Edgar Mills was

first informed that the said Market Street lot in San

Francisco belonged to the said Joseph A. Donohoe, Sr.,

and was at the same time informed of the execution by
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said Joseph A. Donohoe, Sr., of the said written offer

upon the part of said Donohoe, Sr., to sell to him, the

said Edgar Mills, the said Market Street lot, and which

offer was dated on October 7th, 1891, and is hereinabove

set out in this finding in full.

VII.

On the 28th day of December, A. D. 1891, the said

J. H. Cavanagh executed and delivered unto his wife,

Amelia Cavanagh, a certain document, which was and is

in the words and figures following, to wit

:

" 7°7/^ Larkin Street, San Francisco.

" December 28, 1891.

" In consideration of the love and affection I bear my

dear wife Amelia, I hereby assign to her the contract be-

tween myself and Joseph A. Donohoe dated October 7th,

1 89 1, whereby he agrees to sell to my nominee, Mr.

Edgar Mills, his lot 82^ feet on south side of Market

Street for $165,000 (a copy of which contract is hereunto

annexed marked " A "), and all my right, title, interest,

benefit, claim and demand therein or thereunder to hold

unto my said wife, her heirs, executors, administrators

and assigns, absolutely and for her own sole use and

benefit.

"J. H. CAVANAGH.

" Witnesses to the signing hereof by said J. H. Cavanagh :

" Max Blum, 709 Larkin Street.

" Joe A. Patterson, 707^ Larkin St., San Francisco."
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VIII.

And on the 4th day of September, A. D. 1893, tne sa^
Amelia Cavanagh executed and delivered to the plaintiff

herein a certain instrument in writing, of which the fol-

lowing is a true copy, to wit

:

" I, Amelia Cavanagh, formerly the wife and now the

widow of J. H. Cavanagh, deceased, formerly of San

Francisco, do hereby for value received assign, transfer

and set over to Albert E. Gray, of Lasata Ranch, near

Oroville, all my interest, claim and demand against the

estate of Edgar Mills, deceased, for damages for breach

of contract by said Edgar Mills, deceased, dated Octo-

ber 7th, 1 89 1, for the purchase of the lot formerly owned

by Joseph A. Donohoe on Market Street near Central

Park.

" In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and

seal this 4th day of September, 1893.

"A. CAVANAGH (Seal).

"Signed, sealed and delivered by the above named

Amelia Cavanagh in the presence of J. Whiteside, driver

for Wilson's Stable, Raymond."

IX.

That said Edgar Mills never accepted the proposition

contained in the said document executed by Joseph A.

Donohoe, Sr., under date of October 7th, 1891, and neith-

er said Mills nor said Cavanagh, nor said Gray ever

complied or offered to comply with the terms of said of-

fer. The plaintiff had no right, title or interest of, in or
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to the said Market Street lot, save such as he may have

gained by or through the several documents hereinbefore

in these findings set out by copy, and no contract existed

between plaintiff and defendants' testator for the pur-

chase of said Market Street lot or otherwise, except as

contained in the foregoing several documents set out in

findings I, II and III.

X.

The lands mentioned in the said letter from Edgar

Mills to plaintiff dated September 16th, 1891, and set out

in finding number I herein, are the same as the lands in

Colusa and Tehama Counties, State of California, de-

scribed in the second paragraph of the fourth amended

complaint herein.

XI.

Plaintiff never paid or offered to pay to said Joseph A.

Donohoe, Sr., the purchase price demanded by the said

Donohoe for the said Market Street Ofot, and did not at

any time have the means or ability to pay the said Don-

ohoe the purchase price demanded by him for the said

Market Street lot, and plaintiff never took any steps to

procure for the said Edgar Mills the title to the said

Market Street lot other than by procuring the written

offer of said Donohoe dated October 7th, 1891, which

offer is fully set out in finding number VI.

On the 23d day of November, A. D. 1891, the said

Jos. A. Donohoe, Sr., executed three several deeds of

said Market Street lot, one to Edgar Mills, one to J. hL

Cavanagh and one to the plaintiff Albert E. Gray, and
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tendered the same to the said several grantees respec-

tively, and demanded of each of them the payment of the

said sum of $165,000.00 in gold coin, and one-half of the

current year's taxes, and each of said grantees refused to

accept such deed or to pay the said purchase price de-

manded. The said deeds were tendered and said price

demanded by said Jos. A. Donohoe, Sr., under the

advice of his counsel, for the sole purpose of cutting off

and determining any supposed or possible right on be-

half of said Mills, Cavanagh and Gray, or either or any

of them, in or to said Market Street lot growing- out of

the written offer made by him under date of October

7th, 1891, and set out by copy in finding No. VI above,

and to free his said Market Street lot from any equities

on the part of any of said persons, and so that he might

sell said lot with an unquestioned title to another pur-

chaser.

XII.

That after the execution by the said Joseph A. Dono-

hoe, Sr., of said document of October 7th, 1891, the

said Donohoe delivered an abstract of title of said Mar-

ket Street lot to the attorneys of the said Mills, Messrs.

Jarboe and Jarboe, who after examination thereof, on

October 23d, 1891, wrote, signed and delivered to said

Mills the following letter :

"San Francisco, October 23d, 1891.

" Edgar Mills, Esq.,

" Dear Sir :

—

" As soon as we had completed the examination of
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that part of the abstract furnished us for the Market

Street purchase, we sent it to our searcher for continua-

tion, with a special reference to certain defects that were

disclosed by the original abstract.

"The defects disclosed by the abstract, as Mr. Paul

Jarboe explained to you, are as follows :

" The title comes through two different deraignments,.

one including the westerly sixty-eight feet and nine

inches, and the other the easterly thirteen feet and nine

inches.

" The title to the sixty-eight feet and nine inches

seemed to us to be good on the original examination
;

but the title to the thirteen feet and nine inches seemed

to be bad for this reason : a deed was made to a woman

named Margaret Martin in the lifetime of her husband,

purporting to convey the property to her ; but, from the

manner in which the deed was drawn, it gave the title

presumptively to her husband instead of to herself, and

made it necessary to get a deed either from her husband

or through his estate.

" A probate proceeding was commenced on the estate

of William Martin, which, if it had been carried out,

would probably have revoked the defect ; but that estate

is still pending in the Probate Court and undisposed of

and undistributed.

" Mr. Hyde, or other grantors of Mr. Donohoe, seem

to have found this difficulty out themselves, and have

gotten in deeds from a number of persons claiming to

be heirs of William Martin, but, as the Probate record is

silent on this subject, there is no evidence as to who
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were the heirs of William Martin, whether they were

adults or minors, whether the creditors have been paid,

or whether all the heirs have united in the deeds.

" We called the attention of Mr. Donohoe, Jr., to this

matter on Tuesday, and asked him to look among his

papers and see if he could find any opinion of his attor-

ney on the subject, or any documents throwing light on

the subject.

" On the same day he returned, giving us merely one

deed. He, himself, knew nothing of the difficulty, but

seems to think the title was reoorted to his father as

perfect.

" He, however, referred us to Mr. Galpin, who is now

doing business for his father.

" We saw Mr. Galpin this morning and explained to

him the difficulty and he has taken the abstract and

promised to see us again during the day upon the sub-

ject.

" Of course, having reported a defective title, under the

rule of law we have complied with your obligation as to

the fifteen days, and time does not run against you now

until the vendor is able to remove our objections and

our report was made to Mr. Donohoe long within the

necessary time.

" Under the law as it now stands, the wife has to join in

a conveyance of the community property of her husband.

" Mr. Donohoe, Jr., has a power of attorney from his

father, but none from his mother. If the sale goes

through, the parties will have to sign the deeds them-

selves.
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n Mr. Donohoe suggested, the other day, that a deed

should be prepared and sent to New York for execution,

but we have not seen fit to follow this course, because

we do not wish to be deemed to admit that the title is a

good one.

"As soon as Mr. Galpin reports to us we will make a

further report to you, and hope that that will be during

the course of the afternoon.

"Your rights are in no way prejudiced, as above writ-

ten, on account of the fact that we have reported on the

title within time.
" Yours very truly,

"JARBOE & JARBOE."

On the 27th day of October, in the year 1891, Jarboe

& Jarboe wrote, signed and delivered to said Mills the

following letter :

"San Francisco, Oct. 27, 1891.
" Edgar Mills, Esq.

"Dear Sir:

—

"We have just seen Mr. Galpin, to whom we were

referred by Mr, Donohoe, in regard to the piece of prop-

erty on Market Street.

" They admit that our objection is well taken, and sug-

gest a plan for straightening the title which will take at

the shortest 60 days. It will probably be somewhat

longer than this, however.

" They are willing to adopt any methods of correction

which we may submit to them, but the defects are such

that it will hardly be possible to cure them in much

shorter time than 60 days.
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" Waiting to hear your wishes upon the subject before

proceeding further with the matter, we are

" Very respectfully yours,

"JARBOE & JARBOE."

Subsequently and prior to November 18th, 1891, the

said Jarboe & Jarboe rejected the title to the Market

Street lot and reported to said Mills that said title was

fatally defective, and thereupon the attorneys of said

Mills reported to Mr. Gray, the plaintiff, as follows

:

That they had reported to him, Mills, a fatal defect in

the title, in consequence of which said Mills had definitely

decided not to "assume" the purchase, and had given

notice to said Donohoe, Sr., to that effect, whereupon

plaintiff expressed his surprise and said he would see Mr.

Donohoe, Sr., about the matter. The said title was not

in reality defective, and the said Donohoe had a good,

marketable, sufficient and clear title, deducible of record,

to said Market Street lot, although at the time when the

said Mills objected to such title said Donohoe and his

attorneys conceded that the objections thereto made by

the attorneys for said Mills were valid, and that said title

was in fact defective.

XIII.

The plaintiff herein has not suffered loss or damage

through or by any act or omission of the said Edgar

Mills as alleged in plaintiff's fourth amended complaint

herein or otherwise, in the sum of one hundred and

twenty-eight thousand four hundred ($128,400) dollars,

or in any sum whatever.
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XIV.

It is not true that on the 27th day of October, A. D.

1 89 1, or at any other time, the contract of sale and pur-

chase made between plaintiff and the said Edgar Mills

was abandoned or rescinded by the consent of all the

parties thereto.

And as conclusions of law from the foregoing facts the

Court decides :

1st. That said plaintiff was never at any time able or

ready to convey, or cause to be conveyed, to the said

Edgar Mills the said Market Street lot according to the

terms of the contract set out in the complaint.

2nd. That the plaintiff has suffered no damage, and

is not entitled to any relief in this case.

3rd. That the defendants are entitled to judgment for

costs.

Let judgment be so entered.

JOSEPH McKENNA,
Judge.

[Endorsed:] Filed September i6th, 1896. W. J.

Costigan, Clerk. By W. B. Beaizley, Deputy Clerk.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, Northern

District of California, Ninth Circuit.

ALBERT E. GRAY,
Plaintiff,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH, FRANK
MILLER and WILLIAM P.

HARRINGTON, Executors of

the last Will and Testament of

Edgar Mills, Deceased,

Defendants.

Bill of Exceptions.

Be it remembered that on the 16th day of September,

1896, the Court rendered its decision in the above en-

titled action in the words and figures following :

(Here follows true copy of findings.)

Evidence, both oral and documentary, was introduced

by and on behalf of the respective parties to the said ac-

tion upon the issues raised by the pleadings therein, and,

among others, the following :

William Minto was a witness called and sworn on be-

half of the plaintiff, and testified that his business was

that of a surveyor—civil engineer ; that it was such in

the year 1891 ; that he was employed a greater part of

the time in reporting on land values ; that he so reported

for the Savings Union and State University, and for in-
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dividuals ; that he had been in that business about ten

(10) years; that in the fall of 1891 he visited, for the

purpose of appraising and making- a report thereon, the

lands referred to and described in the complaint in said

action ; that he took with him a Mr. Houx, who was

farming a part of Mr. Mills' lands in the same neighbor-

hood ; that he examined the said lands and appraised

the values of the same, and stated his valuation of the

particular tracts, and also testified that he made the said

examination and appraisement by the instructions or or-

ders of the Savings Union.

Jos. A. Donohoe, Jr., was also a witness who was called

and testified on behalf of the said plaintiff (among other)

as follows : testified that the reason why he, witness,

made the memorandum of date October 7th, 1891, exe-

cuted by him on behalf of his father offering to sell the

property referred to in the complaint as the Market

Street lot, for $165,000 and half the taxes, run on its face

in favor of Edgar Mills, although Cavanagh had made

the offer to buy the said property, was that he, witness,

did not know Cavanagh ; did not know anything about

him, or anything about his resources, and that he, wit-

ness, would not have given him, Cavanagh, that piece of

land for sale at that time, and give Cavanagh a line on

it, and have him take it out on the street ; that he, wit-

ness, preferred to be the judge of who was buying it, and

insert that name in ; that in other words, it was a sale to

Edgar Mills, or nobody ; that he, witness, asked him,

Cavanagh, for the name of the purchaser which he, wit-

ness, inserted in that agreement purposely ; that as he,
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witness, said before, he would not have given Mr. Cava-

nagh a line on that lot without having some reservation

of that kind ; that after he, Cavanagh, told witness Mr.

Mills, witness made some remark that he, Mills, was a

very old friend of his father, and that after some further

conversation Cavanagh said :
" I am not dealing with Mr.

Mills
; it is a friend of mine ;" that witness asked him

who it was, and he said a Mr. Gray, and he offered to

bring him in and introduce him ; that witness thought one

broker was enough at the time, and asked Cavanagh to

produce some authority or some agreement between Mr.

Mills and Gray, to show that they were working in con-

junction
; and that Cavanagh went out and brought in

some letter, the contents of which witness did not re-

member.

Further, that witness was not informed by Cavanagh

that Mills was buying this property (the Market Street

lot) from Mr. Gray, so far as he could recall ; that Cav-

anagh made witness a written offer, which witness sub-

mitted to his father and got his confirmation or authority

to sell for a certain price by cable ; that witness told Cav-

anagh that he would not sell to him, and when Cavanagh

asked for a written agreement witness asked him the

name of his principal, and he said Edgar Mills, and then

witness put it in that paper ; that witness only handed

him, Cavanagh, that paper (to wit, the memorandum of

October 7th) after Cavanagh assured witness by some

writing that he was working in conjunction with Mr.

Gray.

Oliver Ellsworth was also called and was sworn,
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and testified on behalf of said plaintiff (among other) as

follows : That on the 24th day of November, in the year

1 89 1, he tendered to the said Cavanagh and to the said

plaintiff respectively, deeds executed to them severall}'

by the said Donohoe, Sr., and his wife, and conveying

said Market Street lot, and demanded of the said

grantees in the said respective deeds the payment of the

consideration therein set out, to wit, $165,000 ;and that

each of said respective grantees refused to pay the said

consideration, and that in consequence neither of said

deeds was ever delivered to either of said grantees.

The said several tenders of said respective deeds was

shown by the evidence to have been made by the said

Ellsworth on behalf of and under authority from the said

Jos. A. Donohoe, Sr., and not otherwise.

There was no other evidence upon the issue as to the

ability of plaintiff to pay Jos. A. Donohoe, Sr., for his

Market Street lot.

In the printed argument signed and presented herein

by the attorneys for the plaintiff on his behalf, among

other, are the following paragraphs :
* * * " Upon

this payment and conveyance by Mills to Gray depended

Gray's ability to produce Donohoe's deed, depended so

utterly and wholly that Mills' refusal to go amounted to

an absolute prevention of Gray's performance. Every

fact in the case points to the moral conviction that if

Mills had lived up to his contract by paying his $ 1 20,000.00

and conveying to Gray the country lands, Gray would

have been abundantly able to carry out his part of the

compact. Herein lay Gray's ability : in the anxious
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readiness of Donohoe to live up to his engagement, in

the fact that Mills' land and money, which under the

contract belonged equitably and potentially to Gray,

would have enabled him to pay Donohoe and procure

the deed. * * * Morally, we know that if Mills had

not retired the transaction would have gone smoothly

through, and that Mills' conduct was the sole cause of

its defeat. Morally, we know that Gray could not fulfill

his engagement unless Mills on his part fulfilled the ob-

ligations arising from his acceptance of the benefits of

the transaction and his knowledge of the facts."

There was no evidence whatever that plaintiff could

have procured a loan for any amount whatever, even had

he owned Mills' country lands, or had the same been

conveyed to him.

There was no evidence whatever that plaintiff had any

financial ability, or that it would have been possible for

him to have raised an amount sufficient to pay the price

asked by Donohoe for the Market Street lot, or that he

had completed any arrangement to procure a loan for

any amount whatever upon the lands which, under the

contract alleged in the complaint, Mills was to convey to

him in exchange for the Market Street lot.

The plaintiff now excepts to the decision of the Court

that the plaintiff did not at any time have the means or

ability to pay Joseph A. Donohoe, Sr., the purchase

price demanded by him for the Market Street lot, and as

grounds of said exception states that said finding was

not supported by the evidence.
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And because the foregoing does not appear of record,

the plaintiff has in due time prepared and served on de-

fendant this his bill of exceptions, and asks that the same

may be settled and allowed by the Court.

The foregoing bill of exceptions is allowed.

Dated October 30th, 1896.

JOSEPH McKENNA, Judge.

[Endorsed:] Filed October 30th, 1896. W.J. Costigan,

Clerk.

Petition for Writ of Error, filed February 12, 1897.

Assignment of Errors, filed February 12, 1897.

Order allowing Writ of Error, filed February 12, 1897.

Bond approved, filed February 12, 1897.

Certificate to Transcript, certified March 9, 1897.

Writ of Error and Answer thereto, filed February 12,

1897.

Citation, filed February 12, 1897.
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ALBERT E. GRAY,
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Vendor and Purchaser — Action for Damages for

Breach of Contract by Purchaser of Real Estate—Ready,

Able and Willing—When a Necessary Plea—Burden of

Proof.

Statement of the Case.

On October 7th, 1891, Mills, the defendants' testator, and

Gray, the plaintiff, agreed in writing that Mills should buy

from Gray a lot on Market street in San Francisco for

$235,000, and that Mills should pay therefor $120,000 in'

cash, and the balance by a conveyance by Mills to Gray of

lands in Colusa and Tehama Counties valued by Mills at

$115,000.

During the negotiations with Mills, Gray had not then

yet acquired title to the Market street lot, which was the

property of one Joseph Donohoe. Before closing with



Mills, however, Gray (through one Cavanagh) obtained an

agreement from Donohoe for the purchase of the lot at

$165,000, showing a profit to Gray, therefore, of $70,000,

namely, the difference between $165,000 and $235,000, as

above. This agreement was taken as running to Mills di-

rect, as Cavanagh's nominee. Prior to delivery and ac-

ceptance of abstract, Mills was made aware of all the cir-

cumstances attending the sale, including the fact that the

legal estate was still in Donohoe, and that a profit of $70,000

was coming to Gray out of the transaction. A copy of the

Donohoe document accompanied the abstract, thus bring-

ing the abstract of title down and complete to that date.

See the letter from Mills' attorneys, Jarboe & Jarboe,

wherein they refer to this document. See also Jarboe's

testimony. (Transcript, pages 34, 38.)

Mills accepted the abstract and submitted it to his attor-

neys. At no time prior to action did Mills or his attorneys

make any complaint, or suggestion even, of mala fides on

Gray's part, or that there was any doubt whatever of his

not being "ready, able or willing," at the proper time, to

give effect to and to carry out his agreement.

After a lapse of some time, however, Mills' attorneys

made an objection on an alleged specific defect in title, and

subsequently gave notice to plaintiff, on behalf of their

client, that this defect in title was fatal and that Mills un-

qualifiedly refused to proceed with the purchase. This was

the " breach," and the only reason given therefor.

In the Court below the title was proved to be good ; the

objection to title raised by Mills' attorney was declared to

be not wT
ell taken, and the breach and renunciation of the

contract by Mills was held to be without excuse. This,

then, practically was the whole point in contention, and de-

cided in favor of plaintiff. The Court, however, held that

the plaintiff must lose, notwithstanding this finding, be-

cause he failed to show that he had the ability to perform,

or, as the Court expressed it, the "independent ability " to

perform, apart from any benefit to be derived on comple-

tion through the purchase money and land exchange com-

ing to him from Mills on completion.



We contend that the plaintiff not only won on the merits,

but that the Court erred in ruling that the plaintiff must

show " independent ability," or indeed (time of perform-

ance not being due at the date of breach) any ability what-

ever. We propose to show that a " breach of contract by

one party before time of performance is due " not only ab-

solves the other party from making tender or offer of per-

formance (as in the case in a breach after time for per-

formance), but waives performance itself and the necessity

of averring and proving the ability to perform.

Thus, then, the decision of the Court below was based upon

one proposition only : that the evidence failed to show that

Gray was ever able or ready to convey to Mills the Market

street lot. To this question, therefore, this brief will be

particularly addressed ; but we shall, nevertheless, feel

Constrained to notice some of the positions which were

taken below by counsel for the defendants.

Specification of Errors.

Plaintiff has specified in his assignment of errors accom-

panying his petition for writ of error three errors which he

complains of, which are as follows :

1. The Court erred in deciding that the plaintiff did not

at any time have the means or ability to pay Joseph A.

Donohoe, Sr., the purchase price demanded by him for the

Market street lot.

2. The Court erred in giving judgment against the

plaintiff and for the defendants for their costs, because

Edgar Mills, having refused to take the title of the said

Market street lot, and having given notice to plaintiff that

because of such alleged defect in title he refused to carry

out his contract for the purchase from the plaintiff of said

Market street lot, became and was liable to the plaintiff for

such breach of his contract without regard to plaintiff's

ability to pay said Donohoe the purchase price demanded

by him for said Market street lot.

3. The Court erred in giving judgment against the

plaintiff and for defendants for their costs.
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Brief of the Argument.

The plaintiff contends that there are three separate and

distinct classes of "breach of contract," namely :

(a) A breach that is forced on one contracting party by

the other.

(b) A breach by default that one party to the contract

voluntarily incurs after time of performance has arrived.

(c) A breach by default that one party to a contract

voluntarily incurs before time for performance has arrived.

Plaintiff further contends that in an action for damages

for a breach of contract the question as to whether or no a

plaintiff must prove his "ability to perform" is governed

entirely by the further question : under which class (a, b, or

e) does the breach fall ? And plaintiff further contends

that case at bar falls under class c, and that he is under no

obligation to prove that he was ready, able and willing to

complete at the date of the breach, or that he could, but for

the breach, have been ready, able and willing to perform

his part of the agreement at some future day not then due

for performance.

Although plaintiff contends that he is under no obliga-

tion to prove " ability," by reason of defendant's renuncia-

tion of contract prior to time for performance, yet as the

question of plaintiff's "ability " was one of the main points

of attack in the Court below it seems expedient to refer to it

here. We propose to show therefore :

1. That if it could be shown that plaintiff's case came

within the class of breach that called for proof of ability,

then that he, in such a case, did prove his " ability " in the

Court below to the same extent and in the like manner as

in the several parallel cases reviewed below.

We next propose to show :

2. That under the facts of this case plaintiff is under no

obligation to prove ability, and that if the question of abil-

ity be raised at all it must be raised by the defendant in

his answer and amount to an allegation of fraud or mala

fides.
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I.

Gray's Ability to Perform.

The facts upon which this question arises may be thus

briefly stated. Prior to the date of the written agreement

between Gray and Mills, Cavanagh, who was interested

with Gray in the transaction, had offered to Joseph A.

Donohoe, the owner of the Market street lot, $160,000 for

it. Donohoe declined to give an " option" on the property

to Cavanagh, a stranger, but consented to accept Mills as

Cavanagh's nominee, and executed, on October 7th, 1891,

an instrument in writing agreeing to sell the lot to Mills

for $165,000. Mills was duly informed of all the facts

above detailed. Subsequently the abstract of title was

delivered to Mills, was accepted by him and submitted to

his attorne3r s. After some time and prior to November 18th,

1891, Mill's attorneys rejected the title, reported their rejec-

tion to Mills, and informed Gray that Mills had accordingly

decided not to buy the lot.

Gray accepted this notice as conclusive, and in due time

brought his action for damages occasioned by the breach.

The objection to the title was not properly taken, as it

was " a good, marketable, sufficient and clear title de-

ducible of record." (Findings, page 42, Transcript.) Upon
the rejection of his title, Donohoe, on his own behalf only,

tendered a deed to Mills and demanded payment, but Mills

refused to accept the deed. A "similar tender was made by

Donohoe to Gray and also to Cavanagh.

Upon this state of facts it is evident that the responsibil-

ity for the failure of the transaction rested with Mills. If

he had accepted the title as he should have done, Gray

could, without reference to his oivn or to Cavanagh's re-

sources outside of the transaction itself, have borrowed

$45,000 upon the $115,000 worth of country land which

he was to receive from Mills, and with the $120,000 to be

paid him by Mills could have paid for and obtained Dono-

hoe's deed to Mills, thus satisfying the contract. But the

Court below was of the opinion that, as a basis for a recov-
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ery, there should have existed in Gra}r an ability to per-

form quite independent of any resources which were to

come to him from Mills, and that it was incumbent upon

him, by positive proof, to establish the existence of such an

ability in himself. In opposition to this view we shall con-

tend that, even if it were necessary for the plaintiff to af-

firmatively establish an ability on his part to perform, such

ability need not be independent of the transaction, but was

sufficiently furnished by the circumstances of the transac-

tion itself and existed potentially in the fact that the cash

and property coming from Mills were more than sufficient

to satisfy Donohoe and enable Gray to fulfill his obligation.

And, further, upon a wider view, and with reference to

broader principles of law applicable to the relations of the

parties growing out of the facts, we shall contend that the

conduct of Mills dispensed entirely with any necessity on

Gray's part to have or to show any ability of performance

whatever at the time of the breach of the contract by Mills

or subsequently thereto.

The Doctrine of "Independent Ability."

That the ability to perform need not exist in either party

at the time of entering into a contract is established by

abundant authority. It is sufficient if the ability exists at

the time of performance. As to contracts for the sale and

purchase of land, it has been repeatedly held that the ven-

dor need not have the title at the time of making the con-

tract. As was said by the Supreme Court of Cali-

fornia in Easton vs. Montgomery, 90 Cal., 315: "It

is not necessary that the vendor should be the absolute

owner of the property at the time he enters into

an agreement of sale. An equitable title in land, or a

right to become the owner of land, is as much the subject

of sale as is the land itself, and whenever one is so situated

with reference to a tract of land that he can acquire the

title thereto, either by the voluntary act of the parties hold-

ing the title, or by proceedings at law or in equity, he is in

a position to make a valid agreement for the sale thereof."



And see Burke vs. Davies, 85 Cal., 114.

Anderson vs. Strassburger, 92 Cal., 40.

Joyce vs. Shafer, 97 Cal., 338.

Trask vs. Vinson, 20 Pick., 111.

Mitchell vs. Atten, 69 Tex., 70.

Pomeroy's Specific Performance, Sees. 341, 342.

Defendants have endeavored to make much of the cir-

cumstance that Gray obtained the contract from Donohoe
as not running to himself, but as running to Mills direct.

We fail to see h.ow this affects the question one way or the

other. Whatever Gray's equities and rights under that

document, the fact that Donohoe agreed to convey to Mills

at Gray's request surely was no barrier to Gray's fulfilling

his obligation. (We may say parenthetically that we fre-

quently omit mention of Cavanagh's name for the sake of

brevity and to avoid confusion and unnecessary detail

—

Gray acquired Cavanagh's right by assignment, as is duly

shown in the transcript, pages 31, 32.)

It must be remembered that at the date of the Donohoe
agreement negotiations were not only in progress between

Mills and Gray for the purchase of this property from
Gray, but had so far progressed that Mills at that time had
actually made Gray an open offer for a definite period not

then due—an offer that only required Gray's acceptance to

make a complete and binding contract. Mills surely then

can have no reason to complain, or to assert that he was in

any way hurt, or his rights or position in any way jeopar-

dized or affected by Gray's obtaining a contract from Dono-
hoe as running to Mills himself of land that was then the

subject of his offer, and that it was Gray's intention then

and there to convey or procure Donohoe to convey to Mills

himself. The cases are clear that if Gray had obtained a

contract from Donohoe running to a stranger, or if he had

obtained a mere verbal agreement, not enforcible under the

statute of frauds, or, indeed, if he held no agreement what-

ever, it would be sufficient, if at the time fixed for the per-

formance he could procure the signature of the owner to a

good and proper conveyance of the property to the pur-

chaser.
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For the purposes of the argument, therefore, of the

point we are now discussing, we shall assume that the

arrangement between Donohoe and Cavanagh, which
resulted in the agreement to convey to Mills, as Cav-

anagh's nominee, was the equivalent of a contract in favor

of Gray and gave Gray the right and power to produce a deed

running to Mills in fulfillment of his contract. Viewed in

this way, which is in accordance with the substance of the

transaction rather than of its form, Gray was the equitable

owner of the Market street lot, subject to an obligation to

pay its purchase price, which was thus in the nature of an
encumbrance to be removed by Gray before he could pro-

cure a deed and convey a good title to Mills. This encum-
brance differed in no way from any other lien or charge

upon the land of a vendor. And yet it has been held that

in the case of a contract to convey land free from encum-
brances, if the consideration money exceeds the amount of

the encumbrances on the land, the vendor, in suing for a

breach, need not prove that without the purchase price he

had an independent ability to pay off the encumbrances.

In such a case it is quite sufficient for him to show that

the purchase price would have cleared the land of its liens.

Rhorer vs. Bila, 83 Cal., 51.

Irvin vs. Bleakley, 67 Pa. St., 29.

The vendor of land encumbered by a mortgage presently

payable fulfills his obligations under the contract of sale if

he tenders his deed, at the same time offering to obtain a

release with the purchase price, and no Court would permit

the vendee to evade his contract where the purchase price

was more than sufficient to pay off the mortgage and the

vendor offered to make such payment contemjDoraneously

with the payment of the price and delivery of the deed.

AVebster vs. Kings County Trust Co., 80 Hun., 420.

There can be no difference in this respect between a sum
necessary to pay off an incumbrance and a sum necessary

to obtain the title from the owner, and if in the latter case

the vendor tenders his own deed, at the same time offering

to apply the purchase money to the payment of the owner
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and the procuring of the title, the vendee can raise no ob-

jection, especially if he has known throughout the trans-

action that this was to be the course of the business, and
has made no protest.

This was probably the position taken by the Court below

as to the $120,000 payable by Mills to Gray. If that sura

had been sufficient to obtain Donohoe's deed, we think the

Court would have had no difficulty in finding an ability in

Gray to perform. It is only as to the excess of $45,000

that the Court was unable to find any ability of payment in

Gray.

But if the principle be once admitted, and we see no

escape from it, that the ability to perform need not always

reside in each party, independently of the other, or

independently of the transaction itself, and that it may be

drawn from the consideration which is to be paid by one

party to the other, it would seem unreasonable to confine

the principle to those cases only where the consideration

which is to enable one party to perform is a money
payment, and to refuse to apply it to those cases where the

consideration is property having a money value and an

equal capacity with money to furnish ability of per-

formance.

In this case land valued at $115,000 was, as a part of the

transaction, to be conveyed to Gray. Why should the Court

have shut its eyes to the obvious fact that with this land

Gray could readily have obtained the excess wherewith to

pay Donohoe ? Why should the judicial mind refuse to

recognize a conclusion so clearly and irresistibly to be de-

duced from all the evidence ?

We maintain with confidence, and will presently show,

that it does not rest with us to prove that Gray had the

financial ability to perform, but if it did, we contend that a

sufficient ability in Gray to perform his part of the contract

grew out of the very facts of the transaction, and was proved

to a moral certainty by the evidence. This we claim is the

only practical, business-like view which can be taken of the

matter. We know that Gray was able to perform, because

we know that the consideration to be paid by Mills would
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have given him that ability, if he did not already possess

independent ability of his own.

There was no purchase money payable by Gray to Mills,

or to be tendered, therefore, under any circumstances or at

any time by Gray to Mills, and his ability to clear the Don-

ohoe title of the " equitable mortgage" (or "incumbrance"

of .$165,000 or $45,000, as the case may be) was at least

shown in the same way, and to the same extent as in Carpen-

ter vs. Holcomb, 105 Mass., 285 ; Smith vs. Lewis, 24 Conn.,

624 ; Howland vs. Leach, 11 Pick., 155, and numerous other

cases that might be quoted did necessity demand.

If Gray had proved at the trial that he was possessed of

his own "independent" property to the value of $115,000,

would it have been necessary for him further to prove that

he had actually raised the $45,000 thereon, and have put it

in his pocket or his bank before bringing suit ? Unques-

tionably the principle would have been allowed, as in the

cases above mentioned, that in showing that he had prop-

erty valued at $115,000, whereon he could raise $45,000, he

had shown sufficient presumptive evidence of his ability to

"procure a release" and that there was no necessity to disturb

his investments, to encumber his estate or to do any other

act for the mere purpose of performing a " useless cere-

mony" or preparing for actual performance after notice

from defendant that he would not perform. Wherein lies

the difference, in effect or in essence, between a vendor who
has property of his own whereon he could raise sufficient

money to clear incumbrances, and excess of property coming

to him on completion whereon he could raise the same

money and give a clear title on completion ?

That an independent ability need not reside in each party

to a contract is manifest in the class of cases where the

means of performance are almost necessarily furnished by

one party to the other. In large manufacturing contracts,

or contracts for the performance of work, where one party

agrees to pay in installments as the manufactured product

is delivered, or as the work progresses, the ability of the

manufacturer to produce, or of the contractor to go on with

the work, nearly always depends upon the payments to be
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made during the performance of the contract. Would it be

a good defense to a suit by a manufacturer, or a contractor,

that he had no ability to perform independent of the means
which were to be furnished him by the defendant ?

There is another answer to be given to the special reason

inducing the decision of the lower Court in this action.

Equitably, the country lands belonged to Gray, sub-

ject onty to his obligation to pay for them. Mills was his

trustee. They were part of Gray's assets and estate, and as

such, of themselves, vested in him an actual ability to pay

for and procure Donohoe's title.

And it is further to be considered that, even when ability

of performance must be shown, the term does not necessari-

ly imply actual and completed preparation, but rather the

possibility of getting ready within the proper time and

under the proper circumstances. Readiness includes abil-

ity, but ability does not include readiness. And while a

man must, in some cases, show that he was able, it does

not follow that he must show that he was ready.

This was made very clear in Smith vs. Lewis, 24 Conn.,

624, where this language was used by the Court

:

" It is not claimed that a tender of performance is neces-

sary to entitle the plaintiff to a recovery ; that was physical-

ly impracticable. But it is justly said that the proof will

show that the plaintiff was ' ready and willing ' to perform
;

and the disposition and ability being proved, the only

remaining objection relates to the degree of preparation.

The plaintiff had not his money in his formal possession
;

he had not cleared his own estate of incumbrances, and

had not prepared the title deeds of his property ; all these

preparations he had suspended in view of his arrangement

to meet the defendant, at which he expected some facilities to

be furnished by the defendant, not necessary but convenient

to himself ; but all which preparations he was able to com-

plete, and would have completed if the defendant had not

by his absence, under the peculiar circumstances of the

case, induced him to desist. By yielding to this induce-

ment, it is said, he has defeated his own right to a recovery.

The argument is that, although the plaintiff was naturally
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and rightfully convinced by the unexplained and evidently

contrived absence of the other contracting party, that the

latter was determined to break the contract, and was there-

by dissuaded from the nugatory and superfluous acts of tak-

ing his money into his manual possession, of procuring the

release of mortgages and actually drafting and acquiring

conveyance of his own real estate, he thereby fell short of

his duty ; that there is a legal and arbitrary standard of read-

iness, which is not to be affected by the absence of the other

party ; that the legal effect of absence is limited to the

mere excuse of the tender of performance ; that in cases

like the present the act of a party will not, as his declara-

tion would, justify the other in attaching to it an ordinary

and natural import ; that the act of absence, no matter

what its attendant circumstances or how clearly it reveals

a fraudulent intent to violate a contract, has a limited and

arbitrary legal effect ; and that a party who by such con-

duct actually causes another, not unreasonably, to suspend

the further performance of his contract can take advantage of

his own wrong and set up the defect of performance as a

breach of legal duty ; that the party claiming to be excused

must show that he is excused by the law, and not by the

other contracting party ; as if there were any legal duty

under a contract, which the parties may not dispense with

by their own voluntary acts.

" Notwithstanding some confusion in the decisions, arising

from the endeavor of Courts to apply, in this class of con-

troversies, the principles of common reason and justice to

the particular case, we have been unable to find that any

such legal and arbitrary standard of readiness exists as is

thus suggested, or that there is any prescribed legal effect

to the willful absence of a contracting party from the place

of performance, or that the extent of the necessary prepara-

tion may not vary with circumstances and the attitude of

the other party, or that a refusal will only excuse from

such covenant duties as it may render impossible to per-

form. On the contrary, we think it to be a demand of

justice that a willful refusal, with which a willful absence

is conceded to be identical, will excuse the performance of
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all acts, including formal acts of preparation, of which the

refusal fairly imports a renunciation and disavows the

acceptance ; in other words, of all acts, of the failure to do

which the premeditated conduct of the other party is, in a

just and reasonable sense, the direct and undeniable cause."

In Carpenter vs. Holcomb, 105 Mass., 285, a similar state

of facts was treated in the same way.

" The defendant insists that the plaintiff fails to show a

readiness to perform, at the time of her offer, because the

mortgage was not discharged. But readiness, within the

meaning of the rule, does not require full and complete

preparation at the moment when the offer is made. It is

not necessary that the plaintiff should come with the deed

and discharge of the mortgage duly signed, sealed, stamped
and ready for delivery, and with release of dower, when
the contract requires such release. It is enough, where
there is an unqualified refusal of the defendant shown, if

the plaintiff has the ability to procure a discharge and give

a good title. There was evidence here, taken in connection

with the known and usual mode of transacting such busi-

ness, the defendant's knowledge of the existence of the mort-

gage, its comparatively small amount, and the fact that both

parties recognized that it was then due, which would justify

the jury in finding that the defendant refused to accept

performance, and waived his right to require performance

.

The defendant's refusal to take a deed was unqualified and
absolute, not founded upon the existence of the incum-

brance, or a doubt of the plaintiff's ability to remove it if

necessary. The circumstances attending the refusal, and
the terms in which it was expressed, were such as to justify

the jury in inferring that to procure a discharge of the

mortgage, and make further proffer of it, would be but an
idle ceremony, which it was intended to dispense with, thus

leaving the defendant wholly at fault in not completing the

contract."

The application 'of these cases to the case at bar is

obvious.

The nature of Gray's connection with Donohoe's title was



14

known to Mills from the outset, and not objected to ; that,

in the language of Smith vs. Lewis, " he expected some
facilities to be furnished by" Mills, was understood and
apparent ; Mills broke away from the contract on the

ground of defect of title, and for no other reason ; and it

was evident that it would have been useless for Gray to

realize on other securities or sell other property in order to

receive $165,000 with which to get Donohoe's deed, and
put himself in a condition of actual preparation.

II.

A voluntary refusal by one party to a con-

tract to "be bound by the contract, made before

time for completion has arrived, is equivalent to

performance by the other party, and excuses him
from showing or having ability to perform.

This is a concise statement of a principle of law, clearly

established by the authorities, growing out of the very

nature of the contractual relation, explanatory of the appa-

rent confusion between some of the cases touching the

effect of a breach of contract upon the question of mutual

ability, and affording a broader basis than the considera-

tions which have preceded for the position of the plaintiff

in this action.

The general features of the relations of vendor and

vendee in contracts for the sale and purchase of land, as far

as concerns the matter of tender, breach, ability to perform,

and waiver of any or all of these, may be stated in this way :

The obligations of the buyer to pay and of the seller to

convey are mutual, dependent and concurrent ; neither

party can sue until the other is in default ; neither can put

the other in default until time for performance has arrived,

and then only by a tender of performance on his own part
;

and no such tender is good unless an ability and readiness

to perform actually subsist in the party making the tender.

As to the concurrent nature of the conditions and the

necessity for tender to put a party in default, see :
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Englander vs. Rogers, 41 CaL, 422.

Neis vs. Yocum, 9 Sawy., 24.

Dunham vs. Mann, 4 Seld., 513.

A. & E. Encyc. Law, Vol. 3, p. 910.

Barron vs. Frink, 30 CaL, 488.

And that a tender of performance to put a party in de-

fault must be in good faith, having behind it ability and

readiness, see :

Champion vs. Joslyn, 44 N. Y., 658.

Cal. C. C, Sections 1439, 1493, 1495.

This is the law when one party seeks to put the other in

default. Tender of performance is obligatory, and there

can be no valid tender of performance where ability to per-

* form is wanting. Proof of such ability is therefore essential.

But when a party to the contract puts himself in default by
his own act or announcement, as by a voluntary refusal to

perform, a different condition of things arises.

Superficially it would almost appear that a different doc-

trine was applied to the case of a breach before, to that of a

breach after time of performance ; or that a distinction was

drawn between the case where "one party would put the

other in default" and the case of a "voluntary refusal," but

a more careful study of the cases will show that the doctrine

applied is the same in all cases. It of necessity operates

differently—that is all.

* The rule, in such case, is that the voluntary refusal of the

party excuses all future acts to be done by the other party, but

does not excuse his past delinquency. The contractual relation

is, by the voluntary breach, eo instanti, dissolved and cut off.

Each party must thenceforth stand as to his rights and

duties under the contract precisely where he stands at the

moment, of the breach. As the tree falls, so shall it lie.

The party not guilty of the breach is given an immediate

right of action for the breach, and in his action he must

show that he was not in default of any of his obligations up
/ to the time of the breach, but he need not show any per-

formance of or ability or readiness to perform any of his

obligations not existing at the time of the breach, but which
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would have rested upon him at a time subsequent to the

breach if the breach had not occurred.

The innocent party is "entitled to have the contract kept
" open as a subsisting and effective contract, its unimpaired
" and unimpeached efficacy might not only be essential to

" his l interests,' but of the very essence of his capacity for

" performing his obligations under the contract."

Frost vs. Knight, L. R. 5 Exch., 322.

From all such subsequent obligations he is excused.

The breach is equivalent to their performance. He need

only show that he himself was not in default at the time of

the breach (Cal. C. C, Section 1440) ; as a matter of course

he could not be in default as to obligations or conditions

not then due or incumbent upon him.

In a case of voluntary renunciation it becomes necessary,

therefore, to inquire what obligations and conditions were,

at the moment of the breach, due and incumbent upon the

other party, and this must obviously depend upon the time

of the renunciation, whether it was before or after the time

of performance of the contract. If the renunciation occur

when or after performance has become due, both parties must

be ready and able to perform all the conditions ; if any

party is not able and ready to perform, he is in default and

cannot avail himself of a breach by the other. But if the

renunciation occur before the time of performance has ar-

rived, and we shall claim that that was the case here, it

occurs at a time when, as we have seen, neither party need

be ready or able, and therefore the party suing for the

breach need not show that he was then ready or able to

perform, or that he ever could have been ready or able to

perform. We shall proceed to show that this distinction is

amply supported by authority, and is not denied or shaken

by any of the cases cited in the Court below by defendants'

counsel ; moreover, that, in the light of this distinction, all

of the cases are harmonized, and the language which, in

some of them, when taken by itself, would seem to militate

against the views here contended for, is explained and lim-

ited so as to confirm the accuracy of the above statement of
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the law. In other words, we shall show that in every case

the decision has been in strict accordance with the distinc-

tions above alluded to.

The position here taken by us was well illustrated in

Lovelock vs. Franklyn, 8 Q. B., 371. The suit was upon a

contract made by the defendant for the assignment to the

plaintiff of a leasehold interest in land upon payment bjT

plaintiff at any time within seven years. Defendant as-

signed his interest to a stranger. The declaration failed to

aver plaintiff's readiness to accept an assignment, and, on

demurrer, it was urged (p. 374) that the declaration was

bad, because it did not appear therefrom that the plaintiff

had the means of purchasing the assignment. " At least,"

said defendant's counsel, " he should have averred that he

would have been ready at some time in the seven years."

" (Patterson, J. Must a man say, I now undertake to be

ready six years hence? He might die in the interval.")

" He ought to show his ability," was the answer of counsel.

" Ability at what time ?" asked the Court. " At the time

of the breach," said counsel. ''Ability at that time is not

essential to the maintenance of the action,'* was the final

r«ply of the Court, and the demurrer was overruled.

And so, in Parker vs. Pettit, 43 N. J. L., 517, the Court

said :
" Where the vendor, before the time for the per-

formance of his contract of sale, has disabled himself from

performing his contract, neither a demand of performance,

nor a tender of the consideration money, nor an averment

of the plaintiff's readiness to accept the goods and pay for

them, is necessary."

And in Howard vs. Daly, 61 N. Y., 374, the Court dis-

tinctly held it to be " a well settled rule that if a person

enters into a contract for service, to commence at a future

day, and before that day arrives does an act inconsistent

with the continuance of the contract, an action may be im-

mediately brought by the other party ; and, of course, with-

out averring performance or readiness to perform."

Crist vs. Armour, 34 Barb., 378, likewise recognized the

very distinctions upon which we are insisting. After ad-

mitting that in a contract of sale the obligations of the pir-
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ties are concurrent, and that neither can put the other in

default without performance or readiness to perforin on

his part, the Court held (pp. 386, 387) that, where one

party committed a breach by putting it out of his power to

perform, before the time of performance, the other was

excused from averring or proving a readiness to perform

on his own part.

In North vs. Pepper, 21 Wend., 638, the declaration

averred that the plaintiff's intestate agreed to sell a farm to

the defendant on May 1st ; that in January the defendant

gave notice to the vendor that he had made up his mind
not to take his farm ; and that defendant had ever since

failed to perform his agreement. There was no allegation

of readiness or ability on the part of plaintiffs or their

intestate. Objection was made on demurrer to the absence

of this allegation. Held, that upon well settled rules of

pleading the refusal by the vendee before the time of per-

formance dispensed with an offer or readiness on the part

of the vendor, and that the pleading was good.

So in Traver vs. Halsted, 23 Wend., 70, it was held that

a similar refusal by the vendee before the day of perform-

ance, but withdrawn by the day, would have operated as

an excuse for the vendor not to be ready and would have

discharged the vendor altogether.

The case of Grandy vs. Small, 5 Jones, N. C, 50, expressly

recognizes that in the event of a voluntas refusal by the

vendee readiness or ability in the vendor is excused.

" In some cases," said the Court, " not merely the offer,

but the readiness and ability, are dispensed with, and the

action may be maintained without the proof of either.

* * * The principle is this : If a party to an executory

contract make a performance impossible, or request the

other party not to hold himself in readiness, which is acted

on, and thereby he is prevented from being ready and able

at the day, he may maintain an action without proof of

readiness, ability or an offer."

To the same effect is Clarke vs. Craudall, 27 Barb., 78,

where the Court, after citing Traver vs. Halsted, said :

" The cases all speak one language, and are substantial
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applications of the rule that where the non-performance of

a condition precedent is occasioned by the act of a party,

either disqualifying himself for performing on his part, or

by his giving notice that he will not perform, the party

seeking his remedy is not bound to aver performance or

readiness to perform."

" It is unnecessary to allege performance, or readiness to

perform, on the part of the plaintiff, where it is shown that

the defendant has repudiated the contract, or affirmatively

refused to perform, or denies liability under it."

Riley vs. Walker, 6 Ind. App. Ct. Rep., 629.

In the decisions we have cited there is frequent refer-

ence to the leading cases of Hochster vs. De la Tour, 2 El is

& Bl., 678 ; Cort vs. Ambergate, 17 A. & E., 127 ; Fust vs.

Knight, L. R. 7 Ex., Ill, and other cases of the same com-
plexion, through all of which runs the principle that when
one party to a contract, before the time of performance has

arrived, voluntarily commits a breach by announcing that

he will not perform or by putting performance out of his

power, the voluntary breach is the equivalent of full exe-

cution and of the performance of all conditions by the oth-

er party, so wholly and absolutely that the other party may
sue at ouce for the breach, without waiting for the time of

performance to arrive, and may, without affecting his right

of action, proceed to disable hiinself from performance on his

own part : the manufacturer, by ceasing to make the product

called for by the contract ; the employee, by accepting an-

other engagement ; the one under contract to marry, by
marrying another. The cases of this class are all ex-

emplifications of the rule that voluntary breach, before per-

formance is due, excuses not only performance but ability to

perform, and, in this sense and to this extent, is the com-
plete and absolute equivalent of performance.

This should be enough in support of our contention that

whatever may be the rule as to the necessity of a proof of

ability in order to support a tender or offer made to put a

party in default, or where either party defaults after per-

formance has become due by both, a refusal by one party,
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before performance is due by eitber, gives an immediate

right of action to the other, which can be enforced without

proof of ability on his part, for the reason that he is not

bound to have ability at the time the breach occurs.

We shall proceed to show that the cases cited in the

Court below to maintain a contrary doctrine are only illus-

trations of our position. These are :

Nelson vs. Plimpton, 55 N. Y., 480.

The defendant had agreed to store 500,000 bushels of

grain for the plaintiffs. Plaintiffs sold to Lincoln & Co.

their right under this agreement to the extent of 100,000

bushels, and gave to Lincoln & Co. an order on defendant

to store 100,000 bushels. The order being presented to the

defendant, and demand being made by Lincoln & Co. for

the storage of 100,000 bushels, defendant refused. Lincoln

& Co. assigned to plaintiffs their claim for damages for the

refusal. The Court held that the defendant was not re-

quired by the terms of the contract to accept the order, and

that the refusal did not constitute a breach. This was de-

terminative of the whole case, and whatever else was said

by the Court as to default and tender and readiness was

dictum. But, even if this were not so, the case was one

where it was sought to put the defendant in default by a

demand. Under the rule above explained, therefore, the

demand should have been based upon ability in plaintiffs

or their assignee to produce the grain for storage. But it

was found that neither plaintiffs nor Lincoln & Co. had

grain to store. The demand on the defendant, therefore,

was not bona fide or effectual, and did not put the defend-

ant in default. What was said by the Court therefore, at

the opening of the opinion, although not necessary to the

decision, was but an expression of the law, as we have above

stated it, touching the necessity of ability behind an offer

of performance to put a party in default.

Bigler vs. Morgan, 77 N. Y., 312, was a case of a failure

of a party to perform, performance being due by both par-

ties. It was held, in accordance with the rule above stated,
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that the other party could not recover damages without

showing that he himself was not in default and that he had

the ability to perforin on his part.

In Lawrence vs. Miller, 86 N. Y., 131, we have the case

of a vendee, who had made a partial payment and defaulted

in the balance of the purchase price, seeking to recover

what he had paid. He was in default himself, had never

put the vendor in default by tender, and the vendor had

never refused to convey. The judgment for the defendant

under the circumstances cannot give much aid to the de-

fendants in this action or shake the correctness of the rules

of law on which we rely.

Eddy vs. Davis, 116 N. Y., 247, is of the same complexion

as Nelson vs. Plimpton, and illustrates the rule that a ten-

der to put a party in default must be accompanied by abil-

ity in the party making the tender—the plaintiffs having

called upon the defendant to pay at a time when they

themselves were without title.

Grandy vs. McCleese, 2 Jones, N. C, 142, is to the same

effect, and simply holds that a vendor of corn could not be

put in default without a demand backed by readiness and

ability to pay.

And Brown vs. Davis, 138 Mass., 458, merely holds that

an offer on the part of the vendee was necessary to put the

vendor in default.

That Mills' breach of contract occurred prior to the time

when completion and performance were due, and at a time

when it was not yet necessary for Gray to have ability to

perform, is clear. The contract between Mills and Gray

was silent as to the time of performance. Performance, on

either side, therefore, was not due until a reasonable time

after notice by one to the other that he was ready to per-

form. To this condition of things the language of the Su-

preme Court of this State in the similar case of Anderson vs.

Strassburger, 92 Cal., 40, is singularly applicable.

It was a case in which the defendant had agreed to con-

vey land of which he was not the owner, but which the

owner had agreed to sell to him. " The title," said the
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Court, speaking through Judge DeHaven, " was at all times

potentially in the defendant, and he was not in default

simply because no formal conveyance was made to him by
his grantor within the time allowed by plaintiff for exami-

nation of the title, nor was there any necessity for him to

acquire such title in order to carry out his agreement until

plaintiff notified him that he was ready to complete the

contract upon his part. The plaintiff was allowed ten days

within which to examine the title, and the agreement, in

view of all the facts surrounding the parties at the time it

was made, contemplated that defendant should receive

notice of the approval of the title he was to obtain from

Lees, or, if not approved as satisfactory, that he should be

informed of any objection which after such examination

plaintiff might have to the same, and he was entitled to a

reasonable time thereafter within which to perfect his tit'e

or remedy any defects discovered by plaintiff, and not un'.il

plaintiff gave such notice and offered to fully perform the

contract on his part upon receiving a perfect title, and the

refusal thereafter of defendant to convey in accordance

with the terms of his agreement, would plaintiff have the

right to rescind the agreement and recover the amount

paid by him thereon."

Thus we see that performance on Gray's part was not

due until he was called on by Mills to perform. Mills never

made any such demand, but, on the contrary, without mak-

ing it, and, consequently, before performance was due, re-

pudiated the cuntract and relieved Gray from going on with

it.

We think it should be obvious from the foregoing discus-

sion that the plaintiff's ability to perform in a suit for

breach of contract is part of his case, to be affirmatively

pleaded and proved by him only where, performance

being due, he has sought by a tender or offer of perform-

ance to put the defendant in default, or where performance

being due, the defendant has put himself in default. If, in

cases not coming within these two categories, the defendant

should question the plaintiff 's ability, it must be by way of

special defense, to be affirmatively pleaded and proved by
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the defendant, and going to the plaintiff's good faith in en-

tering into the contract at all.

" If," said the Supreme Court of California in Easton vs.

Montgomery, 90 Cal., 315, " the agreement is made by him
in good faith, and he has at the time such an interest in

the land, or is so situated with reference thereto that he

can carry into effect the agreement on his part at the time

when he has agreed so to do, it will be upheld." But of

Gray's good faith in this transaction there can be no doubt.

It was not until he had obtained the refusal of Donohoe's

land that he accepted Mills' offer. His contract with Mills

was based upon the control which he had obtained over the

Market street lot.

But further, if the defendants desired to impeach Gray's

ability to perform, they should have done so by affirmative

proof. This was the view taken by the House of Lords in Mac-

kay vs. Dick (6 App. Cases, 251), as also by the New York

Court of Appeals in Stokes vs. Mackay, 147 N. Y., 223. It was

contended there that, although a waiver of a tender of certain

b nds had been established, " it was incumbent upon Stokes

affirmatively to establish the fact that he was in a position

to redeem the bonds and able actually to deliver them to

Mackay" (p. 231). But the Court held (p. 233) that

" the plaintiff was not called upon to establish the fact that

had the defendants not waived a tender and a tender had

been necessary, he possessed ways and means to produce

and present the bonds for acceptance or refusal. Whatever

was the real condition of his finances, there was nothing to

warrant the inference of an inability to redeem the bonds,

and, if presumptions were to be indulged in, the presump-

tion of plaintiff 's ability to perform his agreement and to

have the means to do so obtained, until overcome by evi-

dence to the contrary. It is very clear, under the circum-

stances disclosed, if at all essential, that it was incumbent

upon the defendants to make out the fact, which they

wholly failed to establish, that the plaintiff was incapable

of redeeming the bonds for delivery."

The treatment of the case by the New York Court is in

strong contrast to the method pursued by the Court below
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an this case, in which, without any proof whatever upon the

subject, the Court simply presumed that neither Cavanagh
nor Gray could have purchased Donohoe's title, and found

affirmatively upon a point of fact which should have been

affirmatively proved by the defendants, and as to which

-they gave no evidence whatever.

The case went off upon a mere presumption without

proof as to a point upon which the presumptions were with

the plaintiff and the burden of proof on the defendants.

III.

As to Some Minor Points.

It remains only to consider several minor points, which

were made by the defendants in the Court below and may
be renewed here.

(a) It was contended that Cavanagh and Gray never

obtained an option on the Market street lot. That, on

the contrary, Donohoe's son, acting for his father, refused

to deal with Cavanagh, and only dealt with Mills.

But it plainly enough appears from the record (pp. 34

and 45) that Donohoe's refusal was only to give Cavanagh

a writing with which he might go on the street and hawk
his property about, and, asking the name of the proposed

purchaser, and hearing that it was Mills, consented at Cav-

anagh's request to convey the property to Mills, as Cav-

anagh's nominee. The point is immaterial and does not

affect the essence of the transaction, as we shall proceed to

explain.

(b) It was contended that Gray never had an option on

the lot or the ability to demand a conveyance because the

option ran in favor of Mills, and not in favor of himself or

Cavanagh.

But this is to regard the form rather than the substance,

and to ignore the essential character of the transaction.

Cavanagh and Gray accepted an option running to Mills

because this, by a short cut, effected the object they had in

view, which was to bring the title within Mills' reach.

Mills knew of the shape which the business had taken,
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made no complaint, submitted the abstract to his lawyer,

"accepted the benefit of the transaction," and so " consented

to all the obligations arising from it" (Cal. Civil Code, Sec.

1589), and was estopped from any defenses growing out of

the form of the transaction. If Donohoe had refused to

convey, Mills would have had a cause of action against

Gray for breach of contract. If Mills had accepted Dono-
hoe's deed, he would have been bound to convey his country

lands to Gray upon the payment by Gray to him of the

excess of Donohoe's price over the sum payable by Mills to

Gray. Mills and Donohoe could not have ignored Gray,

and, by dealing with each other behind his back, have de-

prived him of the benefits of the contract between himself

and Mills. Mills had to accept the deed from Donohoe to

himself in satisfaction of Gray's obligation to him, or not

at all. The option in favor of Mills was therefore the

mode selected by Gray for performing his contract with

Mills, was tacitly accepted by Mills himself, and cannot now
be made, by his representatives, an excuse for a failure by
Mills to perform his part of the agreement.

It was hi Mills' power at any time to bind Donohoe, and
get the title by accepting Donohoe's offer, and the duty to

do this was one which grew out of the circumstances and
was assumed by him.

He was not in a position where he could avail himself of

the transaction by exercising the option, or not, just as he

pleased, arbitrarily and according to his own ideas of profit

or loss to himself. He was obligated, upon Gray's demand,
to accept the option and call for the deed.

Moreover, it was immaterial to the issue whether Gray,

Cavanagh or Mills could or could not compel Donohoe to

give effect to his agreement. If from the voluntary act of

Donohoe, or otherwise, Gray was in a position to perforin

at the proper time of performance, this was sufficient.

That Donohoe up to the last was ready and willing to give

effect to Gray's contract is shown from the fact that after

the date of the breach Donohoe voluntarily tendered a deed

to Mr. Mills, as also to Cavanagh and as also to Gray.
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(c) It was contended that Mills was not obliged to

accept a deed from any one but Gray.

This contention finds no support in the authorities.

The question arose in Royal vs. Dennison, 109 Cal., 563,

where it was held that if a vendee of land intends to object

to a deed from a stranger to himself, he must do so at the time

of its tender, that is, when he becomes aware that the ven-

dor is going to make title in that way. Otherwise he will

be taken to have waived the objection. This depends upon
the same principle as the rule that the vendee is limited, in

an action to recover the purchase money, to such defects as

he pointed out on the rejection of the title.

Easton vs. Montgomery, 90 Cal., 313.

So in Murrell vs. Goodyear, 1 De Gex F. & J., 448, the

Court held that the purchaser, becoming aware that the

seller did not have at the time of making the contract a

title to the whole fee, but was expecting to get a part of it

from another, was bound to make the objection at once.

" But, I say," said Lord Justice Turner, " without any
hesitation, that if a purchaser has any such right as has

been contended for and insisted upon on the part of this

defendant, it is a right he is bound to insist upon at the

first moment
; he cannot play fast and loose, and say, ' I

treat this as a subsisting contract,' and then afterwards

suddenly turn round and say, ' I have a right to revert to

my original position. I have a right to destroy that con-

tract, which for months and months during the whole

treaty of negotiations upon the title I have treated as a

subsisting contract.' "

The language as well as the principle is singularly ap-

plicable to this case. The title was rejected by Mills' at-

torneys for reasons other than the fact that it was not to come
through Gray himself. Mills' representatives are therefore

to be confined to the objection made at the time of the re-

jection. But, far beyond this, when Mills learned that the

title was to come direct to himself from Donohoe, and not
from or through Gray, that was the time for him to make
any objection he had on that score, or even, if he pleased,
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to rescind the agreement. Instead of that, he accepted,

adopted, stood to profit by the situation which Gray had
created. He could not have played fast and loose, nor can

his representatives now be permitted to take a position

wdiich he could not, and, as we believe, he would not have

taken. Having treated Gra}^ as the owner of the property,

having continued to deal with him after learning that he

was not the owner, after submitting the title to the opinion

of his attorney, after retiring from the transaction solely on
the ground that the title was not good, every principle of

fairness, every principle of law touching the relations of

vendor and purchaser, under such circumstances, forbids

the plaintiff to be now turned away for reasons which were

ignored and waived by the parties, and requires that the

case shall stand or fall upon the Tightness of the reason

which induced one of them to withdraw. Every other ques-

tion is an afterthought, and foreign to the real merits.

Upon the trial in the Court below counsel for the defend-

ants affected to treat this case with some scorn. Gray and

Cavanagh were held up to the Court as penniless adventur-

ers, who laid a scheme for the entrapment of Mills by which,

without embarking any means of their own, they might

profit in trading upon the capital of Mills and Donohoe. The
suit itself was stigmatized by one of defendants' counsel

as a raid on a dead man's estate.

The plaintiff's case was certainly presented under many
disadvantages. Mills, Donohoe, Cavanagh, Jarboe, all

actors in the drama, had passed from the scene before the

trial ; the lips of the plaintiff were sealed by Subdivision 3,

of Section 1880, of the California Code of Civil Procedure,

and the proof was mainly restricted to documents bearing

upon the transaction. And yet, even from this meagre

evidence, as we most earnestly and seriously contend,

enough appears to fully make out a case which on its

merits is entitled to the respectful consideration of any

Court.

The criticism that Gray and Cavanagh did not invest

their own means in the arrangement with Mills and Dono-

hoe is one which would apply to every negotiation in which
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men make money by the use of skill, knowledge of the

markets, or study of the wishes or necessities of others, rath-

er than by the actual investment of capital. It is answered

by the language of the Court in Trask vs. Vinson, 20 Pick.,

105 :
" We know of no rule of law or principle of sound

policy which prohibits a person from agreeing or covenant-

ing to convey an estate not his own. He might have au-

thority from the owner to sell, or he might have the refusal

of the estate, or he might rely upon his ability to purchase

it in season to execute his contract."

Gray and Cavanagh simply knew that Donohoe was will-

ing to sell his city property and that Mills wished to get rid

of his country lands. Instead of bringing the two men to-

gether and, by acting as mere brokers earning a mere com-

mission, they preferred to be principals themselves in the

transaction, and, by assuming the risks, to run the chance

of making the profit growing out of the divergence of views

between Mills and Donohoe as to the values of their re-

spective properties. In this way the wishes of both Mills

and Donohoe were met. If the transaction had been car-

ried out Donohoe would have got his price in cash for his

lot. Mills would have been relieved of his country lands

and would have invested his money in city property. With-

out the intervention of Cavanagh and Gray it is by no means

sure that this result could have been attained. It is not

certain that Donohoe would have taken $120,000 in cash

and the country lands for his lot, or that Mills would have

given $165,000 in cash for it. But Cavanagh and Gray

were willing to take the risks and to stand in the breach.

If the business had been done they would have obligated

themselves personally to the extent of $45,000 and have as-

sumed the burden of carrying the country lands, and to

this extent they would have been and were principals, con-

tributing to the transaction their individual liability, as

well as their knowledge of the values of real estate.

The insinuation that they in the least degree misled

either Mills or Donohoe must fall to the ground for want of

any foundation in fact. The disclosure to both of them of
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the real nature of the negotiation was complete, and both of

them fully accepted all its terms without complaint.

We submit with great confidence to this Court that, so

far from the transaction or this suit being of a questionable

nature, the record discloses a perfectly proper and business-

like affair, conducted on Gray's part with the utmost frank-

ness, by which all parties would have been benefited, and
which failed through no fault of his. An unwarranted and
unfounded rejection of title, for which Mr. Mills and his

attorneys were responsible, prevented the execution of the

arrangement and caused a large loss to Gray, which should

be made good to him by Mills' estate. The attempt of de-

fendants' counsel, by baseless suggestions of impropriety in

Gray's conduct, to divert the attention of the Court from

the injury done to Gray through Mills' unexcused breach

of contract, must be as useless as it is unfair.

SIDNEY V. SMITH,

VINCENT NEALE,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth District.

ALBERT E. GRAY,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

S. PRENTISS SMITH, FRANK MIL- '

No . 359.

LER and WILLIAM P. HAR-

RINGTON,
Defendants in Error.

Statement of the Case.

The action is one at law to recover damages against

the execntors of Edgar Mills, deceased, for an alleged

refusal of the decedent to comply with the terms of an

agreement for an exchange of lands. The agreement,

consisting of a written proposal upon the part of Edgar

Mills addressed to the plaintiff under date of September

16, 1 89 1, and its acceptance in writing by the plaintiff

on October 7, 1891, is set out in full in the complaint,

and the making of the agreement as thus alleged is not

denied bv the answer.
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The contract alleged is in substance one upon the

part of the decedent Mills to give, in exchange for a

certain lot situate on Market street in the city of San

Francisco, $120,000 in cash and certain described lands

of his situate in Colusa and Tehama counties. The

contract will be found set out in full in the findings of

the court, numbered 1, 2 and 3, commencing on page

27 of the printed transcript.

It is not alleged in the complaint that the plaintiff

performed or offered to perform the contract on his

part, but it is alleged :
" that the plaintiff was able,

ready and willing from October 7, 1 891, to and until

November 18, 1891, to sell and convey to said Edgar

Mills said Market street lot by a good and sufficient

deed conve3ang to the said Edgar Mills a perfect title

to said lot, but on said November 18, 189 1, said Edgar

Mills refused to buy said lot or to accept a conveyance

thereof, and refused to comply with or carry out his

said agreement to buy said lot as aforesaid on the

ground and for the reason that the title thereto was

imperfect." (Transcript, page 8). The answer of the

defendants denies that the plaintiff was able, ready or

willing to sell or convey the property agreed to be sold

by him, or that said Mills at any time refused to carry

out his part of said alleged contract of sale or purchase,

either in whole or in part, or that he refused to pur-

chase the propert}' so agreed by him to be purchased

or to accept a conveyance thereof made or tendered un-

der or by reason of or in performance of said alleged
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contract of sale and purchase (transcript, page 20).

The Findings.

The Court does not find specifically that Mills

ever refused to carry out his agreement with plaintiff,

or that plaintiff at any time ever gave him notice that

he was ready and willing to make a conveyance of the

Market street property in accordance with the terms of

the agreement alleged in the complaint.

The Court fiuds that the plaintiff was never the

owner of the property which, under the agreement, he

contracted to convey to the decedent Mills, but that one

Douahoe was such owner, a fact of which defendants'

testator was not informed until after the making of the

contract alleged in the complaint (transcript, page 37;

finding no. 6), and that plaintiff never at any time had

any contract with the owner by which he could secure

the title to such property (see finding number 9, trans-

cript page 36); but the Court does find that one

Cavanagh, who was interested with plaintiff in making

the exchange of the properties contemplated by the

agreement set out in the complaint, endeavored to en-

ter into a contract with its owner for the purchase of

the Market street property, but that said owner, not

knowing anything of the resources or responsibility of

the said Cavanagh, refused to enter into any contract

with him, but did, upon being informed by said Cava-

nagh that he desired to make the purchase for the de-

cedent Mills, give to said Cavanagh a written offer in
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these words: "San Francisco, October 7, 1891. I

hereby agree to sell ni}- lot, 82 6-12 feet on sonth side

of Market street, immediate^ east and adjoining the

Central Park, between Seventh and Eighth streets, and

running through to Stevenson street in the rear, to Ed-

gar Mills for one hundred and sixty-five thousand dol-

lars, U. S. gold coin ($165,000), pa}^able on delivery

of deed after examination of title, sa}' fifteen days from

date. The purchaser to pay half of the taxes for the

current year." (See finding number 6 ; transcript,

page 34). The Court further found that decedent Mills

rejected said offer (see finding number 6 ; transcript,

page 36), and it may be inferred from finding number

12 (commencing transcript page 38) that Mills re-

jected the foregoing offer because he was advised that

there was a defect in the title to the Market street lot.

The Court further finds (see finding number 1 1 ; Trans-

cript, page 37) that " Plaintiff never paid or offered to

pay to said Joseph A. Donohoe, senior, the purchase

price demanded \>y the said Donohoe for the said Mar-

ket street lot, and did not at any time have the means

or ability to pay the said Donohoe the purchase price

demanded by him for the said Market street lot, and

plaintiff never took an}- steps to procure for the said

Edgar Mills the title to the said Market street lot other

than by procuring the written offer of said Donohoe,

dated October 7, 1891, which offer is fully set out in

finding number 6.

Upon these findings and others not necessary to re-
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fer to the Court found as a conclusion of law " that said

plaintiff was never at aii} r time able or ready to convey

or cause to be conveyed to the said Edgar Mills the

said Market street lot according to the terms of the

contract set out in the complaint," and thereupon

directed a judgment for the defendants.

The opinion of the Circuit Court is reported in 76

Federal Reporter, page 525.

The Question for Decision and Points and Authorities for

Defendants in Error.

It is claimed by the plaintiff in error that the finding

of the Court above quoted to the effect that plaintiff did

not have the means or ability to pay the purchase price

demanded by its owner for the Market street lot is not

sustained by the evidence. In view of the other find-

ings we do not think the finding so excepted to is es-

sential to the maintenance of the judgment of the Cir-

cuit Court, but still we contend that the state of the evi-

dence was such as to warrant this finding of the Court.

We shall contend for the following propositions

:

I.

Under the findings of the Court not excepted to, the

plaintiff was not at any time the legal or equitable

owner of the Market street lot which, under the con-

tract alleged in the complaint, he contracted to convey

to the defendants' testator ; nor was the owner of such

lot willing, upon the request of plaintiff, to convey the
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same to said testator upon the terms of the contract

alleged in the complaint. Upon this state of facts the

conclusion of the Circuit Court " that said plaintiff was

never at any time ready or able to convey or cause to

be conveyed to the said Edgar Mills the said Market

street lot according to the terms of the contract set out

in the complaint " is a correct statement of the law and

will be found to be sustained by the following authori-

ties :

Eddy vs. Davis, 116 N. Y., 247.

Bigglev vs. Morgan, 77 N. Y., 318.

Lawrence vs. Miller, 86 N. Y., 137.

Brown vs. Davis, 138 Mass., 458.

and other cases which will be cited in other portions of

this brief for the purpose of illustrating this point.

II.

The Court was justified in finding that plaintiff did

not have the pecuniary ability to secure the title to the

lot which he contracted to convey, and the plaintiff,

having failed to show that he was possessed of

means to secure the title to such property upon the

only terms upon which its owner would agree to part

with such title, he failed to show in this respect also

that he was able and ready to comply with his contract

to make such conveyance to defendants' testator.

Grandy vs. Macrease, 2 Jones, N. C, 142.

Grandy vs. Small, 5 Jones, N. C, 55.

McGee vs. Hill, 4 Porter, 107.
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Argument in Support of the Foregoing Propositions.

I. It is clear that upon the facts found by the Court

the plaintiff was never at any time the legal nor the

equitable owner of the land which he contracted to con-

vey, and that defendants' testator was not informed of

this fact until after the making of the contract set out

in the complaint. It is clear also that the property

was not in any manner under the control or direction

of the plaintiff and that its owner was not willing to

convey it to the defendants' testator upon the terms

upon which plaintiff had contracted to convey it and

for the purpose of carrying out that agreement on the

part of the plaintiff. Under these circumstances we

say that plaintiff failed to show an ability and readi-

ness to perform the contract on his part. In asserting

this proposition we do not, as was supposed by the

learned Circuit Judge, run counter to the rule declared

in Easton vs. Montgomery, 90 Cal., 307. In that case

it was held, and we think rightly, that it is not neces-

sary to the validity of a contract that the vendor should

be the absolute owner of the property at the time

he enters into an agreement of its sale. The Court

there said : "An equitable estate in land or a right to

become the owner of the land is as much the subject of

sale as the land itself, and whenever one is so situated

with reference to a tract of land that he can acquire the

title thereto either by the voluntary act of the parties

holding the title, or by proceedings at law or in equity,

he is in a position to make a valid agreement for the
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sale thereof. * * * * If the agreement is made by

him in good faith and he has at the time such an inter-

est in the land or is so situated with reference thereto

that he can carry into effect the agreement on his part

at the time he has agreed so to do, it will be upheld."

We do not dispute this proposition. The question

here is not whether an equitable owner of land, who

contracts to convey it, can recover damages for the

breach of such a contract if he himself was able to per-

form it, but whether the plaintiff here, having entered

into a contract to convey land of which he was neither

the legal nor equitable owner—either then or subse-

quently—can maintain an action for an alleged breach

of such contract ; in other words, whether such a vendor

is damaged by the refusal of the vendee under such con-

tract to perform it on his part.

"A vendor of real estate has two remedies for the

breach of a contract. He may insist upon its specific

performance or he may maintain an action at law for dam-

ages. In an action at law for damages " the vendor must

be held strictly to the very terms of his engagement,

and show the performance of all the conditions on his

part necessary to be performed to put the other part in

default " (Smythe vs. Sturges, 108 N. Y., 503). An
action for specific performance may be maintained with-

out a previous tender ; it is sufficient if the plaintiff of-

fers in his complaint to perform, and is able to do so at

the time of the trial. But when the vendor himself

does not ask for the performance of the contract accord-
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ing to its terms—does not ask to be placed in the exact

condition where he would be upon the performance of

the contract, but instead goes into a court of law de-

manding damages for its alleged breach by the vendee,

in such case it is incumbent upon him to show a strict

compliance with the contract on his part and to show a

formal and technical default by the vendee. And this

can only be done by proof that the vendor was at the

time of the alleged breach able and ready to comply

with the contract on his part. "The distinction be-

tween an action for specific performance in equity,"

said the Court in Bruce vs. Tilson, 25 N. Y., 197, "and

a suit at law for damages for non-performance is this

:

that in the latter the right of action accrues out of the

breach of the contract and a breach must exist before

the commencement of the action, while in the former

the contract itself and not the breach of it gives the

action."

And certainly before the plaintiff here can be entitled

to recover damages by reason of his vendee's refusal to

take and pay for the land which plaintiff agreed to con-

vey, the plaintiff must show that he was the owner of

such laud, or at least in such a situation in regard to it

that he could cause the conveyance to be made on the

exact terms of his contract. The rule applicable to a

case like this is concisely stated by Wilde, C. J., in

Dogood vs. Rose, 67 Eng. Common Law Reports, page

137, as follows :
" It seems to me that the acts to be

done by the plaintiff on the one side and by the de-
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fendant on the other were to be contemporaneous ; and

that before the plaintiff complains of the non-performance

of the contract by the plaintiff he should have put himself

in a conditioyi to ask performance by being prepared to de-

liver what the defendant was entitled to receive. This

performance on the part of the plaintiff may be dis-

pensed with or discharged by a notice from the de-

fendant that he does not mean to execute the contract

on his part. Now, what must the plaintiff in such a

case aver ? He must, I apprehend, at least aver that

he was ready and willing to execute the deed and that

the defendant had notice of his readiness and willing-

ness."

The refusal or inability of the vendee to perform is

not sufficient of itself to give a cause of action to the

vendor. The vendor must also have been at the time

of such refusal, or when performance on his part is due,

able and ready to perform. This is the way the rule

is stated in Biggler vs. Morgan, 77 N. Y., 388 : "To

entitle him to recover damages for a breach of the con-

tract he must show that he was read}- and willing to

deliver such a deed as the contract called for. The re-

fusal of the defendant to perform, although it obviated

the necessity for the formal tender of a deed, did not

dispense with the necessity of showing that the plaintiff

was able, ready and willing to perform, and ordinarily

this requires that the deed called for by the contract

should be prepared and ready for delivery. * * *

Morange vs. Morris, 32 Howard Practice, 178, and 3
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Keyes, 50, is cited as an authority for the proposi-

tion that in an action like this the refusal or admitted

inability of one part}' to a contract of this description

to perforin dispenses not only with an actual tender of

performance by the other party but with proof of his

readiness to perform. That case is not an authority

for any such proposition. It was not an action to en-

force the contract or for damages for its breach, but to

recover back a payment made on account of the pur-

chase money on the ground that the vendor, not being

ready at the time appointed to convey good title, the

vendee had exercised his right to rescind and reclaimed

what he had paid. The cases are widely different and

depend upon different principles. A contract for the

purchase or exchange of lands may be rescinded, and

the purchase money paid in advance may be recovered

back on the failure of one party to perform, even

though the other party could not have performed. If

in this case neither of the parties had had title to the

property which he had agreed to convey the contract

could have been rescinded and any payments made

upon it could have been recovered back, but neither

could have recovered from the other damages for its

breach. In an action to rescind and recover back pay-

ments it is enough to show a breach by the party who

has received the money (Florence vs.
, 5

Hill, 115), but not so when the action is to enforce the

contract or recover damages. However positively a

vendee may have refused to perform his contract, and
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however insufficient the reason assigned for his refusal,

he cannot be subjected to damages without showing

that he would have received what he contracted for had

he performed."

There being no doubt about this general principle of

law, that no one can recover damages for the breach of

a contract without showing that he was himself able

and ready to perform at the time of such alleged

breach we are brought to a consideration of the ques-

tion as to what constitutes ability and readiness on the

part of a vendor to convey land. Can he be said to be

thus able without showing that he has the legal title,

or at least has such legal title subject to his personal

control and ready to be passed to the vendee upon the

exact terms of the contract of purchase ? In our judg-

ment this question must be answered in the negative.

Ability and readiness to perforin signify ex vi termini &

present ability. When used with reference to a ven-

dor's agreement to convey land these words necessarily

imply the possession of a title which can be exhibited

as a record title and one which is apparently perfect

when exhibited and which the vendor is then read)' to

convey or cause to be conveyed to the vendee. A ven-

dor who has agreed to convey the legal title cannot

maintain an action for breach of such contract without

showing that he had the ability to vest such legal title

in the vendee at the time of the alleged breach. We are

not now speaking of the validity of a contract made by

a vendor at a time when he has no title to lands and of
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his right to enforce the same when he subsequently ac-

quires the title, but we allude to what the vendor must

show in relation to his title before he can maintain an

action at law for damages against a vendee. In such

an action, as we have seen, the vendor is held to a strict

performance of his contract. He must show with

great strictness his ability and readiness, and the ven-

dee must have notice of such ability and readiness be-

fore he can be placed in technical default. We do not

think, in such an action, it would be sufficient for the

vendor to simply prove that he had an equitable title

which might be turned into a perfect legal title by the

ordinary course of equity; and a jortiori he would fall

far short of maintaining his case if he proved no more

than that the real owner was willing and ready to con-

vey to him such land, but that he had not entered into

any contract with him which entitled him to purchase

and acquire title to the same and therefore that he did

not have even an equitable title. Indeed, it may be

safely asserted that a vendor cannot recover damages

at law for an alleged breach of contract by the vendee

when, upon the same facts a court of equity would not

decree a specific performance if the vendor were in that

court asking for such relief. The facts required to be

shown are precisely the same in the two cases except

that in the equitable action it is sufficient for the plain-

tiff to show his ability to comply with the decree of the

Court at the time of the trial, while in the action at law-

such abilitv and readiness must be shown to have ex-
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isted at the time of the alleged breach. It would be a

singular rule of law that would permit a vendor who

never at ar^ time had such a title to the land he con-

tracted to convey as would entitle him to ask for a

specific performance of the contract in a court of equity,

to recover in a court of law damages for non-perform-

ance of such contract by the vendee.

Ability and readiness to perform have reference to

a present condition and not to a condition which may
or would result from some future contract if it should

be brought into existence. The case of Brown vs.

Davis, 138 Mass., was an action for breach of a con-

tract to convey lands, by the terms of which contract

the plaintiff wras to make payment within four months

of its date. At the time of the contract the defendant,

who was executor of an estate, was not able to convey

the title, as he had not then obtained a license from the

Probate Court to sell. It was shown upon the trial

that plaintiff, within the four months named in the

contract, made arrangements with one Richards for a

loan of the sum of money necessary to enable him to

perform his part of the contract ; that Richards agreed

to make such loan provided the defendant could give

the plaintiff a good title to the premises, and there-

upon, within the life of the contract, the plaintiff in-

formed the defendant that he could get the necessar}'

amount of mone)' from Richards if the defendant could

give him a good title. No formal tender was ever

made by the plaintiff to the defendant, and upon the
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expiration of the four months fixed in the contract the

defendant sold the land to another person. The

Supreme Court held upon these facts that the plaintiff

was not entitled to maintain the action, and said

:

" There was no time when the plaintiff had prepared

himself to perform presently his part of the contract.

Neither party took sufficient steps to hold the other.

It is no doubt true that an actual tender of the money

by the plaintiff was not necessary, but he must show

that he was ready, willing and able to do his part and

that the defendant had notice thereof. Nothing-

short of this would put the defendant in legal default.

The maxim that the law does not compel one to do

vain and useless things does not apply to a case like

this. Here both parties remained inactive in the eye

of the law. What the plaintiff did by way of arrang-

ing for the money was merely preliminary and was

quire insufficient to give him a right of action."

It will be observed that in the case just referred to

the plaintiff had actually made arrangements by which

he could have obtained the money necessary to carry

out his contract, provided the defendant could give him

a good title, and the defendant was notified of such fact,

and yet the Court, speaking with reference to these

specific facts, said :
" There was no time when the

plaintiff had prepared himself to perform presently his

part of the contract. * * * * What plaintiff did

by way of arranging for the money was merely prelim-
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inary, and was quite insufficient to give him a right of

action."

In the case of Eddy vs. Davis, 116 N. Y., 247, the

plaintiff had contracted to convey certain property to the

defendant, and as part of such contract agreed to keep

open a right of way back of the property which he had

contracted to sell. At the time of this agreement the

plaintiff owned property over which he could have

given such right of way, but he afterwards sold the

same without any reservation of a right of way to the

laud which he had agreed to sell to the defendant, and

at the time of the commencement of the action owned

no property over which he could give such a right of

way. The action was brought to recover an install-

ment of the purchase monej^, and the Court found that

the plaintiff had never tendered a deed to the defend-

ant, but that the defendant had waived such tender,

and no tender was necessary because "immediatetlv

before the commencement of this action the plaintiff's

attorneys applied to said defendant and informed him

that the plaintiffs were ready and willing to perform

said contract on their part if he was read}- to pay; to

which defendant answered that he could not pa}-, and

said that he wanted to give up the property." Upon this

state of facts the Court of Appeals said: "It is undisputed

that within two months after the defendant entered

into possession of the property plaintiffs sold all their

adjoining land, and thus put it out of their power to

comply with their agreement with 'defendant, and keep
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open a right of way to the rear of his store ; and at the

time of the offer mentioned in the finding of fact I have

quoted, the plaintiffs were powerless to fulfill their

engagement. The finding, therefore, that they were

ready to perform, or that their offer and defendant's

refusal constituted a waiver of tender of the deed can-

not be sustained. A tender imports not only readiness

and ability to perform, but actual production of the

thing to be delivered. The formal requisite of a tender

may be waived, but to establish a waiver there must be

existing capacity to perform." (Nelson vs. Plimpton

Elevating Co., 55 N. Y., 484; Lawrence vs. Miller, 86

id. 137; Bigler vs. Morgan, 77 id. 318).

The case from which we have just quoted is a direct

authority to sustain the proposition that a vendor, who

has agreed to convey a legal title to property, but who

does not in fact have such title, cannot maintain an

action upon the contract upon the refusal of the vendee

to perform. That case was a much stronger one in

favor of the vendor than the case presented here for the

plaintiff. In that case the vendee announced that he

could not pay for the property, and that he wished to

give it up, while here there is no express finding by

the Court that defendants' testator ever refused to carry

out the contract alleged in the complaint, but only that

he rejected an offer to purchase the property from the

owner upon terms different from those upon which the

plaintiff had agreed to make such conveyance to him.

But assuming that he did refuse, the case just quoted
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from is an authority for our contention that the plaintiff,

not being the owner of the property he contracted to

convey, cannot maintain this action.

That a vendor who is not the owner, either legal or

equitable of the property which he has agreed to con-

vey cannot enforce such contract, is also shown by that

class of cases which hold that a vendee, upon discovery

that his vendor has no title, may at once rescind the

contract and recover back any payment that he has

made thereunder. This is the rule declared in Goetz

vs. Walters, 34 Minnesota, page 239, and which case is

approved by the Supreme Court of California in Burks

vs. Davies, 85 Cal. no. The case of Goetz vs. Walters

was an action by a vendee to recover money paid to a

vendor on an agreement for the purchase of a house

and lot, the plaintiff alleging that the defendant was

not the owner of the premises agreed to be conveyed.

The answer alleged that the plaintiff had repudiated

and express^ refused to be bound by the agreement

before the commencement of the action, and alleged

that since the commencement of the action the defend-

ant had acquired title to the premises, and was then

ready and willing to perform. The Court held that

the plaintiff was entitled to a judgment on the plead-

ings. The Court in that case say: "He (the vendor)

was bound to be prepared at all times to convey a good

title, and whenever within that time she should ascer-

tain that he had no title so that it was impossible for

him to make a conveyance, she could at once avoid the
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contract without gping to the useless trouble of tender-

ing payment and calling on him to convey. The

answer admits that she did so on May 15th, and there-

upon it was the duty of the defendant to repay to her

the $300."

In Burks vs. Davies, 85 Cal., no, an action by a

vendee to recover money paid on a contract, the Court

say, quoting from Sugden on Vendors: "Where a

person sells an interest, and it appears that the interest

which he pretends to sell was not the true one * * *

the purchaser may consider the contract at an end, and

bring an action for money had and received to recover

aii}' sum of money which he may have paid in part

performance of the agreement of sale." And the Court

in that case further said: "Under a contract for the

sale of real estate the vendee is regarded as the equita-

ble owner, and the vendee a trustee of the legal estate

for him. If the vendor has no title to the property the

vendee is entitled to a rescission." It is true the Court

in the present case finds that there was no rescission or

abandonment of the contract; but it needs no argu-

ment to show that upon facts which entitle the vendee

to rescission the vendee cannot be subjected to dam-

ages for a refusal to perform; and notwithstanding the

finding of the learned Judge of the Circuit Court, we

may be permitted to say that if the defendants' testator

ever did refuse to perform this contract, it was in legal

effect a rescission on his part. One who has a right to

rescind a contract and recover back all that he may
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have paid thereunder must necessarily have the right

to refuse to perform the contract, without subjecting

himself to the payment of damages, and such a refusal

would amount to a rescission. To sum up the argu-

ment on this point, the findings show that the plaintiff

was never at an}7 time the legal or equitable owner of

the land which he contracted to convey; and that

defendants' testator first learned that plaintiff was not

the owner of such land after entering into the contract

set out in this complaint; and further, that the real

owner of such land would only convey it to the defend-

ants' testator upon terms materially different from

those upon which the plaintiff had agreed to make the

conveyance. The findings further show that the real

owner was not willing to make a contract with any

other person than the defendants' testator for the sale

of such land, so that in effect the only means by which

said Mills could obtain the title to said property was

by entering into a new and different contract with its

owner. The Court finds that Mills refused to enter

into this new contract. Such refusal does not consti-

tute a refusal to carr}^ out the contract alleged in the

complaint; and although we may be morally certain

that he would have refused to accept a conveyance from

the plaintiff even if tendered to him upon the terms of

the agreement set out in the complaint, still the refusal

actally made did not constitute a breach of his contract

with plaintiff, nor relieve plaintiff of his obligation, if

he desired to recover damages for its alleged breach, to
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be able to perform it on his part. Without such

ability and readiness on his part it was not possible for

him to put Mills in technical default.

II.

The plaintiff in error excepts to the finding of the

Court to the effect that he did not at any time have the

means or ability to pay the purchase price demanded

by its owner for the Market street lot, and claims here

that such finding is not sustained by the evidence. If

the proposition already discussed by us is sustained it

will be at once seen that the question whether the find-

ing referred to is or is not sustained by the evidence is

immaterial. We think, however, that in any possible

view of the case, since the owner of the lot refused to

convey it except upon the payment of $165,000 in cash

it was incumbent upon the plaintiff to show that he

was in a position to acquire such title upon the only

terms upon which its owner would make the convey-

ance. There is no presumption of law, independent of

proof, that he would have been able to acquire this title

even if defendants' testator had signified his willingness

to accept the same. Therefore, it was necessar}^ for the

plaintiff to prove the fact if it was material ; and the

bill of exceptions showing that the plaintiff failed to

introduce any evidence whatever upon this point the

Court was justified in finding the fact against the pres-

ent contention of the plaintiff. The rule is, if 110 evi-

dence or no sufficient evidence be introduced in rela-
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tion to any fact, the finding should be against the party

npon whom was the burden of proving such fact. (Lev-

ingston vs. Ryan, 75 Cal., 293).

That the burden of proof was upon plaintiff to show-

that he was in a position to acquire the title to the lot

he contracted to convey we think clear, and when it is

conceded that he could not acquire this title without

the payment of $165,000 in cash it necessarity follows

it was incumbent upon him to show that he was pos-

sessed of means of his own sufficient to make such pay-

ment or was able to secure a sufficient loan for that

purpose. And it is equalty clear under the authorities

that the plaintiff is required to show that he possessed

this ability independent of performance upon the part

of Mills (McGee vs. Hill, 4 Porter, 170), in which case

the Court said :
" It is a well settled rule of law that

when a contract is dependent, as where one agrees to

sell and deliver and the other agrees to pay on deliv-

ery, in an action for non-delivery it is necessary for the

plaintiff to prove a readiness to pay on his part whether

the other party was ready at the place to deliver or

not. * * * * The instructions of the Court, there-

fore, that if the jury believed that the credit which the

corn and fodder when delivered might give, together

with the other means of the plaintiff, would have en-

abled him to raise the money so as to have been pre-

pared to pay, that would be sufficient evidence of read-

iness was erroneous."

So, also, in Mount vs. Lion, 49 N. Y., 552, in which
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case the plaintiff sued for breach of contract to sell and

deliver brick, the Court said :
" It was not necessary

that the plaintiff should have during the whole of the

three months or on any day during that time a sum of

money in hand sufficient to pay for the whole quantit}^

of brick called for by the contract. It was sufficient

that he had the means and resources at his command

which would have enabled him to pay had the brick

been delivered."

So, also, in Bronson vs. Wiman, 4 Selden, 188, an

action for breach of a contract for the sale and delivery

of flour. The Court say :
" The plaintiffs were under

no obligation to prove payment or a tender of payment.

It was enough that they were ready at the time and

place appointed for the performance of the contract to

receive and pay for the flour. * * * Wing was ap-

prised of the agreement and furnished with a copy, and

he declared to his clerk that he was ready to pay for

the flour if it arrived ; and in confirmation of this

declaration it was shown that he paid promptly all de-

mands against him and that he had facilities for rais-

ing money to an amount sufficient to pay for 2000 bar-

rels of flour. This evidence was abundantly sufficient

to take this question to the jury and authorize a

finding in behalf of the plaintiffs."

We do not understand that the case of Stokes vs.

Mackay, 147 N. Y., is authority for the proposition

that the burden of proof was upou the defendants in this

case to show that plaintiff did not have sufficient funds
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to purchase the Market street lot. That was an action

to recover the balance due upon the purchase price of

certain bonds and stocks, the greater portion of which

had been delivered to defendant under the contract and

retained by him. It appeared upon the trial that after

the repudiation of the contract by the defendant the

plaintiff had pledged a portion of the stock and bonds

agreed to be sold, and the Court held that under the

pleadings it was not incumbent upon the plaintiff to

show that his finances were in such condition that he

could redeem the bonds at the time of the trial.

The Court said :
" It is very clear under the circum-

stances disclosed, if at all essential, that it was incum-

bent upon the defendants to make out the fact, which

the}- wholly fail to establish, that the plaintiff was in-

capable of redeeming the bonds for delivery.'
1 The

Court further said :
" Under the allegations of the

complaint the defendants might at any time after the

action was commenced, have demanded the bonds vet

undelivered upon offering to pay the $75,000 claimed

from them. If their delivery had become impossible to

the plaintiffs the defendants would have had the right

to compel him to account for all he could not deliver,

but nothing which could happen to the bonds after the

right of action had vested and was availed of could

divest such right of action. That some of the bonds

remained pledged to others to secure liabilities of the

plaintiff proves nothing against his right of recovery.

If he could not redeem them he could be compelled to
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account for the moneys received for them. If any had

been converted or passed beyond his control after the

commencement of the action and without default on his

part, at most if at all, under the circumstances,

he could be compelled to account for their actual

value. * * * The defendants have at all times

been entitled upon offering to pay the $75,000 to have

the bonds. Their payment of this judgment will leave

them still entitled to demand them, and a failure to

deliver them will create a cause of action in their favor

for their value."

The Court will see from the foregoing quotation

that the question discussed in Stokes vs. Mackev is

widely different from that which is presented by the

case at bar.

But in addition to the fact that plaintiff failed to

introduce any evidence tending to show his ability to

acquire the title to the Market street property inde-

pendent of the performance by Mills of the contract

alleged in the complaint his counsel virtually con-

ceded upon the trial of the action in the Circuit Court,

that plaintiff was without such ability, and in their

printed argument addressed to the Court used this

language: "Upon this payment and conveyance by

Mills to Gray depended Gray's ability to produce Don-

ohue's deed—depended so utterly and wholly that Mills'

refusal to go amounted to an absolute prevention of

Gray's performance. Every fact in the case points to

the moral conviction that if Mills had lived up to his
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contract by paying his $120,000, and conveying to

Gray the country lands, Gray would have been abund-

antly able to carry out his part of the contract. Herein

lay Gray's ability—in the anxious readiness of Don-

ohue to live up to his engagement, in the fact that

Mills' land and money which, under the contract,

belonged equitable and potentially to Gray, would have

enabled him to pay Donohue and procure the deed.

* * * Morally we know that if Mills had not

retired the transaction would have gone smoothly

through, and that Mills' conduct was the sole cause of

its defeat. Morally we know that Gray could not

fulfill his engagement unless Mills on his part fulfilled

the obligations arising from his acceptance of the bene-

fits of the transaction and his knowledge of the facts."

Transcript page 47.

Having thus conceded the fact of plaintiff's inability

to procure the money with which to acquire the title to

the land which he had agreed to convey independently

of performance upon the part of defendants' testator,

the plaintiff in error has no legal ground of exception

to the finding of the Court in accordance with such

admission. In other words, even if it should be held

that the burden of proof was on defendants to show

that plaintiff did not have the pecuniary ability to pur-

chase the Market street lot, the Court was justified

in assuming as against the plaintiff the truth of his

counsel's admissions.
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Conclusion.

We think upon the record this judgment must be

affirmed. It would be singular, indeed, if one who has

contracted to sell laud which he does not own, and to

which he does not have even the shadow of an equita-

ble title, and who is further without pecuniary ability

to acquire such title, could recover damages against his

vendee for breach of such contract simply because the

vendee, in considering an offer made to him by the real

owner, refuses to enter into such new contract, although

he may give as a ground for such refusal that he does

not consider the title to such property good. The

contract set out in the complaint did not impose upon

Mills the obligation to accept the subsequent offer

made to him by the real owner of the property, and his

rejection of it, no matter what reason he may have

givenTor such rejection, was not a breach of the con-

tract alleged in the complaint.

We respectfully submit that the judgment should be

affirmed.

S. C. DENSON,

Counsel for Defendants in Error.
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We asked leave to file the following answer to the brief of de-

fendants in error for the reason that their brief does not reply

to anything in the plaintiff' s brief, but is confined to a point

which was never raised in the trial Court, and which, there-

fore, we could not have anticipated, and which we considered

misleading. This misleading point is the attempt to read to-

gether the contract between Gray and Mills, and the written

agreement signed by Donohoe, and thereby to make it ;i|»-

pear that Mills was affected by or could base a defense to

Gray's claim upon the terms of the Donohoe document.

The Donohoe agreement was not an " offer ;" it was a

written acceptance of Cavanagh's offer, a written undertaking

to give effect to Gray's negotiations with Mills that Cava-

nagh had brought to his notice. It reqaired no "accept-
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ance " to give it force or effect. It was simply an authority

for* Gray to close his negotiations with Mills, and a means
whereby he could carry them into effect

; that the docu-

ment was thus understood both by Donohoe and Mills is

abundantly apparent.

This, however, is of no real importance, for, whatever the

documents may be called, it is clear that they cannot be read

together as forming the mutual agreement between the par-

ties, the breach of which forms the present cause of action.

Any attempt to read two documents together as forming

one agreement would fail unless it could at least be shown
not only that the date of the instrument and subject matter

thereof were the same, but that, for obvious reasons, there

was also identity of parties.

The law is too well settled to require argument ; we will,

however, quote Craig vs. Wells, UN. Y., 315 ; Cornell vs.

Todd, 2 Denio, 130 ; Warvelle on Vendors, pp. 134, 135.

Defendants' counsel appear to be very anxious to mix up

and confound these two several and distinct documents
;

thus on pages 4 and 17 of defendant's brief attention is called

to the fact that Mills rejected Donohoe's " offer
;

" on pages

5 and 7 it is stated that Donohoe would not have conveyed

upon the terms of the Gray-Mills contract, and on page 20

it is said that the Court below found that Mills refused to

enter into a new contract, meaning a contract with Donohoe

on the terms of the latter's " offer."

And in the conclusion, page 27, counsel repeats :
" It would

be singular if one * * could recover damages against

his vendee for breach of such contract simply because the

vendee in considering an offer made to him by the real

owner refuses to enter into such new contract.

All this is merely a false scent thrown across the trail.

It is because we fear that this attempt to confound the two

documents ma}7 confuse the Court that we have asked leave

to file this additional brief.

A mere suggestion of the distinction between the two

should suffice to render it apparent. The offer of Mills,

which was accepted by Gray, is the contract out of which

the rights and obligations of the parties arose, and for the



breach of which by Mills this action is brought. That
breach consisted in a withdrawal from it by Mills, upon the

advice of his attorneys (Trans., page 42, Finding 12) ; the

rights of the plaintiff were then fixed and could not be

affected by the subsequent tender made nearly a week later

by Donohoe of his own volition (Trans., foot of page 37) for

a different purpose (Trans., page 38), or its rejection by

Mills.

Donohoe's written undertaking to sell or to convey the

property to Mills was only the mode adopted by Gray to fill

his obligation to Mills ; it was a link in Gray's chain of

title ; with its terms Mills had nothing to do. Mills could

not be called upon to pay Donohoe $165,000 in cash or one-

half of the current year's taxes. And if Mills had accepted

the title and had stood ready to comply with his agreement

with Gray, Gray could not have complained if he had de-

clined simply to make the payment to Donohoe required by

the terms of Donohoe's offer. But a full compliance with

his contract with Gray, as expressed in their written agree-

ment, and as implied by the circumstances, was incumbent

upon Mills, and if he had fulfilled his own obligations by

paying the purchase price agreed on between him and Gray,

and by allowing Gray to get in Donohoe's title in his name,

as he was bound to do, this litigation could not have arisen.

Instead of this he broke off from Gray altogether, and dis-

pensed with Gray's obligation to furnish him the title.

Viewed in this way, Donohoe's written agreement or

undertaking to give effect to the Gray-Mills negotiations

only figures in the case,

1st. As showing good faith on Gray's part in contract-

ing to sell
;

2nd. As showing Gray's ability to perform, though such

a showing was not strictly necessary
;

3rd. As a means in Gray's hands, though in Mills' name,

to fulfill his contract of sale.

But it cast on Mills no additional active obligation
;

nothing beyond the passive duty of allowing Gray to get in

the title through its instrumentality.

As to the assertion on page 13 of defendant's brief, that a



vendor cannot recover damages at law for an alleged breach

of contract by the vendee, when upon the same facts a Court

of Equity would not decree specific performance, it need

only be remarked that the assertion is not supported by

authority, and will not bear scrutiny.

The remedy by specific performance proceeds upon the

theory that the contract is still in existence, and is sought

by the party who adheres to it and desires to carry it into

effect. He must, therefore, be himself ready and able to

fulfill it in every detail. The suit for damages for a breach,

however, is maintainable where one party has renounced

the contract, and the other party takes him at his word, and

likewise treating the contract as at an end, asks for the

damages which he has suffered by reason of the breaking

off of the contractual relation. The latter, therefore, need

only show that he performed his full duty up to the moment
of the breach. All else is excused him.

The oral argument of counsel for the defendants in sup-

port of the position that under certain sections of the Civil

Code no damages can be awarded for the breach of a con-

tract of exchange, is fully answered by a reference to Civil

Code 1806, which applies all the provisions of the title on

sale to exchanges, and enacts that each party has the rights

and obligations of a seller as to the things which he gives,

and of a buyer as to the things which he takes.

Of the cases cited by defendants' counsel, Doogood vs.

Rose, 67 English Common Law Reports, 132, involved an

alleged breach of contract under class " A," specified on

page 4 of plaintiff's opening brief. It was an action for

breach of contract of apprenticeship. The last section

quoted in defendants' brief is mere dictum, as well as inap-

plicable to the case at bar. Wilmot vs. Wilkinson, 6 B. &
C, 506, discussed therein, is in plaintiff's favor.

Goetz vs. Walters, 34 Minnesota, 239, Burke vs. Davis, 85

Cal., 110, were cases of options given for a purchase, not

cases of a sale and purchase.

The other cases relied on by defendants have been dis-

cussed in our opening brief.

Lastly, on pages 25 and 2(5 of defendants' brief, appears a



quotation from a trial brief prepared by the plaintiff's at-

torneys, which extract defendants succeeded in getting in-

corporated in the bill of exceptions. We think that any

extract of counsel's argument can have no place in a bill of

exceptions for the reasons urged on the oral argument. Cer-

tainly this extract cannot be construed as an admission, and
equally certainly if it can be considered at all, it must be

read in connection with the whole of the plaintiff's brief

and line of argument, so that the weight to be given to it

can be ascertained from the full context.

June 24, 1897. Respectfully submitted,

SIDNEY V. SMITH,

VINCENT NEALE,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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SYLLABUS.
Whether the writing signed by Donohoe was

a mere offer on his part, or a contract binding

upon him without acceptance by Mills, must de-

pend upon the facts attending its execution.

Under the California practice a judgment
must be supported by positive findings upon all

the issues. The doctrine of implied findings

does not obtain in this State.

Therefore, if it was necessary to the judgment

in this action to hold that the writing signed by
Donohoe was a mere offer, the judgment should

have been supported by a direct finding upon



the point ; and, not "being so supported, should

"be reversed.

The trial Court having failed to find that the

-writing was a mere offer, or to find facts from
which such a conclusion would necessarily flow,

and no such facts appearing in the bill of excep-

tions, this Court cannot, to support the judg-

ment, make a finding which the trial Court did

not make.

Even if the writing be regarded as a revocable

offer, Mills was estopped from defending on that

ground, because the circumstances of the trans-

action cast upon him the duty, as between him-

self and G-ray, of accepting the offer, and he

cannot be heard to complain that Donohoe was
not bound, when it was within his own power
and a part of his own obligation to bind him.

In the Court below there were five points under con-

sideration in this case, and between the trial Court and

the Appeal Court the plaintiff occupies the position of

having won on each and every of the five issues, and yet

lost his suit. (Gray v. Smith, j6 Fed. Rep., 525.)

The Court below gave judgment for defendants in

error on the ground that plaintiff had failed to show that

he had the "independent ability" to fulfill the contract

on his part without the assistance coming to him on com-

pletion by or from the other party to the contract.



This was the only subject matter of appeal, and to this

point, therefore, plaintiff's counsel directed their argu-

ment.

This Court, while declining" to discuss the reason

which actuated the trial Court in its decision, affirmed

the judgment on a ground foreign to the appeal, and, as

a substantive proposition, foreign even to the findings,

and in the absence of a substantive or definite affirmative

finding necessary to support the judgment under the

requirements of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

We do- not of course question the right or duty of the

Appeal Court to consider the whole of the findings, or its

right to determine whether, upon a proper view of the

law applicable thereto, the judgment is sustainable on

other points not the immediate subject of appeal ; but we

are sure the Court will pardon us if we say, with the

greatest respect, that the reason given by this Court for

affirming the judgment, even if it were coincident with

the evidence given in the trial Court, and even if there

was an affirmative finding to support the judgment, does

not seem to us to go the real issue, or to touch any vital

point in this case.

We say " even if it were coincident with the evidence

given in the trial Court" because it seems to us that the

judgment depends upon a foundation of fact contrary to

the evidence given in the trial Court, and unsupported

by any affirmative finding thereon.

The evidence relating to the special point under appeal

duly appeared in the transcript, but the entire and volu-

minous evidence given at the trial as bearing on side



issues not the subject of appeal of necessity did not ap-

pear in the transcript.

For the same reason there was no substantive " find-

in or " of fact given by the Court on a point not deemed

to be under dispute on appeal.

For a like reason the point was practically unargued.

We respectfully submit that the document signed by

Donohoe, the groundwork for this Court's adverse de-

cision to the plaintiff in error, cannot be considered from

the standpoint of " construction " alone in order to deter-

mine its legal effect, or whether or no it is an "offer"

merely or the "acceptance" of a verbal offer previously

made. In the absence of evidence it may be a question

of " construction," but, we submit, that it can only be con-

strued in the light of the surrounding circumstances, the

evidence relating to which is almost entirely omitted in

the findings and transcript.

The "finding " that incidentally treats of this document

(Finding VI, Transcript 34) says merely that Donohoe

"executed a paper," and below, on same page, "the

signatures to said instrument." In the actual, substantive

description of this document, then, it is not found to be

either an "offer" or an "acceptance" of an offer.

The decision and judgment are based upon the propo-

sition that the paper signed by Donohoe was a mere offer,

revocable until accepted by Mills, but that it was such a

" mere offer" is nowhere affirmatively found by the trial

Court. It is indeed referred to by the trial Court in the

course of the findings as an "offer " or a " proposition,"

but this reference, by way of description or identification,



cannot be taken to be a finding upon the fact itself.

Now, under the system of practice which obtains in the

California Courts, a judgment must be sustained by af-

firmative findings upon every issue, and if there is a fail-

ure to find upon every issue necessary to support the

judgment, the judgment must be reversed.

Majors v. Cowell, 51 Cal., 478.

N. P. R. R. Co. v. Reynolds, 50 Cal., 90.

Evidently, therefore, the findings being silent as to

this point of fact, the judgment must be reversed, unless

there is something in the paper itself or in the facts which

are found by the Court below to warrant this Court in

treating the paper as a mere offer.

Taking the paper by itself there is nothing to indicate

or from which the Court could find whether it is an orig-

inal offer proceeding without consideration from Dono-

hoe, or an acceptance by him of an offer from some one

else to buy upon the terms contained in the paper. If it

was the latter, it was more than an offer ; it was an ac-

ceptance of an offer, and, just as it purports to be, art

agreement to sell in consideration of the promise implied

by a precedent offer coming from some one else, signed

by the party to be bound thereby, and handed by him to

the other contracting party in an envelope addressed to

him, and thus identifying him and forming part of the

document itself. (Finding top of page 34.)

And that this was the essential character of the "in-

strument " is not negatived by any of the facts so mea-

gerly set forth in the findings which surrounded its exe-

cution. The findings simply show that Donohoe, Jr.,
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being- thereunto authorized by his father, signed and de-

livered to Cavanagh the paper in question. Now, if

Cavanagh in fact offered Donohoe $165,000 and half the

taxes for the current year for the property, and, to meet

a scruple of Donohoe's, suggested and procured the in-

sertion of Mills' name in the paper as that of the pur-

chaser or ultimate grantee, it should need no argument

or authority to show that no acceptance on Mills' part,

nor on the part Of anyone else, was necessary to bind

Donohoe. The transaction then would have been one

where there was a complete meeting of minds between

the parties, who were in reality Donohoe and Cavanagh.

An agreement arrived at between them by which Dono-

hoe obligated himself to convey to Mills, and upon which

both Cavanagh and Mills, or either of them, could have

sued without further action on their part. The findings

are silent as to all this, but the error of the decision of

this Court lies in assuming from this silence that the pa-

per was not produced in this way, while, on the contrary,

it should reverse the judgment because, it being possi-

ble that the paper was produced in this way, the findings,

to support the judgment, should have negatived such a

possibility and found affirmatively that it was not pro-

duced in this way.

It is abundantly apparent throughout the findings that

the document was accepted as a binding contract and

acted upon and treated by all parties to the transaction,

throughout all the ordinary incidents attending a pur-

chase and sale, not as an " offer," but as the acceptance

of an offer—the contract for sale resulting from an offer



and acceptance. Mills' attorneys referred to Mills' " ob-

ligation " thereunder (Transcript, pages 40-41), and

Donohoe's attorneys—in order that Donohoe might get

quit of his recognized obligations thereunder—tender

a deed to Mills and to Gray and to Cavanagh. In short,

the whole transaction was absolutely bona fide and free

from all suspicion of fraud ; cordially and unequivocally

acquiesced in and acted upon by all parties to the trans-

action—Cavanagh, Gray, Mills and Donohoe, and their

several attorneys — after each party thereto had full

notice of every phase of the negotiations, money

differences, everything in connection therewith. Not

only was judgment affirmed on a point foreign to

the appeal, foreign to the findings, and upon a trans-

cript of the evidence necessarily incomplete and

misleading on a point not deemed to be under present

consideration, but the point has been practically unargued.

With the greatest respect, we are confident that the

point cannot stand when brought to the test of argument,

and that a great injustice will be done if it be not reviewed.

Says this Court : The paper signed by Donohoe was,

in legal effect, a mere offer to sell to Mills, and was not

binding upon Donohoe until accepted by Mills. At any

time before acceptance it could have been recalled by

Donohoe. It never was accepted by Mills nor by any

one else, and therefore it never obligated Donohoe nor

gave the plaintiff a right to compel a conveyance to Mills

nor to himself. Therefore the judgment should be af-

firmed. Now it does seem to us that the legal effect of

this document, as stated by this Court as above, depends
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entirely upon whether the document was an " acceptance

of a verbal offer" or a mere "offer to sell;" this is a

matter of evidence, and the trial Court who heard and'

considered the evidence did not venture to give judg-

ment against the plaintiff on this point.

We are, however, quite willing to take up the argu-

ment upon the basis that the Donohoe document was an

"offer" to sell and not an acceptance of a verbal offer,

and for the time being, for the sake of viewing it from

this aspect, will thus concede.

When thus viewed it seems to us that some of the

most important considerations which we attempted to

present in the argument already made in this case, have

been ignored. The opinion rendered by the Court cer-

tainly does not advert to those considerations, and for

this reason, and, moreover, because we are convinced that

they are and should be controlling (when viewed from

this standpoint) and also because we fear that our re-

marks may have escaped the attention of the Court, we
venture to file this petition for a rehearing.

For the sake of argument, grant then that the paper

signed by Donohoe was a mere offer, grant even that Gray

himself could not have obtained under it a right to compel

Donohoe to convey to himself or Mills, does it therefore

necessarily follow that Gray has no right of action against

Mills ? Is that all there is in this case? Does that con-

clude the whole matter? Are there no equities, no es-

toppels, which should prevent Mills from defending this

action upon any such ground as is now made the basis

of the Court's judgment?



Grant, for sake of argument, that Donohoe never be-

came bound to convey to any one. Grant likewise that

Gray could not have brought himself into such relations

with Donohoe as would have enabled him to force Dono-

hoe to convey. The fact still remains, and it is a fact not

even alluded to by this Court, that the whole situation

lay completely in Mills' power, and that the offer never

having been withdrawn by Donohoe, it was always in

Mills' power to accept Donohoe's offer and obtain the

title. Although, as between Mills and Donohoe, we will

likewise grant, for sake of argument, that Donohoe was

not bound to convey, and Mills was not required to ac-

cept the offer, was there nothing in the whole transaction

which, as between Mills and Gray, obligated Mills to

accept Donohoe's offer, and to get and take title in that

way ? We confidently maintain that there was. Mills

agreed with Gray that he would buy and pay for the

Market street lot. He was at once informed (by

copy of the paper in question) that the title was

to come from Donohoe under the latter's obligation to

convey to himself. Instead of demurring to this form of

the transaction, as perhaps he might have done, he acqui-

esced in it, and submitted the abstract to his attorney.

At any moment, if he chose to do so, he could have noti-

fied Donohoe of his acceptance, and obtained through

Gray, and by reason of his contract zvith Gray, the right

to compel a conveyance to himself. This power he did

not exercise because the title was rejected, but the title

has been found to have been good, and therefore Mills'

refusal to go on stands, as a matter of law, without any
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legal justification. From a legal standpoint it was arbi-

trary and unexcused, unless excused by the reason

which has induced this Court to affirm the judgment.

Putting aside, then, the reason which actuated Mills,

which was no reason, how does the matter stand? Mills,

in effect, took this position, or it is now taken for him by

the Court :
" It is true, Gray, that I agreed to buy from

you and pay for the lot ; it is true that I have taken from

you in satisfaction of our contract, and without demur,

an offer running to me directly, and that I did not require

you to put the transaction into some other shape , it is

true that I can, if I wish, at any time notify Donohoe

that I accept his offer, and thus obtain everything which

you agreed to give me, and enable you to fulfill your

engagement with me ; but I decline to do so, and my
reason for declining is that formally and technically I,

and not you, are the one who can bind Donohoe."

Will this Court say that that is an equitable position ?

Was it right and fair and honest that Mills should have

it in his arbitrary power, at his mere caprice, just as it

suited or did not suit his views of his own interest, to set

the benefit of the transaction, to make all the profits to

be derived from it, or throw it up when and as he pleased?

Was it a one-sided arrangement this, by which all the

chances of gain were with Mills, under which he could

have sued Gray for damages if Donohoe had refused to

convey or the title had proved to be bad, and yet from

which Mills could escape if he thought the chances of loss

were the stronger ones ? Was there no mutuality of ob-
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ligations, were there no duties imposed upon Mills by his

conduct and the course of the transaction ?

We believe that these questions answer themselves,

and that there can be no proper solution of this case by

any reasoning which leaves out of view all the relations

of all the parties, or which is based, as the opinion ren-

dered by this Court seems to be, upon a view of the re-

lations of Mills and Donohoe alone towards Donohoe's

offer, and not upon a consideration of the relations of

Gray and Mills, growing out of their contract, their con-

duct, and the part which Donohoe's offer played in the

transaction between them. Once more we urge upon

the Court that the fact that the offer ran to Mills and not

to Gray was a matter of form and not of substance, and

that, as it gave to Mills the power to get the title by a

simple act of acceptance which he should have performed,

he was estopped from taking advantage of his own

wroncrand from asserting that Donohoe was not bound

to convey, when the only reason why Donohoe was not

bound to convey was because Mills himself refused to

bind him.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

SIDNEY V. SMITH,

VINCENT NEALE,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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Certificate of Counsel.

We, the undersigned, counsel for plaintiff in error,

certify that in our judgment, and in the judgment of each

of us, the foregoing petition for a rehearing is well

founded, and we certify that it is not interposed for

delay.

SIDNEY V. SMITH,

VINCENT NEALE,

Counsel for Albert E. Gray, Plaintiff in Error.


















